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About us

Secure Trust Bank ("STB’) is an award-winning UK retail
bank, providing savings accounts and lending services
to over a million customers.

Born in 1952 in the West Midlands, we’ve had plenty
of time to hone our craft.

Safety. Security.
Peace of mind.
A bank you

can trust.
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We like to keep it simple. We are a
well-funded and capitalised UK retail
bank, with a track record of successful
performance across a diverse

lending portfolio.

We use our market awareness and
strong risk management discipline
to remain agile, aligning our product
mix to meet demand from our

retail and business customers in
attractive markets.

Profit before tax
£38.7/m
2018: £34.7 million

Total assets

£2,682.8m

2018: £2,444.3 million

Pages 2 to 61 form the Strategic Report. It includes our businass model, economic
and regulatory environmert, strategy, financial review and a business review for each
of the lines of business. Pages 106 to 108 form the Directors’ Report.
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Strategic Report

Chairman’s statement

Lord Forsyth
Chairman
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We are well placed to tackle
the exceptional challenges arising
from COVID-19.”

Another
successful
year for
the Group
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Despite some headwinds, 2019 has been
anather succassful year for the Group.

Statutory profit before tax grew by 11.5%
to £38.7 million, basic earnings per share
by 9.9% and lending balances exceeded
£2.4 billion at the end of the year.

By the end of the year we had more than
1.5 million custorners, deposits of
£2,020.3 million and the cost of risk had
falien from 1.8% in 2018 to 1.4% (see page
190 for definition).

COMD-19 will cause substantiaf

damage to the UK and global economy.
The Group has plans in place which seek
to mitigate business disruption, protect the
welfare of our employees and continue
supporting customers and business
partners during this unsettling period.

The strang start to 2020 would ordinarily
see the Board recommend an increased
dividend, We have now entered a period
of extreme uncertainty driven by the
COVID-19 outbreak, however, and in these
exceptional circumstances the Board
considers that it is prudent to preserve
capital and is nat recommending a final
dividend for approval by shareholders at
the Annual General Meeting,

In accordance with the curent UK
Government guidance on social
distancing, prohibition on non-essential
travel and public gatherings, the Board
regrets that it will not be possible for
shareholders to attend this year's AGM in
person. We would encourage all
shareholders ta vote on the rasolutions
proposed at the AGM however, and
further details are set out in the Notice
of AGM.

The Group Employee Coundil established
last year is working well and the Group was
ranked as the 29th best large company to
work for by Great Place to Work® in 2019.
We have made changes to benefits and to
flexible working to help encourage
diversity in aur warkforce. Our matched
giving scheme has been extended to
suppaort the impressive charitable work
undenaken by our employees.

i
1
!
i




As a responsible business, we are
deternined to make a positive contribution
to the communities in which we operate,
the impact of climate change features on
our agenda and you can see the impressive
activities conducted by our employees set
out on page 59,

As a Board we are committed to good
governance and will continue 1o strive to
ensure our committees, our Directors’
Remuneration Policy and our actions
maintain compliance with best practice.

At the year-end we announced changes
to the composition of the Board and its
Cormmittees arising from the appointment
of David McCreadie as a Non-Executive
Director, the resignation of Neeraj Kapur
as Chief Financial Officer and the
prospective retirement of Paul Marrow at
the 2020 AGM. Paul is deemed to be no
longer independent under the Corporate
Governance Code after nine years' service.
He will be much missed and has made an
outstanding contribution to our business.

t should also like to wish Neeraj well in his
new role at Provident Financial. | am
especially grateful to Ann Berresford,

Paul Myers, Victoria Stewart, Lucy Neville-
Roife and David McCreadie for taking on
additional Board responsibilities.

Finally, | would like to thank all my
colleagues for another year of
achievement and for their continued
dedication and commitment and
espedially our Chief Executive Paul Lynam
who has delivered double-digit growth in
profits hefore tax for the second year in
succession, | am grateful 1oo for the
resilience my colleagues at ST8 have
shown as we navigated the troubled
waters of COVID-1% to continue 1o serve
our customers and support our

wider workforce.

Given the resoutrces at our dispaosal,

the talents of our people, the flexibility of
our business model and our clear strategy,
we are well placed to tadde the
exceptional challenges arising from
COVID-19.

Lord Forsyth
Chairman

6 May 2020

Financial highlights

CHART REMOVED

! From conlinuing operations.
Operational highlights

We have more than

1.5m

customers

The cost of risk has fallen to

1.4%

CHART REMOVED

Deposits of

£2,020.3m

FEEFO customer satisfaction ratings

4.7 stars
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Strategic Repont

Our business model

How Secure Trust Bank does what it does

We lend to business and

personal customers, funded
primarily by customer deposits.

8 offices across the UK
1 Saiihul

2 Cardif

3 Manchester
4 Birmingham
S Rotherham
& Leeds

7 London

8 Reading

GRAPHIC REMOVED

Our divisions

[ | Business Finance

@ Read more on pages 26 1o 29

Seayred lending to businesses, relatively lower yield and lowar risk.

Lending decisions are made on an individual transaction basis, using expert judgement
and assassment against criteria set out in lending polices.

Real estate
Support to SMEs in providing finance

principally for residential devetopment and

residential investment.

Asset

Funding to support SME businasses in
acquiring commercial assets, such as

building egquipment, comumaercial vehicles

and manufacturing equipment.
Asset Financs Is currantly dosed to new businass

Commercial

A full range of invoice finencing solutions
to UK businesses induding invoice
discounting and factoring.

e Consumer Finance

@ Read mora on pagas 33 to 35

Secured and unsecured lending, ranging from low to higher yield and risk.

Underwriting technology is used to make lending dedsians quickly, resulting in high
customer satisfaction scores while using strong risk manag t to minimise bad debt.

Retail

Lending products for in-store and anline
ratailers to enable consumer purchases.

Debt management

Collection of debt on behalf of a range of
clients as well as for Group companies.

Motor

Fixed rate, fixed term hire purchase
arrangements, pradaminantly on
used cars,

Mortgages

Lending to individuals who wish to
purchase a property or remortgage their
current property.

Consumer Mongages is currently closed 1o new business

Savings

© Resd more On pages 36 to 39

Savings

Customer depaosits, from personal and
business customers, available online and
serviced using intemet banking.

Deposit sccounts are promoted to meet
fkunding needs and to broadly match the
maturity profiles of lending.

Deposits range from instant access to
saven-year bonds, including Cash 15As.

0-4 Secure Trust Bank PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2019
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What STB needs
to operate

How STB
conhects with
customers

REMOVED | Our people

The Group had 1,017 employees

{full-time equivalent) at 31 December 2019,
{31 December 2018: B84) most of whom
are based at the head office in Solihull,
West Midlands.

O Read mora about our pacpla an pages 55 to 57

EW—HEI Capital and
ReMovD | liquidity

We need to ensure we have sufficient
levels of capital and liquidity resources

to support our growth and satisfy
reguiatory requiraments.

O Read more on pages 24 and 25

e
REMOVED| Phone

UK-based customner support is
available for aur lending and
savings customers.

2]
REMOVED | management

Risk management is key to our success.

As well as strong management of credit
risk and of capital and liquidity resources,
we closely manage market risk, operational
visk, conduct risk and regulatory risk.

© Read mmave on pages 40 to 49

GRAPHIC
lﬁmf)l Internet

Our savings products are
applied for and serviced _
through a highly commended
oniine banking service.

s e

awareness
We have built 2 management team with
significant experience in our chosen markets
as well as tha wider macro-economic and
regulatory efvironment.
© Raad more on pages &4 to 65

!EL—M Business
REMOVED] partners

Motor lending is provided via
UK motor daalers, brokers and
imernet intreducers,

Real Estate and Commercial
Finance business is sourced
and supported both directly
and via intraducers.

GRAPHIC Fle’db'e
REMOVES | business model

We have grown ouwr lending portfalio acroas
a diverse range of sectors, aflowing us to

be flaxible and focus growth In the most
attractive areas. Through carefully targeted
lending , the absence of large fixed
overheads in the form of a branch network
and a policy of not cross-subsidising loss-
making products with profitable ones, we can
offer competitive deposit interest rates and
have been succassful in attracting deposits
from a wide range of customers.

& Read mors an pages 04 snd 05

REMOVED| Retailers

Wa operate an online e-commerce
service to retailers, providing
finance to customers of thosa
retailers through the V12 Retafl
Finance brand.

The value we
create for our
stakeholders

E;m Our
REMVED| shareholders

Wa defiver returns to shareholders
by:

* Eamning interast, fee and
cormmission income from our
lending businesses

« Maintaining efficient funding
and operational cost levels

¢ Comrolling loan impairment
levels through robust credit
risk managament

® Read more n our Flnancial Review
on pages 20 to 25

Business
REMOVED +
and retail .
We make available a range
of lending options to meet
the demands of UK business,
particularly from businesses
neading working capital, house
builders and motor dealers.

Qur Retall Finance products enabla
retaiters to offer credit fadities
both in-store and online.

R,qpmc Private
EMOEY consumers
Across all products, we aim

to deliver high levels of
customer satisfaction,

Lending products are designed
to meet the needs of the consumer,
be affordable and easy to apply for.

The savings range offers
competitive, simple products
covared by the Financia! Services
Compensation Scheme up to
the specified fimits.

GrarHc] Wider
M stakeholders

The Group operates as a
responsible business that benefits
a wide renge of stakeholders,
Further details are provided In
the Section 172 Statement.

@ Road mare on pages 59 1o &1
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Strategic Report

Economic and regulatory environment

Context for

growth

The success of our products and services in 2019 was impacted
by macro-economic and regulatory developments creating
both challenges and opportunities for each of our divisions.

UK GDP annual growth rate 2019

1.4%

Offica of National Statisthcs — 11 Fabaunry 2020

UK unemployment rate Q4 2019

3.8%

Office of Nabional Statistics - 21 Jamuary 202G

UK general Inflation rate 2019

<2%

Bank of England - 30 January 2020

UK Residential Market National Enquiries

+23%

RICS UK Renidantial Market Survey - 13 February 2020

06 Secure Trust Bank PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2019

Macro-economic

%

Recent developments

To give context to the Group’s
performance in 2019, the following section
sets out develapments in the macro-
economic environment, and particularly
the UK ecanomy, in that year. It therefore
daes not cover the more recent COVID-19
autbreak, which Is addressed elsewhere in
the Strategic Report.

In 2019, the UK economy was
characterised by relatively weak and
somewhat volatile growth. The year was
significantly impacted by political instability
and uncertainties associated with the UK's
exit from the EU. Notwithstanding these
uncertainties, the economy moved forward
in 2019 and the Office of National Statistics
reported estimated UK GDP grawth of
1.4% in 2019.

The labour market remained robust with
the unermployment rate at 3.6% in the
three months to October, the lowest since
the mid-1970s, and job vacancies at
near-record levels. Real wage growth was
positive in 2019, undermpinning consumer
confidence and household consumption,
Homebuying activity rose as shown by UK
Residentiat Market National Enguiries.
The general inflation rate remained below
the Bank of England's 2% target and the
housing market was subdued.

This resulted in limited pressures on the
Monetary Policy Committes to raise
interest rates.




The decisive UK General Election result
removed the immediate uncertainty
surrounding Brexit and preliminary reports
indicated a positive response in economic
activity. Both business and investor
optimism appeared to have lifted with
some evidence of a rebound in the
housing market,

Nonetheless, the year dosed with a
continuing level of uncertainty over the
course of 2020 as the UK enters trade
negotiations. Consequently, policymakers
adopted a cautionary stance and the
Bank of England’s forecasts for 2020 saw
the UK economy growing at a weaker rate
compared with 2019 of 0.75%.

Qutlook

We continue to monitor the macro-
econamic environment closely, particularly
given the COVID-19 outbreak. It is dear
that the emerging pandemic will
significantly impact on the UK and global
economy with the full scale of the impact
not being certain for some time.

The Group has the flexibility and business
model to be able to respond rapidly to
such challenges and, as set out elsewhere
in the Strategic Report, has 1aken steps to
maintain operational continuity and
ongoing support for customers, business
partners and employees.

Regulation

\ 2

Recent developmants

A number of key regulatory announcernents
have been made over 2019 which are likely
to impact the Group. As always, we seek to
respond to such announcements promptly
and comply with all applicable regulation.

One particular focus area is operational
resilience. As set out in its response to the
van Steenis review on the Future of
Finance, one of the five priority areas for
action by the Bank of England is to
facilitate firms’ use of technology to
increase their operational resilience and

to protect the wider financial sactor and
the UK aconomy from the impact of
operational disruption. In December 2019,
the PRA and FCA published three
consultation papers outlining their
expectations of firms in their achievernent
of operational resilience, with a policy
statement expected in Q2, 2020. The need
for operational resilience has been
demonstrated as the COVID-19 outbreak
has prograssed.

Reflecting wider concerns in sodiety, there
is also an increased supervisory focus on
climate change. In April 2019, the PRA
published a supervisory statement focused
on enhancing firms’ approaches to
managing the finandial risks from climate
change and we would expect
environmental regulation to remain an
ongoing theme, For example, the Bank of
England has announced that future stress
testing processes will aim to assess the
finandial risks posed by climate change.

Further details on the Group’s position in
respect of aperational resilience and
climate chenge are set out in the Principal
risks and uncertainties section on page 40.

Secure Trust Bank PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2019

As expected there is a continuing focus
on treating customers fairly. In June the
UK Gavernment announced that a new
60-day breathing space scheme will be
introcluced by early 2021 to protect
individuals with problem debt. Also,

in October the FCA published a consultation
which proposes to ban commission models
that give Motor Finance brokers/dealers an
incentive to raise customers’ interest rates.
The direct impact of this consultation on the
Group is not expected to be material given
that the Group does not engage in this type
of pricing activity.

The Bank of England is alse consulting on
the use of regulatory data over the next
decade to both enhance insights into

the financial system and assess ways to
decrease the regufatory reporting burden
on the industry. The Bank has also indicated
that it will cansult on the appropriate level
of access to its payments infrastructure and
balance sheet.

As noted in the Chief Executive’s
statement, other aspects of emerging
regulation have limited impact on the
Group but affect competitors, These include
ringfencing requirements affecting large
banks and the wransition from LIBOR.

Qutlaok

We continue to prepare for the final

Basel 1l reforms which will now apply from
1 January 2023, which we anticipate will
go some way to levelling the playing fisld
between IRB instititions and thase on the
Standardised Approach. We will also
continue to monitor developments arising
from the UIK(s exit from the European
Union, particularly any movement towards
a more proportionate approach to the
regulation of smaller banks, and any
regulatory developments arising from

the COVID-19 outbreak,
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Strategic Report

Chief Executive’s statement

Paul Lynam
Chief Executiva
Officer

IMAGE REMOVED
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We continue to focus on
consistently delivering good
outcomes for customers.”

Evolving
the business
for the future
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| am delighted to report a
strong year's performance for
2019 when viewed across a
broad range of customer,
staff and financial metrics.

I would like to thank the entire
STB team for their commitment
and professionalism last year
and for the way they have
continued delivering good
outcomes for our customers.

As expected, the strategic repositicning
of the business mode), initiated in 2017
towards lower risk [ending, and ongoing
growth in both Business Finance and
Consumer Finance, have continued to
deliver benefits. Customer numbers,
lending balances and income have grown
whilst the cost of risk {see page 190 for
definition) has continued to fall.

These factors have driven strong growth
in reported and adjusted earnings.

The finandal results for 2019 show the
Group statutory profit before tax increasing
by 11.5% to £38.7 miflion compared to the
£34.7 million of profit before tax generated
during 2018. Adjusted profit before tax on
the same basis has increased by 12.0% to
f41.1 million. Adjusted eamings per share
increased by 10.4% over the same period
with basic earnings per share increasing

by 9.9%.

it is noteworthy that the profit growth
above was achieved after accommodating
a significant fall in used car values in the
summer of 2019, which impacted
impairment provisions, and a very marked
slowdown in UK economic activity last
autumn ahead of the planned Brexit date
of 31 October and then the

General Election.

The Group entered 2020 aspiring to
deliver double digit profit before tax
growth for the third successive year.

After the first quarter performance was in
Iine with management expectations, with
strong profit perfarmance despite
increased impairment provisioning to
recognise the threat of COVID-19.
However in recent weeks the UK and
glebal economies have become exposed
to unprecedented levels of uncertainty
with recessions looking inevitable in many




countries. Therefore, notwithstanding

a very positive start to the year it is
currently impaossible to estimate with any
degree of accuracy how damaging this
virus will be for the UK economy.

The lockdown imposed by HM
Government in late March 2020 has
resulted in demand for the Group’s Motor
Finance products drying up completely
and our Retail Finance lending volumes
are circa 50% of expectations. Demand for
new Invoice Finance and Real Estate
Finance has largely evaporated.

The consequence of the material falls in
new lending business being written means
that the Group's customer lending
balances have started to contract for the
first time in many years, This contraction is
likely to persist and will be influenced by
any revival in economic activity and our
credit risk appetites which will remain
cautious. In light of the rapidly evolving
situation the Group has undertaken
significant additional stress testing to
assess the potential impact of the crisis on
capital and liquidity pasitions which remain
healthy. Assessments to date indicate that
the short duration of loan books helps to
maintain capital and liquidity levels above
regulatory requirements throughout a very
severe recession. Given the extreme
uncertainty we are not providing forward
guidance for 2020 at this time.

The Group's immediate focus is on
supporting celleagues, customers and
business partners and a range of plans is in
place to seek to mitigate the operational
and economic impact of COVID-19.

The Group expects that once through the
worst of the outbreak, and assuming a
trade deal is agreed with the EU, the UK
economic outlook will improve strongly
which the Group will seek to leverage as it
continues to execute its clearly defined
growth strategy. We are well placed to
support an increase in derand for working
capital funding from businesses and
residential development finance from
house builders. The latter is aided by

a requlatory capital efficient Enable
Guarantee we have agreed with the
British Business Bank. We are progressing
significant investment in our Motor
Finance business which will see this
portfolio grow considerably over the next
five years via the provision of dealer
stocking finance (now live} and a prime
motor proposition for consumers.

Ongoing growth in customer
base with satisfaction levels
remaining very positive

Across our consumer and SME business
products we are serving well over

1.5 million customers. Total customer
nurbers are a record 1,598,256 customers
which is an increase of 24.9% on the total
customer base of 1,279,783 as at

31 December 2018.

We continue to focus on consistently
delivering good outcomes for customners
and ensuring that the design of cur
products is appropriate for their needs.
From a conduct and behaviour
perspective, we do not cross-subsidise
losses or low profits on some products
with super profits on others. Nor do we
discriminate between customers by, for
example, paying very fow deposit interest
rates to existing loya! customers whilst
offering much higher rates to new ones.
We believe that our approach is the
appropriate way to interact with our
customers for the long-term benefit of
ali parties.

Customer satisfaction is measured in a
number of ways, It is reassuring that 2019
has once again seen us consistently
achieve customer satisfaction ratings in
excess of 90% across all of our products
as measured by Feefo. We also use

Net Promoter Scores to assess our
customer service and these scores exhibit
similar positive trends to those derived
from Feefo.

| arm delighted to confirm that for the
seventh year running we have retained

the Customner Service Excellence standard.
This indicates our customer service has been
judged 10 meet Government standards of
excellence which are benchmarked against
high-performing organisations.

Whilst being pleased with external
accolades and ongoing high customer
satisfaction scores we are in no way
complacent. We are focused on improving
our existing service and products and
diversifying our custorner proposition via
targeted investment in people, systems,
processes and products.

Highlights of 2019

* Statutory profit before tax increased
by 11.5% to £38.7 million

* Adjusted profit before tax increased
by 12.0% to £41.1 million

s Customer numbers now over
1.5 million

s Customer satlsfaction scores continue
to be consistently over 90%

* Launch of new Cash {SA products in
April 2019

* V12 Vehicle Finance brand faunched and
inftial phases of Motor Transformation
Programme implemented

& Customer Service Excellence standard
retained for the seventh year running

+ New freehold premises, Yorke
House, acquired

IMAGE REMOVED

Growth in customer numbers

up 25%

{1,598.254)
X¥18: 1,279,783

GRAPHIC REMOVED

Feefo customer satisfaction ratings

90%+

2018: 0%+
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Strategic Report

Chief Executive's statement

continued

(G

The majority of
customers with
maturing medium-term
savings bonds continue
to reinvest their funds
into deposit products
with us.”

GRAPHIC REMOVED

IMAGE REMOVED

B4

2019 was a busy
year for our Motor
business which
was successfully
rebranded V12

Vehicle Finance.”

Operational progress

Operational resilience remains a key
matter for regulatory scrutiny and we
have adopted a proactive approach.
Having carefully considered the varicus
discussion and consultation papers
published by the regulators we have
updated our operaticnal risk plans in
relation to the identification, assessment
and management of risks. This extends to
managing the third party risks that arise
when outsourcing activities. | am pleased
to note that the Group received Cyber
Essentials Plus accreditation in the secend
half of 2019, which is a good reflection on
our continued cyber security focus.

Given the continuing growth across the
Group and our ongoing ambitions, we
acquired new freehold premises in Solihull
very close to the existing Head Office
building. This is now operational and,

with an eye on the future, this is geared to
accommodate more agile working
practices, including those which will reduce
our carbon footprint. These practices,

and our well-established business
continuity plans, will help us deal with the
impact of COVID-19,

Healthy capital position

Our ongoing priority is to safeguard the
reputation and sustainability of the Group
through conservative balance sheet
managemeant, investment for long-term
sustainable growth and robust risk and
operational controls,

Our year-end CETY capital levels are
heatthy with a CET1 ratio of 12.7%
compared to the 2018 year-end position of
13.8%. The Total Capital Ratio was 15.0%
(2018: 16.3%;} and our leverage ratio as at
31 December 2019 was 9.8% (2018: 10.0%).
The year-on-year movement in CET1is a
function of the investment of capital to
support the strong growth in the

loan portfolios.

In December 2019 the Bank of England
announced an increase in the countercydical
capital buffer from 1% of risk-weightad
assets to 2%, with effect from December
2020, and its intention to consult ors
offsetting this increase via reductions in
variable Piliar 2A add-ons, to ensure the
levels of capital in the system stay broadly
unchanged. Since then, as part of the

1 O Secure Ttust Bank PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2019

package of measures introduced to
mitigate the impact of COVID-19, the
buffer has been reduced to 0%,

This intervention is welcomed and we will
continue to monitor capital levels closely
throughout the period affected by

the outbreak.

Prudent liquidity management

QOur year-end loan to daposit ratio was
121.3% (2018: 109.8%). This ratio was
higher than normal due to the strong
conversion of new business pipeline shead
of year-end. The ratio has reverted to
normal levels in the first part of 2020
Customer demand for our deposit
preducts remains very strong, and | am
pleased to continue to note that the
majority of customers with maturing
medium-term savings bonds continue to
reinvest their funds into deposit products
with us.

The Bank has continued broadly to
match-fund its customer lending with
custorner deposits. This strategy seeks to
mitigate maturity transformation and
interest basis risks. Given the growthin the
balance sheet in recent years, we have
cantinued to invest in our Treasury function
and capabilities to further mitigate interest
rate risks via the use of hedging
instruments. This is a significant step in the
deveiopment of the Group’s capabilities.

We continued to leverage the benefits
from the depaosit platform installed in 2017
via the launch of a new Cash ISA product
to coincide with the new tax year in April
2019, Cash ISAs are the second biggest
pool of consumer deposit liquidity in the
UK and typically attract margins around
20% below non-cash 1SA deposits.
Accass Account products have also been
developed and tested and are raady

for launch.

Usage of the Term Funding Scheme
(TFS") is broadly unchanged over the last
12 months. This remains a modest part of
the Bank’s funding. We note the extension
1o this funding in fight of COVID-19 and
will be considering whether the Group will
take advantage of it.




Income grew and cost of
risk reduced

The Group's operating income grew by
9.2% t0 a record level of £165.5 million
compared te £151.4 million in 2018.
Operating costs rose 11.5% to

£94.2 million from £84.5 milkion in 2018,
reflacting continued investrnent in the
business. The cost-to-income ratio has
increased to 56.9% (2018: 55.7%) for
reasons explained on the following page.

In ovaralf terms the loan portfolios have
performed as expected with the benefits
of the strategic repositioning remaining
evident. This is reflected in a reduction in
the cost of risk to 1.4% in 2019 compared
to 1.8% for 2018. This is driven by the
improving book quality and consequent
reduction in probability of default.

This improvement would have been more
pronounced save for the UK car market
experiencing unusually severe seasonal
fafls in asset values during the summer
of 2019,

During the year we have recognised

£2.1 million of improvements in credit
quality refating to our debt collection
business as an impairment gain, whereas
in the previous year we incduded the
equivalent £2.0 million of improvements
in income, This makes no difference to
the profit figures but does serve to reduce
both income and the cost of risk.
Adjusting for this and for costs relating
to our frechold property purchase, on a
like-for-like basis compared to 2018,

the 2019 cost income ratio is stable at
55.5% and the 2019 cost of risk is 1.5%,
still well below the 2018 level of 1.8%.

We have continued to refine our credit
risk appetite and acceptance criteria over
2019, As a matter of course, we regularly
review our credit ariteria and pricing to
take into account our view of the current
and future economic conditions, We have
also continued to develop our ability to
use artifidal intelligence and machine
learning to further refine our

credit decisions.

Customer lending activities

Once again, double digit percentage
gremith was achieved acrass the Group's
loan portfolio in 2019, notwithstanding the
dosure of the consurmer mortgage
operations in the spring. Total annual new
business lending volumes grew 12.0% to
£1,413 million (2018: £1,262 million) which
translated to an increase of 20.8% in overall
balance sheet customer lending assets to
£2,450 million {2018: £2,029 million).

Consumer Finance

In 2019 total consumer lending, exduding
mortgages, increased 20.9% to

£1,095.0 million {2018: £905.7 million).
Our Consumer Finance lending strategy
during 2019 was to cease new mortgage
originations and continue to allocate
capital to support the strong ongoing
growth in Retail Finance, which is shorter
term in duration and prime in nature, and
to progress the investment in Mator to
support the entry into dealer and prime
consumer finance.

The Retail Finance point of sale business
grew strongly as intended, with net
customer lending balances at

31 Decernber 2019 increasing 15.4% to
£488 9 million {2018 £597.0 million).

Our Retail Finance business has continued
to evolve as we have grown into one of
the largest participants in this market.

The average loan duration has remained
short and provides optionality in the event
of worsening economic conditions, such
as those arising due to the COMD-19
outbreak. On the assumption the
govemnment negotiates a trade deal

with the EU which is not economically
disruptive, dear scope exists for us to
offer Retail Finance in long duration loan
sectors that wa have not heavily targeted
in the past.

CHART REMOVED

New business volumes

£1,413.0m

2018: £1,261.9 million

CHART REMOVED

Loans and advances to customers

£2,450.1m

2018 £2,028.9 million
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Strategic Report

Chief Executive’s statement

continued

Key product highlights

¢ Growth in Consumer Finance lending
balances of 21.3%

* Growth in Business Finance lending
balances of 20.9%

* No material impact on earnings from
the cessation of new Consumer
Mortgage lending

* improved Consumer Finance beok
quality has reduced the cost of risk

* Business Finance impalrment
provisions continue to be immaterial

IMAGE REMOVED

2019 was a busy year for our Motor
business which was successfully rebranded
as V12 Vehicle Finance in the summer.

The first two phases of our Motor
Transformation Programme focused on the
provision of auction and dealer stacking
finance. These were successfully
completed in 2019. The next phase is the
launch of a prime lending proposition for
consumers towards the end of 2020 with
the final phase being the re-platforming of
the existing near prime portfolio, This will
give us a very strong deafer and consumer
proposition allowing us to compete
directly with the likes of Close, Biue and
Startline. We will also continue to grow the
near prime book. As noted above, the very
large fall in used car prices during the
summer increased the Motor Finance
impairment charge. The improvement in
the underlying credit quality of the
customers has been such that we have
been able to accommodate this
unexpected charge and stifl deliver a
broadly on plan performance for Motor

in 2019.

Motor net lending balances have
increased by 17.1% to £323.7 million at
31 Decernber 2019 compared to
£276.4 million in the prior year.

Debt Managers (Services) Limited ({DMS"),
which is active in third party debt collection
and portfolio acquisition, continued to
perform well during 2019. DMS revenue
from extemal customers increased to

£8.4 million from £7.0 million in 2018.

When announcing our decision to cease
originating consumer mortgage lending
last year, | noted my expectation that the
trend of increasing foan-to-value metrics
and lower new net lending margins was
likely to be sustained throughout 2019.
This has proved to be the case with nat
interest margins in the sector being
squeezed despite the risk indicators
including Loan-to-Value, Loan-to-Income
and average loan duration all increasing.
These market dynamics show no sign

of abating given the ambitions of the
ring-fenced banks to grow market share

in UK mortgages. 2017 was the first year
since 2009 when the ‘big 6' lenders grew
their share of gross new mortgage lending.
Inevitably this has squeezed other lenders.
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This would seem to vindicate our decision
to deploy capital elsewhere across our
business model. The decision to cease
lending was obviously very tough on the
staff members impacted who behaved
very professionally during this difficult
period. Fulfilment of our pipeline led to
our mortgage lending balances increasing
from £84.7 miiliior: as at 31 December 2018
to £105.9 million as at 31 December 2019,
representing growth of 25.0%, This book is
performing in line with our expectations.
As expected the cessation of new lending
did not have a material impact on the
Group's eamnings in 2019.

Business Finance

The Group’s SME lending operations have
grown strongly, as targeted, and | expect
further positive progress in 2020 (subject to
the impact of COVID-19) given wa started
the year with a strong new business
pipeline. Total business customer lending
balances in 2019 increased by 209% to
£1,241.6 million (2018: £1,027.3 million).
Real Estate Finance lending balances
increased by 25.0% to £9562.2 million as at
31 December 2019 (2018: £749.8 million).
The loan book is performing well and
remains biased in favour of modastly
leveraged residential investment lending.
This is reflected in the portfolio
composition, which in round terms is split
75% / 25% in favour of investment lending
versus development lending. We have
continued to adopt a cautious stance
towards Central London house building
finance, Demand for property
develozyment finance slowed during 2019
albeit the units we have financed have
continued to sell well with the underlying
loans being satisfactorily repaid. We had
seen an increase in enquires about
housing development finance since the
general election and expected this to
translate into increased lending here in
2020. The economic shock arising from
COVID-19 has seen this demand fall away
and the extent and speed at which this
returns remains to be seen, The average
LTV across the whole Real Estate Finance
portfolio remains less than 60% which
means we are vary well placed to support
customers disrupted by COVID-19 without
materially increasing our risk profile,




The asset finance market continued

to see vary aggressive risk appetites and
pricing during 2019, We have affocated
capital to our other products in 2019 and
allowed Asset Finance lending balances
to contract rapidly to £27.7 million as

at 31 December 2019 compared to
£62.8 million a year ago. At these
trajectories these balances will be de
minimis by the end of 2020. We will revisit
owr appetite for recommencing new
lending, possibly via inorganic routes,

in light of developments in this market
post COVID-19.

Secure Trust Bank Commerdia! Finance,
the invaice finance division of the Bank,
had anather excellent year and has now
funded over £3.0 billion of customers’
invoices since launch. Exduding the high
street banks, based on customer lending
balances we are now the 9th largest
operator in tha invoice finance market
but given the fragmented nature

of the market we have substantial
opportunities to continue to grow very
strongly in this sector. This is evidenced
by net customer lending balances,

which grew 29.3% to £251.7 million at

31 December 2019 (2018: £194.7 million).
This growth would have been more
pronounced but for the insolvencies of two
large steel businesses where we avoided
any credit losses despite lending fadilities
of circa £60 million. These are good
examples of why | believe we have one
of the most capable teams of invoice
financiers in the UK, supported by a
scalable modern IT platform. This, coupled
with Group management’s experience in
SME and corporate lending, gives STB a
distinct advantage when it comes to
structuring transactions and responding
rapidly to opportunities. Impairrnent levels
here have been immaterial reflecting very
robust credit management disciplines.

Fee-based accounts

As expected, the legacy OneBill product,
which dosed for new business in 2009,
continues 1o see customer numbers
decline over time. Customer numbers fefl
to 17,024 by 31 December 2019 compared
to 18,032 a year eatlier.

Evolving regulatory and
competitive environment

1t has been a very busy year from a
Prudential Regulation and Conduct
Regulation perspective. Regulatory
expectations have continued to become
more demanding in respect of issues such
as operational resilience, finandial agime,
regulatory reporting and cyber security.
The Group is continuing to invest and
evolve to ensure it meets these

changing expectations.

The UK's exit from the EU could have far
reaching consequences for the Finance
industry in this country. As a UK-only firm,
we do not expect to be directly impacted
by any trade deal reachad but will remain
very alert 1o developments.

Ancther significant challenge facing the
industry in the next year or so is the
transition from UBOR to SONIA, which
will be very demanding for many firms.
Given our very short duration balance
sheet, we have been able to manage our
exposure to LIBOR such that the move to
SONIA is not an issue for us.

The large banks were recuired to
implemant ring-fencing of most of their
UK operations with effect from 1 January
2019. These firms can no longer move
surplus capital and funding around their
operations overseas to maximise marginal
retums. Instead, surplus capita and
funding is effectively trapped in the UK.
The introduction of the ring-fencing has
usefully highlighted the sheer scale of the
advantages enjoyed by these firms in
terms of capital requirements and funding
costs, As a result these firms are able to
offer extremely low priced mortgages to
new customers in order to gain market
share. As I've noted above, 2019 saw the
'big 6 lenders grow their share of the new
mortgage lending market for the first
time since 2009. These firms are clearly
interested in growing in the scale lending
markets in the UK and it seems likely
returns for lenders in mortgages will
rarmain under prassure.

Total customers

1,998,256

2018:1,279,783

Employees (Full-time equivalent)

1,017

2018: 886

IMAGE REMOVED

STB employees participating in Wolf Run
to raise funds for charity.

(BG4

| believe we have one of
the most capable teams
of invoice financiers in
the UK."”
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Strategic Repornt

Chief Executive’s statement

continued

GG

Despite a slowing
economy... we have
been able to continue
to increase customer
lending balances and
profit before tax.”

S
IMAGE REMOVED

In the short term from a consumer
perspective ever-cheaper mortgages will
be seen as a good thing. However, it is not
difficult to see how continued competitive
aggression by the largest firms, with the
lowest capital requirements and cheapest
funding costs, will see them continuing to
gain market share at the expense of
smaller firms. So, 2bsent of steps to areate
a genuinely level playing field, itis not
difficuilt to envisage a future where UK
banking becomes extremely polarised with
systemic firms on one side holding the vast
maijority of the market in the scale lending
sectors, small spedialist lenders, like the
Group, operating in niches that are
sub-scale for the large firms on the other
side with no medium-sized firms in the
middle ground.

The vety tight concentration of UK banking
market share in the hands of a small
number of tco big to fail’ banks was a

key factar in the severity and duration

of the last UK recession. It is therefore
encouraging to note that the regulators
and the new Government recognise that
more needs to be done to safeguard and
promate competition in UK banking
without making the system weaker.

As | have noted before, post-Brexit the
Government could choose to adopt a
much more proportionate approach to the
regulation of smaller non-interationally
active banks than is possible today.

One option could be for the UK to adopt a
similar approach to that in the US where
there are five tiers of regulation rather than
the largely “one size fits ali’ Capital
Requirements Regulation implementing
the Capital Requirements Directive IV,

in the UK at present,

In summary, whilst the situations above
remain somewhat fluid, 1 am increasingly
optimistic that key stakehclders will take
the opportunity arising from the UK’ exit
from the EU to take action to help improve
the competitive positioning of smaller
banks in the UX. | expect the need for a
level competitive playing field will become
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very obvious as the UK navigates the
economic effects of COVID-19. Clearly any
changes in the regulatory regimes that
enable non-systemic banks to offer more
choice to consumers and SMEs to support
eccnomic growth wil be a positive
development for the UK and for the
smaller firms.

Strategic priorities

The Group’s medium-term strategy
remains unchanged, albeit for cbvious
reasons our number one priority is to
support colleagues, customers and
business partners as we navigate the
challenges arising from the COVID-19 virus
outbreak. The benefits of a diversified
business model have been evident over the
last two years, Despite a slowing economy
and a fierce price war in mortgages, the
fargest Yending market in the UK, we have
keen able to continue to increase customer
lending balances and profit before tax by
taking market share in our chosen market
segments, without compromising our
targeted risk parameters,

Once the virus has passed we plan to

refocus the Group on the strategic

priorities of;

1. Organic growth in responsible lending
across a diverse portfolio of
attractive segments

2. Continued Investment in broadening our
product offerings to customers

3. Pursuing M8A activity in line with
our strategy

4, Optimising our capital and
liquidity strategies

5. Contiruing to target delivery of profit
growth in the medium term to create
shareholder value

We have been active across all five of
these areas during 2019 and will remain
disciplined and focused here in

the year ahead and beyond.




Current trading and outlook
Notwithstanding the slowing in UK
economic activity in the second half of 2019,
we defivered a strong set of results for the
year. 2020 started well with trading being in
line with management expectations.

Management and the Board are very
carefully monitoring the ongoing trade
negotiations between the UK and EU.
Whilst | believe these parties will agree at
least a limited agreement before the
transitional period expires at the end of
the year, there is the potential for an
economic shock should this not be the
case. We have a range of early waming
indicators {EWIs’) and contingency plans
in place in the event that the absence of a
robust trading agreement with the EU
leads to an economic downturn.

As noted aarlier in this statement, itis
difficult to predict the economic impact

of the COVID-19 outbreak, though it will
clearly be significant. The imposition of the
UK lockdown has materially reduced our
new landing volumes. As a result our short
duration lending portfolio has started to
contract. This contraction is likely to persist
and will be influenced by any revival in
econamic activity and our credit risk
appetites which will remain cautious.

in light of the rapidly evolving situation

the Group has undertaken significant
additional stress testing to assess the
potential impact of the crisis on capital

and liquidity positions which remain
healthy. Assessments to date indicate

that short duration of loan books help to
maintain capital and liquidity levels above
regulatory requirements throughout a very
severa recession. Plans are in place which
seek to limnit the operational and economic
impact of COVID-19 but, given the highly
fluid situation, at this stage it is impossible
to quantify potential impacts with certainty.

In summary, the Group's lending portfolio
is appropriately positioned for the current
conditions and the short duration nature
of the asset portfolio means the Group
can react quickly to both opportunities
and threats,

The Group entered 2020 on the back of
successful years in 2018 and 2019.

With sufficient capital and liquidity
positions, we are now extremely focused
on supporting customers, colleagues and
business partners as we navigate the
COVID-12 induced economic challenges,
and are prioritising the safeguard of capital
and liquidity resources over balance sheet
growth at this time. Once the COVID-19
storm has passed we will look to refocus
on the pursuit of our strategic priorities.

Paul Lynam
Chief Executive Officer

6 May 2020
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Strategic Report

Strategy

The Group’s strategy is based on three strategic themes. Over 2019, the strategy has developed
as we focus on our near to mid-term objectives.

Grow

To maximise shareholder value
through strong lending growth
by delivering great customer
outcomes in both our existing
and new markets.

Sustain

To protect the reputation,
integrity and sustainability

of the Bank for all of our
customers and stakeholders
via prudent balance sheet
management, investment for
growth and robust risk and
operational control. Controlled
growth is ane of the top

strategic priorities for the Bank.

Love

To ensure that the fair
treatment of customers is
central to corporate culture
and that the Bank is a highly
rewarding environment for all
staff and one where they can
enjoy progressive careers,

16

Objectives

s Organic growth in responsible
lending across a diverse portfolio
of atiractive segments

*» Continued investment in broadening
our product offerings to customers

& Pursuing M&A activity in line with
our strategy

+ Continuing to target delivery of profit
growth in the medium term to create
shareholder value

Objectives
* Optimising our capital and
liquidity strategies

* Delivery of derivatives capability
= Controlled growth within risk appetite

¢ |mproving operational resilience

Objectives

* Deliver high levels of
customer satisfaction

* Maintain high levels of
employee satisfaction

¢ Operate as a responsible business

Secure Trust Bank PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2019

Progress made in 2019

New business levels grew for all core
products compared with 2018, resuiting
in strong and profitable lending balance
growth, We launched our Fixed Rate ISA
in 2019, increasing the inflow of customer
deposits to fund this lending.

Following the launch of the V12 Motor
Finance dealer stocking product in the first
half of the year, the Motor Transformation
Programme has brought further product
offerings close to fruition,

Pragress made in 2019

The balance sheat continued to
strengthen, with improving impairment
performance leading to a significantly
reduced cost of risk.

We put in place a hedging programme
towards the end of the year, using swaps
to manage interest rate expasures and
thereby allowing greater flexibility in
balance sheet growth.

Progress made in 2019

- | We won a number of awards in 2019 that

show cur commitment to customer service,
particularly in respect of Savings as set out
on page 39. The Group has also been
awarded Fesfo Gold Trusted Service
Award, their highest accolade, for three
years running and the Customer Service
Excellence award for seven years running.

Based on employee feedback and extemnal
assessment, we were recognised as a UK
Best Workplace™ in May 2019, at the
Great Place to Work™ annual awards.




Lending balances

+20.7%

Profit before tax

+11.5%

Comparisons ang toihe 31 Decomber 2018 resulty

Cost of risk
Reduced from

1.8% t0 1.4%

CET1 ratio

12.7%

{2018: 135%)

Comparitons sre to the 31 December 2018 resulls

Feefo ratings

4.7 stars

{2018 47 stars)
Employee survey score

79%

{A018: 77%)
Campatisons are to the 31 Dacember 2018 rasidts

Focus for the year ahead

The onset of the COVID-19 grisis in 2020
has seen a significant fall in demand as
we enter the second quarter.

While focusing on our existing customers,
we are preparing for continued growth in
our core products once the crisis lifts.

The Motor Transformation Programme
continues and will result in the launch of
additional products, both to consumers
and motor dealers, once market
conditions improve.

Fotus for the year ahead

Given the economic conditions
associated with the outbreak, much of our
focus has moved from new business to
miahaging our existing portfolio, and to
maintaining operational resilience.
Support is being offered to customers by
way of payment holidays and other
government initiatives.

Activity continues to widen the funding
base and the digital services available to
Savings customers.

Focus for the year ahead

Throughout the crisis, our main focus will
be on supporting colleagues, custorers
and business partners. Working practices
have adapted significantly and, in this
new environment, we will continiie to
focus on employee engagement,
recognition and well-being.

We continue to invest in our Responsible
Business Strategy, working with Business
in the Community.

See page 54 for further details.

GRAPHIC REMOVED_,

Performance measures

The key performance measures, shown
on the following page, in relating to this
theme, show the growth of the lending
book and the margin that we earn on
this lending.

GRAPHIC REMOVED

|

Performance measures

Measures in respect of the Sustain theme
focus an the control of operational costs,
{unding costs and impairment losses.

In addition, funding ratios are measured
to ensure we are holding sufficient
liquidity in refation to our loan books.
Regutatory capital metrics demanstrate
our capacity to continue to grow while
remaining well above requlatory fimits.

GRAPHIC REMOVED

|

Performance measures

Our non-financial KPls assess customer
and employee satisfaction, as well as
impacts on the environment.
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Strategic Report

Key performance indicators

The following key performance  The Remuneration Report, starting on

PO T : page B2, sets out how executive pay is
indicators are the primary linked to the assessment of key financial

measures used by management and non-finandial performance metrics.

to assess the performance of  Centain KPls represent altemative

the Group: performance measures that are not
defined or specified under JFRS.
Definitions of the financial KPls, their
calculation and an explanation of the

reasons for their use can be found in the
Appendix to the Annual Report on page
182. In the narrative of this financial
review, KPis are identified by being in
bold font. Further explanation of the
non-financial KPls is provided in the
Managing cur business responsibly
section on page 52.

Margin ratios

CHART REMOVED CHART REMOVED
Why we measure this Why we measure this
Shows the interest margin earned on the Shows the overall net margin eared on
Group's loan baoks, net of funding costs the Group's loan books, indluding fees

and commissions

CHART REMOVED

Why we measure this

Shows the yield of the Group's loan books,
including fee and commission income

balances, which generate income loan balances to customer depoaits

comparing all funding held by the Group
to loan balances

Cost ratios
O
o
CHART REMOVED CHART REMOVED CHART REMOVED E.
.
- |
Why we measure this Why we measure this Why we measure this o
Measures the cost of the Group's customer Measures how efficiently the Group utilises Measuras how effectively the Group manages
depusits and other funding sources its cost base to produce income impairmant losses
Loans
CHART REMOVED CHART REMOVED CHART REMOVED
Why we measure this Why we measure this Why we measure this
Shows the growth in the Group's lending Measures the adequacy of liquidity by comparing  Measures the adequacy of liquidity by
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Adjusted profit

CHART REMOVED

Why we measure this

Adjusts profit to improve comparability of
information between reporting periods

CHART REMOVED

Why we measurae this

Adjusts profit to improve comparability of
information batween raporting periods

EPS

CHART REMOVED

Why we measure this

Demonstrates the earnings attributable to
each shareholder

CHART REMOVED

Why we measure this

Demonstrates the earnings attributable to each
sharshalder, adjusted to improve comparability

of information batween reporting periads

Return ratios

CHART REMOVED

Why we measure this

Measures the Group's ability to generate profit

from the equity available to it

CHART REMOVED

Why we measure this

Damonstrates how profitable the Group's assets

are in generating revenue

CHART REMOVED

Why we measure this

Relates profitability to the capital that the
Group is required to hold

Non-financial KPls

CHART REMOVED

{mark out of 5 based on star rating from
1,754 reviews, 2018; 1,175 reviews)
Why we measure this

Indicator of customer satisfaction with the
Group's products and services

CHART REMOVED

{based on 2019 all staff survey)

Why we measure this

indicator of employee engagement and
satisfaction

CHART REMOVED

{tonnes of carbon dioxida par £1 million
Group income})

Why we measure this
Indicator of the Group's impact on the
environment.

Please see page 58 for an axplanation of the
mavement in this indicator, whickis due to a
change in measurement methodology

Secure Trust Bank PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2019
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Strategic Report

Financial review

Continuing to deliver
strong profit growth

. 2019 Total 2008 otal
Adjusted profit reconciliation £million fmilion
Interest, foe and commission income 2123 188.6
Interest, foe and commission expensa (44.8) (37.0)
Operating incaome 1655 151.6
Impairment losses (32.8) (32.9)
Operating expenses {94.2) 84.5)
Profit before tax 387 34.7
Adjustments to profit before tax (sea below) 24 20
Adjusted profit before tax 411 367
Adjusted tax 8.1) (6.8)
Adjusted profit after tax 33.0 299
Adjusted basic earnings per share {pence) 178.6 1618
Statutory results
Profit before tax 38.7 347
Tax {7.6) {6.4)
Profit after tax 31 283
Basic earnings per share {pence) 168.3 153.2
Adjustments to profit before tax
Fair value amortisation 02 0.3
Transformation costs 1.0 04
Bonus payments 0.1 1.3
Revaluation deficit . 11 ~
Adjustments to profit before tax 24 20
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Profit and earnings

We have continued to deliver strong profit
growth, despite the slowing of economic
growth in the second half of the year.
Statutory profit before tax rose to

£38.7 million (2018: £34.7 million) and
adjusted profit before tax rose to

£41.1 million {2018: £36.7 million).

This represents increases of 11.5% and
12.0% respectively.

Consecuently, earnings per share rose
from 153.2p per share to 168.3p per share.
On an adjusted earnings per share basis,
the increase was from 161.8p per share to
178.6 per share, Detailed disclosures of
eamnings per ordinary share are shown in
Note 9.

Return measures

We measure adjusted returns on
average assets, average equity and
required equity as sat out in the KPls
table on page 18.

The increase in profit year-on-year led to
an increase in the adjusted return on
average equity. The small decrease in the
adjusted retum on average assets was
primarily due to the significant growth in
assets aver 2018 (29.2%). In 2019, the
growth in profit was slightly higher than
the growth of assets over the year (9.2%).
As expanded upon below, the increase in
loans and advances to customars was
greater than the increase in profit, which
led to a fall in the adjusted return on

required equity.

The components of our profit are analysed
in the fallowing sections.

Interest, fee and
commission income

Interest, fee and commission income is
made up of interest income, which is
predominantly earned on loans and
advances to customers, and fee and
commission income, which consists
principally of fees from the OneBill,
Commercial Finance, Retail Finance

and Motor Finance products and
cormmissions earned on debt collection
activities in DMS.

Interast income was £191.4 million for 2019,
increasing by 13.1% (2018: £169.2 million),
which was driven by the growth of cur
loan books over the year. Loans and
advances to customers increased from
£2,028.9 million to £2,450.1 million over
the year, a 20.8% increase.

Fee and commission income increased by
7.7% to £20.9 miillian {2018: £19.4 million).

The gross revenue margin reduced from
10.4% to 9.4%. This reflects two factors:
the continued shift of our Consumer
Finance business to lower risk lower
return lending, the impact of which on
impairments is noted below, and the
change in the overall mix of lending during
the year. While growth in higher margin
Motor Finance and Retail Finance lending
balances exceeded 15% year-on-year,

this was lower than the more significant
growth in the fower risk Business

Finance portfolios.

Interest, fee and
commission expense

Interest, fee and commission expenses
is made up of interest expense, which is
incurred in respect of deposits from
customers, subordinated liabilities,

TFS and index long-term repo {'ILTR’)
borrowings, and fee and commission
expense, comprising mainly fees and
commissions on the Motor product and
commissions paid on debt collection
activitias in DMS.

Interest expense was £46.0 milion

{2018; £35.5 million for 2018), an increase
of 29.6%. The cost of funds remained
stable at 2.09% {2018: 2.0%). The increase
in interast expense arises due to the Bank
of England base rate rise during 2018
applying throughout 2019, and interest
on the Tier 2 capital issued in 2018 also
applying throughout the year.

Fee and commission expense was
£0.8 million (2018: £1.5 million}). The main
reductions were in DMS and CneBill.

The Group's net interest margin reduced
from 7.4% in 2018 to 6.5%% in 2019,
primarily due to the continued shift to
lower risk lending and the mix of business
referred to above.

Operating income

Operating income increased by 9.2% to
£165.5 million (2018: £151.6 million),

The net revenue margin for 2019 was
7.3% compared with B.3% for 2018,
The reduction in this margin is due to
the factors referred to above.

Impairment losses

Impairment losses during the year were
£32.6 million (2018: £32.4 million). The very
modest increase in impairment losses,
given the 20.8% increase in loans and
advances to customers over the year,
demonstrates the continued improvement
of the quality of the [oan book. The cost of
risk reduced significantly from 1.8% in
2018 to 1.4%.

This improvement has arisen despite the
fali in used vehicles valuations, noted in the
2019 interim Report, which had increased
credit loss provisions in respect of the
Motor Finance portfolic. The impaiment
charge in respect of Motor Finance
increased by 23.9% from £11.3 million

to £13.8 million, driven in part by these
valuations, on a book which grew by
17.1%. The credit quality of Motor Finance
borrowers continued to improve over
2019. The accelerated recognition of
lasses brought about by the requirements
of IFRS 9, particularly for growing books,
has also been offset by the improvement
in performance.

Ag in previous years, our impaiment
losses are focused almost entirely on the
Consumer Finance businasses, with
negligible losses incurred in the Business
Finance portfolio.

The provision charge includes the impact
of applying expert credit judgement,
resulting in overlays being added to
provision levels estimated using the
Group's models. A breakdown of the
charge by product is shown in Note 3,
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Further analysis of the Group’ loan book
and its credit risk exposures is provided in
Notes 12,13,14 and 34.

Operating expenses

Operating expenses increased by 11.5%
to £94.2 million (2018: £84.5 million).

This growth is proportionately lower than
the increase in our lending balances as
efficiancias have beer derived from
increasing scale. Investment in lending
businesses to support growth and in the
Savings team to widen the product and
digital offering have continued. We have
also continued to invest in our compliance
and risk functions, particularly in respect of
the prevention of financial crime, and in

IT infrastructure.

The Group's cost to income ratio
increased from 55.7% in 2018 to 56.9%.
However, the ratio for 2019 s impacted
by two factors: one-off costs of £1.1 million
in respect of the purchase of our Yorke
House property in the year; and a change
in accounting treatment far DMS which
has dassified £2.1 million of improvement
in credit quality as an impairment gain,
whereas in 2018 the equivalent
improvement was treated as income.
Without these two factors, the cost te
income ratio would have improved
slightly to 55.5%, with the cost of risk
moving to 1.5%.

Derivatives and
hedge accounting

Over 2019 we developed interest rate
hedging capability and entered into a
portfolio of derivatives, in order to manage
interest rate risk. We adopted hedge
accounting i order 1o mitigate the
potential profit and loss volatility arising
from movements in the fair value of
derivatives. The Group's hedge accounting
policy is described in Note 1.

Interest income and interest expense
arising from the derivatives are disdosed
in Note 4.

Taxation
The effective adjusted tax rate rose to 19.7%, which is higher than the currently enacted
rate of 19%:
2019 2019 2018 2018
EHfective Effective Effactive Effective
adfustad statutory adjusiad statutory
tax rate tax rate tax Fate taxrate
£militon Emillion Emiion Emillion
Tax 8.1 7.6 48 64
Profit before tax 41.14 38.7 358.7 34.7
Effective rate (%) 19.7% 19.6% 18.5% 18.4%

The tax charge reflects Sank Corporation Tax Surcharge of 8% on taxable profits of Secure Trust Bank PLC in excets of £25.0 million.
The effective rata in tha year was also ncrezsed by a deferred tax debsit of £0.2m arlsing fram & reassessmant of the rates thet the
dafarred tax ssset on the [FRS 9 tansition adjustrment wil reverse out at over the naxt eight yoars. Future effective tax rates for the
Group wil ba senshtive to the lavel of projacted profit in the Bank and in other Group compantas ac wall as tha [evel of corporation
ax. The tax charga reflects the enacted reduction In the corperation tax rate to 17% on 1 Apeil 202 The announcement in the
Budgat to reverse this neduction will cause the defared tax asset to increase by £0.7 million, Cumrent forecasts show the effective tax
rate I expactad to increase by up 10 5%, given the reverssl of the comaoration tax rate reduction, over the lorecas: period as the

affect of the banking surcharge beoames mote significant.

Distributions to shareholders

Given the uncertainty in UK and global
markets arising from the COVID-19
outhreak, the Directors do not recommend
the payment of afinal dividend for 2019.
An interim dividend of 20 pence per share
was paid on 27 September 2019. The total
dividend for 2018 was 83 pence per share.
The Group's dividend policy is set out on

page 106,

Summarised balance sheet

Balance sheet

Qur assets increased by 9.8% to
£2,682.8 million. This was driven by the
20.8% growth in our loan portfolios,
with levels of cash and debt securities
lower than at the end of 2018,

Liabilities increased by 10.0% to

£2,428.7 million. Depusits from customers
increased by 9.3% and other funding by
17.1%, the latter primarily due tc the

2019 2018
Loilion Fmilkon
Assets

Cash and balances at central banks 105.8 169.7
Debt securities 25.0 149.7
Loans and advances to banks 48.4 448
1.oans and advances to customers 2,450.1 2,028.9
Derivative financial instrurnents 0.9 -
Other assets 52.6 51.2
2,682.8 2,4443

Liabilities
Due to banks 308.5 263.5
Deposits from customers 2,020.3 1,847.7
Tier Z subordinated liabilities 50.6 504
Derivative financial instruments 0.6 -
Cther liabilities 48.7 45.6
2,428.7 2,207.2
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raising of ILTR borrowings towards the
end of 2019. Further details are provided
in respect of this funding in the

sections below.

Loans and advances
to customers

Loans and advances to customers include
secured and unsecured loans and finance
lease receivablas. The compasition of the
loan book remains broadly consistent with
2018, with the Consumer Finance book
being approximately 49% of total lending
{2018: 49% including Consumer
Mortgages), and the Business Finance
book being approximately 51%

(2018: 51%).

Loan originations in the year, being the
total of new loans and advances to
customers entered into during the year,
increased by 12.0% to £1,413.0 million
{2018: £1,261.9 million). As in 2018,

aver half of the new business volumae
(£716.6 million) was generated by the
Retail Finance business.

Further analysis of loans and advances to
customers, including a breakdown of the
arrears profile of our loan boaks, is
provided in Notes 12,14 and 34.

Debt Securities

Debt Securities consist solely of sterling
UK Government treasury biils (T-bills?.
The number of Thills held reduced
significantly over the year, from

£149.7 million to £25 million, the higher
level no longer being required as
collateral against TFS drawings with the
Bank of England.

Due to banks

At 31 December 2018, the amount due to
banks consisted solely of drawings from
the TFS. Towards the end of 2019, we
added to this funding with £45 million of
ILTR. This serves to provide the Group with
an additional inexpensive funding buffer
that can be used to fund new business.

Deposits from customers

Customer deposits include term, notice
and sight deposits, as well as the OneBill
product. A Fixed Term Cash 1SA was
added to the product setin 2019
Customer deposits grew by 9.3% during
the year to close at £2,020.3 million, to
fund increasing lending balances. As set
out in the Capital and Liquidity section on
page 24, we have managed down owr
funding balances in relation to lending
balances. Deposit growth is therefore
significantly lower than the growth in
lending assets over 2019.

Tier 2 subordinated liabilities

Tier 2 subordinated iiabilities represent
two £25 million tranches of 6.75% Fixed
Rate Callable Suberdinated Notes,
including interest accrued. Further details
of the note issuances are provided in Note
28. The notes qualify as Tier 2 capital.

New accounting standards

IFRS 16 "Leases’ became effective for the
period beginning on 1 January 201% and
was adopted by the Group from that point.
The standard replaces 1AS 17 ‘Leases’

and related interpretations, and sets

out principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure
of leases for both parties to a contract:

the lessee and lessor. Adoption of the
standard has changed how the Group
accounts for a number of its property
leases and motor vehicle leases, where the
Group s the lessee. The standard requires
such leases to be recognised on the
balance sheet as ‘the lease liability’ with
the right to use the underlying asset

{'the right-of-use asset) also recognised.
We have elected to recognise the initial
impact of implementing IFRS 16 through
the opening balance of retained eamings
and have not restated comparatives.
Further detail is provided in Note 1.
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Capital and liquidity

2019 2018
£milllon £milfion
Capittal
CET1 capital 268.0 2518
Total Tier 2 capital 50.0 457
Total capital 318.0 297.5
Proposed dividend - 118
Total capital after proposed dividend 318.0 285.7
Total Risk Exposure 2,118.1 1,824.6
2019 2018
% %
CRD IV ratios — excluding proposed dividend
CET1 capital ratio 127 13.8
Total capital ratio 15.0 16.3
Leverage ratio 9.8 16.0
CRD IV ratios — after proposed dividend
CET1 capital ratio 12.7 13.2
Total capital ratio 15.0 15.7
Leverage ratio 9.8 9.5
Typical risk weighting
Risk welghting %
Standard on-balance sheet risk weighting
Real Estate Finance: residential investment 35
Real Estate Finance: commercial investmert 100
Real Estate Finance: development* 150
Commerdal Finance** 100
Retail Finance 75
Motor Finance 75
Debt Management 100
35

Consumer Martgages {up to 80% LTV)

The CET1 capital ratio is the ratio of CET1
capital divided by the Total Risk Exposure.
The total capital ratio is total capital
divided by Tatal Risk Exposure. Figures for
2019 and 2018 comparatives are both
presented to reflect IFRS 9 transitional
rules, details of which are provided below,

The Basel |ll leverage ratio is defined by
the Capital Requirements Regulation as
Tier 1 capital divided by on and off balance
sheet asset exposure values, expressed as

a percentage, The UK laveraga ratio
framework sets a minimum ratio of 3.25%.
As shown in the table above, our leverage
ratio remains comfortably ahead of the
minimum requirement.

We have applied the IFRS 9 transitional
rules. For 2019, this allows 85% {2018: 95%)
of the initial IFRS 9 transition adjustment, net
of attributable deferred tax, to be added
back to eligible capital. Further information
is provided in Note 37,

The Group's regulatory capital is
divided into:

» CET1 which comprises shareholders'
funds, after adding back the IFRS ¢
transition adjustment and deducting
intangible assets, both of which are net
of attributable deferred tax

= Tier 2 capital, which is solely
subordinated debt net of unamortised
issue costs, capped at 25% of the
capital requirement

Capital resources increased over 2019,
fram £297.5 million to £318.0 million.

This was driven by retained eamings
growth, with the Group's subordinated
notes issued in 2018 also becoming fully
eligible as Tier 2 capital. The year-on-year
reduction in the IFRS 9 adjustment
restricted the increase in capital resources.

The Group has continued to invest capital
to support lending growth. This investment,
plus the impact of the IFRS 9 adjustment,
results in lower CET1 and total capital
ratios at the end of 2019 compared with
the end of 2018, Ratios remain ahead of

regulatory requirements.

The Group operates the standardised
approach to credit risk, whereby risk
weightings are applied to our on and off
balance sheet exposures. The weightings
applied are those stipulated in the Capital
Requirements Reguiation.

The Group's Individual Capital Adequacy
Assessment Process {'ICAAPY includes a
summary of the capital required to mitigate
the identified risks in its requlated entities
and the amount of capital that the Group
has available. All regulated entities within
the Group have complied during the year
with all of the externally imposed capital
requirements to which they are subject.

The Total Capital Requirement, set by the
PRA, indudes both the calculated
requirement derived using the
standardised approach and the additional
capital derived in conjunction with the
ICAAP: In addition, capital is held to cover
generic buffers set at a macro-economic
level by the PRA, These buffers have risen
significantly in recent years, with the
requirement at 31 December 2019 being
£74.0 million.

* Tha Group has enterad into an ENABLE Guaranies with tha Seitish Business Bank, whereby the UK Gouemment wik take o, a partion of the risk on 2 partfole of leans o wmakler business in retum for &
Fen. When the Guarsntes is tiggened it will reduce the net risk weighting applied to Real Estate Finance development lending.

** Alowar dsk weighting than 100% is spplied to Commarcial Finance lending whera thy
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Capital requirements

2019 . 2018

fmilllon fmiflion

Total Capital Requirement 2120 182.7

Capital conservation buffer 52.9 3.2

Countercyclical capital buffer 211 18.2

Total 286.0 2351
Liquid assets

2019 w18

gmilllon £million

Aaa - Aa3 130.8 319.4

Al-A3 3.8 39.7

Baa2 39.5 -

Unrated 5.1 5.1

Uquidity exposures 179.2 364.2

Management of capital

Qur capital management policy is
focused on optimising shareholder value
over the long term. Capital is allocated
to achieve targeted risk adjusted

returns whilst ensuring appropriate
surpluses are held above the minimum
regulatory requirements.

Key factors influencing the management of
capital include:

* the level of buffers set by the PRA

* estimated aedit losses calculated using
{FRS 9 methodology, and the applicable
transitional rules

+ new husiness volumes
* the product mix of new business

These last two factors are actively
managed by the Group in order to balance
growth, profitability and conservation of
capital. The variation in the risk weightings
applied to our key lending assets, and our
willingness and ability to adapt our lending
volumes and mix, provide significant
flexibility in our management of capital,
The recent anhouncements from the PRA,
regarding the level of the countercyclical
capital buffer have been factored into

our plans.

Liquidity

We continued to hald significant surplus
liquidity over the minimum requirements
thraughout 2019. High Quality Liquid Assets
(HOLA) are held in the Bank of England
Reserve Account and UK Treasury Bills.
Levels of HQLA reduced over the year,

as we introduced more sophisticated
analysis of liquidity requirements for new and
existing products, allowing funding levels

to be set on a more effident basis. As a
consequence, total liquid resources reduced
from £364.2 miflion to £179.2 million.

The Group uses a number of measures to
manage liquidity. These include:

¢ the Overall Liquidity Adequacy
Requirement {OLAR?), which is the
Board’s view of the Group's liquidity
needs as set out in the Board approved
Internal Liquidity Adequacy Assessment
Process {ILAAPY

* the Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCRY),
which is a regulatory measure that
assesses net 30-day cash outflows as a
proportion of HOLA

* total funding ratio, as defined in the
Appendix to the annual report

Secure Trust 8ank PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2019

* for LCR purposes the HOLA exdudes UK
Treasury Bills which are encurnbered to
provide collateral as part of the Group's
Term Funding Scheme with the Bank of
England. On this basis, the HQLA at
31 December 2019 was £94.4 million
{31 December 2018: £240.8 million)

We continue to manage liquidity on a
conservative basis by holding HQLA and
utilising predominantly retail funding from
customer deposits. Details of how our
savings product set and digital proposition
have developed are provided in the
Savings section of the Strategic Report

on page 36.

Secure Trust Bank is a participant in the
Bank of England’s Sterling Money Market
Operations under the Sterfing Monetary
Framework and has drawn £263.0 million
under the TFS, this level being unchanged
from that reported at 31 December 2018,
Towards the end of 2019 we added

£45 million of ILTR.

We have no liquid asset exposures outside
of the United Kingdom and no amounts
that are either past due or impaired.
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Business
Finance

Real Estate Finance
Supports SMEs in providing finance principally for
residential development and residential investment.

Commercial Finance
Provision of invoice discounting and factoring to
UK businesses.

Asset Finance
Funding to purchase commercial assets, currently
closed to new business.

2019 Performance

Strong growth, focused on Real Estate Finance and
Commercial Finance, has continued to generate increasing
revenues with very low impairment losses.

2019 Total Business Finance Landing

£1.241.6m

2018: £1,027.3 million

increase in Business Finance Lending

20.9%

2018:24.7%
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Your trust has enabled us to save the company,
the jobs and protect your position too.”

Garry Wilson
Managing Partner, Endless lip, Commercial Finance partner

IMAGE REMOVED

PAPA's
got a brand
new bank

The owners of Londor-based PAPA
Architects have realised their ambitions
to build an investrment portfolio, with a
£7million loan from Secure Trust Bank’s
Real Estate Finance team.

Our development to investment product
aliowed PAPA to build and retain a 64-unit
student accommodation scheme at
Chesnut Road, Tottenham,

Andrew Paps, Managing Director at PAPA,
said: “As architects most of our work is for
third party developers. We have a
long-held ambition to develop out our
own schemes and build an investment
portfolic and it's great to realise this at
Chesnut Road.”

Matthew-8laine Young, Relationship
Director at STB REF, said: :

*Qur development to investment product
is popular with developers who wish to
retain assets within thair own portfolio,
This prodkict gives borrowers term
certainty, as they don't have to find another
lender once the development is complete
and can also benefit from cost savings
onfees.”
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Business review

Business Finance continued

Real Estate Finance

Revenue and lending
performance vs prior years

CHART REMOVED

CHART REMOVED

CHART REMOVED

What we do:

Residential Development

We lend to enable the development of
new build property, commercial to
residential conversions (including those
with permitted development rights) and
refurbishment projects.

Residential Investment

We lend on portfolios of residential
property where the rental income will
repay the underlying borrowing over a
fixed term period. This excludes the
requlated buy-to-let mortgage sector.

Cther lending

We have limited appetite for other
commercial lending (either development
or investment) and have limited exposure
to mixed development schemes.

How we do it

Financing is typically provided over a
term of up to five years with conservative
loan-to-value criteria, with a 80% Loan to
Gross Development Value to residential
house buiiders. More restrictive policies
are implemented from time-to-time as
required, Our Loan to Gross Development
Value/Loan to Value ratios continue to
average below 60% across all lending
areas. We have no significant exposure to
any one property schame or developer.

The Real Estate Finance team is staffed by
experienced bankers with proven property
lending expertise. The team provides full
support to customers and introducers aver
the life of the produdts.

2019 performance

We have continuad to grow our Real
Estate Finance business, with balances up
25% in 2019, generating a 19% increase
in revenue. The rate of growth slowed in
2019 due to an increase in repayments in
the year, coupled with the impact of

the change in mix of the book, with
development lending reducing to 25%

of the book during 2019.

The aredit quality of the book has however
remained strong, with no arystallised
impaimments. In addition, we have heen
able to successfully manage two cases
with full repayment. The overall LTV of

the portfolic has alsa remained stable,
reflecting the cautious approach taken by
the business in 2019 due to the uncertain
market conditions. The effect of the above
has been to see no increase in impairment
provisions in the year,

Looking forward

The business remains focused on effective
risk management, and epsuring that we
continue to support our customers,

Our experienced team remains able to
manage opportunities and threats in a
timely mannar. We will manage our
appetite in respect of growth opportunities
to reflect market conditions.
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Commercial Finance

Revenue and lending
performance vs prior years
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Secure Trust Bank took the
time to understand our
business model and was
able to take a flexible and
common sense approach to
the [ending criteria.”

Pavid Robinson
CFO, The Lakes Distillery

What we do

Commercial Finance specialises in
providing a full range of invoice financing
solutions to UK businesses induding
invoice discounting and factoring.

involce discaunting services provide
access to funding and release typically up
to 90% of the value of qualifying invoices,
in confidence and allowing dients to stay
in control of sales ledger management.




Factoring setvices, where the szales ledger
management is passed on to the Group,
may also provide access to funding of
typically up to 90% of the value of
qualifying invoices and often results

in the Group managing credit control,
cash allocation, statement and remindar
letter distribution.

Other assets can also be funded either long
or short term and for a range of loan-to-
value ratios slongside these fadlities,

Howwe do it

Commercial Finance complements the
broader SME lending propaosition which
has been developed by the Group.

The business also provides SME
commercial owner occupiers with finance
to buy the property they trade from in
conjunction with other financing fadlities.

We have built a strong tearn of proven
business development, credit and
operational professionals who have
delivered a robust and compliant
operational model.

2019 performance

We have cantinued to grow the
Cormmercial Finance business, with
tending balances again increasing
significantly by 29% in 2019, generating

a 25% increase in revenue. The close
management and prudent approach to
credit risk has ensured that where client
administrations have occurred the related
collect out fees have far exceeded any
actual impairment losses, which are much
lower than industry average, wel! below
0.1% of lending balances.

Whilst the cost base is propartionally very
low, the regional presence of the business
was axtended in the year with key recruits
across its Manchester, Leeds, Birmingham
and London offices.

Looking forward

The success of the implementation of the
regional model seen in the year will be
built or in 2020. Whilst we plan to expand
the product base to further penetrate the
existing market we operate in, the
imrmediate focus is on the impact of
COVID-19. The close management of our
existing dlient base will be key and we are
already supporting businesses via
Coronavirus Business Interruption Loan
Scheme lending.

Asset Finance 2019 performance

Following the decision to cease new
business in 2018, the portfolio has
continued to run off with lending balances
continving to reduce in 2019, down by
56% against 2018, and 36% in H2 2019.
This reduction in balances has then led

to the drop-off of income seen in 2019
with income being 52% lower in 2019

The overall contribution from the business
has however been aided by lower
impairment levels, with the charge
reducding by £1.5 million {68%) in 2019,
reducing the cost of risk by 55 bps.

This reflects the continued robustness of
the portfolio and the close management
of collections.

Revenue and lending
performance vs prior years

CHART REMOVED J

Looking forward

We ceased originating Asset Finance
business in 2018. We expect the book
to continue to reduce in 2020

CHART REMOVED

CHART REMOVED

What we do

The Asset Finance business providas
funding to support SME businesses in
acquiring commercial assets, such as
building equipment, commercial vehicles
and manufacturing equipment.

How we do it

The Asset Finance business is operated
via a joint venture with Haydock, a well-
established asset financa company
operating across the UK, Following the
change in ownership of Haydock in
January 2018, we have ceased writing
new business through the joint venture,
although Haydock continues to provide a
{ull business process outsourcing service
to the Group in relation to the portfolio
we fund.

The current portfolio reflects hire purchase
and finance lease arrangements with terms
of up to five years,
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Consumer
Finance

Retail Finance
Retail Finance includes lending products for in-store
and online retailers to enable consumer purchases.

Motor Finance

Finance is arranged through motor dealerships, brokers and
internet introducers and involves fixed rate,

fixed term hire purchase arrangements on used cars.

Debt Managers (Services) Limited
Debt collection for the Group and external clients.

Consumer Mortgages
Lending to individuals to purchase a property or remortgage
their current property, currently closed to new business.

2019 Performance

Continued growth, driving revenue with well controlled
impairments, as the Motor Transformation Programme
starts to deliver benefits.

2019 Total Consurmer Finance Lending

£1,2009m

2018; £990.4 million

Increase in Consumer Finance Lending

21.3%

2018: 30.5% .
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Customer
Testimonial

*Owerall the V12 dealer funding platform
has substantially helped me grow my
business, with a 25% increase in revenue
within the last 6 months of having the
facility actioned. During the COVID-19
lockdown, | was quite worried on how Vi 2
as a funding partner would help me
through this uneven economic disaster,
however they came out great, all capital
repayments were placed on hold until
further notice with only interest
repayments due. In 2!l fairness without the
support frorm V12 and their care package
in place, 1 would have found it very difficult,
but they were great. Our account manager
was on hand and only a phone call away to
help with any issues.

ook forward to continuing to grow my
business with V12 once tha COVID-19
lackdown has finally come to an end.”

Umare Mallk
Managing Director, Auto Motion
Peterborough Ltd
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(B3

A very fast and very smooth service.
| would recommend V12 and | would
definitely use them again.”

Customer feedback from Feefo on V12 Retail Finance, 2019

Secure Trust Bank PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2019
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Consumer Finance continued

Retail Finance

Revenue and lending
performance vs prior years
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Always brilliant to deal with.
Quick and reliable, been
using V12 for a few years.

5 stars all day.”

Custamer feadback from Trustpilot
on V12 Retail Finance, 2019

What we do

The Retail Finance business, branded as
W12, provides unsecured, prime lending
products to the UK customers of its retail
partners to facilitate the purchase of a wide
range of consumer products across
in-store, mail order and online channels.
This business is driven by V12 Retail
Finance, which was acquired in 2013 and
has provided finance in cooperation with
its retail partners for more than 20 years,
The V12 point of sale system is used by the
Group's retail partners and Retail Finance is
administered from the V12 offices in Cardiff.

Retail Finance products are unsecured,
fixed rate and fixed term loans, to UK
residents with a good credit history, of up

to 84 manths in duration with a standard
maximum loan size of £25,000. The average
new loanis for £1,100 over a 24-month term.

The finance products are aither interest
bearing or have prometional credit
subsidised by retailers, aliowing customers
to spread the cost of purchases into more
affordable monthly payments,

How we do it

We operate an online e-commerce service
to retailers, providing finance to customers
of those retailers, The online processing
systern allows customers to digitally sign
their credit agreements, thereby speeding
up the pay-out process, and remaving the
need to handle and copy sensitive
personal documents through electranic
identity verification.

Retail Finance serves retailers across a
broad range of sectors induding cycle,
music, fumiture, outdoor/leisure,
electronics, dental, jewellery, home
improvements and football season tickets.

We provide finance to customers of a
large number of retailers induding
household names such as Beaverbrooks,
Watches of Switzerland, DFS, Sofology
and Watchfinder.

2019 performance

Growth across each of the three largest
sub-markets for the Retail Finance business
{sports and leisure, fumiture and jewellery}
has resulted in new gross lending volumes
increasing to £216.6 million, an increase of
10% on the previous year. This has driven a
further significant increase in lending assets,
which during the year rose 1o £688.9 million
{Decermber 2618: £597.0 milfion). Overall
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agrowth has been achieved through a
combination of gaining increased market
share and sector growth.

A combination of continued investment in
technology. focus on customer experience
and retailer needs has led to us increasing
market share from 4,8% in 2018 to 8.0%%
in 2019 {based on Finance & Leasing
Association new business values within
retail store and online credit).

Despite margin pressures from new
entrants to the market, the growth in
lending assets has increased revenue by
19% to £74.7 mitlion {2018: £62.8 million).

Impravements in credit quality have limited
impaimment losses to £19.8 million

{2018: £19.3 million) despite the significant
loan book growth.

Customer feadback, measured by Feefo,
provided the business with a consistant
score of 4.8 out of 5 for the year, based on
1,000 reviews (2018: 4.8 based on 400
reviews). Customer {eedback, measured by
Trustpilot, provided the business with a five
star rating based on 1,200 reviews.

Looking forward

During 2020 we envisage reduced

volumes across the majority of retail sectors
impacted by COVID-19 due to social
distancing rules which have led to the
dosure of shops and placed restrictions on
somea warehouse and manufacturing
fadilities. Our online e-commerce service to
retailers mitigates the impact of COVID-19
in many sectors, espedally cyde, outdoor/
laisure and electronics.

We will continue to invest in initiatives to
further enhance systems capabilities,

to ensure that quality of service to both
retailers and customers is maintained or
improved as well as generating operational
efficiencies, This includes the rollout of
improved telephony systems across
austomer facing staff and enhancements
to the customer application process.

This witl provide a slicker customer journey
by recognising returning customers of

V12 Retail Finance in order to reduce
customer time inputting their details.

V12 has been awarded the Feefo Platinum
Award in the Feefo 2020 Annual Trusted
Service Awards. The platinum award
recognises businesses that have achieved
three consecutive years of Gold Trusted
Service ratings of 4.5 or higher.




Mator Finance

Lending performance
Vv prior years

CHART REMOVED

CHART REMOVED

CHART REMOVED

(G

Quick, easy, smooth transaction
with excellent customer service
and communication. Highly
recommend.”

Customer feadback from Trustpilot
on V12 Motor Finance, 2019

What we do

Cur Motor Finance business began
lending in 2008 under the Moneyway
brand and provides hire purchase lending
products to a wide range of customers
induding those who might otherwise be
declined by other finance companies.

This helps our customers to gain the
freedom and flexibility that matoring gives
to their lives as well as helping introducers
to sell more cars.

{n 2019 the Motor Finance business
launched a new brand, Vi2 Vehicle
Finance, and a new Used Vehicle Stocking
product in partnership with Aston Barclay
Auctions. The product allows dealers to
finance vehicles on their forecourt which
have been purchased through Aston
Barclay Auctions.

Motor Finance agreements are secured
against the vehicle being financed.

We ceased writing new business in the
subprime market and predominantly lend
to finance the purchase of volume
franchise used cars in the near-

prime market.

How we do it

We distribute our Motor Finance products
via UK motor dealers, brokers and internet
introducers. New dealer relationships are
established and managed by our UK-wide
Motor Finance sales team with all
introducers subject to a strict vetting
policy, which is reviewed on a regular basis.

The technology platform used allows us to:
receive applications online fram
introducers; provide an autornated
dedision; facilitate document production
through to pay-out to dealer; and manage
in-fife loan accounts.

Motor lending is administered in Selihull,
however the UK motor dealers and brokers
are UK-wide.

2019 performance

Our business has continued to focus on
narrowed credit parameters in order to
reduce potential future impairment losses.
New business volumes in 2019 reflect
lower margins but higher credit quality.
New business volumes from consumers
increased from £141.3 million in 2018 to
£178.2 miillion for 2019. Revenue increased
slightly, by 2.5%, reflecting the reduction in
margin for higher credit quality business.

The impairment charge for the period has
increased from £11.3 million in 2018 to
£13.8 million in 2019. The level of charge
was impacted by the reduction in used
vehicle prices seen in 2019. Overall credit
quality has improved as noted above,
and the probability of default of the
portfolio has reduced significantly since
the implementation of IFRS ¢ at the
beginning of 2018.

Following the launch of the new Used
Vshicle Stacking product in July 2019,
there were £1.5 million of lending balances
in respact of this product at the end

of 2019.

Looking forward

Restrictions imposed during the COVID-19
lockdown have resulted in used vehicle
sales, and as a result new used vehide
finance, largely halting. The Motor Finance
business has therefore taken the dedision
to cease funding new agreements during
this period and ta focus on servicing
existing customers.

Looking forward we retain the view that a
dear opportunity exists to deliver ptime
and near-prime products and services in
the Motor lending market for an innovative
and technalogy-led funding provider.

Our Motor Finance business will re-enter
the near prime credit market and will also
be expanding into the prime credit market.
A programme of work is underway to
deliver a new platform and business
transformaticn through 201972020 with
£6.5 million already invested since the
programme started in 2018, As part of this
programme we are enhancing system
capabilities to deliver a broader range of
products. Planned product development
includes launch of a PCP and Prime Hire
Purchase product and technology
integrations with a pane of auction
partners. We have also integrated with a
leading dealer management system
provider in the independent dealer space,
to make dealing with our Motor Finance
business an easy process. Overall, thesa
investments are expected to improve the
credit quality of the portfolio, drive
business growth and daliver stable
eamings. Alongside these initiatives, we
will continue to focus on the near-prime
market sector through our existing
intraducer channels.
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Business review

Consumer Finance continued

Debt Managers (Services)
Limited

Revenue and lending
performance vs prior years

CHART REMOVED

CHART REMOVED

CHART REMOVED

(6

Made me feel completely at
ease and feel like a huge weight
was lifted.”

Customer feedback from DMS
customer, 2019

What we do

DMS is the Group's debt collection
business. DMS collects debt on behalf of
arange of dients as well as for Group
companies. It also selectively invests in
purchased debt portfolios from fellow
subsidiary undertakings and external
third parties. )

How we do it

Debt Managers (Services) offers three
setvices across credit management and in
order te meet the needs of its dlients:

« Business process outsourcing allows
DMS to assist in the performance of
early arrears accounts on behalf
of dients

+ Contingent collection allows a dient to
place accounts for DMS to manage
those accounts in its own name

+ Debt purchase allows DMS to acquire
accounts and choose how to liquidate
those accounts over a period of 10 years

We aim to provide all customers with the
best possible customer service by
recognising every customer is different.

All customer facing staff receive training
on how to effectively use industiy
recognised techniques such as TEXAS and
IDEA to help identify signs of winerability
and on how to use tailored signposting
relevant 1o custorners’ circumstances.
Customers that need additional support
are managed by a specialist Custorner
Care Team, We work dlosely with debt
charities such as StepChange, Payplan and
Christians Against Poverty and a range of
other third parties including the
Samaritans, MIND and Marie Curie to
ensure that customers receive an
appropriate servica,
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2019 performance

2019 saw significant levels of growth for
DIMS due to the entering of new target
markets assisted by leveraging its
commitrnent to customer service and new
technologies. Lending balances more than
doubled which defivered strong revenue
and profit growth in 2019.

In the year, perfarmance of externally
purchased portiolios continued to be very
strong, with actual collections far exceeding
those forecast at the pricing stage.
Conseguently an impairment credit of

£2.1 million was taken, recognising

that outperformance,

Looking forward

The start of 2020 was very positive as a
result of the high lending balanca brought
forward. This, together with excellent client
and customer feedback, will help us to
continue to develop the business and
support our customers throughout the
challenging period ahead.




Consumer Mortgages

Revenue and lending
performance vs prior years

(’ CHART REMOVED

l CHART REMOVED

! CHART REMOVED

Consumer mortgages represents fixed
rate mortgages provided to individuals,
to purchase a property or remortgage
their current property. We ceased
originating new consumer mortgages in
the first quarter of 2019. The pipeline of
new business was fulfilled in the first half
of the year and balances at the end of
year were £105.9 miliion {31 December
2018: £84.7 million).
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GRAPHIC REMOVED

Savings

The Group continues to attract funding primarily via
retail savings, offering competitive, simple products
available online and serviced through a highly
commended internet banking service.

Savings includes personal and business customers
depositing in access, notice, fixed term bond and
fixed term ISA products with associated balances
of around £2 billion.

2019 Performance

Strong customer and balance growth within a controlled
risk appetite, introducing new products to move to lower
long-term cost of funds.

2019 Total customer deposits

£2,020.3m

2018: £1,847.7 million

Increase in total customer deposits

9.3%

2018: 24.6%
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IMAGE REMOVED

(GG

Offered an excellent service, top
rate for my money and keep me

regularly informed of my investment.”

Customer feedback from Feefo on Deposits, 2019

IMAGE REMOVED

Savings
customer

balances top
£2 billion

The Group achieved £2 billion deposited
in Savings balances in 2019, a substantial
achievement post the launch of its new

IT platform only three years ago to
introduce new digital services and enhance
operational efficiency and controls.

The achievement comes alongside the
faunch of new products, induding shorter
dated notice accounts, Fixed Rate Cash
ISAs and soon, Access Accounts.

This ensures the Group has access to some
of the largest liquidity pools in the UK and
significantly diversifies its addressable UK
savings market.

Diractor of Banking and Marketing, James
Paterson, said: “Savings deposited with
our organisation reached an all-time high
this year. This is a significant milestone for
STB Group because the growth of our
Savings business is also a reflection on the
success of our lending businesses.

“The news follows the launch of our new
products, induding Fixed Rate Cash [SAs,
as well as numercus customer award wins,
so this Is continued evidenice that the
efforts of the savings team are reaping
success. These are achievements the

whole team can be proud of!”
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Strateglc Report

Business review

Savings continued

Savings balances vs prior years What we do

We offer a range of savings, including
simple and straightforward Notice and
Fixed Bond accounts. We extended our
product offering in 2019, launching our
first Fixed Term Cash I1SA in Aprit and
developing an Access Account for launch
in 2020. These products are all available to
UK-based individuals saving with a
minimum deposit of £1,000. We have also
historically offered business accounts
priced to reflect the associated costs

and risks.

All products offered by the Group are
l covered under the UK Finandial Services

I CHART REMOVED

CHART REMOVED Compensation Scheme, up to the
specified limit of £85,000. The full suite of
accounts are made consistently available
and are priced in line with our ongoing
funding needs, allawing individuals to hold
a maximum balance of £1 million, and

£2 million for joint and business accounts.

In addition 1o savings, we conlinue to
CHART REMOVED service OneBill for existing customers;

this has been closed to new customers
since 2009. This service is designed to help
customers with household budgeting.

For a monthly fee, details of annual bills
are aggregated and calculated into a fixed
weekly or monthly schedule. This enables
customers to spread the cost of their bills
throughout the year, accessing direct debit
discounts as well as support in liaising

CHART REMOVED with providars,

How we do it

The continued approach of not cross-

subsidising loss-making products with

G G profitable ones, maintaining a stable
funding base and utilising an operational
model based on digital self-service rather

Easy to set up, excellent rates than a branch network, enables us to offer

- ; " competitive rates and attract high volumes
and website easy to navigate. of deposits quickly, from a broad range

of customets.

Customer feedback from Feefo on
Deposits, 2019
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We aim to maintain a full suite of savings
products at all times, covering Access,

14 to 180 day Notice, 1 to 7 year Fixed
Bonds and Fixed Rate ISAs. This enables
us to access most of the UK personal
savings market and compete for significant
liquidity pools, achieving a lower marginal
cost with the volume, mix and the rates
offered optimised to the demand of our
funding needs.

Product terms and rates broadly match the
term and tenor of customer savings to the
desired maturity profiles of the Group,
which are primarily determined by the
interest rates and terms offered on loans
and advances to customers. This strategy
aims to help mitigate maturity
transformation and interest rate risks.

All of the above provides us with a funding
profile which gives additional finandial
sacurity, diversification and flexibility to

the Group.

As well as attracting and retaining
customers with competitive rates of
interest, customers choose us based on
our finandal standing, independent
customer review scores and award-winning
digital services and UK-based operation
with high standards of cyber and
operational security.

2019 performance

Following the implementation of the core
banking platform in late 2017, and positive
resuits in 2018, 100% of our new customers
now apply for a savings product online and
all register for interet Banking as part of
the process, demonstrating an important
shift in operational efficiency. Indeed, over
38,000 customers are now regjistered for
Internet Banking, representing 81% of the
total customer base.




Savings balances are growing at a strong
pace. In 2019, we grew our retait savings
by £172.6 million, an increase of 9% —
equivalent to nearly £5.50 every second.
Gver 58% of our custormers chose to
reinvest their savings into Secure Trust
Bank retention product offerings, equating
to aimost £280 million. At year-end, the
total balance of savings customer deposits
was over £2 billion, £560 million of which
was received during the year across aver
40,000 deposit transactians.

Following the launch of short-dated Notice
Accounts in 2018, balances increased
throughout 2019 whilst we also Jaunched
our Fixed Term Cash ISA and developed
our Access Account. The [SA contributed
to the largest monthly inflow of newfunds
on record, with aver £122 million
deposited in Savings accounts during

June 2019.

We once again won a number of
independent awards, including Best
Savings Provider, Best Fixed Rate Bond
Pravider and Best Notice Account Provider
from Savings Champion, as well as Best
Notice Account Provider from Moneyfacts.

Customer experience is of great
importance, which is why the Savings team
was delighted to have achieved a rating of
4.5 out of 5 on Feefo and 4.3 out of 5 on
Trustpilot, making the Group one of the
best providers amongst savings brands.

Looking forward

In 2020, we are focused on continuing to
improve all aspects of our digital services
for both new and existing Savings
custorners. Key areas of focus will be
streamlining the application journey for
both new and existing customers, making
it easier for customers to stay with us when
their bond matures, and introducing new
functionality for customers servicing their
accounts online.

This move, as well as the digitisation of
large scale custorner communications,
should continue to improve customer
experience leading to cost efficency.

QOur recently developed Access Account is
now ready to offer to both existing and
new customers znd we plan to continue to
investigate how to help more people
access our prodkcts and broaden our
product range to support those customers
who want to drawdown their savings in
retirement. These offerings will help to
deliver our aim of increasing product
holdings to improve the stability of funds
through deeper customer relationships.

Secure Trust Bank has already been
recognised by customers through its
strong levels of online review scores as welf
as in the Savings Champion Awards 2020,
winning the Best Notice Account Provider
category and alsa being highly
commended in the Best Savings Provider
category. We lock to conitinue this
recognition through the ongoing delivery
of simple, competitive products and great
customer experience throughout 2020,
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Strategic Report

Principal risks and uncertainties

Risk overview

On an ongoing basis, the Directors carry out a robust assessment of the principal risks facing the
Group, including those that would threaten its business model, future performance, solvency or
liquidity. The following were considered to be the principal risks facing the Group in 2019:

. . M
Principal Risk Movemant
Credit Risk /l\

The risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay amounts in full when dua.

Liquidity and Funding Risk
The risk that the Group is unable to meet its obligations as they fall due or can only do 50 at excessive cost.

Operational Risk

The risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with the Group's processes, personnel,
technology and infrastructire, and from external factors other than the risks identified above.

Capital Risk
The risk that the Group will have insufficient capital resources to support the business.

Market Risk
The risk that the value of, or revenue generated from, the Graup’s assets and liabilities is impacted as a result of market
movernents, predominantly interest rates.

A T R R

Conduct Risk
The potential for customers (and the business) to suffer financial loss ar other detriment through the actions and decisions ‘9
made by the business and its stafl.

Regulatory Risk _9
The risk that the Group fails to be compliant with all relevant regulatory requirements.

Notes 34 to 37 to tha financial statemants provide further analysis of certain financial risks,

Further details of the principal risks, the changes in risk profile during the 2019 financial year and the Group’ risk management framework are set cut
in the following section. There is also analysis of the key strategic and emerging risks which impact the Group. As for the previous year, these risks also
inchude the UK’s withdrawa] from the European Union, the direct impacts of which are considered to be limited given the Group’s UK operation and
facus. Consideration is also given to risks arising from climate change. Emerging risks include the Impact of COVID-19, which at a matter emerging
post year-end, is not reflected in the risk status movemants shown above.

Key to symbols

¢ Impraved
9 Stable
\b Worsened
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Credit Risk — IMPROVED

™

Description

Credit Risk is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to satisfy their debt servicing commitments when due. Counterparties incdlude the consumers
to whom we lend on 2 secured and unseaured basis and the SMEs to whom we lend on a secured basis as well as the market counterparties with

whom we deal.

Mitigation

We manage Credit Risk through internal
controls and through a three lines of defence
model. The first kine is the business operation
team with the Credit Risk Team being the
sacond line and Internal Audit being the third
line. The Consumer Credit Risk Committee
and SME Credit Committees, which are the
monitoring committees for aredit risk, report to
the Board Risk Cornmittee. The Board Risk
Committee also approves lending authorities
in respect of SME [ending, Each consumer
lending praduct has a monthly portfolio review
which analyses business performance from
new application metrics through to loss
performance by business type and introducer.
Policy and scorecard changes are approved at
the Consumer Cradit Risk Committee,

For Real Estate Finance and Commercial
Finance, lending decisions are made on an

individual transaction basis, using expert
judgement and assessment against criteria set
out in the lending policies. Asset Finance
lending is managed via 2 joint venture with
Haydock, who operate in line with the Group’s
credit poficies and risk appetite. Since the
change in ownership of Haydodk in January
2018, wa have sllowed the Asset Finance
portfolio to reduce in fine with contractual
repayments from customers.

Exposure to Credit Risk s also managed in part
by ohtaining security. Motor Finance loans are
secured against motor vehicles. Mortgages are
secured against land/property and Real Estate
Finance and Asset Finance loans are secured
against property and tangibie assets
respectively. Commercial finance advances are
securad against a debtor book, inventory or
property if 2 commercial mortgage is provided.

Management manitors the ratings of the
counterparties in relation to the Group’s loans
and advances to banks. There is no direct
exposure to the Eurozone and peripheral
Evrozone countries.

Forbearance

Throughout 2019, our policy was not to
routinely reschedule contractual amangements
where customers defaulted on their
repayments. In cases where customers were
offered the option to reduce ar defer
payments for a short period, the loan retained
the normal contractual payment due dates
and would be treated the same as any other
defaulting cases for impairment purposes.
Forbearance arrangerments in respect of
Consumer Mortgages customners are
described in Note 34.2.

Change

Consurner Finance Cradit Risk

Application trends, arrears and lass trends for
the Retai Finance Portfolio are monitored
monthly by the Credit Risk Team. The portfolio
quality has been improving throughout 2019,
leading to a reduction in cost of risk from 1.8%
to 1 4%, and we implemented a new artificial
intelligence scoracard in the third quanter of
2019 which is expected to reducs impairments
even further. Recent changes 1o the mix of
retail market segments sarved by Retail
Finance are expectad to improve portfolio
quality over time.

Qur Motor Finance business has continued

to grow despite a very competitive landscape.
We have continued our strategy of
repositioning the Motor Finance business
away from those custorrers that are most
susceptible to an economic downtum,

We have expanded the Motor Finance product
range to incdude 2 unit stocking product, to
provide short-term finance to motor dealers so
that they can buy stock. In 2020, the Group
expects to launch a prime Hire Purchase {HF')

and Personal Contract Purchase ('PCP)
product offering. The PCP offering will
introduce & new risk for the Group, with
potential for losses should the residual value of
the vehicles at the end of the agresment be
less than expected at incaption of tha contract.
We have recruited specialists, intraduced
additional governance over acceptance criteria
and specified appropriate levels of buffer
within residual vakse calculations, to mitigate
this risk.

in tha first quarter of 2019 due to the difficult
econamic dimate, increased competition and
continued uncertainties wa announced the
decision to cease new mortgage originations
untif market conditions improve.

Business Finance Credit Risk

Lending balances in both the Real Estate
Finance and Commerdal Finance partfolios
have continued to grow, with both portfolios
remaining wel within all key risk appetite
measures. The ongoing focus on high quality,
secured lending has continued to serve the
Group well,

Foliowing the change in ownership of
Haydock, in January 2018, the Asset Finance
portfotio has continued to run-off over the
course of tha year in line with expectations,
We continue to assess its options with regards
to future opportunities within the Assat
Finance market.

We have not refaxed any of our key risk
appetite parameters during the year and
thanks to the continued adherence to our
robust lending policies, slongside the
significant experience within the lending
teams, impairments within the Business
Finance portfolios have remained minimal in
the period. Managernent continues to monitor
each of the portfolios closely and regularly
reviews the externial events and changes to the
wider environment that could have a material
impact on any of them.

Concentration Risk

Managernent assesses the potential
concentration risk from geographic, product
and individual loan concentration. Dua to the
well diversified nature of its lending operations,
we de not consider there ta be a material
expasure arising from concentration risk.
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Principal risks and uncertainties

continued

Liquidity and Funding Risk - IMPROVED

/I\

Description

stressed conditions.

Liquidity and Funding Risk is the risk that the Group is unable to meet its obfigations as they fall due or can only do so at excessive cost.
We maintain adequate liquidity resources and a prudent stable funding profile at all times to cover liabilities as they fall due in normal and

We manage our liquidity in line with internal and regulatory requirements, and at least annually assess the robustness of the liquidity requirements
as part of the Group’ Intemnal Liquidity Adequacy Assessment Procass (ILAAPY).

Mitigation

Risk tolerance

In line with the PRA salf-sufficiency rule (the
Qverall Liquidity Adequacy Rule {OLARY) we
seek to at all timas maintain liquidity resources
which are adequats, both as to amount and
quality, to ensure that there is no significant risk
that our liakilities cannot be met as they fall
due under stressad conditions. We define
fiquichty adequacy as the:

* ongoing ability 1o accommodate the
refinanding of liabilities upon maturity and
other means of withdrawal

*» ability to fund asset growth

* capadity to othensmse meet contractual
obligations through unconstrained access
to funding at reasanable market rates

To meet our liquidity requirements we
maintain a buffer of unencumbered High
Quality Liquid Assets HQLA).

The Group’s Liquidity Risk Appetite and
Funding Risk Appetite are approved by
the Board:

» lLiquidity Risk Appatite: to maintain a
sufficiant pool of high quality kquid
resources at all times to survive a combined
stress event for a minimum survival horizon
of at {east 90 days, including any peak
requirament over the 90-day stress period;
and meet the higher of tha internal stress
test (OLAR] and the regulatory requirement
{LCR) plus any applicable Pillar 2 add-ons

Funding Risk Appetite: STB’s Funding Risk
Appetite is to ensure that the Group has
access to stable funding markets and is not
reliant on any single source of funding.
ST8 places no material relfance on
wholesale funding markets. The Group’s
primary source of funding is retall deposits
fom individuals and SMEs

We assess and formally demonstrate the
adequacy of our liquidity through the ILAAP.
As part of the ILAAF, we conduct regular and
comprehensiva liquidity stress testing to
ensure compliance with internal and
regulatory requirements.

Structurs and rasponsibilities for Liquidity
Risk management

The Group has a format governance struchure
in place to manage and mitigate Liquidity and
Funding Risk on a day-to-day basis. The Board
sets and approves the Group's liquidity and
funding risk appetites. The Assets and Liabilities
Committee (ALCO"), comprising semior
management and executives of the Group,
meets monithly to review liquidity and funding
risk against set thresholds and risk indicators
inchuding early waming indicators. These metrics
are managed on a day-to-day basis by the
Group's Treasury function. The Risk function is
responsible for ensuring that appropriate risk
management processes and controls ara in
place, and that they are sufficently robust, so as
to ensure that key risks are identified, assessed,
monitored and mitigated.

Internal fiquidity reporting

Liquidity and funding metrics are monitored
daily through liquidity reporting and on an
ongolng basis through menthly ALCO
meetings. Metrics are also incdluded in the
Monthly Financial Information pack tabled at
the Group’s Executive Committee, Board Risk
Committee and the Board.

The Liquidity Working Group (LWG?),
aworking group of ALCO, embeds the
identification, monitoring, measurement and
management of Liquidity and Funding Risks in
the day-to-day activities of the Bank.

The aim is not to measure liquidity and funding
with 2 single metric but rather a range of
principles and metrics which, when taken
together, helps ensure that our Liquidity and
Funding Risk is maintained at an

acceptable level.

The primary measure used by management to
assess the adequacy of liquidity is the OLAR
which, in line with the PRA% self-sufficiancy rule
described above, s the Board's own view of
the Group's liquidity needs as set cut in the
Board approved ILAAR.

Communication of Liquidity Risk strategy,
policies and practices across business fines
and with the Board

The Group'’s ALCC is responsible for
implementing and controlling the Liquidity
and Funding Risk appetite established by the
Board. ALCO meonitors compliance with the
Group's policies and oversees tha overall
strategy, guidelines and limits so that the
Group's future plans and strategy can ba
achieved within risk appetite.

Liquidity and Funding Risk

managemant framework

We raintain a comprehensive intemal
repotting framawork which seeks to mitigate
Liguidity and Funding Risk:

* Risk Identification: activities are embedded
through integration with key business
processes to ensure the Group;

— Considers how existing activities may
impact the current and future Liquidity
and Funding Risk profile

~ Considers the implications of
new products

~ Has an awareness of how external
influences may affect the

liquidity position.

Risk Management: focuses on the
application of tools, techniques and
processes to quantify risks in order ta
effectively measure the Group’s Liquidity
and Funding Risk

Rigk Monitoring: Board and senior
management are provided with timely
identification of the Group's liquidity and
{unding position, current emerging risks,
material threats and opportunities to enable
appropriate management actions

Risk Reporting: the Board, relevant
Committees, and senior management are
informed of any changes in the Group's
Liquidity and Funding Risk profile or
pasition and necessary actions via regular
liquidity reporting. In addition, ad hoc
reporting to address any spedific concerns
affecting Liquidity and Funding Risk
management or strategles is available.
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Liquidity and Funding Risk continued

Stress testing

A comprehensive stress testing framework is
used to support Liquidity and Funding Risk
measurement and takes into account afl known
sources of liquidity and funding risks as
documented within the ILAAP {and as updated
upon changes in material risks). The stress
testing covers idiosynaratic, Marketwide and
Combinead stress scenarios, with additional
stress scenarios induding reverse stresses,
tailored to our business model and

operating environment.

Stress testing is conducted to identify sources
of potential liquidity strain and to ensure that
the Groups liquidity position remains within
the Board Risk Appetite and prudential
ragulatory requirements and limits,

Stress testing and sensitivity analyses are
performed on a regular basis to assess the key
business vulnerabilities.

We use various short- and medium-term
forecasts to monitor future liquidity
requirernents and these include stress testing
assymptions to identify the requirad levels of
licquidity. Stress testing is performed on a daily
basis and levels of liquidity under stress are
forecast regularly and monitored by ALCO
and managerment.

Contingency funding plans

i, for reasons which may be beyond the
business’s control, the Group was to encounter
a significant and sustained outflow of deposits
or other stress on fiquidity resource, the
Recovery Plan incorporates the Group's plans
to ensure that it remains suffidently liquid to
remain a viable independent financial
institution during a severe liquidity stress
event. Racavery Plan Early Waming indicators
and invacation Trigger Points {1TP} are
regularly monitored and reported against.

The Recovery Plan is applied consistently with
the Group's ILAAP as part of the overall
liquidity risk management framework dealing
with cantingent funding requiremants as they
srise. The Group also retains access to the
Bark of England liquidity schemes, including
the Discount Window Facility.

Change

We have maintained our liquidity ratios in
excess of tagulatory requirements throughott
the year and continue to hold significant levels
of HOLA.

We made a number of enhancements to the
liquidity and funding risk governance
framework in 2019. These include approvel of a
revised policy framework by the Board and
additional analysis of liquidity requirements for
new and existing products.

The strass tests performed as part of the LAAP
confirmed that the Group has sufficient funds
to satisfy the OLAR requirement and there

is no significant risk that liabilitias cannot be
met as they fall due. Our LCR at 31 Decernber
2019 was significantly higher than the

regulatory requirerent.
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Principal risks and uncertainties

continued

Operational Risk - STABLE

>

Description

Operational Risk is the risk that the Group may be exposed to direct or indirect loss arising from inadequate or failed internal processes, personnef and
succession, technology/infrastructure, or from external factors.

The scope of Operational Risk is broad and includes Business process, Business Continuity, Third party, Financial Crime, Change, Human Resources,
Information Security and IT risk, including Cyber Risk.

Mitigation

We have adopted an Operational Risk Policy
and Framework designed in accordance with
the ‘Principles for the Sound Management of
Operational Risk’ issued by the Base!
Committee on Banking Supervision.

The approach ensures appropriate governance
is in place to provide adequate and effective
oversight of the Group's Operational Risk.

The governance framework includes the

Board Risk Committee and Group

Operational Risk Committee.

We have a defined set of qualitative and
quantitative Operationz) Risk appetite
measures. Quantitative measures cover
operational osses, complaints, key operational
risks, systems availability and information
security. The appetite measures are reported
and monitored on a monthly basis.

Change

In 2018 the Group successfully transitioned to
"The Standardised Approach’ for assessing its
Operational Risk capital, in recognition of the
enhancements made to its framework and
embedding this across the Group, in 2019 we
have continued to enhance these standards
and have intraduced a number of
improvements to the control frameworks in
place across our ptincipal operational risks.

Key risk themes of Operational Risk focus in
2019 include:

* Supplier Management - The Group uses a
number of third parties to support its IT and
operational processes. We recognise that it
is irportant to effectively manage these
suppliers and have embedded a suite of
standard controls for alf cur material
suppliers to reduce the risk of operational
Impacts on these critical services.

Further tools have bean developed, and are
being rolled out, to help understand the
quality of the resilience controls in operation
at our critical suppliers. We have also
enhanced our assurance capability with the
recruitment of a dedicated resource in this
area. This will continue to be an area of
focus for 2020

* Operational and IT Resiliance ~ Many
elements of the Cperational Risk Frameworik
support the ongoing resilience of our
operational and IT services, induding
Business Continuity Management, Disaster
Recovery, Incident Management, Process
Management and the Cyber Strategy.

We have defined a format plan to respond
to the new requirernents of the Consultation
Papers issued on this subject by the FCA
and FRA, Comphlance with these
requirements and continuing to enhance the
resitience of our services will be a key priority
in 2020

Information Security and Cyber Risk -
We have paid considerable attention to
ensuring the effectiva management of risks
arising from a failure or breach of our
information technology systerns that could
result in customer exposure, business
disruption, financial losses, or

reputational damage

3

» Change Management - The effective
delivery of Change Management
programmes plays an important role in
maeting our regulatory requirements,
improving services and implementing
strategic decisions, Ineffective change
management pracesses could lead to poor
customar outcomes, business distuption,
financial loss and regulatory breaches,
Change Management processas and
governance are defined and embeddad
within the Group, Significant changes are
planned in 2020, induding delivery of dealer
stocking and the prime prapaosition as part
of the Motor Finance transformation, and
thesa will be a key area of focus to ensure
we maintain our customer end operational
service starlards and deliver our
strategic objectives
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Capital Risk — STABLE

>

Description

Capital Risk is the risk that the Group will have insufficient capital resources to meet minimurn regulatory requirements and to support the business.
We adopt a conservative approach to managing capital and at feast annually assess the robustness of the capital requirements as part of the Group’s

Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process ('ICAAPY),

Mitigation

Capital Management is defined as the
operational and govermnanca processas by
which capitaf requirements are established and
capital resources maintained and allocated,
such that regulatory requirements are met
while maximising returna. These processes
and associated roles and responsibilities are
set out in the Group's Capital Management
Policy, which is approved by the Risk
Committee. The Board regularly reviews the
current and forecast capital position to ensure
capital resources are suffident to support
planned levels of growth,

In accordance with the EU's Capital
Requirements Directive IV {{CRD V) and the
reciuired parameters set out in the EU's Capital
Requirement Regulation, the Group maintains
an ICAAP which is updated at least annually.

The ICAAP is a process that brings together
the management framework {i.e. the policies,
procedures, strategies and systems that the
Group has implemented to identify, manage
and mitigate its risks) and the financial
disciplines of business planning and

capital management.

Not all material risks can be mitigated by
capital, but where capital is apprapriate the
Board has adopted an approach to determine
the level of capital we need to hold.

This mathod takes the Pillar 1 capital formula
calcutations (standardised approach for credit,
market and operational risk) as a starting point,
and then considers whethar sach of the
calcudations delivers a sufficient capital sum
adeguate to cover management's assessment
of anticipated risks. Where it is considered that
the Pillar 1 calculations do not reflect the risk,
an additional capital add-on in Pillar 2 is
appliad, a3 per the Total Capital Requirernent
issued by the PRA_

A complete assessment of the Group's capital
requirement is contained in its Pillar 3
disclosures. Pillar 3 disclosures for the Group
for the year ended 31 Decembser 2019 are
published as 2 separate document on

our website.

Change

\We maintained our capital ratios in excess of
regulatory requiremnents throughout the year.
At 31 December 2019, the CET1 ratio was
12.7% (2018: 13.8%), the total capital ratio was
15,0% (2)18. 16.3%) and the leverage ratio was
9.8% (2018 10.0%) on a Group consalidated
basis. We have continued to invest capital to
support lending growth.

Capital resources increased during the year to
£318.0 miflion as at 31 December 2019

{31 December 2018: £297.5 miflion) on a Group
consolidated basis. The increase was due to
retainad eamings.

We hava continued to explore options
available to raise altemative forms of capita! as
and when such is required. The recent
announcements from the PRA regarding the
countercydlical capital buffer, which has now
bean reduced to 0% as part of the COVID-19
response, have been considered and factored
into our plans.

Tha 2019 ICAAP demonstrated the Group's
continued ability to meet its minimum capital
requirements, even in severe stress scenarios.
Qur forecasting cepability covers a five-year
tima herizon, with modelling of capital

resources and requirements provided over that
period. The relatively short duration of our
lending porticlios allows us to flex balance
sheet growth if requirad in times of stress,
thereby conserving capital.

We adopted transitional provisions in respect of
the implementation of IFRS 9, as set out by the
European Banking Authority. These provisions
allow the capital impact of the standard to be
phased in over a five-year period. Further details

are provided in Note 37.
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Strategic Report

Principal risks and uncertainties

continued

| Market Risk - IMPROVED

g\

Description

movements in interest rates.

to Sterling.

For the Group, Matket Risk Is primatily limited to interest rate Hsk. Interest rate risk refers to the exposure of the Bank's financial position to adverse

When interest rates change, the present value and timing of future cash flows can change. This in turn changes the underlying value of the Group’s
assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet instrumants and hence its economic value. Changas in interest rates also affect cur earnings by altering
interast-sensitive income and expenses, affecting our net interest income.

The prindpal currency in which the Group operates is Sterling, although a small number of transactions are completed in US Dollars, Euros and
other currendies in the Commercial Finance business. We have no significant exposures to foreign currencies and hadge any residual currency risks

Mitigation

We maintain a comprehensive internal
reporting framawork which seeks to mitigate
intarest rate risk:

+ Risk identification: activities are embedded
through integration with key business
processes to ensure the Group:

- Considers how existing activities may
impact the current and future interest
rate risk profile

- Considers the implications of
new products

— Has an awareness of how external
influences may affect the rmarket
risk pasition

Risk Management: focuses on the
application of tools, tachniques and
processes to quantify risks in order to
effectively manage the Group's interest
rate risk

Risk Monitoring: the Board and senior
managemant are provided with timely
identification of the Group's interest rate risk
position, current emarging risks, material
threats and opportunities to enable
appropriate management actions

* Risk Reporting: the Board, Committees, and
senior management are informed of any
changes in the Group's interest rate risk
profile of position and necessary actions via
regular reporting, In addition, ad hoc
reporting to address any specific concerns
affecting interest rate risk management or
strategies rmust be available

Market Risk is managed by the Group's
Treasury function and is overseen by the
ALCO. We do not take significant unmatched
positions and do not operate a trading book.

Our risk management framework, policies and
procedures are regulary reviewed and
updated to ensure that they accurately identify

the risks that we face in our business activities
and are appropriate for the nature, scale and
complexity of our business.

The Group uses an interest Rate Sensitivity
Gap analysis to identify mismatched interest
rate risk positions that require hedging.

The Group reports the Interest rate mismatch
to ALCO and the Board on a monthly basis in
the form of a Market Value Sensitivity and
Economic Value of £quity to a parallel 200
basis point rise and fall in the yield curve.
Risk appetite for Market Value Sensitivity Is
calibrated against the amount of capital
resource available to the Group. Tha Groups
tamings at Risk 1s also calculated monthly
against a 100 basis point parallel stress and
reported to ALCO and the Board.

All such exposures are maintained within the
risk appatite set by the Board and are
manitored by ALCO. The Group alse monitors
fts exposure to optionality and basis risk.

Change

The Group’s exposure to Market Risk
continues to be fimited primarily to interest
rate risk, with only modest exposures 1o
foreign exchange risk. The Group remained
within risk appetite in respect of interest rate
risk throughout the year.

The increasing size of aur balance sheet
increases the inharent level of interest rate risk,
and we have responded by enhancing our
Treasury capabilities and risk framework.

The Group has developed its capability to use
interest rate swaps to further mitigate interest
rate riskin 2019,

The Group is embedding new regulatory
guidance on Interest Rate Risk in the Banking
Book, as prescribed by the Europaan
Banking Authority.

We consider the enhanced framework, and
particularly the intreduction of derivatives
capability, to have led to a reduction in the
Group’s market risk position.
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Conduct Risk — STABLE

_>

Description

We define Conduct Risk as the risk that the Group's products and services, and the way they are defivered, result in poor outcomes for customers,
or harm to the Group. This could be as a direct resuft of poor o inappropriate execution of the Groups business activities or staff behaviour.

Mitigation

We take a principles-based approach and
include retail and commercial customers in ouwr
definition of ‘customer’, which covers all
business units and both regqulated and
unregulated activities.

Across the Group, Conduct Risk exposure is
managed via monthly review of key risk
indicators (KRIs'} at business units’ executive
committee meetings and aggregated
reporting to the Group Exectitive Committes.
Owersight is pravided by the Customer Focus
Committee, which conslders complaints,
Feefo and Customer Service Excellence as
well as Conduct Risk,

The KREs vary across the business units to
reflect the relevant conduct risks; the business
units’ key risk indicators are aggregated for
measurement against our risk appetite, which
is also reported to the Risk Committee and
the Board.

Change - STABLE

Review of Conduct Risk and contrals within the
business units is managed through the regular
cydle of risk and control self-assessments,

in line with other operational risk categories.

Members of the Customer Focus Commiittee
review key risk indicators across all business
units, and meet on a quarterly basis for
oversight and challenge of the first line
activitios 1o assure senior management that
the first line is identifying conduct risks when
they arise and taking apprapriate actions to
mitigate them.

Training on Conduct Risk continues to be
deliverad to new starters, with an eLearning
module completed by all staff during the year,

Regulatory Risk - STABLE

9

Description

Regulatory Risk is the risk that the Group fails to be compiiant with all relevant regulatory requirements. This could occur if the Group failed to
interpret, implement and embed processes and systems to address regulatory requirements, emerging risks, key focus areas and initiatives or deal

proparly with new laws and regulations.

Mitigation

We seck to manage regulatory risks through
the Group-wide risk management framework.
The Group Compliance and Regulatory Risk
Committee is responsible for reviewing and
monitoring regulatory changes, and ensuring

that sppropriate actions sre taken, and also
reviewing and approving the Compliance
universe and risk management framework.

Further details can be found on the
Group's website:

www.securetrustbank.com/our-corporate-
information/risk-management

Change

In tha year ended 31 Decamber 2019, we have
delivered changes to address new and revised
regulations and legislation that have come into
force including extending the Senior Managers
and Certification Regima to the Greup's
regulated subsidianies; European Banking
Authority guidelines on security measures for

operational and security risks and fraud
reporting under PSDZ; Buy Now Pay Later and
Financial Promotions changes in consumer
credit; widening access to the Finandial
Ombudsman for small businesses; suppaorting
the Group through the managemant of the PPi
deadline in August 2019,

Projects and initiatives are in place for changes
required in 2020 including disdosures of
commission modals in consumer credit,
breathing space, regulatory retums, the FCA
diractory and operational resilience.
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Strategic Report

Principal risks and uncertainties

continued

Strategic and emerging risks

In addition to the principal risks disdosed
above, the Board considers strategic and
emerging risks, induding key factors,
trends and uncertainties which can
influence our results. These risks include
the following:

COVID-19

The impact of the outbreak on the
economy and on the Group's operations is
subject to dose monitoring by the Group's
Crisls Management Team {'CMT") and
Group and business unit Executive
Committees. Contingency plans have
been established for each business unit
and are overseen by the CMT.

Where process changes have been
required in order to maintain services,
these have been subject to formal risk
review with the CEO, under authority
delegated from the Board, accountable for
risk acceptance.

It is now clear that the COVID-19 gutbreak
will have a significant impact on economic
activity. The main impacts on the Group
are expected to be in relation to reduced
demand for new business, particularly for
Consumer Finance products, and to
increase impairment losses. Stress testing
has been undertaken {o assess the
potential impact of future economic
conditions, brought about by COVID-19,
on the Group's finandal performance and
position, induding consideration of capital
and liquidity. Datails of the stress testing
and condiusions drawn are set out in the
Viability and Geing Concern Statement on
page 50.

From an operational perspective, the
Group has focused on the following
potential impacts arising from COVID-19:
* Supply chain failure
* Restricted distritution channels
» Restricted ability to operate due
1o public policy changes and
requirement 1o respond to reguiatory
and government measures

+ Geographical impacts on markets
and key operating locations
+ Employee absence or home working

48

The restricted distribution channels refers
to introducers and intermediaries used by
the Group to source new business, as well
as retailers and motor dealers which are
integral to the Consumer Finance
business. The resultant reduction in new
business activity is considered in the stress
testing referred to above, and has allowed
business areas to redeploy resource to
support existing customers and
collections activity.

In respect of the other items listed above,
the CMT has assessed the actions
undertaken both centrally and in individual
business areas and considers them to be
working well in mitigating the operational
risks brought by COVID-19. These actions
include: the rollout of technology solutions
which have enabled a significant number
of employees to work from home;
introduction of social distanding policies
for employees who are currently required
to work {from an STB office; review of key
supplier business continuity arrangements
and identification of altemative suppliers;
and implementation of payment

holiday processes.

The Board has considered these potential
impacts and the actions undertaken in
response and has taken them into account
when making its assessment of Viability
and Going Concern. Frequent reports
have been provided to the Board on the
operational impacts of COVID-19 and the
Group's responses ta mitigate. In addition
the CEO provides regular updates on
progress to Board members.

Macroeconomic environment
and market conditions

Political and economic uncertainty
continued throughout 2019. UK economic
fundamentals demonstrably weakened in
the second half of the year, as businesses
and consumers became more cautious
and less active whilst they awaited the
impact of the planned Brexit date of

31 October, and when this did nat happen,
the outcome of the General Election.
Growth of GDP flat-ined in the autumn
and turned negative in November which
dampened demand for consumer and
house building finance. Some degree of
recovery followed the decisive result of
the election,
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UK withdrawal from
European Union

Following the passing of the UK
Withdrawal Agreement and the withdrawal
itself on 31 January 2020, the UK remains in
a transitional arrangement with the
European Union. Uncertainty remains as to
whether a new trade deal between the UK
and the European Union can be struck
before the transitional arrangement ends
on 31 December 2020. The UK
Government has indicated that it will not
extend the deadline, and indeed passed
legislation to that effect. The risk of leaving
without a robust new trade deal with the
EU therefore remains.

Our core business planning assumption is
that the transitional arrangement will
conclude in an orderly basis and that the
direct impact of a disorderly scenario is
limited. All continuing trade is within the
UK and the lending sectors that the Group
operates in are not significantly reliant on
crass border arrangements. The indirect
impact however could be material.

Details of the indirect consequences of a
no deal scenario were set out in the
Principal risks and uncertainties section

of the 2018 Annual Report. Our view of
these indiract impacts has not materially
changed, and the potential impact on our
most significant business units is set aut on
page 49.

We consider the most significant potential
impact of a fallure to agree a robust
trading agreement to be that on credit risk.
The Principal risks and uncertainties
section of the 2018 Annual Report sets out
details of how the Group worked with
external consultants to assess the likely
impact of a no deal scenario onits
Consumer Finance portfolias. The stress
test modelling urndertaken showed higher
impainment provisions than those set out
in our centra! plan, but not at a level that
was considered to compromise the
Group's viability. It was concluded at that
time that the Group did not need to
change strategy in the anticipation of a
potential no deal exit from the EL.

This continues to be the case, and our view
of the impact of a disorderly scanario
remains unchanged from that set outin
the 2018 analysis.




Additional early waming indicators, that
could indicate the need to change
strategy, were set up following the work
undertaken in 2018 and these have been
monitored throughout 2019,

Continuing stress test modelling, including
that undertaken in respect of our ICAAP,
has continued to demonstrate that the
Group can withstand significant
macroeconomic shocks, induding those
significantly more adverse than that
expected to arise from a disorderly exit
from the European Union. The short
duration of our balance sheet provides
significant flexibility, should we nead to
reduce our lending activity in the event of
such a stress.

Mode! risk and the impact
of IFRS 9

We enhanced our controls around Mode!
Risk and Model Governancea in 2019
Improvements have been made in all
aspects of Model Governance including
the Model Govemnance Policy through to
Maodel Standards and Model Inventories.
Material or high risk models are reviewed
by the Model Governance Committee on
an annual basis. The Group Chief Risk

Officer chairs the Model Governance
Committee, with the Committee reporting
to the Risk Committee.

We continue to derive the prabability of
default {PD), loss given default {LGD")
and exposure at default (EAD) of the
Group's lending portfolics, and therefore
impairment provisions, through a suite of
IFRS @ models. The models have been
monitored throughout the year and
found to be working effectively.

Minor enhancements have been made
where appropriate. The Group uses a
weighted view comprising a number of
macro-econormic scenarios including
benign, base, stress and ICAAP cases to
provide the aggregated impairment
provision each manth.

Climate change

Climate change presents financial risks for
the banking industry and whilst it is difficult
to assess how dlimate change will unfold,
we are assessing our risk exposure in
relation to both the potential ‘Physical’
effects and the ‘Transition’ risks from the
adjustment towards a carbon

neutral economy.

The risk assessment process has been
integrated into existing Risk Frameworks
and will be governed through existing risk
govemance structures, including reporting
to the Board Risk Committee.

In accordance with the requirements of the
PRA's Supervisory Statement ‘Enhancing
banks’ and insurers' approaches to
managing the financial risks from dimate
change’, we have allocated responsibility
for identifying and managing the risks from
climate change to the relevant existing
Senior Management Function. In addition,
we are evaluating the requirements of the
Taskforce on Climate-related Financial
Disclasures’ and will continue to enhance
our reporting and disclosures in line with
these standards.

Risk management

Details of the Group's risk management
framework, including risk appetite,
govemance arrangements and key
committees, can be found on the

Group's website:
www.securetrustbank.com/our-
corporate-information/risk-management

Business unit

Potential indirect impact of no deal exit, assessed in 2018

Real Estate Finance

Direct consequences on the procedures for the transfer, renting and mortgaging of property are
consldered unlikely.

If there is a reduction in UK financa providers, then contraction of supply could affect the choice and terms of
{unding available for investment or development projects. The timing or cost of davelopment projects could be
sffected by price increases and/or shipping delays. Davelopers on some, particularly larger projects may be more
cautious about committing to datas and costs without scope for adjustment for the effect of a no deal
withdrawal. An increase in the cost of borrowing and weaker demand could push UK property pricas lower.
These factors could reduce demand for the Group’s products whilst increasing credit risk.

Commercial Finance

No direct consequence is expected due ta this divisions UK customer base. Invoice financing has some
countercyclical characteristics, though its medium-term performance is directly linked to macroeconemic
conditions, given lending balances are secured against the customer's sales ledger.

Retail Finance

The key market sectors funded by Retail Finance could be impacted by rising raw material or finished goods
input prices. Retailars would need to decide whether to pass on costs or absorb them into margins.

Rising consumer prices woulkd likely lead to reduced consumer confidence and demand and reduced retailer

margins would likely lead to retaifers halting or slawing UK expansion. These factors could reduce demand for
the Group's products.
Consumer affordability issues could also impact on the Group's profitability through increased
impairment provisions.

Motor Finance

This division serves the UK used car markat, which unlike the supply of new vehicles {often originating from other
EU markets and attracting increased tariffs), is largely self-contained, However, subdued economic conditions
and lower consumer conlidence or spending power may have a potential adverse impact on used car demand,
and associated demand for the Group's financing.

Affordability issues may also adversely impact the Group's profitability through increased bad debis.
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Strategic Repart

Viability and going concern year-end 2019

Going concern

In assessing the Group as a
going concern, the Directors
have given consideration to
the factors likely to affect

its future performance and
development, the Group's
financial position and the
principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group, as set out
in the Strategic Report.

The Group uses various short-
and medium-term forecasts
to monitor future capital and
liquidity requirements and
these include stress testing
assumptions to identify the
headroom on regulatory
compliance measures. As set
out in the assessment of
business viability, for the
2019 Annual Report and
Accounts the stress testing
assumptions have included
specific scenarios relating to
the COVID-19 outbreak.

The Directors are satisfied that
the Company and the Group
have adequate resources to
continue to operate for the
foreseeable future as going
concerns. For this reason they
continue to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing
these financial statements.

Business viability

In accordance with provision 31 of the UK
Corporate Governance Code, the Directors
confirm that there is a reasonable
expectation that the Company and the
Group wiil be able to continue in operation
and meet their liabilities as they fall due,
for the period up to 31 December 2022,
The assessment of ongoing viability covers
this period as it falls within the Group’s
five-year planning horizon and the period
covered by the Group’s stress testing.

Given the Group's continuing fong-term
growth potantial, further improvements in
credit quality over 2019 and the Group's
flexible business mode!, the directors are
confident of the Group's viability

over the longer term. However, tha
continulng uncertainties regarding the
economic, regulatory and market
environment that the Graup operates in,
particularly those related to COVID-19,
may compromise the reliability of longer
range forecasts. The Board has therefore
decided to continue to use a three-year
period for its assessment of viability rather
than extending this over the full

planning horizon.

The Directors have based the
assessment or:

e the latest annual budget (approved
before the outbreak started), which
contains information on the expected
financial pasition and performance for
the period to 31 December 2024 and by
considering the potential impact of the
principal risks facing the Group, as set
out on pages 4010 49

the analysis of key sensitivities,
undertaken as part of the budgst
process, which could impact on
profitability over the period covered by
the budget. Assumptions made to
catculate risk weighted assets and
capital requirements are clearly stated
and additional scenarios are modelted
to demonstrate the potential impact of
risks and uncertainties on capital
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s the Group's ILAAF, which uses stress
scenarios to assess the adequacy of
liquidity resources. The results of this
scenario analysis are used to set the
Group's OLAR and are also the basis
of the liquidity requirements set by the
PRA. The Group has maintained liquidity
levels in excess of regulatery
requirements throughout the year and is
forecast to continue to do so

the Group's ICAAF, which considers
macroeconomic stress and severe shock
scenarios in order {0 assess the
adequacy of capital resources.

The results of the scenario analysis are
used to set the Group internal and
regulatory capital requirements.

The Group has maintained capital levels
in excess of regulatory requiremenits
throughout the year and is forecast to
continue to do so. The macroeconamic
stress scenarios were based on the “rates
up’ and ‘rates down’ scenarios set out in
the H1 2019 Bank of England stress test
scenario, with the severe shack scenario
assuming key economic variables to be
either worsened or accelerated
compared to the rates up scenario
consideration of the other principal risks
as set out on pages 40 to 49, to identify
any other severe but plausible scenarios
that could threaten the Group's business
model, future performance, solvency

or liquidity

analysis of further scenarios related to
the UK’s withdrawal from the European
Union. Further details of this analysis are
provided on page 48

analysis of the operational impact of the
COVID-19 outbreak on the Group.
Further details are provided on page 48

consideration of the potential impact of
COVID-19 on future earnings, capital
and liquidity requirements,




COVID-19 stress testing

Although the Group regularly undertakes
capital and liquidity stress testing,
particulary to inform the ICAAP and ILAAP,
the nature of the economic impact of
COVID-12is likely to be different to the
scenarios that are normally considered,
Most commentators are suggesting a
sharp and deep decline in economic
activity, braught about by Government
measures to restrict movement and hance
reduce contagion, followed by recovery as
measures are lifted. In addition, unlike in
the scenarios generally considered in
stress testing, operational restrictions
introduced by those Govemment
measures also have an impact on the
Group's performance and pasition.

The Group has therefore undertaken
bespoke stress testing, covering capital
and liquidity, to consider such scenarios.

A range of market and idiosyneratic
variables were used as scenario inputs,
with unemployment levels being the
variable to which the Group’s impairment
losses are most sensitive. Two plausible but
severe core sceharios were considered:

» medium stress, whereby unemployment
rises to more than 7%, new business
levels decrease significantly due to
falling demand, collection performance
is degraded, and the value of the
Group's security against bad debt losses
reduces due to house and used car
prices falling

*» hard stress, whereby unemployment
rises to more than 10%, accompanied by
more severe falls in demand, collection
performance and asset values.

Given the uncertainty over the true impact
of the outbreak, a range of sensitivities was
then applied, to provide comfort that the
Group could withstand even more adverse
conditions than those set out in the Hard
stress scenario. These induded raising the
unemployment rate to even higher levels,
further degrading collectian performance,
changing the assessment of the
effectiveness of Government interventions
on impairment rates, and prolonging the
period of unemployment. The sensitivities
also served as a reverse stress test,

to identify the circumstances that could
cause the Group to fail.

Analysis of the stress testing results showed
that the Group did not breach capital o
liquidity requirements, or need to utilise
buffers, in either the Medium or Hard stress
scenario. Strategic management actions
such as formal cost reduction programmes
were also not required, The fiquidity
position remained robust, indicating the
Group's ability to withstand contagion
should ancther finandiaf institution fail.

The most extreme sensitivities applied
would either require the Group to
implement strategic management actions
or to temporarily utilise capital buffers.
The PRA has notified financial institutions
that it expects them to utilise buffers if
required, in order to continue lending, and
so this is not considered to compromise
the Group's Viability or Going Concem
status. The Board considers that the
dreumstances required to cause the Group
to fail, as dernonstrated by the reverse
stress testing, are considered

sufficiently remate.

In undertaking this stress testing analysis
the Group has made use of madels.
Models are imperfect representations of
reality, reliant on historical data, mode!
inputs and assumptions. These model
risks are exacerbated when dealing with
unprecedented scenarios, such as the
COVID-19 pandemic, due to the lack of
credible, reliable historical datato use as a
reference point. The Group has sought to
reduce this risk by comparing different
model methodologies, applying expert
judgement and senior

management review.

In making this statement, the Board has
sought input from the Audit Committee
and the Risk Committee.
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Strategic Report

Managing our business responsibly
Engaging with our stakeholders

Straightforward transparent banking

v

vV

Qur customers
and consumers

Why it's important

We exist to serve our customers.

We therefore seek customer insight and
feedback to better understand how to help
customers and make it easy for them to do
business with us.

How we engage

* QOurindependent review partners, Feefo and Trustpilot,
seek customer feedback, providing valuable insight into
our customer relationships

» Independent customer insight modelling helps maka our
products and services more effective for customers

* We undertake direct customer engagement through
customer surveys, consumer panels and forums

« Formal horizon scanning is used to gather, analyse and
disseminate information to support decision making

What's important and how we have rasponded

* We seek to enhance our product offering to customers —
for example, in 2019, we expanded our notice account
offering and introduced new ISA savings accounts

s We strive to improve the quality and timeliness of our
customer services and, for example, have recently
enhanced our online application processes, extended
opening hours and improved call routing

* We aim to improve the accuracy, utility and clarity of the
information that we hold to help customers, providing
further training to improve customer communication

Our
employees

Why it’s important

Our employees are our primary asset.
They deliver services to our customers,
are the source of innovation and their
actions strive to keep the Group safe
and resilient.

How we engage

* Empiloyee Councils, consisting of department
representatives elected by their colleagues

« Annual survey conducted by the Great Place to Work®
{GPTW®) Institute

* Participation in Learning at Work week

* Partnership with the Employer Network for Equality
and Inclusion

+ Employae induction programme for new employees

* Nominated Non-Executive Director for
workplace engagement

What's important and how we have responded

* We have established a two-way process of
communication batween employees and senior
managers, enabling colleagues to provide insight,
feedback and suggestions to make the Group a great
place 1o work

* We have a strong level of trust and employee satisfacticn

* We continue ta fund a wide range of employee
development opportunities, including spedalist
professional qualifications

* Increased focus on mentat health and well-being
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Regulators and
=2 government

Why it's important

In collaboration with our regulators,

we act at all times to keep our Group safe
and secure, maintaining strong capital and
funding positions, building operational
resilience and treating customers fairly.

How we engage

* We engage directly and maintain good relations with
regulators and the government through our Board and
senior management

* We moniter regulatory developments and liaise with
regulatory experts to gauge opinion

* We participate directly and indirectly in regulatory
consultation exercises and regulatory workshops

* We are members of UK Finance, the leading industry
body for financial services in the UK and our CEQ is
Chair of UK Finance's Challenger Bank panel

What's important and how we have responded

§ » We always act responsibly by complying with the wide
range of laws and regulations which are applied to
financial services in the UK

* We proactively respond to changes in regulations and
make the necessary investments to meet information
requests in an efficient manner

* We are open and honest in our interactions with our
regulatory supervisors and always strive to meet their
requests in a timely fashion

(58] o it
communities

Why it's important

We have long pursued an ethos to

act responsibly in the interests of all
stakeholders and the environment in
which they operate; this is reflected in our
products, processes, systems and culture.

How we engage

* We are members of Business in the Community {BiTC")

* A series of established community focused schemes are in
place with a particular focus on mentoring of young
people and developing local skills

» Our charity committees continue to empower colleagues
to drive forward charitable activities

* A governance framework and range of policies are in

place to ensure we meet our responsibilities in society and
adhere to the highest professional and ethical standards

What's important and how we have responded

* |n 2019 we have worked with BiTC to develop a Group-
wide Responsible Business Strategy

* In 2019 we supported 262 charities, initiated a pilot
mentoring scheme with a local academy and through our
Employability Skills programme delivered employment
training via a number of community partners

* The STBG Volunteers Scheme, which entitles all
colleagues to use one paid day tc make a difference in
their local area, resulted in nearly 700 work hours donated
1o help areate positive change in local communities
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Strategic Report

Managing our business responsibly

continued

Behaving
responsibly

for all

stakeholders

Qur strategic commitment is to “make this a great Bank for
customers and colleagues” by pursuing our promise of delivering
straightforward and transparent banking. This is underpinned by
our core values which drive behaviours central to developing a

responsible business.

Responsible business strategy

Acting responsibly in the interests of alf cur
stakeholders is an ethos that we have long
followed. it is reflected in our products,
processes and systemns and is reinforced
through our culture. In 2019, we continued
the process of building on existing activity
and bringing greater focus to the issues
that are really important to our
stakeholders by working on a Group-wide
Responsible Business Strategy. In order to
facilitate the process of developing the
strateqy, we became members of Business
in the Community {'BiTC"), the Responsible
Business Network set up by HRH The
Prince of Wales. BiTC exists to create
healthy communities with responsible
businesses at their heart and through BITC,
we are able to ensure that our strategy is
aligned with industry best practice.

Woa have been commended by BiTC for
the swift progress that we are making in
this area and the commitrment shown to
creating a robust strategy and framework,
aligned to the BITC Responsible Business
Framework, As part of the Responsible
Business Strategy development process,
we have undertaken, in partnership with
BIiTC, an audit of existing responsible

business activities and initiatives,
identifying more than 40 active initiatives.
We are continuing o invest in and build on
these activities as the strategy continues to
take shape.

Acting responsibly to
our customers

We are committed to acting responsibly to
our customers and treating our customers
fally. The strategy is designed to focus
continually on achieving good customer
outcomes, whifst making sure that
products and services are sustainable
whilst safeguarding and maintaining a
profitable business,

There are rigorous policies and
procedures in place which define the
underwriting approach to ensure that our
lending is responsible, fair and appropriate
10 the customer’s circumstances, thereby
ensuring that customets have the ability to
make informed borrowing decisions.

We approve lending only when we have
established and adequately verified the
customer’s creditwerthiness and capability
to meet repayments, in line with
regulatory obligations.
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Qur intarnal culture is also cantred on
customers. For example, the Group’
customer charter sets out the values that
we strive for in customer interactions:

“Wa have a strong set of values that we
aim to live every day. These values along
with our Grow, Sustain and Love strategy
continue to help us in building 2 great
business for cur Customers, Colleagues
and Shareholders. We are passionate
about being fair, fiendly, polite and helpful
in every interaction we make."

All staff are required to be able to describe
their own responsibilities to daliver value
to customers and the customer focused
value is integrated into the annual
performance management process to
ensure continuing attention from all
management and staff.

We take great pride in putting customers
at the heart of what wa de. The customer
is considerad at every point in the design
process for products and services,

We regularly seek customer opinion on
hew initiatives before promoting these to
the wider population and the customer
design approval process makes sure that
we cah provide strong evidence that
customer needs have been considered
before a new product is faunched.

Customners are also at the heart of the
Group's daily interactions. The Lean Six
Sigma methodology is used to support
continuous improvement activities,

10 advance the skills of colleagues so that
they are better at listening to customers
and to improve processes following
custamer feedback. During 2019, mare
than 20% of the workforce received
training and development in this area.

Customer feedback

Listening to our customers is paramount.
We continue to use Feefo as an
independent source of customer
feedback, providing valuable insight

into our customer relationships.

in 2019 Trustpifot was introduced as an
additional independent platform for
customers to share their views. As Peter
Holten Mihlmann, founder and CEO of
Trustpllot, says, "More than just a rating,
Trustpilot stars signify that a company
has nothing to hide, loves its customers
and shares our mission to create ever-
improving experiences for everyone.”




Our average Feefo rating for 2019,
based on 1,754 reviews was 4.7 out of 5.
The average Trustpilot rating for 2019,
based on 2011 reviews was 4.5 out of 5.
When poor feedback is received we treat
each case individually and attempt to
resolve the issue with the customer.
This feedback is monitored alongside
complaints data and where emerging
trends are noted we seek to design and
implement solutions to fix the problem.

Customer service awards

Once again tha Group has been acaedited
with the Government backed Customer
Service Excellence quality mark. This is the
saventh year in a row that we have retained
the standard and it follows an in-depth
extemal assessment against ariteria which
research has indicated are a priority for
custorners, with particular focus on delivery,
timeliness, information, professionalism
and staff attitude. The standard puts an
emphasis on developing customer insight,
understanding the user’s experience and
robust measurernent of service satisfaction
and is designed to offer organisations a
practical tool for driving customer-

focused change.

The final written report was very positive as
demonstrated by this short excerpt:

*STB remains the only bank in the UK to
achieve the Custorner Service Excellence
Standard {'CSE’). STB continues to
demonstrate a high level of carnmitment
1o staff development, staff insight is used
to develop new products to a cutting edge
standard and this was confirmed by staff
who met with the assessor. Customer
satisfaction is measured regularly with
industry-recognised methods such as
Feefo and Trustpilot feedback and surveys.
Targets for customer satisfaction are very
high and satisfaction is continuing to
increase. Ongoing certification to the CSE
Standard continues to be fully justified and
well-deserved.”

Feefo Trusted Awards

For the fourth year running we have been
recognised through the Feefo Trusted
Awards. In February it was announced that
the Group had won the following awards
from Feefo:

# STB Savings ~ Gold Trusted Award
* Moneyway — Platinum Award
*» V12 Retail Finance - Platinum Award

This independent seal of excellence
recognises that our businesses are
delivering exceptional experiences, rated
by real customers. As Steph Heasman,
Director of Customer Success at Feefo,
says, "The Trusted Service award has
always been about recognising companies
that truly excel.”

Employees

Employee voice

Wae are wholly committed to our strategic
objective of making Secure Trust Bank a
great bank for both customers and
colleagues. We firmly believe that effective
two-way cormmunication contributes
towards innovation and the achievement of
organisational goals resulting in increased
job satisfaction, greater influence and better
opportunities for the development of teams
and individuals,

We continue to operate Employee
Councils in each of our businesses,
consisting of department representatives
elected by their colleagues. The Councils
meet on a regular basis and encourage a
twao-way process of communication
between employees and senior managers.
In 2018 we introduced a Group Employee
Council that meets with the Chief
Executive Officer, HR Director and a Board
nominated independent Non-Executive
Director; and this has been continued in
2019. The aim of the Employee Councils is
to promote further employee engagement
and provide a structured forum for teams
to share their views, enabling colleagues to
provide insight, feedback and suggestions
to make Secure Trust Bank Group a great
place to work.
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Feefo rating

4.7 stars

Average Feefo rating for 2019
2018: 4.7 stars

Feefo ratings and comments can be found
on our websites:

wwwi.securetrustbank.com
www.moneyway.co.uk

www.v12retailfinance.com

IAMGE REMOVED

Customer Service Excellence

7th year
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Strategic Report

Managing our business responsibly

continued

IAMGE REMOVED

Trust Index score

79%

From 2019 all staff survey
2018: 77%

GRAPHIC REMOVED

29th in the UK Best Workplaces
Large Category

GRAPHIC REMOVED

14th in the UK Best Workplaces for
Women Category

In 2013 we became an accredited Investors
in People Employer, progressing to the
highly coveted Gold Standard in
Navember 2016. Whilst being incredibly
proud of this achievement, feedback
through the Employee Councils suggested
that the Group should consider an
altemative accreditation that is more
reflective of its strategy and one that is
completed on an annual basis alongside
the annual employee opinion survey.

To deliver this, for the first time at the end
of 2018 the Group completed the survey
conducted by the Great Place to Work®
{('GPTW®*) Institute. This comprehensive
survey explored the levels of trust and
employee engagement across the Group.
As a specialist in workplace culture,
partnering with over 10,000 organisations
annually, GPTW® enabled benchmarking
of Secure Trust Bank’s employee
experience against many of the most
progressive workplaces in the UK.

In November 2019 the Group completed
the survey for the second time and we
were extremely proud to achieve an
increase in the Trust Index from 77% in
2018 tc 79%. This was based on a response
rate of 8§5%, with 82% of respondents
stating that *Secure Trust Bank is a

Great Place to Work’ compared to 77%
previously. The Trust Index is the average
of the core survey statements and used as
the Group’s key performance indicator in
respect of employee satisfaction,

We were delighted to be recognised at
the Best Workplace awards in May 2019,
being ranked 29th in the UK Best
Workplaces Large category and 14th in the
UK Best Workplaces for Women category.

As part of our commitment to continuous
improverment, we had previously focused
on three specific areas which we considered
would further enhance employees’
workplace experience at Secure Trust Bank.
We were therefore pleased that two of
these focus areas, Wellbeing and Reward,
were amongst the most improved areas
within the survey.

_As part of the ongoing focus on Reward,

in October 2018 we launched a transparent
pay and grading framework, working in
partnership with independent consultants,
the remuneration practice of Aon plc, and
throughout 2019 we have continued 1o
develop and embed this into the
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organisation, In addition, it was announced
that all employees could take an additional
day's holiday on their birthday and we have
further enhanced our family friendly
policies that had already gone significantly
beyond statutory requirements.

Employee development

Employea development remains a priority
and we have a comprehensive induction
programme for new employees that
achieves consistently high satisfaction
scores from attendess,

in addition, we continue to fund a wide
range of specialist professianal
qualifications and provide all employees
with the opportunity to study towards an
external Banking Qualification as part of
thair career development. The Banking
Qualifications are delivered by the London
Institute of Banking & Finance.

In addition to these professional
qualifications, we offer numerous other
development opportunities. These include
a comprehensive four level leadership
academy and 'Connect and Learn’ that
enables colleagues to spend time in other
parts of the business and learn more about
their roles.

in 2019 we once again took part in
National Learning at Work week to provide
a focused platform to further engage
colleagues in their persanal development.
During the week a wide variety of
development tools were available and
interactive sessions were delivered both by
the internal training team and also by
employees on both business related and
wider topics.

An area of increased focus during 2019 has
been the mental health and well-being of
employees. During the year we launched
our Mental Health First Aider Programme
and were delighted that more than 10%

of the workforce volunteered for this
pragramme with more than 5% of the
workforce accredited. In addition, all line
managers completed mandatory training
on this subject to ensure that they are able
to spot early warning signs of stress in their
teams and have increased capability to
provide support.




Employee engagement
and recognition

Research has consistently shown a dear link
between enhanced ievels of performance
and teams that are fully engaged and share
the values of the organisation that they work
for. The positive performance of Secure Trust
Bank Group is a result of the efforts of
employees, and to ensure that colleagues
are recognised for this contribution, there are
a number of schemes in place to celebrate
exceptional performance and behaviours,

These schemas together with our annual
incentive programme continue to help
embed excellence within the cutture,

These schemes include;

e thank you cards and Be valued awards:
colleagues can naminate their peers
whenever and as often as they like and,

in 2019, over 2,500 e cards were sent.
Where the behaviour has been exceptional,
line managers have the opportunity to
reward team members with a Be Valued
award which includes a gift and certificate.

Customar Service Excellence Awards:
colleagues who go the extra mile when it
comes to exceptional internal and external
customer service are recognised at monthly
Customer Service Excellence Awards.

Outstanding achievers: these are given to
colleagues who stand out for their fantastic
contribution to the business. Winners are
nominated by their peers and then
selected by a panel of judges. In 2019,

30 colleagues were recognised with an
incentive trip hosted by membars of the
Group Executive Committee.

Incentive programme: our incentive
scheme links tangible performance targets,
which are based on our strategy and
values, to the outcomes of the scheme.

Long service awards: to recognise loyalty
and commitment to the Group, long
service is awarded at key milestones from
five years of service, with a range of
awards provided.

Gender diversity

In 2019, we published our second Gender
Pay Report and supporting commentary.
We are commiitted to diversity in the
workplace at all levels and the actions
outlined in the report will continue to
develop this further, particularly to improve
the position at senior manager level.

We continue to work closely with
Everywoman in progressing our Inclusion
Agenda with the CEO being an
Everywoman Advocate and the HR
Director and Commercial Director V12
having been previously appointed as
Everywoman Ambassadors. In 2019,

the Sales Director in the Vehicle Finance
Division was also appointed as an
additional Arnbassador.

To further inform the Diversity and
Inclusion steering group we have entered
inta a new partnership with the Employer
Netwark for Equality and Inclusion (ENEY.
This has besn pivotal in progressing plans
through the completion of its TIDE
diversity benchmarking tool to identify
areas of focus. In addition, ENE| has
independently fadilitated focus groups to
gain feedback on potential barriers to
fernale progression at STBG. The outputs
are being used to inform existing and
future development programmes as well
as the Group's wider strategy.

We have deployed technology to remove
any potential bias in the language used
in job adverts and rale profiles.
Furthermore, we continue to train all
recruiting managers to ensure that all
hiring adheres to equality and inclusion
principles and that all talented individuals
have the chance to progress within the
organisation. We have also delivared
mandatory unconscious bias training for
all line managers.

Given the diverse nature of the Group,
which includes a high number of unique
roles with spedialist skills, the Board was
delighted that 84 employees secured a
new role within the Group in 2019 with
52% being filled by female employees.

To further support its teams we have also
introduced an updated workwise policy
with a more progressive approach to
flexible and agile working.
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At the year-end, the split by gender of the
Group's employees was as follows:
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Strategic Report

Managing our business responsibly

continued

Responsibility to
the environment

We recognise the importance of acting
responsibly in relation to the environment
ahd our Respansible Business Strategy will
indude a new policy, an assessment of our
impact or the environment and set goals
and objectives for managing this. Steps are
already being taken in this regard,

for example:

+ All major office refurbishments include
the installation of energy

efficient lighting

Yorke House, the building in Solihull
that we acquired in 2019 has been
designed around flexible/agile working
practices. The design principles included
targets to improve space use efficiency,
to be met by deploying tactics such as
reducing hoakable meeting roomns
and replacing with collaborative areas
and aflocating areas to teams rather
than fixed desks to individuals.

Early indications are positive

measured by occupancy rates and
feedback from colleagues

Greenhouse gas emissions

* The flexible working policy has been
revised in line with evolving workplace
design principles

* Following a successful ‘Go Green'
initiative in the Retail Finance business,
this is being emulated in other areas of
the Group

As a financial services provider, our
operations da not have a significant direct
impact on the environment. The Group’s
report on all of the emission sources
required under the Companies Act 2006
{Strategic Report and Directors’ Report)
Regulation 2013 is set out below, We now
consistently report information under the
Regulation and only emission sources
where accurate and consistent data is
available for the complete reporting
period have been included.

Scope 1 emissions resulting from the
combustion of natural gas for heating
buildings and fue! for business mileage,
and Scope 2 and 3 emissions assodiated
with the consumption of purchased
electricity are included within the GHG
report. Scope 1 emissions resulting from

the private use of company owned/leased
vehicles have been induded for the first
time in 2019, as the data is now available.
This inclusion has led to an increase in the
overall environmental intensity indicator;
excluding these emissions would leave the
indicator unchanged at 3.5, All Scope 3
sources, except for purchased electricity
transmission, distribution emissions and
grey fleet have been exduded from this
report. We set 2017 as the GHG baseline
year and subsequent reports show
emissions for the current year and for
each subsequent year following the
baseline year.

In compiling this GHG report, we have
used the GHG Protoco! Corporate
Accounting and Reporting Standard
{revised editicn) and energy supplier
invoice data. Greenhouse gas emissions
are reported as a single total, by
converting them to the equivalent amourt
of CO, using emission factors from the UK
Govemmaent’s GHG Conversion Factors for
Company Reporting 2017.

The Group’s greenhouse gas emissions are
shown below.

2019 Carbon 2018 Carbon

dioxide (tonnes}  dicxide tonnes}

Scape 1 - direct emissions from combustion of fuel 223.7 259
Scope 2 - indirect emissions from electricity purchased 421.5 4039
Scope 3 - other indirect emissions from purchased electricity transmission and distribution 124.5 1352
Total scope 1 to 3 emissions 769.7 565.0
Environmental intensity indicator (tonnes carbon dioxide per £1 million Group income) 4.7 35

Seope | emissiora for 201 Includs the private use of company vehicles, whessas this data was not avadable in 2018, On » Rka-for-like basis, the smvionmentsl intensity indicator for 2019 would ba 3.5,
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Social responsibility

We are very mindful of our need to act
responsibly in society. In part we meet
these requirements by complying with the
wide range of laws and regulations which
are applied to financial services companies
in the UK. The Group has a governance
framework and range of policies which are
designed to ensure that we meet these
responsibilities and adhere to the highest
professional and ethical standards when
dealing with customers, suppliers,
employees, local communities and other
stakeholders. The scope of our Group-
wide policies and regulations include:

* Anti-bribery and corruption

* Anti-money laundering

* Employment Health and Safety

« Whistleblowing

¢ Human rights and tackling
maodern slavery

All staff are required to complete the
relevant regulatory training on an annual
basis with further training offered

when required.

We also strive to go well beyond our
legal and regulatory commitments

when it comes to social responsibility.
We believe that our customer centric
culture helps to drive a positive approach
to social and community issues and we
already have a range of responsible
initiatives incorporated within business

as usual activities which impact positively
on local communities.

A series of established community focused
schemes are in place and our charity
committees continue tc empower
colleagues from different business areas to
drive forward charitable activities. in 2019,
we supported 242 charities and the
enthusiasm of colleagues helped to
generate over £68,000 for good causes.

In addition, the STBG Volunteers Scheme,
which entitles all colleagues to use one
paid day to make a difference in their local
area, resulted in over 700 work hours being
donated to help create positive change in
the Group's local communities,

We also initiated a pilot mentoring scheme
with & local academy that supports young
people exduded from mainstream school
with a view to rolling it out across the entire
Group. Our Employability Skills proagramme
also delivered eraployment training via a
nurnber of community pariners, including St
Basils which supports young pecple at risk
of homelessness.

We are proud of the work done to date in
this area and we fully anticipate that our
ongoing partnership with Business in the
Community witl allow us to identify and
positively address additional social

issues that are of high importance to

our stakeholders.

Non-financial
information statement

The Group complies with the non-financial
information reporting requirements
contained in sections 414CA and 414C8
of the Companies Act 2006, with the
exception of the requirement to have an
environmentaf policy. This is intended to
help stakeholders understand the Group’s
position on key nen-finandal information.
An envirenmental policy will be developed
in 2020.

Information regarding environmental
matters, employees, social matters,
respect for human rights and anti-
corruption and anti-bribery matters are
included in this Managing our business
responsibly section.

The location of the other information
required is set out in the table below:

Reporting Requirament Suction Page
Policy embedding, due diligence and outcomes Principal risks and uncertainties 40
Description of principal risks and impact of business activity  Principal risks and uncertainties 40
Description of the business model Our business mode! 4
Non-financial key performance indicators Key performance indicators 18
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Strategic Report

Managing our business responsibly
Qur Section 172 Statement continued

Qur Section 172 Statement
This section of the Strategic Report describes how the Directors perform their duty under $172 of the Companies Act 2006 to actin a

way that they consider would be most likely to promote the success of the Company for the benefit of its members as a whole, having

regard to a range of stakeholders. In performing this duly the Directors must have regard to specified matters and this section of the
Strategic Report describes ways in which this is done, The Board discharges this duty through its dedsion making at meetings and by
other means detailed ih the table below. Further details of how the Directors’ duties are discharged are included in the Governarice

section on pages 62 to 119,

Long-term

The Board approves a long-term strategic plan and considers consequences of decisions in the fong-term as set out in our Viability
Staterment on page 50. Investment decisions are made on the basis of establishing a long-term sustainable business.

Our key stakeholders

Consideration is given by the Board and by management acting under authority delegated from the Board to impacts on our customers,

workforce, wider society and the environment. In many ways the requirements of our regulators also support the need to address the
matters required to be taken into account in performing the $172 duty, for example the way in which the requirements of the Senior
Managers and Certification Regime support the maintenance of high standards of business conduct.

The table below identifies key stakeholders and how we engage with them. That engagement may be shaped by the Board and is
taken into account by the Board in the performance of its role.

engaged in thelr roles is
essential to bringing the

STB vision of straightforward
transpatent banking to life
and fundamental to the
long-term success of the
Group. It is crucial that our
people apply STRs values
and reflect our values in the
way they operate.

by the CEQ, is to ensure that the employea volos is heard by the Board. Paul has attended
and chaired each of the meetings of the Group Employea Coundil since inception and his
reports to the Board following these meetings are now a standing Board agenda item.
Following his retirement as a Director this role will be undertaken be Lucy Neville-Rolfe who
will continue to act as a conduit between the Group Employee Coundl and the Board.

Paul Marrow is also appointed as the Whistleblowers’ Champion and any issues raised
through the whistieblowing disclosure facility were highlighted by him and considered by
the Risk Committee in 2019, This responsibility will be adopted by Ann Berresford following
his departure,

tach year the Group conducts a Your Voice staff opinion survey with Great Place to Work®,
The Board welcomes the result of the Group being ranked 29th best place to work in the
Large Company category and 14th best place to work for Women.

Foliowing feedback received from our people, we have implemented 2nd provided access
1o 3 wide range of training, relevant to developing individuals both as STB employees and
to ensure they are satisfied with their development as paople. All staff are able to undertake
an externally recognised qualification offered by the London Institute of Banking and
Finance Banking Certification. In 2019 we have provided additional fadfities following the
putchase of new offices in Solihull which incorporates s mare agile working environment.
The Board receives regular briefings from the CEC on employee engagement and the
Remunaration Commitiee conducts an annual review of workforee benefits

and remuneration.

Whao? How? Where?
Customers We seck engagement from customers wia the Feefo scoring system. The CEQ reportsto the  Further details in
Board on th Its and the perf fthe G f Faef ?0 f Feef:
. oard on the results and the performance of the Group In tenms of Feefo scores forms pait respect of Feelo
t

::l:::nke z:‘v:xzﬁ:::;gy of the CEO’s objectives. The Risk Committes receives updates regarding complaints scoring are set out
the Boarc'! bt throudt monitoring on behalf of the Board. This feedback helps shape and inform our products on pages 54 to 55.
the Group, our customers and services. ’
are at the heart of We have a culture of ensuring the right outcomes are obtained for customers. The right Finther information
everything we do. We focus  outcome for customers is more important than simple adherence to poficy and process. is set out on
on understanding how our This is an example where our regulatory obligations further support our approach to this. page 54.
products and services can Particular attention is given to vulnerable customers, The Board receives reports on the
meet their needs and are treatment of vuinerable customers, including in our debt collection business.
delivered in a
straightforward and
transparent way.
Our pgopie The Group Employee Council was set up in 2018, sugmenting and enhancing the existing Further information
Having 2 talented, diverse work eoundils by providing a more formalisad reporting machanism to the Non-Executive on employee
Samil gof rcividu a'ls who are  Directors. Paul Marrow was appointed as the Non-Executive Director designated for engagement can be

ol workforce engagernent and Chairman of the Group Emplayee Coundil. His role, supported  on pages 55 to 56.

Further information
on this can ba found
inthe Employee
Development
disdosure on
page 56.
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following the intarim and full year results.

Who? How? Where?

Regulators The Board interacts with the regulator through meetings with Directors and The Board gives

We have a duty to ensure senior managemant. regular consideration

that we engage transparently  Engagement is also conducted through thematic reviews in which the Group participates. o m’respon_clanoe

and proactively with and publications

our regulators. from the regulatory
sphere. Engagement
is often conducted
through UK Finance,
the relevant
trade body.

Shareholders The Chairman and CEO engage with our principal shareholders in order to understand their  Further information

The views of the funds views, The Committee chairmen seek views of shareholders on significant mattersrelated to  on shareholder

and individuals that back us their areas of responsibility, for example in relation to the Directors' Remuneration Policy. engagement can

araimportanttous asthey  The Chairmen of each Committee, as well as the Senior independent Director, are available  be found on page

provide the capital which to meet with shareholders on request and both seek engagement and are available for 67 and within the

we use in our business, questions at the AGM. The Executive Directors additonally provide investor presentations Committee reports
on pages 70 to 105.

Wider Society

We acknowledge the need
to set 2 good example by
the way in which

wea oparste.

We give due consideration
to the effect we have in
the communities in which
we operate.

Presentations to the Board are encouraged to address wider impacts of the proposal,
including stakeholder considerations.

We seek to engage with the communities in which we work and live and the Board receives
regular updates on that interaction, ranging from mentoring children in local schools to
raising money for charity.

Further information
on this subject can
be found on

page 59.

Environment

Acting as a good corporate
citizen and raducing the
impact of our actions on the
environment is necessary
1o ensure the long-term
sustainable future of

the businass.

Given the nature of the business of the Group, we have limited environmental impact through
emissions. We monitor the emissions we do aeate. With a view to heading towards carbon
neutrality, the Group has implemented technological solutions to minimise requirements to
travel and to fecilitate inter-office engagement. Additionally, flexible working induding remote
warking are encouraged throughout the organisation resulting in reduced travel and
consequential environmental impacts.

Further information
on this subject can
be found on

page 58.

Principal decisions/case study

Pension changes

In advance of the proposed changes arising from auto enrolment pension contibutians, the CEO and HR Director submitted a proposal to the
Rernuneration Committee to address the impact of the changes on the lowest paid staff. The praposal was to increase the employer’s contribution -
by an additional 1% to match the employees’ contribution of 4%. The alternative wotdd have been to leave the employee to find 2 further 2% to
meset the required contribution or to opt out of the pension arrangements entirely. The Remuneration Committee agreed that requiring the
employee to meet the additional cost entirely would encourage individuals to opt out of the auto enrolment scheme and might cause the individual
to be disadvantaged in the future. The Committes, having regard to the employee population, shareholders views and the wider implications,
agread with the proposal to increase the pension payment to a matched 4% for staff in grades 1-4.

Maergers and acquisition

Consdous that for any acquisition to be successful, it would need to be in the interests of our stakeholders as a whale, the Board considered a
strategic acquisition during the course of 2019.
When reviewing the potential target the Board gava consideration not only to the financial impact but also the impact on shareholders and wider
stakeholders including the views of regulators, our people and customers.
Having conducted the review of the target, taking in to consideration: all the elements and impacts on stakeholders, the Board concluded that it

uld nat’Re appropriate to proceed with the acguisition at this time,

by the Board and signed on its behalf,
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Board leadership
Chairman’s introduction

Lord Forsyth
Chairman

IMAGE REMOVED

UK Corporate Governance Code ({the ‘Code”")
Statement of Compliance

The Code sets out principles relating to good govemance of
companies with a premium listing. The Code is availabie at
www frc.org.uk.

Throughout the period under review, the Company was subject
to the Code.

The Board confirms that from 1 January 2019 to the date of this
report the Group has complied with the principles of the Code.

The following sections of this report describe how the Board has
applied the principles of the Code and describes the Group's
governance arrangements.

Applying

the principles
of good
governance
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On behalf of the Board | am pleased ta
introduce our report on Corporate
Governance. This explains the Group’s
governance arrangements, how the Group
has applied the principles of the 2018 UK
Corporate Governance Code (the ‘Code’)
during 2019 and adapted to the
introduction of the new Code.

2019 saw further changes and
developments in the Corporate
Governance of the Group as the Group
has continued to grow and to meet
evolving expectations.

Particular developments during
2019 include:

* Compoasition of Board: There have
been changes to the compasition of the
Board during 2019 including the
recruitrment of an additional
independent Non-Executive Director
and changes to the composition of
Board Committees. In 2020 we face the
retirerment of Paul Marrow as a Non-
Executive Director, Chairman of the Risk
Cormmittee and Senior independent
Director. Pauls experience has been
greatly valued and { am most gratefu! for
the role that he has performed at the
Group over the past nine years. It is a
matter of regret that the Code is dlear
that Paul would be unable to perform his
current roles following the expiry of nine
years from his appointment. | welcome
David McCreadie as an independent
Non-Executive Director who brings
considerable banking experience and
who will be a great addition to the
Board. At the end of 2019 Neeraj Kapuy,
our Chief Finandial Cfficer, notified the
Group that he intended to take up a
new position, | would like to thank




Neeraj for his contribution during his
time at the Group and wish him every
success in his new role. The Board has
embarked on the search for a
reptacement, further details of which can
be found in the Nomination Committee
raport. The Board continues to keep its
compasition under review so that there
is an appropriate and diverse mix of
skills and experience. There is a Board
Diversity Policy, information about which
can be found in the Nomination
Committee report

Culture: Our strategy is supported by
our culture. We are delighted to have
been ranked 29th Best Place to Work in
the Great Place to Work® Large
Company category and 14th Best Place
to Work for Women. This recognition is
welcorne but does not detract from the
need to do better including in our
Gender Pay Gap. | am pleased that Lucy
Neville-Rolfe has agreed to take over
from Paul Marrow as Chairman of our
Group Employee Council and as the
nominated Non-Executive Director who
engages with the workforce. In the
course of the year the Board approved a
statement of culture. The Board agreed
that the Group’s cutture should be one
where there is a caring environment for
all colleagues and customers; diversity,
integrity, personal development and
team working are central to the way in
which the Group operates; doing the
right thing outweighs short-term profit
goals; change is openly embraced; and
individuals share in the success of

the Group

*

Strategy: Further changes were made
to the approach to the strategy of the
Group. The strategy was approved at
the Board Strategy Away Days in
September 2019

Ramuneration: Remuneration-related
arrangements have continued to be the
subject of considerable focus building
onthe work carried out in 2018.

Once again | am most grateful for the
work performed by the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and the other
members of the Remuneration
Committee in 2019

Oversight: We have reviewed and
adapted the oversight exercised by the
Beard including in relation to the
information provided to the Board and
its Committees. The Risk Committee has
continued to spend a considerable
amount of ime on oversight of
management actions involving
Information Security (incduding Cyber
Security) and Operational Resilience
which has been an area of focus of our
regulator and the Group.
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Board leadership

Board of Directors

Strong leaders

IMAGE REMOVED

The Rt Hon Lord Forsyth
of Drumlean PC Kt
Non-Executive Chairman

Appuinted to the Board on { March 2014 as an
independent Non-Executive Director and
appointed Chairman of the Company on

19 October 2016. Member of the Remuneration
and Momination Committcoa.

Skills and experience

Lord Forsyth is a former Chairman of Hyperion
Insurance Group, and former Deputy Chairman
of JP Morgan UK and Evercore Partners
International. He was appointed 1o the Privy
Council in 1995, knighted in 1997 and joined the
Housa of Lords in 1999. He was 3 member of the
Haouse of Cormmons for 14 years and served in
Government for 10 years, latterly as a Cabinet
Minister. His background in the public and
private sectors has given Lord Forsyth 8 broad
axperiance of matiers ralevant to the business
of the Group including strategy, govemance,
operstions, marketing, risk and human capital.

Other appointments include:

Lord Forsyth is a director of J&J Denholm
Limited and Denholm Logistics Group Limited
and Chairman of the House of Lards Economic
Affairs Committee.

IMAGE REMOVED

Paul Lynam ACIB, AMCT, Fifs
Chief Executive Officer

Appointed 1o the Board on 13 September
2010, Chairman of the Assets and
LialHities Committee.

Skills and expetience

Paul Lynam joined Secure Trust Bank as Chiaf
Executive Officer, having spent 22 years working
for NatWest and RBS. Prior to leaving RBS, Paul
was the Managing Director, Banking, for RBS/
NatWest's SME banking business across the UK.
Before that Paul spant four years 2s the
Managing Director of Lombard North Central
PLC. During his career Paul has undartaken roles
in branch banking, business banking, corporate
and commaerdal banking, asset finance, invoice
finance, strategy, performance management,
lending and central head office functions. Paul is
a non-axecutive director of UK Finance, the
recognised trade bady for the finance industry,
leading on Specialist Banks and SME customer
interests. He also chairs the Spediaiist Bank
Strategic Advisory Committee. He is a Fellow of
the IFS University College and an Assodate of
the Chartered Institute of Bankers and the
Association of Corporate Treasurers.

Other appointments include:

Pau! is a non-executive director of UK Finance,
aswell as a member of the faculty of the Schoal
for CEQs.
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Mr David McCreadie FCBI
Independent Non-Executive Director

Appainted to the Board on 17 December 2019
and appointed as a member of the Risk
Committes on 1 Janusry 2020 and Nomination
Comimittee on 29 January 2020.

Skifls and experience

David McCreadie has many years of banking
experiance and is a Feflow of the Charterad
Banking Institute. He spent 22 years at RBS
Group holding leadership roles in a number of
RABS Group's retail banking businesses as well as
spending time in the retail branch network and
central head office functions. From 2004 to 2008
David was appointed the Chief Executive Officar
of Kroger Personal Finance based in Cincinnati,
USA. David joined Tesco Bank in 2008 and
became Managing Director with responsibifity
for the banking and insurance businesses and
was also appointed to the Board as an
exeautive director.

His experience includes banking, risk
management, govermnance, consumer-fadng
businessas and retailing.
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IMAGE REMOVED

Ann Berresford ACA

Independent Non-Executive Director

Appointed to the Board on 22 November 2014
and appointed Chairman of the Audit
Compnittee on 23 Septembar 2017. Member of
the Risk and Nomination Committees,

Ann will be appointed as the Senior
Independent Director and Whistlablawers’
Charnpion following the dlose of the 2020
Annual General Meeting.

Skilis and experience

Ann Barresford is a Chartered Accountant with a
background in the financial services and energy
sectors. She has hald positions at Bath Building
Sodiety, the Pensions Regulator, Hyperion
Insurance Group, Triodos Renewables plc, the
Pension Protection Fund, Bank of lreland Group,
Clyde Petroleumn plc and Grant Thomton,

Her career has given Ann experiencain
mortgages, pensions, operations, accounting,
finance and risk.

Other appolntments indude:
Ann is a non-executive director of Albion
Venture Capital Trust PLC,

IMAGE REMOVED

Paul Marrow ACIB

Independent Non-Executive Director
(Senior Independent Director)

Appointed to the Board 3 March 2011.
Appaointed Chalrman of the Risk Committee and
Chalrman of the Group Employee Council.
Member of the Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee.
Non-Executive Director designated for
worldorce engagement.

Skills and experience

Paul Merrow has over 40 years of banking
exparience end has, in the past, been
responsible for the Commercial Banking and
Specialist Corporate Banking business divisions
of RBS Group in the UK and been the chair of
JCB Financa Limited. Paul holds banking
qualifications, gained by examination.

Othar appointments include:

Paul is also an independent non-executive
diractor of Arbuthnot Latham & Ca. Limited, a
wholly owned subsidiary of Arbuthnot Banking
Group and provides consultancy services to
Arbuthnot Latham & Co., Limited.

IMAGE REMQVED

Victoria Stewart
Independent Non-Executive Director

Appointed to the Board on 22 November 2014,
Appointed Chalrman of the Remuneration
Committee on 21 July 2017. Member of the
Nomination Committee. Victoria was appointed
to the Audit Committee on 1 January 2020,

Skills and experience

Victoria Stewart has over 25 years of experience
in the finandal services sector and was for many
years a fund manager and investor in UK small
companies. Victoria has knowledge of corporate
structures and capital markets with particular
experience in smaller companies listed on tha
Main Market and AIM. She has held a number of
paositions at Royal London Group and Chiswell
Associates {formerly Cantrade Investment
Management Limited and now part of Sarasin &
Partners). Her background has given Victoria
experience in remunaration, governance,
corporate strategy, investor relations,
accounting, finance and risk.

Other appointmants include:
Member of the ICAEW

Corporate Governance Committes and
lnvestment Committee.

Victoria is a non-executive director of Artemis
Alpha Trust PLC and JF Morgan Claverhouse
Investrent Trust PLC.
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IMAGE REMOVED

Baraoness Lucy Neville-Rolfe
DBE CMG
Indepandant Non-Executive Director

Appointed to the Board on 28 November 2018.
Mambar of the Audit and Nomination
Committees. Lucy will be appointed as the
Non-Executive Director designated for
workforce engagement and Chairman of the
Group Employee Council following the 2020
Annual General Meeting.

Skills and axperience

Baroness (Lucy) Newille-Rolfe DBE CMG has had
a distinguished career in business and in public
senvice. She became a member of the House of
Lords in 2013 and was a Minister in the Business
and Culture Departments and in HM Treasury
from 2014-2017. In the period 2010-14 she was
3 non-executive director of [TV ple, of Metro
AG, of 2 Sisters Food Group, of PWCS Advisory
Board and Chairman of EuroCommerce in
Brussels. Earlier in her career she was a civil
servant in No 10 Downing Street and the
director of the Deregulation Unit in the Cabinat
Office. Lucy was an executive at Tesco plc for 15
years including serving for over six years on the
main board. Har experience includes customer
facing businesses and financial services,
communications, corporate stratagy and M&A,
economic issues, regulation and govemance
experience s a company secretary and a
non-exacutive director and Chairman.

Other appointments induda:

Lucy is cutrently a non-exacutive director of
Capita plc and of Health Data Research UK,
She is also a director and Tnustee of Thomson
Reuters Founders Share Company Limited.

Lucy is the Chairman of the UK-ASEAN Business
Council and Chairman of Assured Food
Standards (Red Tractor).

IMAGE REMOVED

Paul Myers ACIB
Independent Non-Executive Director

Appointed to the Board an 28 Navember 2018.
Member of the Nomination Committee.

Appointed interim Chairman of the Risk
Committee with effect from 31 March 2020.
Appointed to the Remuneration Committee on
1 January 2020.

Skiils and experlence

Paul Myers has mary years of banking experienca,
gained initially in Barclays whera he spent 24 years
in a variety of retail banking roles. He was part of
the small team that founded and built Aldermara
Bank, where he served as Chief Operating Officer,
Corporate Development Director and on the
board as an executive director. Paul had a wide
range of responsibilities at Aldermore, including IT,
operations, transformation, marketing and digital
as well as building and developing the retail and
SME savings operations. After leaving Aldemmore,
Paul was CEQ of GKBK Limited, leading a team
that created and developed a digital banking
praposition, utilising data and Al to offer lending
solutions to under-sarved austomars.

Other appointments incude:

Paul is now acting as an advisor to Ashman
Finance, a prospective bank SME property
lender and is due to be appointed to Ashman's
board as an indapendent non-executive
director. Paul is an Associate of the Chartered
Institute of Bankers.
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Neeraj Kapur
Former Director

Appointed to the Board on 31 May 2011.
Resigned on & December 2019.

Skitls and experience

Naaraj Kapur has over 25 years” financial
services experience spent in bath the
accounting and banking industries. He holds

a degrae in Aercnautical Engineering from
Imperial College, London, is a fellow of the
Chartered Institute of Bankers in Scotland,

a fallow of the Institute of Directors, a feliow
and a member of the Coundil of the Institite of
Chartered Accountants in England & Wales
FICAEWY, and Chair of the ICAEW Financial
Services Faculty. Neeraj qualified as a Chartered
Accountant in 1993 at Arthur Andersen and
spent 11 years working in professional practice.
Ha joined Royal Bank of Scotland {RBS) in 2001
where he performed a number of roles which
included Chief Financial Officer of Lomisard
North Central PLC. His background has given
Neeraj experience in accounting, finance,
professional senvices, govemnance, operations,
marketing and risk.

Othar appointmants includa:
Member of the Council of the [CAEW,




Corporate Governance Report

Board leadership and
Company purpose

The corporate purpose, values and
strategy of Secure Trust Bank have been
developed and adopted by the Board.
The Board recognises the importance of
our people, at every level, embodying
STB% values and ensuring that this is
reflected in our culture and therefore the
way in which we operate. All of our people
are set objectives aligned to our 'Grow,
Sustain, Love' framework to further our
common aims, from the CEOQ through the
remainder of the organisation. The Board
is satisfied that the purpose, values and
strategy are aligned with our culture.

In addition, each year, STB conducts an all
employee staff opinion survey to measure
our culture and to understand our
workforce’s aultural alignment to our
purpose, values and strategy.

Following the receipt of the condusions
of the survey, conducted by Great Place to
Work® in 2019, together with other routine
assessments on culture, the Board is
confident that the practices and policies
in place to promote the culfture in the
organisatior: are aligned with the STB
purpose, values and strategy.

The Board acknowledges the importance
of our employees and the wider workforee
1o be able to raise concerns in confidence
and, if they wish, anonymously.

Further detail on our Whistleblowing
arrangements and how our Group
Employee Coundil operates can be found
an page 81 and 55 respectively.

The Company, through the Chairman, SID,
the Non-Executive Director designated for
workforce engagement and each of the
Cornmittee Chairmen ensure that there

is regular interaction with our key
stakeholders, designed to ensure that
stakeholder impact is fully embedded as

a cornerstone of Board discussions on
proposals. Further information on this can
be found in our Section 172 Statement on
page 60 and elsewhere in this report.

The Chairman of the Board and CEO
regularly meet with investors to

understand their views on strategy and
corporate governance and this is reported
back 1o the Board. The Committee
chairmen each seek engagement with
shareholders on significant matters relating
to their areas of responsibility.

Further detail on this can be foundin
each of the Committee reports and in
our 5172 Statement,

The Board has delegated authority to
exeautive management to run the business
and to implement the strategy set by

the Board. A brief description of the
responsibilities of the Executive
Committee and a description of the
governance framework can be found on
the Company’s website. Until 6 December
2019, two members of executive
management, the CEO and the CFQ,

were mambers of the Board. The CFO,

Mr Neeraj Kapur resigned from the Board
on 6 December 2019. The search for a new
CFO is underway. Further detail regarding
the search can be found in the Nomination
Committee report on page 70.

The setting of a risk appetite and the
oversight of risk management practices is
an important part of the role of the Board
and the Board seeks regular confirmation
that the necessary resources are in place
for the Company to meet its objectives
and measure performance against them.

The Board meets regularly and, both as
a Board and through its committeas,
provides oversight of and direction to
management, providing constructive
challenge, strategic guidance and
specialist advice,

Division of responsibilities

The Board is led by the Chairman who
leads the Board and is responsible for its
overall effectiveness and who encourages
a culture of openness and debate.

The Board provides strategic leadership
to the Group, sets the Group's long-term
strategic objectives and exercises
oversight aver the implementation of the
strategy and the activities of management.
The Board is responsible to shareholders,
for whom the Company generates value,
for promoting the long-term sustainable
success of the Group and enabling the
Bank's continued contribution to the wider
society in which we operate.

The 2018 Cods recommends that the
Board should appoint one of the
independent Non-Executive Diractors as
Senior Independent Director. The Senior
Independent Director should be available
to shareholders if they have concerns
which contact through tha normat channels
of Chairman, Chief Executive Officer or

other Executive Directors has failed to
resalve or for which such contact is
inappropriate. During 2018, Paul Marrow
was appointed as the Senior independent
Director. Paul Marmrow is proposing to step
down from his roles at the Secure Trust
Bank Board at the 2020 AGM, including
as Senior Independent Director. it is
proposed that Arn Berresford will be
appointed as the Seniar Independent
Director, in line with the succession plan,
follawing Paul’s retirernent.

The responsibilities of the Chairman,
Chief Executive Officer and Senior
Independent Director are outlined in
writing and a brief summary of their roles
can be found on the Company’s website,
The Board has delegated specific
authorities to its committees, as set out in
each committee’s terms of reference,
which are each available on the
Company'’s website. There is a schedule of
matters reserved for consideration by the
Board. Matters reserved for exclusive
determination by the Board indude the
determination of dividends, material
acquisitions or disposals and the issue of
new shares. The Board exerdises oversight
of the work of its committees and receives
updates on the work of each committee at
Board meetings. There is a clear division of
responsibilities between the leadership of
the Board and the Executive leadership of
the Company.

intemal processes are in place to enable
the Board to have access to necessary
information and resources to function
effectively, including the maintenance of
online portals of up to date company
policies, timely dissemination of
information and access to independent
professional advice at the expense of the
Company. All Directors have access to the
Company Secretary’s advice and services.
During the COVID-19 crisis, contingency
plans have been put in place to allow all
Directors to continue to have access to the
necessary information and resources to be
able to continue to effectively discharge
their responsibilities.

The Company Secretary provides support
and acts as a first point of contact for the
Chairman and Non-Executive Directors.
The Company Secretary is also responsible
for the induction of new independent
Non-Executive Directors.
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Corporate Governance Report

continued

Board membership
and meetings
Composition as at 31 December 2019

CHART REMOVED

Board attendance

Numher of scheduled

meetings during 2019 10
Lord Forsyth (Chairman} 10/40
Baronass Neville-Rolfe 10/10
Ann Berresford 10/10
Neerzj Kapur! 910
Paul Lynam 10/10
Paul Marrow

{Semnior Independant Directorf 9M10
David McCreadie® 0/0
Paul Myers 10110
Victoria Stewart 10/10
! Resigned & Dacember 2019,

2 Mr Marrow was onable to attand tha meeting held in July 2019
due to finess.

' Appointed 18 Decambaer 2019.

Composition, succession and evaluation
Information on Board and Committee Succession Planning can be found within the

reports of the Nomination Committee.

CHART REMOVED

The length of service for each Non-
Executive Director is outlined above.
The Nomination Committee gave
consideration to the membership and
tenure of the Board as a whole and
considered proposals for refreshing
membership when evaluating the Board
compasition. Further information about
the role of the Nomination Comyrittee is
available on pages 70 to 72.

Audit, Risk and
Internal Control

Informaticn on our Audit, Risk and Internal
Control practices and how we have
complied with the Code can be found in
the reports of the Audit Committee and
Risk Committee on pages 73 {audit) and
78 trisk),

Conflicts of interest

All Directors are required to disclose to the
Board any outside interests which may
pose a conflict with their duties to the
Group. The Board is required to approve
any actual or potential conflicts of interest.
On appointment new Directors are
required to disclose their other interests.
Conflicts of interest are also governed by
the Adtides of Association of the Company
and company law. Directors are under 2
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continuing obligation te disdose external
appointments and to confirm that they
continue to have sufficient time to
discharge their duties to the Group.

Ar internal schedule of conflicts

is maintained.

Financial reporting

A description of the responsibilities of the
Directors in relation to the preparation of
the Annual Report and Accounts 1s set out
on page 109,

The approach taken by the Board to
ensuring that the Annual Report and
Accounts are fair, balanced and
understandable is set cut on page 108
and the information necessary for
shareholders to assess the Company’s
position and performance is set out in the
Strategic Report starting on page 02.

An explanation of the business model and
the strategy for delivering the objectives of
the Company are set out on pages 04 and
16 respectively.

A statement of the responsibility of the

external auditors in relation to the repont
and accounts is set out on page 116.

The basis on which the Board reached its
decision to adopt the going concern basis
of accounting is described on page 50.




Internal control

The Board has overall responsibility for the
Group's system of internal control and for
reviewing its effectiveness. Such a system
is designed to manage rather than
eliminate risk of failure to achieve business
objectives and can only provide
reasonable but not absolute assurance
against the risk of material misstatement or
loss. The systems of intemal control were
in place throughout the year in review and
up to the date of the approval of the
Annual Report and Accounts.

The Board, through the Risic Committee,
confirms that in reviewing the annual report
it has completed a robust assessment of the
Group's emerging and principal risks and
has included a description of its principal
risks as set out on pages 4010 49,

The Board has adoptad a Group risk
appetite statement which sets out the
Board's attitude to risk and internal control.
Key risks identified by the Directors are
formally reviewed and assessed at least
once a year by the Board and are also
reviewed by the Risk Committee at its
meetings. Kay business risks are also
identified, evaluated and managed on an
ongoing basis by management. The Board
and the Risk Committee also receive
regular reports on any material risk
matters. Significant risks identified in
connection with the development of new
activities are considered by the Board and
the Risk Committee in conjunction with the

approval of any such new activity.

The effectiveness of the interna! control
system is reviewed regularly by the Board
and the Audit Committee, which also
receives reports of reviews undertaken
by the intamal audit function. The Audit
Committee also receives reports from
the external auditors, Deloitte LLF: which
incude details of internal control matters
that they have idernitified. Certain aspects
of the system of internal control are also
subject to regulatory supervision, the
results of which are monitored closely by
the Board and its Committees.

Key elements of the Group's systarm of
intemal control indude regular meetings
of the executive and business unit risk
committees, together with annual
budgeting, monthly financial and
operational reporting for all businesses
within the Group. Conduct and compliance
are monitorad by management, the Risk
team, Internal Audit and Compliance and,
to the axtent necessary to support its audit
report, the external auditor, Oversight is
also exevcised by the Board and the Audit
and Risk Committees.

The Board reguiarly reviews actual and
forecast performance compared with
annual plans as welt as other key
performance indicators as described

on page 18.

The Group’s policies and procedures
are reviewed and reqularly updated and
3 training programme applies in relation
to the rollout of polides.

Remuneration

Inforrmation on our remuneration practices
and how we have complied with the Code
can be found in the report of the
Remuneration Committee.
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Statement by the Chairman
of the Nomination Committee

IMAGE REMOVED

Lord Forsyth
Chairman of the
Nomination Committee

GG

The Board has
concluded it is both
performing well and
is effective.”

I am pleased to pressnt the report of the
Nomination Committee in respect of
2019 in what has been a busy year for
the Committee.

In February 2019 the Committee assessed
the effectiveness and compaosition of the
Board and its Committess and the balance
between independent Non-Executive
Directors and Executive Directors in line
with the 2018 UK Corporate Governance
Code. The Committes recommended to
the Board that it consider a search for a
further independent Non-Executive
Director, culminating in the appointment
of David McCreadie in December 2019
and his appointment to the Nomination
and Risk Committees in January 2020,
David's appointment will further enhance
the collective skill and experience of the
Board and { {ook forward to working with
David in 2020, David has recetved a
thorough induction to his role and has had
the opportunity tc meet senior members
of the leadership team, the Board and
other employees. His induction will
continue throughout the first half of 2020
and it is expected to have completed by
the AGM in 2020. Having been appointed
to the Board in 2018, both Lucy Neville-
Ralfe and Paul Myers are now embedded
into their roles on the Board and the
Committees to which they are appointed
following successfut completion of

their induction.

With the antidpated and regretted
departure of the Senior Independent
Director at the 2020 AGM, following nine
years of service on the Board, the
Committee has led the implementation of
the succession plan. Ann Berresiord is
assuming the additional role of Senior
Independent Director as welt as absorbing
the Whistleblowers' Champion
responsibilities into her remit as Chair of
the Audit Committee, and Paul Myers will
be succeeding Paul Marrow as Chairman
of the Risk Commiittee, both subject to
regulatory approval at the date of

this report.
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In December 2019, following the
Tesignation of Neeraj Kapur, the
Committee, with the assistance of the
Company Secretary, led a competitive
search tender to appoint an external
search consultancy to handle the external
recruitmant search for a new Executive
Diractor and Chief Financial Officer to be
run in parallel with open advertising.
Foilowing a tendering process, Ridgeway
Partners were selected to assist in the
search. None of the Directors or the
Company had an existing relationship with
Ridgeway Partrers.

The Committee worked with Ridgeway
Partners towards the end of 2019 to
determine the search criteria for the
recruitment process, having regard to both
the Board's Diversity Policy, the Board and
Committee effectiveness evaluations
conducted in 2019 and the skills and
expaerience of the Board. The search

is ongoing.

The Board underwent a questionnaire
based performance evaluation in October
2019 which was conducted by the
Campany Secretary under my direction.

In addition, | have conducted individuai
evaluations with each of the Non-Executive
Directors; and Paul Marrow, as Senior
Independent Director, has undertaken an
evaluation of me as Chairman, seeking
feedback from both the Executive and
Non-Executive Diractors.

The outcomes of those various evaluations
are consistent with a Board continuing to
evolve a new dynamic. | am pleased to
report, however, that the Board has
conduded it is both performing well and is
effective. Further information on the
evaluations ¢an be found on page 71,
together with information on the activities
of the Committee throughout 2019,

Lord Forsyth
Chairman of the Nomination Committee
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Nomination Committee
membership and meetings
Compasition

(—CHART REMOVED

Meeting attendance

The number of planned meetings held
during 2019 and the attending members
are shown in the table below:

Nomination  Eligible to
Committ sttand

on
Number of meetings

during 2019 5 5
Lord Forsyth 5 5
Ann Berresford 5 5
Paul Marrow 5 5
Paul Myars 5 5
Baroness Nevilie-Ro¥e 5 5
Victoria Stewart 5 5
David McCreadie’ 0 0

! Appointed 18 Decarrber 2019

As at 31 December 2019 the Nomination
Committee comprised six members and
was compliant with the Code provision
regarding tha composition of the
Nomination Committee throughout 2019,
The Chairman of the Committee is

Lord Forsyth.

The Nomination Committee meets as
frequently as its Chairman may require and
also at ragular intervals to deal with routine
matters and in any event not less than
twice in each finandal year. The Committee
heid three routine meetings during 2019
and two ad hoc meetings.

The attending Directors are shown in the
table to the left.

The Company Secretary or their altemate
acts as Secretary to the Nomination
Committee. Other individuals attend at the
request of the Nomination Committee
Chairman. When appropriate during the
year the Chief Executive Officer and the
Chief Financiat Officer attended meetings.

The Chairman of the Nomination
Committee reports to the Board on the
outcome of Committee meetings and
any recommendations made by

the Committee.

Role and activities of the
Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee assists the
Board in discharging its responsibilities
relating to the structure, size and
compaosition of the Board. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for, amongst
other matters, evaluating the balance of
diversity, skills, knowledge, independence
and experience of the Board, and makes
recommendations to the Board on such
matters. The Nomination Committee also
leads the procass for appointments,
checking that plans are in place for orderly
succession and considers succession
planning, both for the Executive and
Non-Executive Directors, taking into
account the skills and expertise that will be
needed on the Board in the future and
how this can suppart developing diverse
talent within the Company.

Board effectiveness and Non-
Executive Director evaluation

During 2019 the Board conducted an
internally facilitated review of the
effectiveness of the Board, its Committees
and individual Directors using a
combination of questionnaires and face-to-
face meetings. The Committee reviewed
the results of the effectiveness reviews and
the individual Directors' performance
evaluations when assessing the
compaosition of the Board Commiittees and
the contribution made by the individual
Directors. The Committee noted that the
conclusion to the Board effectiveness
review was that the Board was performing
well and exercising the right level of
judgement with due regard to the duties
placed on Directors under company law,
including section 172 of the Companies
Act 2006. The Committee noted that the
Directors had been mindful of the
provisions of the Code and their
responsibilities as Directors and, where
applicable, as senior managars under the
Senior Managers Regime when reaching
their assessment of Board effectiveness
and individual Director contributions.

The 2019 Board effectiveness review
highlighted that there could be
improvement in the quality, and a
reduction of the quantity, of information
provided 1o the Board and its Cornmittees
which would assist the Board in effectively
overseeing the performance of the
business and in assisting and advising
executive management in driving
performance forwards. The Board further
acknowledged that demarcation between
Executive and Board responsibility should
be further articulated and steps have been
taken to address this.

The Committee reviewed the
independence of each Non-Executive
Director. The Committee, following a
rigorous review and evaluation, considers
that Paul Marow remains independent in
baoth character and judgement, and his
judgement unaffected by his tenure at
Secure Trust Bank or appointments at other
companies. The Committee adnowledged
that the Code outlines that a tenure of nine
years from first appointment could impair

a non-executive director’s independence
and note that Pau! has decided not to
stand for re-election at the 2020 Annual
General Meeting.
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The Board, upon the recommendation of
the Committee, is satisfied that all of the
Non-Executive Directors are independent
Non-Executive Directors within the
meaning of the Code and that Lord
Forsyth, on his appointment as Chairman,
met the independence criteria set out in
the Code.

Board training
and development

The Board receives detailed reports from
executive management on the
parformance of the Group at its meetings.
Updates are provided on relevant legal,
corporate govemance and finandal
reporting developments. In addition,

the Board, upon the recommendation of
the Committee, adopted a training
programme during 2019 and received
formal training from both internal and
extermnal experts on topics including
corporate Governance, information security
risk, anti-money laundering and counter
terrorist financing, opportunities in
harnessing FinTech and on "culture

and values’,

Directors ara also encouraged to attend
extemal seminars on areas of relevance to
their role and to keep a record of their
extemnal training. A training plan for 2020
has been developed with a focus on
strategic, regulatory and technology
matters, with a session on Financial Crime
and the responsibilities of the Board
delivered in January 2020.

Succession planning
and recruitment

The Nomination Committee has
considered the Company’s succession
plans and focused on Board (executive
and non-executive) and Senior Manager
succession. Consideration has been given
to potential internal candidates, short-term
solutions in the event of unanticipated
changes in circumstances and external
recruitment as well as reallocating
responsibilities on a short-term or longer
basis, The need for regulatery approval of
the persans performing Senior Manager
functions under the Senior Managers
Regime is incorporated into the
suggestions of proposed individuals
outlined in the succession plan.

The Committee, when considering the
written succession plan for the Board and
Senior Management, reviews the
contingency (irmmediate) medium (1-2
years) and longer-term {2-3 years)
proposals and gives consideration to
developing internal talent and capability in
the medium to long term and external
hires, as well as internal candidates, in a
contingency scenario. The Cemmittee aiso
receives updates on the mentoring
programmes and more information on
developing a diverse talent pipeline can
be found on page 0.

The recruitment process which culminated in
the appointment of David McCreadie was
conducted with the assistance of an extemal
recruitment consultant, Komn Ferry LLP.

None of the Directors or the Company had
an existing relationship with Kom Ferry LLF
The selection of candidates for interview was
made in accordance with the Board's policy
on diversity as set out below and against
objective ariteria. The Committee had also
reviewed the Board's effectiveness and skills,
having regard to the strategy of the Group
and the tenure of the remaining Board, and
used the resulting analysis to help determine
a candidate profile.

With the upcoming retirement of Paul
Marrow, the Committee reviewed the
composition of each of the Risk and Audit
Committees and noted that the
opportunity could be taken to increase the
diversity of the Audit Committee.

The appointment of Victaria Stewart was
subsequently recommended to the Board
and her appointment confirmed with
effect from 1 January 2020. Additionally,
following his appointment to the Board in
December 2019, David McCreadie was
recommended 1o join the Risk Committee
and the Nomination Committee.
Following these appointments, the
Nomination Committee believes that the
composition of the Committees will be
appropriate with each committee having
the right balance of skills and experience
and, in the case of the Audit Commiittee,
with improved diversity.

The succession plan for Paul Marrow is
being implernented with Paul Myers
propased to succeed him as Chairman of
the Risk Committee and Ann Berresford
stepping into the role of Senior
Independent Director, subject to
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regulatory confirmation. Both individuals
have significant relevant experience for
their pew roles and were considered
ratural candidates to succeed

Paul Marrow.

Following the resignation of Neeraj Kapuy,
the succession plan for his role is being
implemented with internal individuals
fulfilling some aspects of his role to
provide continuity in anticipation of his
departure at the end of March 2020,
Ridgeway Partners have simultaneously
assisted, at the Committee’s behest, in
developing the role description to ensure
that a diverse range of candidates are
encouraged to apply and to ensure that
the most suitable short list of candidates is
able to be considered.

Board policy on diversity

The Board appeintrent process and
composition of the Board is overseen by the
Nomination Committee. The Nomination
Committee conducted the annual review of
the Board Policy on Diversity, which outlines
the Group's cormitrnent to providing equal
opportunities and the Board's belief that
diversity indudes gender, race, cthnicty, age,
dissbility, refigious belief, sexual orientation,
marital status, gender reassignment and
pregnancy {together ‘Diversity’).

Any appointments made ta the Board are
made on merit, against objective criteria
and with due regard for the benefits of
Diversity on the Board. Appointments to
the Board are made having regard to the
balance of knowledge, skills, Diversity and
axperience of the Board at the time of the
appointment and having regard to
long-term planning in relation to Board
compaosition and strategy. The Board

has not, however, set any measurable
targets for Diversity on the Board,

Further information on the gender balance
of those in senior management and their
direct reports is found on page 57.

Adull copy of the terms of reference for
the Nomination Committee can be
cbtained by request to the Company
Secretary or via the Group’s website at
www.securetrustbank.com




Statement by the Chairman
of the Audit Committee

L IMAGE REMOVED

Ann Berresford,
Chairman of the Audit Committee

(3

The review enabled
the Committee to
recommend to the
Board that it approves
the going concern and
viability statements.”

| am pleased 16 present the report of the
Audit Committee for the finandal year
ended 31 December 2019. As well as
routine ‘business as usual items’, we have
reviewed and monitored the adoption of a
hedging strategy and the subsequent
technical accounting relating to the
derivatives programme, received a series
of internal audit reviews in respect of the
ongoing Motor Transformation
Programme [MTP?), which continues into
2020, and have reviewed our going
concem and viability statements in detail
following the letter issued by the FCA on
21 March 2020 to all companies scheduled
to report in March 2020.

in response to guidance from the FCA and
FRC in [ate March 2020, the Committee
has conducted a further review of the
going concern and viability statements
prior to the delayed publication of the
Annual Report and Accounts for 2019.
This review considered specific stress
testing, details of which are provided in the
staternants on page 50, which assisted the
Committee in understanding the
implications of severe but plausible
scenarios on the Group's performance

and positian.

The review enabled the Committee to
recommend to the Board that it approves
the going concem and viability statements.

In response to enhancing the Group’s risk
management capabilities in interest rate
risk {IRR’} the Group implemented an
interest rate hedging strategy using
bi-lateral derivative trades ("swaps),
which was subject to a review by Internal
Audit before derivatives activity fully
commenced. We reviewed both the
intemal audit on the related risk
management and infrastructure and the
technical accounting arising from the use
of swaps before the first series of swaps
was contracted and then once again after
the first series of swaps had commenced.,
More detailed information on swaps is
contained in Note § on page 142. We were
satisfied that the correct approach had
been taken in this area, supported by
approptiate management controls and
infrastructure, and that the accounting for
the swaps was being recorded comectly.

The MTP was launched towards the end of
2018 and, given the significance of the
project to STB, we asked Internal Audit to
design and execute an ongoing assurance
programme with the objective of assessing
whether the MTP was delivering against
programme objectives and risk metrics.
This work was co-sourced and conducted
with support from an independent firm
expert in programme delivery and the
output from the reviews is addressed
within the MTP. The assurance took place
throughout 2019 and will continue into
2020 as the MTP continues.

| met with the Chief Internal Auditor every
month to discuss past and planned internal
audit activity and ! have also met ragularly
with the Chief Risk Officer. Internal audit
activity continues to address all categories
of risk across the business.

| have also met regularly with the external
audit partner to discuss the ongoing audit
work and the Committee will be carrying
out a formal assessment of the
effectiveness of the external audit process
in Q2 2020, Based on progress to date we
have recommended to the Board the
reappointment of Deloitte as auditors for
2020 at the 2020 AGM.

We welcomed Victoria Stewart as a
member of the Audit Committee with
effect from 1 January 2020 and Victoria
brings 2 wealth of business experience and
analytical capability which will complement
the existing skills of members, Paul Marrow
will be retiring at the 2020 AGM, and |
would like to thank Paul, on behalf of the
Committee and myself, for his sage
counsel during his tenure as a member of
the Committee.

Looking to the future we will monitor the
outcomes of the Kingman and Brydon
reports and the recommendations arising,
and their likely impact on the Group.

Further information on the activities of the
Audit Committee is provided in the
following report,

Ann Berresford
Chairman of the Audit Committee
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Audit Committee membership
and meetings
Composition

CHART REMOVED

Maeting attendance

The number of planned meetings held
during 2019 and the attending members
are shown in the table below:

Audft  Eligible to
Commitiee attand

Number of meetings

during 2019 4 4
Ann Berresford 4 4
Paul Marrow! 2 4
Baroness Neville-Rolfe 4 4

T Paul Masrow was unabls 1o attand the Meeling on 31 July
2019 as ha was urwall,

As at 31 December 2019 the Audit
Committee comprised three members
with Ann Berresford as the Chairman of the
Committee. Ann is considered by the
Board to have recent and relevant financial
experience and the Audit Committee as a
whole has competence relevant to the
sector in which the Group operates.

The Code provides that for smaller
companies, such as the Company, the
Board should establish an Audit
Committee of at least two independent
Non-Executive Directors. The Chairman of
the Company may not be a member of the
Committee. Lord Forsyth retired from the
Committee on 30 January 2019 and
Baroness Neville-Rolfe joined the
Committee with effect from the same date,
prior to the first meeting of the Committee
being held in 2019. The Company
considers that it has complied with this
provision throughout 2019,

The Audit Committee meets formally at
least four times a year and otherwise as
required. The number of planned
meetings held during 2019 and the
attending members are shown in the table
to the left.

The Company Secretary or their altemate
acts as Secretary to the Audit Committee.
Other individuals attend at the request of
the Audit Committee Chairman and
during the year the external auditor lead
partner, Chief Executive Officer, Chief
Financial Officer and Chief Intemal
Auditor and a number of senior members
of the Finance department attended
meetings to report to the Audit
Committee. The Chairman of the Audit
Committee reports to the Board on the
outcome of Committee meetings and
any recommendations arising from

the Committee.

Role of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee assists the Board in,
amongst other matters, discharging its
responsibilities with regard to regulatory
reporting, financial reporting, induding
monitoring and reviewing the integrity of
the Company’s annual financial statements,
reviewing and monitoring the extent of the
non-audit work undertaken by external
auditors, advising on the appointment,
reappointment, remaoval and
independence of external auditors and
reviewing the effectiveness of the
Company's intemal audit activities, internal
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contrals and risk managemeant systems.
Thae ultimate responsibility for reviewing
and approving the Annual Report and
Accounts and the half-yeady report
remains with the Board. The Board ensures
the Annual Report, taken as a whole is fair,
balanced and understandable and
provides the information necessary for
shareholders to assess the Company’s
position, performance, business model
and strateqy. The Audit Committee assists
the Board in reaching those condusions,
including reviewing significant financial
reporting judgements and assessing that
the narrative reporting in the front of the
Annual Report accurately reflects the
financial statements in the badk. The Audit
Committee is supported in this assessment
by an effective external audit, the
assessment of internal controls by internal
audit and by challenging management on
the integrity of financial and

narrative statements.

A full copy of the terms of reference for
the Audit Committee can be obtained
by request to the Company Secretary or
via the Group's website at
https://www.securetrustbank.com/
Investors/corporate-information

Matters discussed at Audit
Committee meetings since
1 January 2019

The Audit Cormmittee has a schedule of
meetings with standing agenda items.
Meetings are planned to coincide with key
dates in the Group’ finandial reporting
cycle, enabling the Committee to deal with
matters on a timely basis over the course
of the year. in addition to standing agenda
items the Committee also deals with other
matters as they arise including, in 2019,
reviewing the technical accounting arising
from the hedging strategy adopted by the
Board in 2019, and significant judgements
required following the adopting of the
hedging strategy and the application of
IFRS 16.

The Audit Committee reviewed and
approved its Terms of Reference, the
schedule of standing agenda items, the
Internal Audit Charter and the
engagement contract with the external
auditors. Other principal matters
considered are set out overleaf,




Financial reporting
The Audit Committee has reviewed the following matters in connection with the annual and interim financial statements and considers
that the Company has adopted appropriate accounting policies and made appropriate estimates and judgements:

Subject area Matters considered

Accounting policles, key judgements and The Audit Committee reviewed the key accounting judgements made by managemant in
assumptions used in preparing interim and preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019, the interim finandial
annual financial statements statements for the six months ended 30 June 2019, and the press releases and investor

presentations that were prepared when the finandial statements were released,

In particular the Committee considered at its meeting in March 2019 a paper on tha key
accounting judgements relating to the 2018 Annuzl Report and Accounts. These induded
effactive interest rate accounting, impairments and expected value of share option schemes.

in relation to impairment provisions the Commiltee considared the adequacy of provision cover
for different praducts, factors relevant to the probability of default and loss given default
assumptions used for Consurner Finance products, and the level of overlay to the modelled
impaimment prowision.

“The Commiittee considered key accounting judgements in respect of the 201% Interim Report at
its meeting in July 2019, in particular, it considered the accounting treatment adopted following
IFRS 16 becoming effective and confirmed the treatment approved by the Commitiee in
November 2018. The Committee reviewed and challenged key assumptions used in the
calculation of provisions under IFRS 9, inchuding in respect of z fall in used car values, which had
the impact of increasing provisions in respect of the Motar portfolio for the first half of the year.
The Committee also considered the accounting policy in respact of the hedging strategy,
following on from a technical training session delivered 10 the Committee and wider Board in
June 2019. The policy is contained in Note 1.10 on page 135.

Inits meeting in November 2019, the Committee considered the key judgements and assumptions
that were expected to be applied in respect of the 2019 Annual Report and Accounts, This focused
on loan loss provisions including an update to the assumptions used in the IFRS 9 provision

modelling. It also considered the treatment of a specific VAT reclaim in respect of hire purchase i
costs following discussions and correspondence with HMRC and a worked example of the :
treatment of hedge accounting. Income recognition and the assumptions used in effective interest ]
rate calculations were also considered. Following discussion with management and taking account l
of feedback from the axtemal auditor in respect of these items, the Committee approved the key i

judgements and assumptions. I
The Committee considered updates to these judgements and assumptions at its meeting in
March 2020.

In making its recommendations to the Board to approve the anmual and interim finandial
statemnents the Committee has taken into account matters raised by the exteral auditor on

Hoday souzLLdAOD BlRI0dion)

matters of judgement.
Usa of the going concern basis in preaparing The finandial statements are prepared on the basis that the Group and Company are each a
the financial statements and long-term going concern, The Audit Cormmittee has reviewed management's explanations as ta the
viablfity of the Group appropriateness of tha going concern basis in preparing the Group and Company finandial

statements and has not identified any material uncertainties as to the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern for the period of 12 months from the approval of the accounts.

The financial statements for 2019 also include statements that provide shareholders with the
Board’s views on the kang-term viability of the Group. The Audit Commiitee has reviewed and
challenged the basis for assessing long-term viability, induding the period by reference 1o which
viability Is assessed, the prindipal risks to long-term viability and actions taken or planned to
manage those risks. This induded consideration of spedific stress tests related to the

COVID-19 outhreak.

Presentation of a fair, balanced and The Audit Committee, having reviewed the content of the Annual Report and considering

understandable’ Annual Report and Accounts  relevant matters including the presentation of material sensitive itermns, the representation of
significant issues, the consistency of the narrative discloswres in the front half” with the financial
statements, the overall structure of the Annual Report and the steps taken to ensure the
completeness and accuracy of the mattars included, has advised the Board that the 2019 Annual
Report and Accounts indude a fair, balanced and understandable’ assessment of the Group and
Company's businesses,

The tabls sbave knot a Jotw Est of rratters considerad by the C ittow bt highlights the most significsm mattars for the period In the opinion of the Audit Committas.

o
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External audit

‘The Committee reviewed and approved
the external audit terms of engagement,
the scope of the external audit, timetable,
materiality, audit strateqy and fees.

The Committee maintains a close dialogue
with the external auditor and meets with
them without management at every
Committee meeting.

The Audit Committee reviews written
reports prepared by the external auditors
setting out their audit approach and
condusions on matters of judgement
impacting the financial statements, any
intemal control findings identified during
the course of the external audit and

their independence.

The Audit Committee has monitored
Deloitte in their approach to their audit of
the Group and has considered the
effactiveness of the work of the external
auditors, the quality of the team, the scope
of the work and cormmunications and fees
following the completion of the Interim
Review. The Committee zlso met with
management, including without Deloitte
present, to hear their views on the
effectivenass of the external auditors.

The Commiittee will conduct a formal
assessment of the 2019 audit completed
by Deloitte during 2020 and has so far
informally concluded that the external
auditors are performing well.

The Audit Commiittee was satisfied that
the level of audit fees payable in respect of
the audit services provided, being
£355,000 (2018 £270,000) was appropriate
and that an effective audit could be
conductad for such a fee. The existing
authority for the Audit Committea to
determina the current remuneration of the
external auditors is derived from
shareholder approval granted at tha AGM
held in May 2019.

Independence of the
external auditor

Deloitte has also confirmed to the Audit
Committee that it has policies and
procedures in place to satisfy the required
standards of objectivity, independence and
integrity and that these comply with the
Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical
Standards for Auditors.

The Group has agreed a policy on the
provision of non-audit services by its
external auditor. The policy ensures that
the engagement of the external auditor for
such services requires pre-approval by
appropriate levels of management or the
Audit Committee and does not impair the
independence of the external auditor, and
that such engagements are reported to
the Audit Committee on a regular basis.
The external auditor will only be selected
for such services when they are best suited
to undertake the work and there is no
conflict of interest.

The provision of any non-audit services
provided by the external auditors requires
prior approval, as set outin the

table betow.

The total of audit and non-audit fees paid
to Deloitte during the petiod is set out in
Note 4 on page 144. The non-audit
services fee of £69,000 (2018: £235,000) was
in respect of, but not limited to, the review
of the half-year accounts and other ad hoc
advice, in the case of each engagement,
rmanagement considered it appropriate to
engage Deloitte for the work because of
their existing knowledge and experience
or the organisation, Non-audit fees were
19.4% of audit fees in 2019,

The Audit Committee has also considered
matters that might impair the
independence of the external auditor,
inchuding the non-audit fees paid to the
external auditor, and has confirmed that it
was satisfied as to the independence of
the external audit firm Deloitte.

Deloitte were appointed as auditors at
the AGM held in May 2018, {ollowing a
competitive tender conducted during
2017. Information on the tender and the
appointmant process can be found in the
218 Annual Report and Accounts.

Matthew Perkins is the audit partner from
Deloitte and can continue in this role until
the completion of the 2022 audit at

the latest.

Internal audit

The Group has an independent Internal
Audit function led by the Chief Internal
Auditor. The Chief Internal Auditor reports
to the Chairman of the Audit Committee
and they meet each month.

The Audit Committee reviewed and
approved the intemal audit plan for the
year and monitored the activity of the
Internal Audit function thraughout the
year. It also:

* reviewed other matters which are not
currently contemplated in the audit plan
but which may be appropriate for
inclusion in the future

* reviewed the frequency and coverage of
audits contained in the audit plan,
aligning these with the wider control
environment and the lemerging) risks
to the Group

¢ considered the risk and control matters

identified in internal audit reports issued

since the previous meeting along with
management’s responses to thase
points and progress in taking action

to resolve control weaknesses

approved the Internal Audit budget

and resource plan for the year

= reviewed and approved the Intemal

Audit Charter

reviewed the annual assessment of the

overall effectiveness of the governance

and risk and control framework provided
by the Intemal Audit function

Approval recuired
Services not previously pre-approved regardless of fee Audit Committee
Any engagement > £100,000 Audit Committee
CEO or CFO

Pre-approved services < £100,000
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¢ reviewed the outputs and management
response to Internal Audit's ongoing
assurance activity on the Motor
Transformation Programme

* reviewed the outputs of internal audit
reviews on aspects of regulatory
reporting, which continues as an
important focus area in 2020

* reviewed Intemnal Audit’s conclusions on
staff hehaviours in the context to the
Group’s framework of values and cuiture

in addition, the Audit Commitiee assesses
the effectiveness and independence of the
Internal Audit function each year.

During 2019 the Committee reviewed the
performance of the Intemal Audit function
taking into account an updated
assessment camied out by the Chief
internal Auditor and the progress made
addressing areas for enhancement
identified in the 2016 external review, and
was satisfied as to the effectiveness,
quality, experience, expertise and
independence of the Internal Audit
function, The next external effectiveness
review is scheduled for 2021 and the
Committee will be reviewing
recommendations for this review during
the course of 2020.

The Committee was satisfied that Intemal
Audit has the appropriate resources to
deliver the 2020 and 2021 internal audit
plan. In addition to the intemal resource it
is also able to draw an a panel of external
subject matter experts,

Internal controls and
risk management

The Audit Committee monitors the
effectiveness of the Group's governance,
risk and control framework. A statement
approved by the Committee regarding the
operation of the risk and control
framework is set out on page 69.

During 2019 the Committee reviewed the
procedures for detecting fraud affecting
financial reporting, and a report from the
Chief Compliance Officer on the systems
and controls for the prevention of bribery.

Whistleblowing

The Chairman of the Risk Committee is the
Whistleblowers' Champion for the Group.
Repaorting on the effectiveness of
whistleblowing arrangements in place
within the Group, and adherence ta the
Financial Conduct Authority Rules on
Whistleblowing, is presented to the Board,
forming part of the wider reporting of
concems raised by the workforce.

The Chairman of the Audit Committee will
become the Whistleblowers’” Champion for
the Group upon the conclusion of the
2020 AGM.

Audit Committee effectiveness

During the year the Committee considered
and evaluated its performance. It did this
by means of a questionnaire which
members of the Committee completed
and by taking soundings from other
attendees, including the external auditor
and interna! auditor. The Chaimman of the
Committee then collected the responses
and produced a report to the Commiittee.
The result of the evaluation was that the
Committee considered that it was
performing effectively.
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Statement by the outgoing Chairman
of the Risk Committee

IMAGE REMOVED

Paul Marrow
Chairman of the Risk Committee

(G4

I am pleased to present
the report of the Risk
Committee for the
financial year ended

31 December 2019.
This will be my final
report as Secure Trust
Bank’s Risk Committee
Chairman as | stand

down from my roles
at the 2020 AGM.”

1 would like to thank Paul Lynam, Kevin
Hayes our CRO and all the Risk team for
their support during my tenure. As we
implement the succession plan in place,

| wish Paul Myers well as he takes up the
mantle of the Committee Chairmanship
and, having worked with him on the Risk
Committee for the last year, have every
confidence in the Committee’s continued
success under his leadership.

I would like to welcome David McCreadie
as a new member of the Risk Committee.
David was appointed to the Board in
December 2019 and joined the Risk
Committee on 1 January 2020.

With significant experience in banking
including risk management and
governance, David is expectedto be a
valued contributer to the Risk Committee
and his appointment enhances the
collective experience and skill of

the Committee.

The Group has had separate Audit and
Risk Committees since 2011 and both
Committees have continued to oversee
the development and evolution of the risk
management and internal control
frameworks in 2019 as they have done
since 2011 and to date.

Management of risk is a key part of what
the Group dees. As a Committee, we have
been invcived both with assessing the
principal risks that impact the Group at a
macro-economic and strategic level; and
also in assessing risk at a business level
when the Group seeks to develop new
business opportunities or products. As a
Committee, we had a continued focus on
the Motor Transformation Programme
throughout 2019 as various aspects

were launched.

Throughout 2019 we have also considered
the risks and opportunities arising from
Brexit and the actions the Group may
choose to take and have taken, noting the
limited direct impact Brexit wifl have on a
largely UK focused business. We have
continued to review and monitor the risk to
the Group as the UK progresses through
the transition period and will continue to
do s0 once more detall is known.

As a Committee we have monitored both
the impact COVED-19 has had on our
operational resilience and business
continuity plans, and the risks arising from
the pandernic evolving into an economic
crisis. We have discussed the impact on
capital and the assumptions in our

models to enable the Board, upon the
recommendation of the Audit Committes,
to assess the going concern and viability
statements and to agree the principal risks
to our business.

After becoming standing agenda items in
2018, we have continued our close scrutiny
of aperationaf resifience, induding cyber
and information data security. STB continues
to proactively evolve its practices and
protections in these areas as well as building
on lessons leamed both intemnally and from
the extemal market. The position continues
to be developed, building on the progress
already made to improve the position
through 2018, The Committee continues to
review STB% current practices and policies
to ensure that we are abreast of challenges
in a racically changing threat landscape,
sarutinising publicsed extemnal incidents to
ensure that the Group is protected against
similar threats and ensure that potential
weaknesses are exposed and addressed.
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As well as receiving updates from the
Committee, the Board participated in
specific information Security Risk training
as well as a FinTech and Disruptive
Technologies Update during the course of
2019, building upon their focus on these
areas in 2018 and ensuring attention
continues to be focused on this key and
rapidly evolving area of risk and opportunity.

During the year we also reviewed
significant changes to our now separate
Recovery Plan as required under the new
regulation, Assumptions in our Recovery
Plan were also reviewed for correlation
with our ICAAP and ILAAP documents,
ensuring that the scenarios aligned both
for the modelled ‘event’ and the expected
outcome. The ICAAP continued to be a
key focus for the Committee in 2019,
following close scrutiny in 2018,

We also reviewed the Group's risk
management capabilities in interest rate
risk {'IRR" as the Group implemented an
interest rate hedging strategy using
bi-lateral derivative trades ('swaps’).

The Committee received a training session
on the hedging strategy which was
attended by other members of the Board
and reviewed the impact that the changes
in IRR management wili bring to the
operations of the Company and in turn to
our regulatory submissions. More detailed
information on IRR and our swaps is
contained in Note 5 on page 142,

The Risk and Compliance teams continue
to meet the challenge of developing
regulation and have provided the
Committee with effective oversight of the
risk landscape within the Group. We have
also considered regulatory updates
through regular reporting which includes
the outputs of the Compliance monitoring
programme and emerging regulatory
requirements, and in early 2020 received a
training and update session on Anti-
Money Laundering and counter-

terrorist financing.

Further information on the activities of the
Committee during the year is provided in
the following report and further
information about risk-related matters can
be found in the sections of the report and
accounts on pages 40 to 49.

Paul Marrow
Chairman of the Risk Committee




Risk Committee report

Risk Committee membership
and meetings

CHART REMOVED

Meeting sttendance

The number of planned meetings held
during 2019 and the attending rmembers
are shown in the table below:

Risk  Eliglble
Committes  to attand

Number of meetings
during 2019 4 4
Paul Marrow 4 4
Ann Berresford 4 4
Paul Myers 4 4

Composition

The Risk Committee comprises three
members and Paul Marrow is the Chairman
of the Committee. Paul Marrow was
succeeded by Paul Myers as Chairman of
the Committee from 31 March 2020.

The Code provides that where a company
has a separate risk committee it should be
comprised of independent non-executive
directors. Paul Lynam retired from the
Committee on 30 January 2019 and Paul
Myers joined the Committee with effect
from the same date, prior to the first
meeting of the Committee being held in
2019. The Company considers that it has
camplied with this provision during 2019.

The Risk Committee meets formally at
least four times a year and otherwise as
requirad. The number of planned
meetings held during 2019 and the
attending Directors are shown in the table
to the left. The Committee met a further
two times on an ad hoc basis.

The Company Secretary or their alternate
acts as Secretary to the Risk Committee.
Other individuals attend at the request of
the Risk Committee Chairman and during
the year the Chief Executive Officer, Chief
Risk Officer, Chief internal Auditor, Chief
Compliance Officer, Group Head of
Operational Risk, Chief information
Security Officer, Group Treasurer and cther
senior managers attended meetings to
report to the Committee.

The Chairman of the Risk Committee reports
to the Board on the outcome of Committee
meetings and any recommendations arising
from the Commiittee.

Role of the Risk Committee

The Risk Committee reviews the design
and implementation of risk management
policies and systems as well as risk-related
strategies and the procedures for
monitoring the adequacy and effectiveness
of this process; considers the Group’s risk
appetite in relation to the current and
future strategy of the Group; oversees the
Group’s ICAAP and [LAAP and outputs
from these; and exercises oversight of the
risk exposures of the Group.
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The Committee exercises its internal
contral and risk management role through
the reports it receives from the ALCO, the
Model Governance Committee, the Chief
Risk Officer, the Chief Intemal Auditer, the
Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Finandial
Officer and other members of
management and its engagement with
executive management, internal and
external auditors and consultants.

Other matters within the remit of the
Committee are the risk profile of the
Group, risk appetite, frameworks and
limits, the risk management operating
model, risk architecture, the technology
infrastructure supporting the risk
management framework, operational risk,
conduct risk, credit risk, financial risk and
regulatory and compliance matters.

Matters discussed at Risk
Committee meetings since
1 January 2019

The Risk Committee has s schedule of
meatings with standing agenda items so
that all refevant matters are dealt with over
the course of the year. The standing
agenda is regularly reviewed and updated
to include issues pertinent to Secure Trust
Bank in a rapidly evolving landscape.
ltems included on the 2019 standing
agenda indude Operational Resilience
and the Motor Transformation Programme.
In addition to standing agenda items the
Committee also deals with other matters
that arise during the year. In 2019 this
included, for example, oversight of a
related party transaction, kay regulatory
developments such as the extension of the
Senior Manager Regime, the oversight of
tha risks arising from the implementation
and execution of the Motor Transformation
Programme and the appropriateness of
adjusting proposed remuneration for 2020.

During the year the Risk Committee
reviewed its Terms of Reference, the
ICAAP and ILAAP and approved the
schedule of standing agenda items, the
Compliance monitoring plan for 2020, the
business continuity plan, induding the
business’s response to a pandemic, and
the operational risk management policy.
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Risk Committee report
continued

The principal matters discussed during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Subject sres Matters considered
Group risk appetite statement and key The Group’s key risk appetite metrics, which are reviewed and 2pproved on an annual basis.
risk indicators The Committee reviews exceptions to the last quarter’s perfformance by reference to the key risk

indicator metrics provided to each meeting.

Stratagic risks Strategic risks {those arising from the intemal environment and the extemnal environment that could
have an effect on management’s ability to deliver on the Group stratagic plan) are discussed and
challanged on an annual basis as well as in each maeting as they pertain to the items raised en
the agenda.

coviD-19 Review and approval of the assumptions and methodology adopted in spedific stress testing.
This has enabled the Board, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, to assess and
conclude on the going concern and viability statements in the light of the virus outbreak,

Cradit risk Cradit risk parformance for all businesses and 'deep dive’ reviews on status and plans for individual
account balances or portfolios that wanant specific focus.

The Committee has a mandate to approve some Group-wide mandates and policies including
single caunterparty Emits and credit risk policies set for individual business azeas.

Operational Resilience and risk, Induding Oversight of the operaticnaf risk policy including metrics and KPI reporting and business unit
Cyber, Information Sacurity Resilience risk and  managemant risk and control self-assessment. Complaints date, govemnance, indluding review of
Business Continuity the Group Governance Manual.

Oversight of the business continulty plan, including the Companys response to a pandemiic,
flooding and other natursl events, and other oparational resilience reporting/XPis.

Ovetsight of the annual Operational Risk and Control Assessments.

The strategies undertaken within the Group to understand, identify, monitor and respond to cyber
threats induding the cunrent stale and planed activity.

Development of the reporting profile for risks under the Motor Transformation Programme,
Year one of the programma has now been completed and dese monitoring will be maintained over
future phases,

Development of the Operational Resilience Plan and frameworks,

Capital and liquidity risk The Cormmittee has primary responsibility for reviewing and making a recommendation to the
Board on the Group's ICAAP and ILAAF and the Resolution and Recovery Plans. Spedific matters
such as the Pillar 24 and Pillar 28 capital requirement, Pillar 3 disclosures and the results of stress
testing were reviewed and debated.

Reguiatory and conduct risk The Committee receives regular reports on the kay risk indicators for regulatory, reputational and
conduct risk. The Committee raviews the regulatory risk assessment on an annual basis and
approves the annual compliance monitoring programme.

Whistieblowing The Chair of the Committee had the role of Whistleblowers' Champion during 2019; this will be
transferred to the Chair of the Audit Committee in 2020. During 2019, the Commintee has validated
through oversight and regular reporting that the arangements for whistebiowing remain effective,

This tabla is not a completa bist of mattan idered by (he Caririties bid highbights the most dgnificant mattess §or the perfad in the opinion of the Risk Comenittes.
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Regulatory, compliance and
conduct risk monitoring

The Committee oversees the management
of regulatory risk for the Group. The Chief
Compliance Officer presents an Annual
Compliance Report to the Cammittee and
responds to any challenge from the
Committee on the effectiveness of the
Compliance function.

The Committee receives regular reports on
key risk indicatars for regulatory,
reputational and conduct risk, regulatory
incidents and key advisory activity of note,
horizon scanning and actions to implement
new and revised regulations or legislation,
and the outputs of the compliance
manitoring programme, The Committee
reviews the Regulatory Risk Assessment on
an annual basis, and approves the annual
compliance monitoring programme.

In addition, the Committes receives a
detailed review of financial crime focused
on Anti-Meney Laundering in the Money
Laundering Reporting Officer’s (MLRO")
Annual Report, which is then presented to
the Board.

The Group has an extemally managed
whistieblowing ‘hotline’ and quarterly
reports were provided to the Committee
and the Whistleblowers’ Champion.

Tests have been completed validating the
adequacy of the framewark, service
provider and internal procedures.
Responsibility for whistieblowing will be
transferred to the Audit Cammittee in 2020
with the Whistleblowers’ Champion role
being absorbed into the remit of the Audit
Committee Chairman and reports
provided to the Board.

During 2019, regulatory changes have
inclided improvements to the
management information provided to the
Committes, in response to feedback from
the FCA in relation to bereavement
services, and implementation of the
extension of the Seniot Managers and
Certification Regime 1o the regulated
subsicharies (Debt Managers (Services) Ltd,
V12 Retail Finance Ltd and STB

Leasing Ltd).

Conduct risk and culture remain a key
focus within the Group and are managed
through the Customer Focus Committee
which reports to the Board through the
Executive Committee.

Strategic and operational risk

The Cormmittee oversees the management
of strategic and operational risk across the
Group. The Group Head of Operational
Risk presents annually an Operational Risk
Management Policy to the Committee and
responds to any challenge from the
Committee on the effectiveness of risk
management and risk governance
throughout the Group.

To assist in understanding how the risk
framework has embedded within the
Group and to challenge the effectiveness
of the risk management function, the
Committee receives a quarterly review of
material operational risk events/losses,
performance against the key Operational
Risk Appetite Metrics, together with the
key findings from annual Risk and Control
Self Assessments. This includes a key focus
on the effectiveness of the Operational
Resilience controf framework and plan.

The Committee conducts an annual review
of the Group risk appetite statement and
the supporting metrics and recommends
the Group risk appetite statement to the
Board for approval,

In assessing strategic risk the Committee
has regard to the identified strategic risks,
which the Committee reviews annually.
When reviewing the strategic and
operational risks the Committee also gives
consideration to emerging risks, including
the likelihood and impact upon the Group.
Where appropriate these emerging risks
are identified through our Operational Risk
Managerment Framework and cur Risk and
Controls Self Assessment and reported to
the Commiittee. More information on this
process can be found on page 48 and in
the Internal Control section on page 69.

in assassing strategic risks, the Committee
has due regard to the existing process and
intemal controls in operation and reviews
the recommendations from the Risk and
Compliance functions on how to adapt the
controls to mitigate those risks.

Credit risk

The Committee receives reports on key
risk indicators for credit risk, together with
quarterly assessments of each portfolio’s
aredit profile including impairments, bad
debts, watch-lists, and any policy
exceptions. These assessments are
underpinned by the associated credit risk
policies which, together with the
Responsible Lending policy, set out the
credit risk framework which is reviewed by
the Committee at least annually.

Risk committee effectiveness

During the year the Committes
considered and evaluated its own
performance. It dic this by means of a
questionnaire which members of the
Committee completed. The Chairman of
the Comrnittee then collated the
responses and produced a report to the
Committee. The result of the evaluation
was that the Committee considered that it
was performing effectively

A full copy of the terms of reference for the
Risk Committee can be obtained by
request 1o the Company Secretary or via
the Group's website at:
www.securetrustbank.com
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Directors’ Remuneration Report
Statement by the Chairman of the Remunera-

tion Committee

IMAGE REMOVED

Victoria Stewart
Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee

(G

We have given
consideration to wider
workforce remuneration
and employee benefits
at most Committee
meetings held
throughout the year.”

On behalf of the Committee | am pleased
to present the Remunaration Committee
report, induding the Directors’
Remuneration Report, for the 2019
finandial year.

This has been a busy year for the
Committee in which we have continued to
strengthen our oversight of remuneration
practice across the Group in a number of
areas. As set out on page 85, the
Commitiee has engaged in a number of
activities which encompass both executive
and wider workforce remuneration.

Executive remuneration

During the last months of 2018 the
Committee, with the assistance of the
Cormpany Secretary, worked through the
timetable and key milestones to be
completed in order to draft, agree and
consult on a new Directors” Remuneration
Poliey, which will be put to sharsholders for
approval at the 2020 AGM. This involved
the appointment of a Remuneration
Coansultant, discussions with the Exacutive
Directors and a period of consultation with
the top 15 shareholders of the Company,
who awn approximately 91% of the shares
in issue, Following a successful
consultation and discussions with the CEO,
the Committee is plaased to present the
20202022 Directors’ Remuneration Policy
{2020 DRP) which is set on pages 96 to
105 of this report.

In designing the 2020 DRP, we listened
carefully to feedback we have received
from shareholders, considered the
recommendations with regard ta Executive
Remuneration in the latest Corporate
Governance Code and sought input from
aur Remuneration Consultants.

Feedback was not sought from the Group
Employee Council, but the remuneration
of the Executive Directors has been
discussed in that forum.

Rermuneration proposals

The propasals are designed to achieve
the following:

* Close alignment with shareholders
through the introduction of 2 post-
employment Minimum Shareholding
Requirement policy

* Abetter balance between fixed and
vatiable pay by reducing fixed pay and
increasing the emphasis on long-term
performance through varisble pay
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» Strengthening the existing malus and
clawback provisions

The main changes proposed to the policy
and the CEQ package, with further detail
in the 2020 DRP, are as follows:

1. Base salary

The Committee is mindful that the current
CEOQ's base salary was above market
norms and places too much emphasis on
fixed pay. The Chairman, on behalf of the
Committee, engaged in discussions with
the CEO regarding his base salary and if
the 2020 DRP is approved by shareholders,
the CEO has agreed to a 25% reduction in
his current salary of £1.2 million to £900,000
effective from 1 April 2020, We are
undertaking a process to search for a new
CFO. The 2020 DRP incdludes a statement
that for any new executive appointed
going forward, base salary will be set at a
level appropriate to the role and the
expearience of the Executive Director being
appointed. Historic Executive Director
salaries will not act as a reference point.

2. Pansion

No change has been proposed since
employer pension contributions at 5% of
base salary are low in relation to market
norms for Executive Directors and are
aligned to the rate far the Company’s
employees who receive between 4-8% of
base salary depending upon grade and
pre-existing arrangements.

3. Variable pay

There are no changes proposed to the
current Policy maxima, as set out on pages
97 and 98 and which allow for an Annual
Bonus of up to 100% of salaryand up to a
further 100% of salary in exceptional
circumstances; and a LTIP of up to 100%
of salary.

However, the Committee proposes a
change to the LTIP grant level for the
CEO for 2020 compared to 2019.

Under the Policy the Remuneration
Committee may grant up to 100% of salary
under the {TIP. In 2019 the CEO was
granted an LTIP award of 50% of base
salary. Recognising that the CEQ has
agreed to a substantial reduction in base
salary and to rebalance his fixed pay in
refation to variable pay, the Commiittee
proposes an LTIP grant of 100% of base
satary for 2020, which is within the existing
Policy limit.




This represents a shift from fixed pay
toward long-term variable pay and will
further demanstrate the link between
CEO remuneration and the delivery of
shareholder value.

4. Minimum Shareholding
Requirement {MSR’) policy

In addition to an in-post MSR of 100% of
base salary built up over five years from
appointment from vested share awards,
the Committee proposes ta introduce a
post-cessation MSR policy. Leavers will
have a requirement to hold the in-office
MSR or, if lower, 100% of their pre-
cessation shareholding for 12 months from
ceasing to be an officer or employee.

Any period of garden leave will reduce the
post-employment holding period.

It is also important to note that good
leavers are permitted to retain LTIP
{pro-rated) which vests at the narmal
vesting date and is then subject to a
further two-year post-vesting holding
period delivering shareholder alignment
for up to five years. Similarly, where a good
leaver is permitted to retain deferred
bonus this vests at the normal vesting
dates rather than being accelerated.

In setting the MSR, post-cessation MSR
levels and the holding pericd we took into
consideration a number of factors,
including the salary level for current
incumbents and historic and potential
variable pay apportunities and outcomes.
The Committee concluded that, at this
time, the proposed levels are appropriate
both in the current circumstances and for a
company of Secure Trust Bank's size.

The in-post level is a minimum
recuirement and executives are
encouraged to build up a holding in
excess of this level. The Committee will
keep this under review.

5. CEO notice period

As part of the transition from the current to
the new base salary the Committee
proposes that if notice is served before the
end of 2020, base salary for the purposes
of determining the CEO’s notice payment
shall remain at the pre 1 April 2020 leve! for
2020. Given the substantial reduction in
base salary this is an Important part of the
transition in the Committee’s view.

6. Discretions, clawback and
malus review

The 2020 DRP updates Remuneration
Committee discretions to include a
discretion to override annual bonus and
LTIP formulaic outcomes. We have also
strengthened the triggers of our malus and
clawback policy to include broader
provisions on corporate failure, failure of
risk management, regulatory non-
compliance and other events resulting in
substantial reputational damage for which
the Executive Director made a material
contribistion. Further details can be found
on page 99.

Cur existing Directors’ Remuneration
Policy was approved overwhelmingly by
our shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting in 2017, with 96% of votes in
favour. We hope that shareholders will be
as supportive of this updated 2020 DRP.
We encourage an active interest from our
investors in our Remuneration Policy and
practices, we welcome dialogue with
shareholders on remuneration, and seek to
engage regularly with shareholders on this
important subject.

Performance and variable pay
outcomnes for the year ended
31 December 2019

For the financial year ended 31 December
2019, Executive Directors were eligible for
an annual bonus award of up to 100% of
salary, subject to stretching performance
metrics based on a balanced business
scorecard of finandial, risk, strategic,
customet, operational and staff metrics.

The Board agreed the 2019 finandial year
budget at its meeting in November 2018,
which included targets relating to the
Financial KPls set out in the Strategic Report
on page 18, The performance objectives set
for the Executive Directors for the 2019
finandial year reflected elements of those
KPis. Additional strategic targets were set,
specifically refating to the non-financial
performance metrics, for each of the
Executive Directors, Performance against
those objectives is set out on page 89.

With this in mind, and taking into account
performance in the year against the annual
bonus performance metrics, the CEO will
receive a bonus of £540,000 {2018; £600,000)
equivalent to 45% of his maxinum
opportunity. Half of the bonus is deferred
into shares over a three-year period.

Upon his resignation on 9 December 2019
the CFO was no longer entitled to a banus
in respect of the 2012 finandal year and his
unvested share awards lapsed.

The 2017 LTIP award, assessed over the
financial years ending 31 December 2017,
2018 and 2012 becomes eligible to vest in
April 2020 and further details on the
assessment of the award can be found on
page 90.

We are satisfied that the variable
remuneration for the 2019 financial year for
the Executive Directors is in line with
business performance.

Wider worldforce remuneration

In addition to the ‘deep dive’ on employee
remuneration and the other reviews set out
on page 85, we have given consideration
to wider workforce remuneration and
employee benefits at most Committee
meetings held throughout the year.

This had ranged from a review of benefits
which would enable diversity in the
workplace, including enhanced maternity
and paternity leave, through to the review
of employee pensions, which isset out as a
case study in our $172 Statement on page
40, and reviewing the pay and grading
structure which was implemented in 2018
and which provides staff with clarity for
their future career path,

As set outin Nomination Committee
report and the Chairman's Statement,
Paul Marrow will be stepping down from
his role on the Committee at tha 2020
AGM. | would like to thank Paul for his
advice and counsel to the Committee
during his tenure. Pau! Myers joined the
Committee on 1 January 2020 and | look
forward to working with Paul as the '
remuneration practices of STB continue
to evolve,

Victorla Stewart
Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

continued

Remuneration Committee
membership and meetings
Compasition

CHART REMOVED

Meeting attendance

The number of planned meetings held
during 2019 and the attending members
are shown in the table below:

Remuneration

Committee
Number of meaetings
during 201% 5
Victoria Stewart 5/5
Lord Forsyth 5/5
Paul Marrow! 4/5

' Paul Marovr was unabla 1o sttend the Meating on 30 huly
2019 2s he was uvrwall

As at 31 December 2019 the Remuneration
Committee comprised three members and
was compliant with the Code provision
regarding the compasition of the
Remuneration Committee throughout
2019. The Code cantemplates that, in
relation to the Company, the Board should
establish a Remuneration Committee of at
least two independent Non-Executive
Directors. The Company Chairman may
also be a member of the Committee
where, as is the case with 5TB, he was
considered independent on appointment
as Chairman.

The Remuneration Committee meets at
least twice and ordinarily four times a year
and when required to address non-routine
matters. The numbaer of planned meetings
held during 2019 and the attending
Directors are shown in the table to the left.

The Company Secretary or their alternate
acts as Secretary to the Remuneration
Committee. Other individuals attend at the
request of the Remuneration Committee
Chairman and during the year the Chief
Executive Officer, HR Director, Chief
Internal Auditor, other senior managers
and the Remuneration Consultant
attended meetings to report to or advise
the Committee.

The Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee reports to the Board on the
outcome of Committee meetings and
any recommendations arising from

the Committee.

During the year the Committee reviewed
and approved its terms of reference.

A full copy of the terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee can be obtained
by request to the Company Secretary or
via the Group's website at
www.securetrustbank.com
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Role of the
Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee assists the
Board in fulfilling its responsibilities in
relation to remuneration including,
amongst other matters, determining the
policy for individual remuneration and
benefits package of the Executive
Directors and the senior management
below Board fevel. The Commiittee reviews
workforce remuneration, related policies
and how executive and wider workforce
pay are aligned and with regard to the
culture of STB.




Key matters considered by the Committee from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019

Iltem

Commant

Wider workforce remuneration and policies

The Remuneration Committee conductad a 'deep dive’ on wider workiorce remuneration,
which induded understanding the age, gender and ethnicity profile of our workforce, how
remuneration applied to each segment and haw aur palicies encourage diversity within our
business. The Committee reviewed how the Group Bonus pool was determined and allocated
amongst the workforce and how that aligned with reguiatory expectations and datermined
behaviours. With 82% of employees viewing STB as a “great place to work’, the Committea
received a presentation on the culture of STB and the policies which encourage emplayee
satisfaction, diversity and retention, ranging from parental leave to flexible working.

All Employee Group Remuneration Pollcy
{Policy)

The Committee conducted the annual review of the All Employee Group Remuneration Policy,
aligning this with the review conducted on wider workforce remuneration. The Policy was
approved for recommendation to the Board, having received advice on the Policy from the HR
Director, the Head of Compliance, the Company Secretary and the Remuneration Consultant.
The implementation of the All Employee Remuneration Policy was also the subject of an Intemal
Audit review, which was received by the Committee.

Grading structure

A new grading structure was implemented in Q3 2018. The Committee received an update on the
implamantation of the grading structure within the Group, and whether the new structure allowed
individuals 10 map how their career could develop within the Group, The Commiittee received a
report on how the structure would be developed further to allow greater flexibility in assessing
roles and greater granularity when benchmarking roles intemally and externally.

Appointment of Remunerstion Consultant

The Committee conducted a competitiva tender to appoint a Remuneration Consultant as set out
below and engaged with the consultant in designing the Directors’ Remuneration Policy and other
executive remuneration matters and reviewing the All Employee Group Remuneration Policy.

Directors' Remuneration Policy {'DRPY)
2020-2022

The Committee started the triennial review process of the existing DRP, 1aking inta account
changes to the Code and current markst practice, culminating in the drafting of a new DRP and
discussions with the Executive Directors on their remunaration.

Executive Directors’
Remuneration arrangements

The Committee considered the bonus arrangements for the Exacutive Directors for 2018 and 2019
in accordance with the Directors” Remuneration Policy and the targets set as part of a balanced
business scorecard. In doing so the Remuneration Cominittee took irto account the financial
perormance of the Group and personal performance. The Committee reviewed the 2019 award
and performance conditions for LTIPs. Details of the 2019 bonus eamed by Directors dering the
year can be found on page 88.

Material Risk Takers {‘MRTs"?

The Committee reviewed the processes for the dlassification and identification of MRTs and the
remuneration and bonus arangements for this cohort, with tha subsequent strengthaning of
reporting to the Committee on the review process.

Directors’ Remunesration Repdrt {'DRR")
and other disclosures In the Annual Report
and Accounts

The Committes considered the discdosures required in the Annual Report and Accounts.

The Committee received advice from the Company Secretary, HR Director and Acn when
compiling the DRR and the additional disdosures in the Notes. The Committee undertook a
raview of the tota! remeuneration packages of the Executive Directors and via the Board Chairman
negotiated the proposed change to the composition of the CEO% package. For more details see

page 82

CEOQ Pay Ratlo

The Committee discussed the methadalogy for calculating the CEQ to staff pay ratio and
determined that it would follow best practice and guidance by sdopting Option A.
The Committee discussed the ratio and that of peers. Further information on the CEQ pay ratio

can be found on page 93.

Gender Pay Gap Reporting [‘GPG’)

The Commitiee reviewed the GPG batween staff and discussed disclosure of the figures and the
differences between Equal Pay and GPG. The Cormmittae reviewed the action plan to encourage
and develop a diverse talent pipeline.

Annual review of terms of reference,
Committee Effectivenass Review, forward
calandar and items for 2020

The Cornmittaa reviewed its terms of reference and approved these for recommendation to the
Board. The Committee considered and evaluated its performance by way of 2 questionnaire of the
Committee members and other key participants in mastings. The result of the evaluation was that
the Committae considered it was performing effectively. The Committae agraed a standing agenda
and calendar of meetings for 2020. Four meetings are planned to be held in 2020 1o address
routine matters.

This table Is not a complate list of matters considered by the Committee but highlights the most significant mattars Jor the period in the opinion of the Remunaration Committes,
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Remuneration Consultant
and Committee advice

In late 2018 the Committee commenced a
competitive tender process to seek to
appoint a Remuneration Consultant,
culminating in the appointment of the
Executive Compensation practice of Aon
plc {Aan'}. A tender was issued to four
parties, who each provided documentation
and references in response to the tender,
of which two parties were selected to
present to the Comumitiee, ultimately
resulting in the appointment of Aon in
January 2019,

Aon has no other significant connection
with the Group or its Directors other than
the provision of advice on executive and
employee remuneration, and related
matters. Acn is a member of the
Remuneration Consultants” Group, and
abides by its code of conduct that requires
remuneration advice to be given
objectively and independently. The total
fees paid to Aon for the provision of advice
to the Committee during the year were
£90,286 {excluding VAT). Aon has also
provided support to the HR and Legal
teams on remuneration implermentation.
The Committee is satisfied that the advice
provided by Aon on remuneration matters
is objective and independent.

The Committee received advice on
specific matters from internal advisers and
management, including the Group HR
Director and the Company Sacretary.

The Committee is satisfied that the
Committee has exercised independent
judgement when evaluating the advice
received from all its advisors.

Directors’
Remuneration Report

The information contained in the Directors’

Remuneration Report is subject to audit,
where indicated in the Report, in
accordance with The Large and Medium-
sized Companies and Groups (Accounts
and Reparts) Regulations 2008

(as amended). -

On behalf of the Board, as Chairman
of the Remuneration Committee, | am
pleased to present our Directors’
Rernuneration Raport.

The Directors’ Remuneration Report
contains the Annual Remuneration Report
which explains the operation of
remuneration-related arrangements for
2019. The Directors” Remuneration Policy
for Executive and Non-Executive Directors
2020-2022, which is subject to shareholder
approval at the 2020 Annual General
Meeting and an illustration of the
application of that Remuneration Policy in

2020 are included at the end of this Report.

Adull copy of the 2017-2019 Remuneration
Policy, which was approved by
shareholders at the 2017 Annual General
Meeting, can be found on the Company’s
website at www.securetrustbank.com.
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How we link executive
remuneration to cur strategy

The key principles behind the Group’s
Remuneration Policy are:

* to be simple and transparent in order to
reflect the Group’s mission statement of
straightforward, transparent banking

= to promote the long-term success of the
Group, with transparent and demanding
performance conditions

* to provide alignment between executive
reward and the Group’s values, risk
appetite and shareholder returns

* to have a competitive mix of base salary
and short- and long-term incentives,
with an appropriate proportion of the
package linked to the delivery of
sustainable long-term growth

In developing and implementing the
Remuneration Policy we have also had
regard to regulatory requirerments for
senior managers under the Senior
Manager Regime. The Group is currently a
Level 3 firm within the classifications
applied by the financial regulators for
regutated entities. That means that the
Group is not required to satisfy in full all
elements of the remuneration codes.
Notwithstanding this, in formulating and
applying the Remuneration Policy the
Committee has had regard to the
remuneration codes when looking at
existing and proposed remuneration.
The Committee has been compliant with
the Directors’ Remuneration Palicy
approved by shareholders at the 2017
Annual General Meeting and Principles P,
Q and R of the Code. With the adoption of
the 2020-2022 Directors’ Remuneration
Policy at the 2020 AGM, the Committee
takes account of compliance with
remuneration provisions 32-41.




Single figure table (audited information)
The following table sets out total remuneration earned for each Director in respect of the year ended 31 December 2019 and the
priot year.

o Salary and faus Banefits Annusi bonus Pension Sharos? Yotal remunaration
2019 2018 2019 2008 2019 2018 2019 018 2019 2018 2019 2018
£000 £000 £'000 £000 £000 £000 £7000 o £0600 £7000 £000 1000
Executive Directors
P Lynam 1,200 1,200 29 22 5404 SO0 35 35 - - 1,804 1,857
Non-Executive Directors
M Forsyth 205 200 1 1 - - - - -~ - 206 201
ABerresford 92 88 1 1 - - - - - - 93 89
P Marrow 14 115 - - - - - - - - 114 115
D McCreadie? 3 - - - 2 - - - - - 3 -
P Myers " é - - - - - - - - 1 &
L Neville-Rolfe H & - - - - - - - - ¥ &
V Stewart 77 75 1 1 - - - - - - 78 76
Former Directors -
N Kapur? 425 410 29 29 - 3004 3 25 21 - 506 764

2948 3,114

2,260 2,100 61 54 540 900 64 60 21

¥ Further details of awards made undar tha LTIP snd DBP can be found an paga 90,
1 David McCreadie was 2ppointed 1o the Board on 17 Decemiber 2019 and a mamber of the Risk Cortrittee on 1 January 2020,

? Neara| Kapur resigned on & Decembar 2019.
* Tha bonus amount lor Paut Lynam and Neeraj Kapcr is the total bonus earned in respect of the year, of which 50% was daferred into shares under tha 2017 Daferred Bonus Plan. Further details are
disdosad on page 88

The figures in the single figure tables above are derived from the following:

Salaty and fees The amount of salary/fees received in the year.

The taxable value of banefits received in the year. These are principally private medical health insurance,
car allowances and the value of Sharesave Scheme options granted during the year. Sharesave Scheme
options are valued based an the difference between the market value of the shares at grant and the

Benefits exercise price and were granted for the first time in 2017.
The value of the bonus eamed in respect of the financial year (including the proportion of the amount
Annual bonus earned which is subject to deferral).
Pension The amount of payments in lieu of Company pension contributicns received in the year.
Additional disclosures in respect of the single figure table {audited information)
Base salary and fees
Base salaries for the Executive Directors in respect of the year ended 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2019 are as follows:
2018 base salay 2019 base salary
£000 £000
P Lynam 1,200 1,200
Farmer Directors
410 425

N Kapur

Tha Committee considerad it appropriate to increase Neeraj Kapur's base salary for 2019 by 3.6% to £425,000 in line with the basic
salary increases for broader staff and to reflect the position of his salary compared to peers.
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Bonus arrangements

For the financial year ended 31 December 2019, Executive Directors were eligible for an annual bonus award of up to 100% of salary,
subject to stretching performance metrics based on a balanced business scorecard of financial, strategic, customer, operational and
staff metrics. At least 60% of the bonus was subject to financial metrics and a maximum of 100% of the bonus subject to financial and
risk parformance (Financial’) metrics. Up to 25% of the bonus was subject to a mixture of strategic, customer, operational and staff
perfarmance {Non-financdial’) metrics. Details of the annual bonus outturn are shown below.

Non-financlal

Flaancisl Flnanclal Non-finsncisl Totab
% of salary % of sulary % of safory % of salary % of salary
oppertenity outturn oppartunity cutturn autturn £:000
Paul Lynam 675 64 325 14.6 45 540
Former Directors
Neeraj Kapur 75 N/A 25 N/A N/A N/A

50% of the bonus eamed is defered into shares under the Deferred Bonus Plan. Deferred shares will vest in equal tranches after one,

two and three years following defereal.

Set out below are the high level financial and nan-financial performance metrics applied in respect of the finandial year ended

31 December 2019.

Financial and risk performance maetrics

‘The financial and risk performance metrics were based on the delivery of Baard agreed KPls in accordance with the schedule below.

CEO
Threshold On-targat Stretch Bonus
Chjective {O% payable}  (50% payable] (100% payable) Achleved Waight payable
Grow
Underlying Profit Before Tax £37m £41.9m £46.1m £41.1m 0% B.1%
Adjusted Return on Average Equity 12.8% 14.2% 15.6% 13.5% 15% 38%
Sustain
Underlying Cost Income Ratio as
determined by the Board 463.8% 58.0% 52.2% 56.9% 10% 59%
Maintain strong compliance with risk
appetite to meet the strategic plan:
Cost of risk 1.7% 1.3% 09% 1.4%
impairment charge £35.8m £32.9m £30.0m £32.6m
72.5% 35%
Deliver other key financial objectives Rangs of capital required set at the minimum capital
requirement through to a level, which induded a capital
buffer, as determined by the Board. Regulatory capital as
assessed by the Board is above the agreed target as
detailed on page 24, This objective was assessed at
between 'On Plan' and 'Stretch’. 15% 9.1%
Total 67.5% 30.4%
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Non-finandal performance metrics
The high-level objectives and targets {together with commentary on their achievement) for the Chief Executive Director are set out on

the following page.

CEO
Banus
Objective Targets Achisvernant Walght payable
Grow
Cwersight of the defivery of Measured by referance to key 2019 The Board was satisfied that the 10% 2%
the Mator Transformation project milestones detivered to the Programma dalivered in terms of quality,
Programme 2019 agreed timescale as reported to the vision and the fina! product.
Board In line with the strategic plan. Project milestones, whilst delfivered, have
been achieved outside of the ariginal plan
articulated to the Board.
Sustain
Malntain strong risk culture No raterial nagative risk issues A report from the Risk Committes has 7.5% 3.75%
within organisation, satting identified by Board, Risk or Audit concluded that no material sk issues have
the tone from the top onrisk  Committee during the year. 100% of been identified. The Intemal Audit
matters and cascading this senior staff completing mandatory Assessment af Risk Culture for 2019 is
through the organisation regulatory training. abowva the level expected. An on-target
rating of 3.75% is deemed appropriate.
Love
Stakeholder engagemant, Maasured by refarence to the Feefo Placing the custamer at the heart of what 7.5% 3.75%
including building and and overall customer rating for STB. we do is one of our key metrics.
maintaining effective and Assessed by feedback direct to Feefo sconing and customer scoring
constructive relationships with  Chairman from shareholders and the remains high; sharehalder feedbadk
customers, regulators post sharehalder roadshow feedback provided to the Chairman has been
and sharsholders provided by Stifel and Canaccord on paositive, as has the continuing relationship
various matters induding shareholder with the PRA. An on target rating Is
communication, roadshows appropriate in the drcumstances.
and consensus.
Baing an employer Expanding plans 1o address staff Achieved Great Place to Work® 7.5% 5.1%
of choice engagemaent at all levels including acereditation (Jor the sacond consecutive
increase employee retention, decreass year) meaning ST8 is in top 3% of all firms
amployee attrition and promote surveyad, Engagement plans were
emplayee development, delivered outside of the original plan
articulatad to the Board,
An above target rating is appropriate in
the circumstances.
Total 32.5% 14.6%

Vesting of the non-financial performance element of the annual bonus was based on the Committee's view of the relative importance
and impact of each of the objectives during the year.
Awards exercised during the financial year (audited information)

2017 Deferred Bonus Plan {'DBP')
On 24 April 2019, Neeraj Kapur exercised 1,399 Deferred Bonus Plan ('DBP') share options at an exercise price of 40 pence. The shares

were retained by Mr Kapur.
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Awards granted during the financial year (audited information)
2017 Long Term Incentive Plan {'LTiP")

Nominal-cost share options were granted to Executive Directors on 25 April 2019 in accordance with the rules of the LTIP as foflows:
Number of Face value of

Racipfant Drata of grant Basix of award sharsg sward £060° Parformance perfod
Paul Lynam 25 April 2019 50% of salary 38,338 600 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2021
Former Directors

Neersj Kapur 25 April 2019 61% of salary 15,974 250 1 January 2019 1o 31 December 2021

¢ Based on a thare prica of 1565 pence per share which was the average closing share price on the pricr fue working days,

Neeraj Kapurs LTIP options lapsed on & December 2019 following his resignation as a Director and emplayee. Vesting of the share
options is subject to EPS, Relative TSR and risk management performance metrics, assessed over a three-year performance period.
The EPS and relative TSR performance targets are sat out in the table below:

Vesting (% of maximum) HoX. oslm 140'::‘:?“-:-.“3)‘
0% Less than 10% per annum Below Median
25% 10% per annum Median
100% 30% per annum Upper quartile

Straight-line vesting between points

? As o th grend date, the TSR comparatar group sonsisted of the following constitverits: Asbuthnot Banking Group, Charter Court Frusnclal Senvices Group pis, Close Brothars, OneSavings Bank, Metre
Bank, Paragon Banking Greup, President Finandial and S84,

The remaining 20% of the award will be assessed on risk management performance objectives during the Performance Period aligned
with the Company’s risk managerment framework, including but not limited to:

* the number of customer complaints received

¢ the number and nature of material risk events within the Group

* credit losses compared to the Board's assessment of the Groups risk appetite

* management of regulatory capital limits

Vesting will be determined based on the Committee’s view of the relative importance and impact of each of the objectives over the
performance period. Awards vest to the extent that the performance metrics are achieved, and are subject to a further two-year
holding period.

2017 Deferred Bonus Plan ('DBP’)

Nominal-cost share options were granted to Executive Directors on 25 April 2019 In accordance with the rules of the DBP as follows:

Recipient Date of grant Nunﬂ;;:: Tranche 1 Tranche 2 Tranche 3 m:m
Paul Lynam 25 April 2019 19,169 6,389 6,389 4,391 300
Former Directors

Neeraj Kapur 25 Aprii 2019 9,606 3,202 3,202 3,202 150

1 Based on a share price of 1545 pance per share which was the sveraga doting share price ovar the prior five working days.
Neeraj Kapur’s DBP options lapsed on é December 2019. Each award has been granted in the form of an option with an exercise price
per share equal to the nominal value of a share and, subject to the rules of the Plan, will vest on:

* 75 Aprif 2020 as regards one third of the shares subject to it (Tranche 1)
+ 25 April 2021 as regards one third of the shares subject to it (Tranche 2}
* 25 April 2022 as regards ane third of the shares subject 10 it (Tranche 3)

Each option once vested remnains capable of exercise until 20 April 2029. The awards are subject to malus and clawback provisions as
detailed in the rules of the DBP but not subject to further performance conditions.
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Statement of Directors’ shareholding and share interests (audited information)

No formal shareholding guidelines are currently in place. However, Paul Lynam has committed to building up and maintaining a
shareholding of at least 100% of base salary, over time, by retaining all awards under the LTIP that vest {net of incorne tax and

National Insurance).

The interests of the Directors and their connected persons in the Company's ordinary shares as at 31 December 2019 were as set out
below. Any changes to a Director’s shareholding are set out in the notes below the table.

Directors’ shareholding and share interests

Options Unvasted,

Shores  granted/ not subjact  Unvasted,
3“1‘.,’.?; m ’l;: ‘:ﬁgﬁ hpndof::-n; 3 D'?c.:;;: Owned  Vested but p«formmt: pcr'l‘ﬁm.::\:.:

Diractor Type 2019 your year the year 2019 outright ized i o
P Lynam Shares 19,012 - - - 19012 19,012 - - -
2011 Share Options 141,667 - - - 1418670 ~ 141,667 - -
2017 LTIP? 47,321 - 38,338 - 854657 - - - 85,659
2017 DBP? 10,493 - 19,149 - 29,662 - 3497 25,165 -
2017 SAYE? 1,364 - - - 1,364 - - 1,364 -
Phantom share options* 187,500 - - - 187,500 - 187,500 - -
407,357° - 57,507 - 464864° 19,012 332664 27529 85459
M Forsyth Shares 3,000 B5o0s - - 3,500 3,500 - - -
A Berresford  Shares - - - - - - - - -
P Marrow Shares 5,440 - - - 5,440 5,440 - - -
P Myers Shares - 35007 - - 3,500 3,500 - - -
L Neville-Rolfe Shares - 1,271 - - 1,271 1,271 - - -
V Stewart Shares - - - - - - - - -
D McCreadie  Shares - - - - - - - - -
415,797 5,271 57,507 - 478,575 32,723 332,664 27,529 B5,659

Former Directors

N Kapur Sharas 1,000 1,39¢° - - 2,399 2,399 ~ - -
2011 Share Options 35,417 - - @54 - - - - -
217 LTp? 14,575 - 15974 (32,549 - - - - -
2017 DBP? 4,197 - 82107 (12,407 - - - - -
2017 SAYE? 1,354 -~ - (1,364)" - - - - -
Phantom share options* 31,250 - - {31,250 - - - - -
89,803 1,399 24,184 (112,987) 2,399 2,399 - - -

1 On 24 Jahusty 2020 Paud Lynam exercised 141,657 2011 shars oplions at an exercise price of 720 pence and 3,497 Dafarred Bonts Plan (DBP) share options a1 an exercise price of 40 pence aver a total
of 145,144 ordinary thares of 40 pence sach {{Ocdinary Shares). He usac) 103,480 Ordinary Shares at a prior of 1,550 pence to fund the acquisition of the shares snd 10 tover the tax and nationat
insurance afismg fram the exercise, with the remaining 41,484 Ordinary Shares from the ise being retained, Me Lynam's shareholding in the Group incressed from 19,012 sharas to 60,49 shares 31
a result of this & ction, which is r with hix 2 o bulld up his shareholding in the Company over Lima.

? Awards veare grantad under LTIP snd DBP rules on 25 April 219 a5 set out on pages 167 and 168,

* Each of Paul Lynam and Newrsj Kapor pasticipated in the 2017 SAYE achamae 1o the maximum morthly saving amount and did not pasticipate in the 2019 SAYE schema.

4 Each Phantom Share Option was grantad on 23 March 2015 and was subject to the satisfaction of a performance condition. That performance condition had boen mat by the end of the performance
periad; the option price was balow the market prica, however, and a Enil value has been attributad to the avards,

* Assyming a Rull vasting of swards rs disdosed in the table sbove jexcluding Phantom Share Oplions, sea 4 above) and a markel vakre as at 31 December 2019 of 1600 pence, the valve of Paul Lynam’s
rotal intarast in shaves bs £4.47 mitfon.

¢ Lord Forsyth purchased 500 shanes on 8 Augast 2019.

7 Paul Myers purchased 3,500 shares on 3 April 2019,

* Baroness Newlla-Rolfe purchased 1,271 shaves on 9 January 2019,

* On 24 April 2019 Nearsj Kapur axercised §,399 Deferrad Borus Plar (DBF) share splions st an exercise price of 40 pence.

* O 24 Jaruary 2020 Newraj Kapur sold 1,000 ordinary shares of 40 pence sach {'Grdinaty Shatey) at 4 price of 1,556 penca. The Cornparty was siso notified by Mr Kepur that » parson closely sssocisted
tr him has sokd 1,300 Crdinary Shares st a price of 15645 pence sisa on M Janusry 20X Mt Kspurs sharsholding in the Group decreasad from 2397 to .39 a2 a result of this irsnaaction,

T Maeraj Kapurs share options #5 dataibed in the 1able shov lapsad n his resignation as & Director on & Decerber 2019,
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Payments made to former Directors during the year (audited information)
No payments were made in the year 1o any former Director of the Company.

Payments for loss of office made during the year (audited information)
No payments for loss of office were made in the year to any Director of the Company.

Performance graph and historical CEO remuneration outcomes

Total shareholder return

The graph above shows the total shareholder return {TSR") performance for the Company’s shares in comparison ta the FTSE
SmallCap Index (excluding tnvestment Trusts} for the period from 2 Novermber 2011 to 31 December 2019, For the purposes of the
graph, TSR has been calculated as the percentage change during the period in the market price of the shares, assuming that dividends
are reinvested. The graph shows the value, by 31 December 2019, of £100 invested in the Group over the periad compared with £100
invested in the FTSE SmallCap Index (exduding Investment Trusts). The FTSE SmaliCap Index (excluding Investment Trusts) has been
chosen as a comparator as this is the most appropriate reference point given the capitalisation of the Company.

CHART REMOVED

The table below shows details of the total remuneratian, bonus and share options vesting {as a percentage of the maximum
opportunity) for the CEO over the last sight finandial years.

Total Bonus as 4 % of MPasa

% of maximum

£000 o iy’ o Tty

N2 1,804 45 50

2018 1,857 50 N/A

2017 1,657 333 N/A

2016 5542 N/A 100%

2015 1459 N/A N/A

2014 3,671 N/A 100%

2013 1,031 N/A N/A

202 870 N/A N/A
1 Pre Main Market Admission, bonuses wars daterminad by the C. itteg on a discretionary hasiz taking into aecoum Group financial and individusl perfarmance during the financial year,

? RoLTIP shares were eligible to vest in respect of the yesry 2012, 2013, 2015, 2017 and 2018
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CEO pay increase in relation to all employees

The table belaw sets out the percentage change {from the financial year ended 3t December 2018) in base salary, value of taxable
benefits and bonus for the CEO compared with the average percentage change for all employees,

Paut bynam earned a bonus equal to £540,000 in respect of performance for the financial year ended 31 December 2019

(2018: £600,000).
CEO Wider worldares

Parcentage dtgngq
Salary o% 4%
Taxable benefits 28% 14%
Annual bonus {10.0%) (1.9%)
The CEO's taxabla benefits were £2,871 (2018: £2,241).
2019 CEO pay ratio
Our finalised CEO pay ratio for 2019 is set out in the table below. These figures are on a Group-wide basis, as per the regulations:
Year Method  25th Percentile Pay Ratio Median Pay Ratlo  75th Percantile Pay Ratic
2019 Option A 96:1 :1 361
Total UK emplayee pay and benefits figures used to calculate the CEQ pay ratio:

Chlef Executive 25th Percentile Medtan 75th Parcantile
Salary £1.2m £18,158 £25,000 £45,000
Total pay and benefits £1.804m £19.40% £26,460 £52.886

The Company has chosen Option A methodology to prepare the CEO pay ratio calculation as this is the most statistically rabust
method and is in line with the general preference of institutional investors. The value of each employee’s total pay and benefits, as at
31 December 2019, was calculated using the single figure methodology consistent with the CEO. No elements of pay have been
omitted. Where required, remuneration was approximately adjusted to be full-time and full-year equivalent basis based on the
employee’s average full-time equivalent hours for the year and the proportion of the year they were employed.

The Committee considers that the median pay ratio for 2019 that is disclosed in the above table is consistent with the pay, reward and
progression policies for the Company's UK employees taken as a whole,

Spend on pay
The following table sets out the percentage change (from the financial year ended 31 December 2018) in dividends and the overall
expenditure on pay (as a whole across the organisation).

2019 278 Change

£niion Eevéflion %

Dividends, excluding special dividends, and share buybacks 15.5 14.8 4.7
Dividends, induding special dividends, and share buybacks 15.5 14.8 4.7
511 47.3 80

Overall expenditure on pay’

* Further Infarmation can be lound in Note & set out on page 144,
The increase in overall expenditure on pay is driven primarily by the increased size of Group’s workforce, as set out in Note 6.
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Service agreements and letters of appointment
Details of the Directors’ service agreements, letters of appointment and notice periods are set out below:

Name Commancement of current service ag ! of appoh s Natica perlod
P Lynam 28 July 2010 12 months
M Forsyth! 4 Qctober 2016 & months
A Berresford 22 November 2016 6 months
P Marrow? & October 2016 & months
D McCreadie 18 December 2019 & months
P Myers 28 November 2018 & manths
L Neville-Rolfe 28 November 2018 & months
V Stewart 22 November 2014 4 manths
Former Directors

N Kapur 27 October 2011 12 months
¢ Entered into nesy lattars of appo Prior t the Company’ iansition from the AIM 1o the Main Market.

* Eack of tha Non Exeative Disecton” jatter of appointment wes amended in Jamvary 2019 by » side letter confitming their respectiva Commi hiestip and theis total fee. No athar changes

were mada to ther existing letter of appointmant.
3 AR Norr-Executive Directors sre subjact 10 snaus! re-slection.
# Those Mon-Executive Directors who are bers of the R tion Committee are set aut on page 4.
Implementation of Directors’ Remuneration Policy for the financial year ending
31 December 2020
Details on how Secure Trust intands to implament the Directors’ Rernunaration Policy for the financial year ending 31 December 2020
are set out below,

Salary
Paul Lynam's salary will reducs to £900,000 per annum with effect from 1 April 2020,
Fees
The following table sets out the Non-Executive Director fee structure effective from 1 January 2020.

2020 fee
Role £aso
Chairman' 2112
Non-Executive Director (basic fee)? &9
Senior independent Director and Committee Chairman 20
Member of Audit, Risk or Remuneration Committee 5
Designated Non-Executive Director with responsibility for workforce engagement? 5

* The Chalrman doas not receive sny additional fews for iy membenship of any of the Bowds committess.
* With affect from 2020 the base les payabile 1o the Chairman and the NEDs Increasad in ine with the average increase of rernuneration for stall implermentad within the annual review of remmneration in
the praious yaar. The incrsase takes effect from 1 January asch year starting with 2019. For 2020 the Increase was 3%,

2 With effact rom 1| May 2020
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Annual bonus

The proposed maximum annual bonus opportunity for the year ending 31 December 2020 will be equal to 160% of salary. The bonus
will be subject to stretching performance metrics based on 2 balanced scorecard. 60% of the bonus will be subject to financial
petformance metrics, 15% risk metrics and 25% of the bonus will be subject to a mixture of non-financial strategic, customer,
operational and staff performance metrics, The financial metrics will indude PBT (20%), ROAE (15%), Cost income Ratio (10%), and
capital ratios (15%}. The risk measures will include risk appetite (7.5%) and risk culture {7.5%). The non-financial metrics will include
strategic programmes {10%), stakeholder management (7.5%) and govemance {7.5%).

The Committee considers that the targets are commerdially sensitive. A description of the performance targets will be disclosed in the
Annual Repart on Remuneration for the year ending 31 December 2020 or at such time when the targets are no longer considered
commercially sensitive.

Up to an additional 100% of salary may be awarded in exceptional circumstances (such as in order to recognise exceptional

performance during the year). To the extent that any additional bonus is awarded, full details of the award and rationale will be
disdlosed in the Annual Report on Remuneration for the year ending 3t December 2020.

50% of any bionus eamed will be deferred into shares under the Defened Bonus Plan. Deferred shares will vest in equal tranches after
cne, two and three years following deferral.

LmP

The Company proposes to grant LTIP awards to the Executive Directors in the form of nominal share options at the level of up to 100%
of the new salary for the CEQ, The LTIP awards will be subject to EPS, Relative TSR and risk management performance metrics. Due to
the uncertainty arising from the COVID-19 pandemic the Committee is reviewing the EPS performance condition and will determine
an approptiate and challenging growth target pricr to the grant of the option, Performance will be assessed over a three-year
performance period.

The proposed Relative T5R performance targets are set out below.

Relative TSR!
Vasting (% of maximuen (40% of award)
0% Below Median
25% Median
100% Upper quartile

Straight-line vesting between points.

* The Commities intencls to use the following group of selected pears for sssessing TSR perfarmance: Asbuthnat Banking Group, Close Brathars, OneSavings Bamk, Metro Bank, Paragon Benking
Group, Provident Financial, S8 and PCF Group pic.

20% of the award will be based on risk management petformance obijectives aligned with the Cornpany’s risk managerent framework.

Statement of voting at AGM
The Remuneration Policy and Directors’ Remuneration Report were approved by shareholders at the AGM in 2017 and 2019
respectively; the votes cast were as detailed below.

Proxy % of proxy Praxy % of proxy
Rasolution votas for votes cast votes against votas east
To approve the Directors’ Remuneration Policy (2017) 13,454,036 96.04 554,865 395
To receive and approve the Directors’ Remuneration Report (2019} 15,733,875 100 260 0

Approval
This Report was approved by the Board on & May 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

Victoria Stewart
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

Vibos &l et
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Corporate Governance Report

Proposed Directors’ Remuneration Policy 2020-2022

This Directors’ Remuneration Policy will be submitted to the 2020 AGM for shareholder approval.
If approved by shareholders, it will formally take effect from the date of the AGM. The Directors’
Remuneration Policy has been prepared in accordance with the regulations set out in the Large
and Medium-sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 (as amended).
This policy has been developed taking into account the following principles: clarity, simplicity, risk,

predictability, proportionality and alignment to culture.

Policy table for Executive Directors

QOpaeration

Maxinwum apportunity

Performance metrics

Base salary

Purpose: To enable the Group to recrult and retsin the services of individuals of a sultable calibre.

Salaries are usually reviewed annually taking
into account:

+ underlying Group performance

+ role, experience and individuet performance
+ compatitive salary levels and market forces
¢ pay and conditions elsewhere in the Group

For new Executive Directors, base salary wil be
set at a level apptopriate to the role and the
experience of the Executive Director being
appointed. Current Exacutive Director salaries
will not act as a reference point.

The CEQ has agreed to a voluntary reduction in
annual satary from £1.2 million to £900,000,
effective from 1 April 2020,

While there is no maximum salary, increases
will normally be in line with the typical range of
salary increases awarded (in percentage of
salary} to other employees in the Group.

Salary increases above this level may be
awarded to take account of individual
drcumstances, such as, but not limited to:

where an Executive Director has had an
increase in responsibiiity

» where an Executive Director has been
promoted or has had 2 change in scope

an individual's development or parformance
in role {e.g. to align a newly appointed
Executiva Director's salary with the market
over time)

where an Executive Director’s salary is no
lenger market competitive (e.g. due to
an increase in size and complaxity of

the business)

Increases may be implemented over such time
period as the Committea deermns appropriate.

N/A

Benefits

Purpose: To provide benefits that will be valued by the redpient.

Exeautive Directors receive benefits in line with
market practice, and these indude 2 car
allowance, medical insurance, life assurance
and disabllity Insurance.

Othar benefits may ba provided based on
individual circumstances. These may include,
for example, relocation and travel aliowances.

Any reasonable business-related expenses
{including tax thereon if determined to be a
taxable benefit) can be reimbursed.

Whilst the Committee has not set an absolute
maxitnum on the level of benefits Executive
Directors may receive, the value of benefits is
set at a level which the Committee considers to
be appropriately positioned taking into account
relevant market levels based on the nature and
location of the role and individual dircumstances.

N/A

96 Secure Trust Bank PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2019




Oparation

Maximum apportunity

Performance metrics

Pension

Purpose: To provide an appropriate level of retirement benefit (or cash allowance equivalent).

Executive Diractors are eligible to participate in
the Group defined contribution pension plan.
In appropriate circumstances, such as whera
contributions exceed the annual or lifetime
allowance, Executive Cirectors may be
permitted 1o take a cash supplement in fieu of
contributions to a pension plan.

Employer pansion contributions are limited to

5% of base salary.

The maximum cash supplement in lieu of
pension is 5% of base salary.

N/A

Annual bonus

Purpose: Rewards performance against targets which support the strategic direction of the Group.

Awards are based on performance imeasured
over a year} against metrics determined by
the Committee.

Pay-out levels are determined by the
Committee after the year-end based on
performance against those targets,

The Committee has discretion to amend the
pay-out should any formulaic output not reflect
the Committees assessment of averall
business performance.

To further link the Executive Directors’ pay to
the interests of shareholders, Executive
Directors are required to defer 50% of any
bonus eamed into shares under the Deferred
Bonhus Plan (DBPY, Deferred share awards vest
in equal tranches after one, two and threa years
following deferral.

Deferred share awards will typically take the
form of 2 nil-cost/nominal-cost share option but
may ba structured as an alternative form of
share award.

The Committee may decide to pay the whole of
the bonus eared in cash where the amount to
be defermed is less than £50,000 and would
therefore, in the opinion of the Committea,
make operation of the DBP

administratively byrdensome.

Clawback provisions witl apply to arnual banus
awards and malus and clawback provisions will
apply to deferred share awards as detalled on
page 99.

The normal maximum annual bonts
opportunily is 100% of base salary.

An additional annual bonus opportunity of up
to 100% of basa salary may be awarded in
exceptional ciraumstances.

Targets are set annually reflecting the
Group's sirategy and aligned with key
finandial, strategic and/or individual targets.

The annual bonus will be assassed against
key financial performance metrics of the
business and non-financial strategic/personal
ohjectives, In such proportions as the
Committee considers appropriate.

Financial metrics

No more than 50% of the maximum
potential wilt be paid for on-target
performance and all of the maximum
potential will be paid for
outstanding performance.

Non-financial strategic or
individual metrics

Outcome for the non-inancia! strategic or
indiviclual metrics will apply on a scale
between 0% and 100% based on the
Committee’s assessment of the extent to
which a non-financial performance metric
has been met.

Deferred share awards are not subject to any
additional performance metrics.
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Proposed Directors’ Remuneration Policy 2020-2022

continued

Onparation Maximutn opportunity Performance matrics.

Long Term Incentive Scheme {'LTIP")
Purpose: To provide an effective long-term incentive award to motivate, incentivise and assist In the retention of the services
of key individuals.

Awards will be in the form of nil-cost/nominal- The maximum award is 100% of salaryinrespect  Performance metrics are selected that reflect
cast share options, conditional shares or other of 2 finandial year. underlying business performance.
such form as has the same economic effect.

Awards will be granted with vesting dependent The Committee will take into account Company  Performance metrics and their weighting

on the achievement of performance conditions and personal performance during the where there is more than one metric are
set by the Committee, nommaly over a praceding financial year when determining the  raviewed annually 1o maintain
. maximum award to be granted. appropriateness and relevance.

three-year performance periad.

Awards will usually be subject to a two-year
holding period following the end of the
petformance periad {with the exception that
sufficient shares may be sold to meet income
tax and National Insurance liabilities).

Awards will vest betwesn 25% and 100% for
performance between ‘threshold’
perfermance {the minimum leve! of
performance that results in any level of
vesting) and ‘maximum’ performance.

. In tespect of awards granted in 2020 and
Awards may be settled in cash {or granted . e
as 2 right to a cash amount in exceptional ove‘ m i; :2: E::::::;]T;ﬁiﬂ;?::;&o
. alact C ittee. -
“ = ) attha ofthe mittee. if appropriate to do so to take into account

Malus and dawback provisions will apply to the averall financial and operational
awards as detailed on the following page. performance of the Company.

All employee share schemes
Purpose: To create alignment with the Greup and promote a sense of ownership.

Executive Directors are eligible to participate in -~ Participant fimits are those set by the UK tax N/A
a HMRC tax-qualifying all-employee Sharesave  authorities from time-to-time.

Schema under the sarma terms as other

Group employees.

Minimum shareholding requirements and post-cessation requirements

Purposa: To provide a continuad focus on long-term sustainable value creation and to further align Executives' and
shareholders’ interasts.

Executive Directors are required to bulldup a N/A N/A
shareholding in the Company equal to 100%
of salary.

Current Executive Directors are expected to
reach the shareholding requirement by

31 Dacember 2022, while any new Executive
Diractor is expected to meat the requirement
within a five-year period from appointment.

Ins addition, a post-cessation shareholding
requirement will apply to Executive Directors
who leave the Company. Leavers will have a
requirernent to hold tha share cwnership
requirement o, if fawer, 100% of their pre-
cessation actual shareholding for 12 months
fram ceasing to work (the eartier of
commendng garden laave or termination

of service).
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Application of malus
and clawbaclc

Malus: The ability to reduce, cancel or
impose further conditions on unvested
awards, in the circumnstances set

out below.

Clawback: The ability to cancel an award
that has vested but not yet been refeased
{in relation to an award which is subject to
a holding period) or exerdsed {in relation
to share options), or requira the
repayment of some or all of an award in
the drcumstances set out below.

Malus and dlawback may apply in the
following circumstances:

* Discovaery of a material misstatement
resulting in an adjustment in the audited
consolidated accounts of the Company

* The assessment of any performance
target or condition in respect of an award
was based on material eror or materially
ihaccurate or misleading information

* The discovery that any information used
to determine the DBP and/or LTIP was
based on material error, or materially
inaccurate or misleading information
Action or conduct of an Executive
Director which, in the reasonable
opinion of the Board, amounts to fraud
or gross misconduct
» The Executive Director is subject to
regulatory censure in respect of a
material failure in control
+ The Executive Director’s service
agreement is terminated for gross
misconduct or the Executive Directar
receives a formal written wamning for
gross miscondudt, as defined by the
Company's disciplinary policy
The Company suffers a material foss
arising from the Executive Director
operating outside of agreed risk policy
parameters, and as such the Committee
considers a material failure in risk
management has occurred

Malus and dawback provisions will apply over the following time periods:

Elarnant

Malus

* The level of the award is not considered

sustainable when assessing the overal

financial viability of the Company

The Executive Director is subject to

regulatory censure in respect of a

material failure in control

The Company has suffered corporate

failure such as, although not limited to,

the appointment of an administrator or

a liquidator or the Company entering

into an agreement with its creditors

A material failure of risk management

and/or regulatory non-compliance

resulting in damage to the Company’s

business or reputation

 Any other circumstances that the Board
considers to have similar nature or effect

Clawback

Annual bonus award

To such time as payment is made.

Up to three years foliowing payment.

Deferred bonus award

To such time as the award vests.

Tranche of award deferred for one yaar;
Up to two years following vesting.

Tranche of award deferred for two years:
Up ta one year following vesting.

Tranche of award deferred for three years:
No clawback provisions apply.

LTiP award

To such time as the award vests,

Up to two yaars following vesting.
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Discretions retained by the
Committee in operating the
LTIP and other variable

pay schemes

The Committee operates the Group’s
various incentive plans according to their
respective rules and (where applicable) in
accordance with relevant legislation and
HMRC guidance. In order to ensure
efficient administration of these plans,
certain operational discretions are reserved
to the Committee.

These include but are not limited to:

* determining who may participate in

the plans

determining the timing of grants of
awards and/or payments under the plans

determining the quantum of any awards
and/or paymenits (within the limits set
out in the policy table above)

in exceptional circumstances,
determining that a share-based award
{or any dividend equivalent) shall be
settled {in full or in part) in cash
determining the performance measures
and targets applicable to an award {in
accordance with the statements made in
the policy table below}

discretion to override formulaic outcomes

where a participant ceases to be
employed by the Company, determining
whether ‘good leaver’ status shall apply
determining the extent of vesting or
payment of an award based on
assessment of the performance

Non-Executive Directors
Elsmant snd purposa

conditions and the overall performance
of the Company, indluding discretion as
to the basis on which performance is to
be measured if an award vests in
advance of normal timetable (on
cessation of employment as a ‘good
leaver’ or on the occurrence of
corporate events)

whether, and to what extent, pro-ratio
shall apply in the event of cessation of
employment as a ‘good leaver’ or on the
occurrence of corporate events

discretion to vary shareholding and
post-cessation holding requirements in
exceptional circumstances

whether malus and/or dawback shall be
applied to any award and, if so, the
extent to which they shall apply

making appropriate adjustments to
awards on account of certain events,
such as major changes in the Company’s
capital stracture

»

Explanation of performance
metrics chosen

Performance mefrics are selected that are
aligned with the performance of the Group
and the interests of shareholders.
Stretching performance targets are set
each year for the annual bonus and LTiP
awards. When setting these performance
targets, the Committee will take into
account a number of different reference
points, which may include the Group’
business plans and strategy and the
economic environment. Full vesting will
only occur for what the Committee
considers to ba stretching performance.

Approach of the Company

The annual bonus performance targets
have been selected to provide an
appropriate balance between incentivising
Directors to meet financial targets for the
year and achieving strategic and/or
personal objectives.

Long-term performance metrics provide a
robust and transparent basis on which to
measure the Group's performance over the
longer term and provide further alignment
with the business strategy.

The Committee retains the ability to adjust
or set different performance metrics or
targets if events occur (such as a change in
strategy, a material acquisition and/or a
divestment of a Group business or a
change in prevailing market conditions)
which cause the Committee to determine
that the metrics are no longer appropriate
and that amendmant is required so that
they achieve their original purpose.

Awards and options may be adjusted in
accordance with the scheme rules in the
event of a variation of share capital,
demerger, delisting, spedal dividend or
other event which may affect the
Company’s share price.

Policy for the remuneration of
employees more generally

Remuneration amangements are
determined throughout the Group based
on the same principle that reward should
be achieved for delivery of the business
strategy and should be sufficient to attract
and retain high calibre talent.

Chairman and Non-Exacutive
Director feas

To enable the Group to recruit

and retain Non-Executive Directors
of a suitable calibre.

Fees are normally reviewed annually.

Fees paid to Nan-Executive Directors for their sendces are approved by the Board. Fees may
indude a basic fae and additional fees for further responsibilities {for example, chairmanship and
membership of Boand committees or holding the office of Senior Independent Director), Fees are
based on the levet of feas paid 1o Non-Executive Directors serving on the board of similar-sizad UK
listed companies and the time commitment and contribution expected for the role,

Non-Exacutive Directors cannot participate in any of the Company's share schemes or annual bonus
and are not eligible to join the Company's pension scheme.

Non-Executive Directors may be efigibile ta receive benefits such as private medical insurance,
the use of secretarial support, travel costs or other support that may be appropriate,

Any reasonable business-related expenses (including tax thereon if determined to be a taxable

benelit} can be reimbursad,
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lllustrations of application of
remuneration policy

The chart {right) sets out for the CEO an
illustration of the application for 2620 of
the remuneration policy set out above.
The charts show the split of remuneration
between fixed pay, annual bonus

(including amounts deferred under the
DBF} and LTIP on the basis of minimum

CHART REMOVED

remuneration, remuneration receivable

for performance in line with the Company's
expectations, maximum remuneration

{not allowing for any share price
appreciation) and maximum remuneration
{altowing for 50% share price appreciation
on the LTIP award). Amounts shown are in
fthousands.

In illustrating the potential reward, the following assumptions have been made:

Scenardo Daseription

Assumptions

Minimum performance Minimum remuneration receivable.

Fixed elemanits of remuneration only — salary as at
1 April 2020, benefits and pension.

No payments under incentive plans.

Remuneration receivable for achieving

Target performance
performance in lina with expectations.

Fixed elements of remuneration (as above).

50% of maximum annual bonus eamed.

25% of maximum LTIP award vesting,

Remuneration receivable for achieving
performance in excess of the maximum
parformance targats.

Maximum performance

Fixed elements of remuneration {as above).

100% of maximum annual bonus sarned,

100% of maxirmum LTIP award vesting.

Rermuneration receivable at maximum
performance, plus 50% share price growth
on the LTIP vesting value.

Maximum performance including
share price growth

Fixed elements of remuneration {as above),

100% of maximum annual bonus eamed,

100% of maximum LTIP award vesting plus 50% share

prica growth.

Recruitment remuneration

The policy aims to fadlitate the
appointment of individuals of a suitable
calibre. When appointing a new Executive
Director, the Committee seeks to ensure
that arrangements are in the best interasts
of the Group and not to pay more than

is appropriate.

The Committee will take into
consideration a number of relevant
factors, which may indude the calibre of
the individual, the candidate’s existing
remuneration package, and the spedific
draumstances of the individual induding

was recruited.

remuneration package with the
above policy.

The Committee may indude other

and the limits referred to below:

+ Base salary will be set at a level
appropriate to the role and the

elements of pay which it considers are
appropriate, however, this discretion is
capped and is subject to the principles

the jurisdiction from which the candidate

When hiring a new Executive Director,
the Committee will typically align the

experience of the Executive Director

being appointed. This may include
agreement on future increases up to

a market rate, in line with increased
experience and/or responsibilities,
subject to good performance, where it
is considered appropriate

Pension and benefits will be provided in
line with the above policy

The Committee will not offer
non-performance refated incentive
payments {for example a 'guaranteed
sign-on bonus’)
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Corporate Governance Report

Proposed Directors’ Remuneration

continued

* Other elements may be included in the
following circumstances:

© an interim appointment being made
to fill an Executive Diractor role on a
short-term basis

o if exceptional circumstances require
that the Chairman or a Nen-Executive
Director takes on an executive
function on a short-term basis

o if an Executive Dirgctor is recruited at
a time in the year when it would be
inappropriate to provide a bonus or
long-term incentive award for that
year as there would not be sufficent
time to assess performance.

Subject to the limit on variable
remuneration set out below, the
guantum in respect of the months
employed during the year may be
transferred to the subsequent year so
that reward is provided on a fair and
appropriate basis

o if the Executive Diractor will be
required to relocate in order to take
up the position, it is the Company’s
policy to allow reasonable relocation,
travel and subsistence payments.
Any such payments will be at the
discretion of the Committea

L

The Committee may also alter the
performance metrics, performance
period and vesting peried of the annual
bonus, DBF or LTIP, if the Committee
determines that the drcumstances of
the recruitment merit such alteration.
The rationale will be dearly explained
in the following Directors’
Remuneration Report

* The maximum level of variable
remuneration which may be granted
(excluding 'buyout’ awards as referred to
below] will be within the maximurm Emits
set out in the policy table

Any share awards referred to in this section
will be granted as far as possible under the
Company’s existing share plans.

If necessary, and subject to the limits
referred to above, recruitment awards may
be granted outside of these plans as
permitted under the Listing Rules which
allow for the grant of awards to facilitate,

in unusual circumstances, the recuitment
of an Executive Director.

The Committee may make payments or
awards in respect of hiring an employee to
'buy out’ remuneration arrangements
forfeited on leaving a previous employer.
In doing so the Committee will take
account of relevant factors including any
perfarmance conditions attached to the
forfeited arrangements and the time over
which they would have vested.

The Committee will generally seak to
structure buyout awards or payments an
a like-fordike basis to the rernuneration
amrangements forfeited. Any such
payments or awards are limited to the
expected value of the forfeited awards.
Where cansidered appropriate, such
spedial recruitment awards will be liable
to forfeiture or ‘malus’ and/or 'dawback’
on early departure.

Where a position is filled internally, any
ongoing remuneration obligations or
outstanding variable pay elements shall be
allowed to continue according to the
original terms.
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Fees payable to a newly-appainted
Chairman or Non-Executive Director will
be in line with the fee policy in place at the
time of appointment.

Service agreements and
letters of appointment

Executive Directors’ service agreements
are on a rolling basis and may be
terminated on 12 months’ notice by the
Company or the Executive Director,
Service agreements for new Executive
Directors will generally be limited to

12 months’ notice by the Company.

All Non-Executive Directors’ lettars of
appointment are on 2 roling basis and
may be terminated on six months’ notice
by the Company or the Non-Executive
Directors, All Non-Executive Directors are
subject to re-election atintervals of not
more than three years.

Details of the Directors’ service
agreernents, letters of appointrent and
notice period are set out on page 94, It is
contemplated that Paul Lynam will enter
into a new service contract in April 2020 to
reflect the amended terms of his
employment as set out in this report.




Paymaents for lass of office
The principles on which the determination of payments for loss of office will be approached are set out balow:

Scanario Dascription

Payment In lieu of notice The Company has discretion to make a payment i lieu of notice to Executive Directors and
Non-Executive Diractors, Such a payment would include hase salary or fees for the unaxpired
period of notice, As part of the CEO' transition from his current salary to a reduced salary,
if natice of termination is given before the end of 2020 the base salary for the notice period will
be the pre 1 April 2020 lavel of £1.2 million. If notice is given from on or after 1 January 2021,
salary for the notice pariod will be the salary prevailing at the time notice is given.

Annual bonus This wifl be at the discretion of the Committee on an individual basis and the decision asto
whethar or not to award an annual bonus award in full or in part will be depandent an a number
of factors, including the circumstances of the individual’s departure and their contribution to the
business during the annual bonus period in question. Any annual bonus award amounts paid will
narmally be pro-rated for time in service during the annual bonus period and will, subject to
performance, be paid at the usual time {although the Committee retains discretion to pay the
annual bonus award earlier In appropriate circumstances).

Any annwal bonus earned for the year of departure and, if relevant, for the prior year may be
paid wholly in cash at the discretion of the Committes,

Deferred Bonus Plan The extent to which any unvested award will vest will be determined in accordance with the rules
of the DBP,

Unwested awards will normally lapse on cessation of employment. However, if a participant
leaves due to death, ill-health, injury, disability, the sate of his employar or any other reason at the
discretion of the Committee, the Committee shall determine whether the award will vest at
cassation or at the normal vesting date. In either case, the extent of vesting will be determined
by the Committee, taking into account, unless the Committee datermines ctherwise, the period
of time elapsed from the date of grant ta the date of cessation relative to the deferral period.
Awards in the form of nit-cost or nominal-cost share options may then be exercised during such
pericd as the Committee determines.

Awards in the form of nit-cost or nominal-cost share options which have vested but remain
unexercised at the date of cessation may he exerdsed if a participant leaves due to death,
ill-health, injury, disability, the sale of his employer or any other reason at the discretion of the
Committee. Awards may then be exercised for such period as the Committee determines.

tne The extent to which any unvested award will vest will be determined in aceordance with the rules
of the LTIP

Unvestad awards will normally lapse on cessation of employment. However, if a participant leaves
dua to death, ill-health, injury, disability, the sale of his empioyer or any other reason at the
diseretion of the Committee, the Committee shall determine whether the award will vest at
cessation or at the normal vesting date. In aither case, the extent of vesting will be determined by
the Committee taking inte account the extant to which the performance condition is satisfied and,
unless the Committee determines otherwise, the period of time slapsed from the date of grant to
the date of cessation relative to the performance period. Awards In the form of nil-cost or nominal-
cost share aptions ray then be exercised during such period as the Committee determines.

iIf a participant leaves for any reason (other than summary dismissal) after an award has vested but
before it has been releasad (i.e. during s ‘holding period’), his award will ordinarily continue until the
normal release date when it will be refeased. The Cormmittee retains the discretion to release
awards whan tha partidpant leaves.

Awards in the form of nil-cost or nominal-cast share optians which have vested and been released
but remain unexercised at the date of cessation may be exercised if 2 participant leaves for any
reason {other than sumrmary dismissal). Awards may then be exercised for such period as the
Committee determines,
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Sconario

Description

Phantom Share Optian Plan ('PSOS’)

The extent to which any unvested award wilf vest will be datermined in accardance with the rules of
the PSOS.

Unvested awards will normally lapse on cessation of employment. However, if a participant leaves
due to death, ill-health, injury, disability, redundancy, the sale of his employer or any other reason at
the discretion of the Committee, the award may be exercised for up to six months following the
date of cessation or such period as the Committee determines. The extent of exercise will be
determined by the Committee taking into account the extent to which the performance metricis
satisfied and the period of time elapsed from the date of grant to the date of cessation relative to
the performance period, unless the Committee determines otherwise.

Change of control

The extent to which unvested awards under the DBP, LTiP and PSOS will vest will be datermined in
accordance with the rufes of the relevant plan.

Awards under the DBP may vest in full in the event of a takeover, merger or other relevant corporate
event unless the Board determines the award will be subject to roll-over,

Awards under the LTIP may vest early on a takeover, merger or other relevant corporate event unless
the Board determines the award will be subject to roll-over. The Committee will determine the level
of vesting taking into account the extent to which the performance condition is satisfied and,

unless the Committee determines otherwise, the period of time elapsed from the date of grant to
the date of tha relevant corporate event relative to the performance period.

In the event of 3 takeover, merger or other relevant corporate event, awards under the PSOS may
be exercised within six months of the relevant corporate event or such period as the Committee
determines. The Committee will determine the level of vesting taking into account the extent to
which the performance metric is satisfiad and the period of time elapsed fram the date of grant to
the date of the relevant corporate event relative to the performance periad, unless the Committee
determines otherwise.

Mitigation

Termination paymants may be reduced where the Executive Director commences alternative
arhployment during the notice period.

Other payments

Payments may be made either in the event of 2 loss of office or a change of control under the
Sharesave Scheme, which is governed by its rules and the legislation relating to such tax-qualifying
plans, There is no discretionary treatment for leavers or on a change of control undar these plans.

In appropriate drcumstances, paymments may also be made in respect of acorued holiday,
outplacement and legal fees.

Where a buy-out award is made under the Listing Rules then the leaver provisions would be determined at the time of the award.

The Committee reserves the right to make additional axit payments where such payments are made in good faith in the discharge of
an existing legal obligation {or by way of damages for breach of such an abligation) or by way of settlement or compromise of any
claim arising in connection with the termination of a Director’s office or employment.

Where the Committee retains discretion it will be used to provide flexibility in certain situations, taking into account the particular
direumstances of the Director’s departure and performance,

There is no entitlement to any compensation in the event of Non-Executive Directors’ fixed-term agreements not being renewed or
the agreement terminating earlier with the exception of a payment in lieu of notice as detailed in the table on the previous page.
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Consideration of employment
conditions elsewhere in
the Company

The Committee considers the general
basic safary increase, remuneration
arrangements and employment conditions
for the broader employee population
when determining remuneration policy

for the Executive Directors.

Shareholder views

The Commitiee is commitied 1o an
ongoing dialogue with shareholders and
welcomes feedback on Executive and
Non-Executive Directors’ rernuneration.
Should any significant changes be
proposed to the policy going forward,
the Company will engage with its
sharehalders to seck their views.

Existing

contractual arrangements
The Committee retains the discretion to
make any remuneration payment or
payment for loss of office cutside the
policy in this report;

*+ where the terms of the payment were
agreed before the policy came
into effect

» where the terms of the payment were
agreed at a time when the relevant
individual was not a Director of the
Company, and in the opinion of the
Committee, the payment was not in
consideration of the individual
becorning a Director of the Company

* to satisfy contractual arrangements
under legacy remuneration
arrangements, including any
arrangements in place prior
to Admission

For these purposes, ‘payment’ includes
the satisfaction of awards of variable
remuneration, and in relation to an award
involving shares the tenms of the payment
are agreed at the time the award is granted.

The Committee may satisfy any Phantom
Share Option granted under the PSOS and
may adjust the terms of any such Phantom
Share Option to take account of any
variation of share capital, demerger,
delisting, spedial dividend or other event
which may affect the Company’s

share price.

The Committee may make minor
changes ta this policy which do not have
a material advantage to Directors, to aid
in its operation or implementation,
taking into account the interests of
shareholders but without the need to
seek shareholder approval.
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Corporate Govemance Report

Directors’ Report

The Directors submit their
report, the related Strategic
Report and Corporate
Governance Report, and the
audited financial statements
of Secure Trust Bank PLC
and its subsidiaries (the
‘Group’) for the year ended
31 December 2019,

Report and
financial statements

The Strategic Report is set out beginning
on page 02. This Directors' Report also
indudes additional disdosures required by
the UKLA's Disclosure and Transparency
Rules and Listing Rules. Some of the
matters normally included in the Directors’
Report are included by reference as
indicated below.

Principal activities and review
The principal activity of the Group is banking
induding deposit taking and secured and
unsecured lending. The business review and
information about future developments, key
performance indicators and principal risks
are contained in the Strategic Report.

Corporate governance

The Corporate Govemance Report, on
pages 62 to 119, contains information
about the Group's corparate governance
arrangements, including the Group's
compliance with the Code. A statement
relating to the Group’ compliance with
the Code throughout the year ending

31 December 2019 is set out on page &2,

Rasults

The results for the year are shown on page
120. The Group made a profit for the
periad of £31.1 million 2018: £28.3 million).
The recondiliation of statutory results to
adjusted results is set out in the Financial
review in the Strategic Report.

For the purposes of DTR 4.15R2 and DTR
4.1.8 this Directors’ Report and the
Strategic Report on pages 02 to 61
comprise the management report.

Dividends

The Directors did not recommand the
payment of a final dividend for the year.

An interim dividend of 20 pence per share
was paid on 27 Septembser 2019. The total
dividend for 2018 was 83 pence per share.

Dividend Policy

The Directors reviewed the dividend policy
of the Cornpany and have adopted a
progressive dividend policy which takes
into account the Company's capital
requirernents, earnings and cash flow in
the long term.

The Directors will have regard to current
and projected capital, liquidity, eamings
and market expactations in determining
the amount of the dividend. On occasion,
the Company may dedlare and pay a
spedal dividend resulting from special
circumstances, however no such spedal
dividend is currently envisaged,

Share capital

The share eapital of the Company
comprises one dass of ordinary shares with
a nominal value of 40 pence each, As at

31 December 2019 the Company had
18,477,500 ordinary shares in issue.

Each ordinary share entitles the holder to
one vote.

An additional 2,271 ordinary shares of 40
pence each were issued during 201% (2018
nif). Since 1 January 2020 and until the date
of the report, a further 145,144 ordinary
shares of 40 pence each were issued in the
Company. All the ordinary shares are fully
paid and rank equally in all respects and
there are no spedial rights to dividends or
in relation to control of the Company.

Details of the Company's share capital and
movements in the Company's issued share
capital during the year are provided in
Note 30 of the consolidated

finandial statements.

The Company operates a Long Term
Incentive Plan, Sharesave Planand a
Deferred Bonus Share Plan as set out in
the Remuneration Report on pages 82 to
95. Upon exercise, shares awarded under
these plans have the same rights and rank
pari passu with existing ordinary shares.

The powers of the Directors, including in
relation to the issue or buyback of the
Company's shares are set out in the
Companies Act 2006 and the Company's
Articles of Association. Shareholders will
be asked to grant authority to the
Directors to issue and allot shares at the
2020 Annual General Meeting,
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Under section 551 of the Companies Act
2006, the Directors may allot equity
securities only with the express
authorisation of shareholdars which may
be given in General Meeting, but which
cannot last more than five years.

Under section 561 of the Companies Act
2006, the Board may alsa not allot shares
for cash {otherwise than pursuant to an
employee share scheme) without first
making an offer to existing shareholders to
allot such shares to them on the same or
more favourable terms in proportion to
their respective shareholdings, unless this
requirement is waived by spedial resclution
of the shareholders.

Resolutions permitting such actions will be
proposed at the 2020 Annual General
Meeting. Details of the resolutions for such
authority sre included in the Notice of the
2020 Annual General Meeting and in the
related explanatory notes,

Significant shareholders

The Notice of the 2020 Annual General
Meeting also includes resolutions
specifically relating to the issue of shares
associated with an issue of Additional Tier
1 Securities, These resolutions are in a
similar form to the resofutions proposed
and passed at the 2019 AGM.

Under section 701 of the Companies Act
2006 a company may make a market
purchase of its own shares if the purchase
has first been authorised by a resolution of
the company.

The Company did not repurchase any of
the issued ordinary shares during the year
or up to the date of this repart, although it
was granted authority to do so by
shareholders at the 2019 Annuat General
Meaeting on 15 May 2019. That authority
expires on 15 August 2020 or, if earlier, the
condusion of the 2020 Annual

General Meeting.

At the 2020 Annual General Meeting a
spedal resolution will be proposed
authorising the Company 1o make market
purchases of ordinary shares within the
limits set out in the resolution.

The resclution is in a similar form to that
proposed at the 2019 Annual General
Meeting. The Directors have no present
intention of exercising the authority
granted by the resolution, but regard it as
a useful taol to have available.




On a show of hands, each member has the
right to one vote at General Meetings of
the Company. On a poll, each member is
entitled to one vote for every share heid.
The shares carry no rights to fixed income.
No person has any spedial rights of control
over the Company's share capital and all
issued shares are fully paid. Voting at the
2020 AGM will be conducted on a poll.

There are no specific restrictions on the
transfer of the shares in the Company
which are governad by the general
provisions of the Artictes of Association
and prevailing legislation,

Substantial shareholders

In accordance with Disclosure and
Transparency Rules DTRS, the Company
as at 24 April 2020 (being the latest
practicable date before publication of this
report), has been notified of disclosable
interests in its issued ordinary shares as set
out in the table balow.

Directors

A full list of Directors who served on the
Board throughout the financial year,
including their biographical information,

is shown on pages 64 to 66. Mr Kapur
tendered his resignation as a Oirector on
& December 2019. All the Directors will be
retiring and standing for either election or
re-election at the Annual General Meeting
to be held on 13 May 2020.

Directors’ interests

The Directors’ interests (and those of any
persons connected with them) in the share
capital of the Company as at 31 December
2019 are set out on page 91 in the
Directors’ Remuneration Report.

Substantial shareholders

Powers of Directors

The Directors’ powers are conferred on
them by UK legislation and by the
Company’s Artidles of Association,
Changes to the Company's Articles of
Assodation must be approved by
shareholders by way of a spedial resclution
and must comply with the provisions of the
Companies Act 2006 and the Financial
Conduct Authority’s Disclosure and
Transparency Rulfes.

Appointment and retirement
of Directors

The appeintrment and retirement of the
Directors is governed by the Company’s
Articles of Association, the UK Corporate
Governance Code and the Companies Act
20064. Further details can be found in the
explanatory notes induded in the Notice
of 2020 Annual General Meeting.

Directors’ indemnities

The Company's Articles of Association
provide thal, subject to the provisions of
the Companies Act 2006, the Company
may indemnify any Director or former
Director of the Company or any assodiated
company against any liability and may
purchase and maintain for any Director or
former Director of the Company or any
associated company insurance against

any liability.

The Group has maintained directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance throughout 2019.

The letters of appointment of the Non-
Executive Directors incorporate by
reference the provisions of the Articles of
Association in relation to the indemnity of

Directars into the contract established by
the letter of appointment between the
Non-Executive Director and the Company.

Disclosure of information
under Listing Rule 9.8.4R

Additional information, where not already
contained in the Directors’ Report, where
applicable to the Company, can be found
in the following sections of the annual
report as set out in the table at the foot of

page 108.

Related party transactions and
conflicts of interest

Details of related panty transactions are set
out in Note 40 to the financial statements,
Directors are invited to declare new
conflicts of interest at each Board meeting
and where an actual or potential conflict of
interest has been identified appropriate
steps are taken to deal with the conflict.

A separate register of Directors’ conflicts of
interest is maintained by the Company.

Significant contracts

There are no contracts of significance in
which a Director is interested.

There are no agreements between any
Group company and any of its employees
or any Director of any Group company
which provide for compensation to be
paid to an employee or a Director for
termination of employment or for loss of
office as a consequence of a takeover of
the Company.

There are no significant agreements to
which the Company is party that take
effect, alter or terminate upon a change
of control following a takeover bid for
the Company.

No. of

ordinary sharas %
Invesco 3,348,945 1798
Columbia Threadneedle Investments 3,246,103 17.43
Arbuthnot Banking Group ple 1,819,538 9.77
Wellington Mgt Company 1,626,327 8.73
Mr Steven A Cohen 1,510,412 81
Unicorn Asset Mgt 1,504,000 3.08
Tellworth Investments 1,036,787 5.57
Ruffer 672,247 361
Ennismore Fund Mgt 404,180 323
Premier Mitan Investors 580,520 312
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Corporate Governance Report

Directors’ Report

continued

Employment policies and
equal opportunities

The Group is 2n indusive and equal
opportunities employer and opposes all
forms of discrimination. Applications from
people with disabilities will be considered
fairly and if existing employees become
disabled, every effort is made ta retain
them within the workforce wherever
reasonable and practicable. The Group
alst endeavours to provide equal
opportunities in the training, promotion
and general career development of
disabled employees.

Group policies seek to create a workplace
that has an open atmosphere of trust,
honesty and respect. Harassment or
discrimination of any kind is not tolerated.
This principle applies to all aspects of
employment from recruitment and
pramation, through to termination and afl

other terms and conditions of employment.

The Group has processes in place for
communicating with its employees.
Employes communications indude
information about the performance of
the Group, on major matters affecting
their work, employment or workplace
and to encourage employees to get
involved in social or community

events, These communications aim to
achieve a common awareness for al!
employees of the finandal and economic
factors affecting the performance of the
Group. Further information on how the
Group communicates with its employees
is set out in the Managing our business
responsibly section starting on page 52,

Research and development

The Group does not undertake research
and development activities.

Political donations
and expenditure

The Group made no political donations
and incutred no political expenditure
during the year (2018: £nil).

Post balance sheet events

There have been no significant events
between 31 December 2019 and the date
of approval of the finangial statements
which would require change to the
financial statements. Note 43 provides
information in respect of the COVID-19
outbreak, which will impact the Group's
results for 2020.

Disclosure of information
to auditor

Each Director in office at the date of this
Directors’ report confirms that so far as the
Director is aware, there is no relevant audit
information of which the Company's
auditor is unaware and each Director has
taken all the steps that they ought to have
taken as a Director to make themselves
aware of any relevant audit information
and to establish that the Company’s
auditor is aware of that information.

This confirmation is given and should be
interpreted in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 2006.

Going concern and viability
The financial staternents have been
prepared on a going concern bass.
Further information about this and the
Group's angoing viability, including the
potential impact of COVID-19, is to be
found on page 50.

Fair, balanced

and understandable

The Directors are satisfied that the Annual
Report and Accounts, taken as a whole,
are fair, balanced and understandable,
and provide the information necessary for
members and other stakeholders to assess
the Group’s position and performancae,
strategy and business modal,

Future developments and
financial risk management
objectives and policies
Information about future developments,

internal control and financial risk
management systems in relation to

Disclosure of information under Listing Rule 2.8.4R

hem

finandial reporting and financial risk
management objectives and policies in
relation to the use of finandial instruments
can be found in the following sections of
the annual report which are incorporated
into this report by reference:

Fiture developments — see Strategic
Report on pages 02 to 1.

internal control and financial risk
management systems in relation to
financial reporting ~ see Corporate
Govemnance Report on pages 62 to 119,
Finandial risk management objectives and
policies in relation to the use of financial
instruments can be found on the Group's
website: wwwi.securetrustbank.com/
aur-corporate-information/risk-
management and Note 1.10 to the
financial statements.

Greenhouse gas emissions
from our operations

The Group’s greenhouse gas emissions,
required under the Companies Act 2006
{Strategic Report and Directors’ Report
Regulation 2013), are detailed on page 58.

Auditor

Deloitte LLP was appointed as auditor at
the Annuat General Meeting held in 2019.
As detailed on page 73 in the Audit
Committee report, the Board Is
recommending the reappointment of
Deloitte LLP as auditor at the 2020 Annual
General Meeting.

Annual General Meeting

The 2020 Annual General Meeting will
be held at 10am on 24 June 2020 at
{Upper) Ground Floor, Abbey Gardens,
Reading RG1 3BA.

By order of the Board.

M P D Stevens
Secretary

6 May 2020

Fage refersnce

Details of any long term incentive schemes
Aliotments of cash or equity securities otherwise than to shareholders in proportion to their holdings

Note 31, Page 166
Note 30, Page 165
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Directors’ responsibility statement

The Directors are responsible
for preparing the Annual
Report and the Group and
parent company financial
statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the
Directors to prepare Group
and parent company financial
statements for each financial
year. As required by the Listing
Rules, they are required to
prepare the Group financial
statements in accordance with
IFRS as adopted by the EU and
applicable law and have elected
to prepare the parent company
financial statements on the
same basis.

Under company law the Directors must not
approve the financial statements unless
they are satisfied that they give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group
and parent company and of their profit or
loss for that period. in preparing each of
the Group and parent company financial
statements, the Directors are required to:

¢ select suitable accounting policies and
then apply them consistently

make judgements and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent

* present information, indluding
accounting policies, in a manner that
provides relevant, refiable, comparable
and understandable information

* state whether they have been prepared
in accordance with IFRS as adopted by
the EU

* provide additional disclosures when
compliance with the spedific
requirements in IFRSs are insufficient to
enable users to understand the impact
of particular transactions, other events
and conditions on the Group and parent
company’s financial position and
financial performance

assess the Group and parent company's
ability to continue as a going concemn,
disclosing, as applicable, matters refated
to going concern

use the going concem basis of
accounting unless they either intend to
liquidate the Group or the parent
company or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so

The Directors are responsible for keeping
adequate accounting records that are
sufficient to show and explain the Group
and parent company’s transactions and
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the parent
company and enable them to ensure that
its financial staternents comply with the
Companies Act 2006. They are responsible
for such internal controf as they determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of
finandial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and have general
responsibility to safeguard the assets of
the Group and parent company and for
taking such steps as are reasonably open
to them to prevent and detect fraud and
other irregularitias.

Under applicable law and regulations,
the Directors are also responsible for
preparing a Strategic Report, Directors’
Report, Directors’ Remuneration Report
and Corporate Governance Statement
that complies with that law and

those regulations.

The Directors are responsible for the
maintenance and integrity of the corporate
and financial information included on the
Companyt website, Legislation in the UK
governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may
differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

We confirm that to the best of
our knowledge:

s the finandal statements, prepared in
aacordance with IFRS as adopted by the
Eurgpean Union, give a true and fair view
of the assets, liabilities, financial position
and profit or loss of the Group and parent
company and the undertakings induded
in the consclidation taken as a whole

the Strategic Report indudes a fair review
of the development and performance of
the business and the position of the Group
and parent company and the undertakings
indudad in the consolidation taken as a
whole, together with a description of the
princlpal risks and uncertainties that

they face

the annual report and financial
statements, taken as a whole, are fair,
balanced and understandable and
provide the information necessary for
shareholders to assess the Group and
parent cornpany’s performance, business
moedel and strategy

This responsibility statement was approved
by the Board of Directors on 6 May 2020
and is signed on their behalf by:

%

Lord Forsyth
Chairman

Paul Lynam
Chief Executivd Officer
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Corporate Governance Report

Independent Auditor’s report
to the members of Secure Trust Bank plc

Report on the audit of the financial statements

1. Opinion

In our opinion:

+ the financial statements of Secure Trust Bank PLC (the 'Company’) and its subsidiaries (the ‘Group’} give a true and fair view of the
state of the Group' and of the Companys affairs as at 31 December 2019 and of the Group’s profit for the year then ended

* the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
as adopted by the European Union

s the Company finandial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and as
applied in accardance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006; and

¢ the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the
Group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.

We have audited the financial statements which comprise:

*» the consolidated staternent of comprehansive income

* the consolidated and company statement of finandial pasition

*» the consolidated and company statements of changes in equity
s the consolidated and company statements of cash flows; and

s the refated notes 110 43,

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and IFRSs as adopted by the European
Union and, as regards the Company financial statements, as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006

2. Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) {ISAs {UK)) and applicable law.

Our respansibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the linancial statements
section of our report.

We are independent of the Group and the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in the UK, including the Financial Reporting Council’s {the 'FRC'") Ethical Standard as applied to listed public
interest entities, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. The non-audit services
provided to the Group and Company for the year are disclosed in note é to the financial statements. We confirm that the non-audit
services prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard were not provided to the Group or the Cornpany,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

3. Summary of our audit approach
Key audit matters  The kay audit matters that we idantified in the current year were:

s Going Concern assessment and related discloswes;

* Revenue recognition; and

* impairment of zece'ambles..

Within this report, key audit matters are identified as follows:
€D Similar level of risk

@ Newly identifiad

Materiatity The materiality used for the Group finandial statements and Company financial statements was £1,9 million (2018: £1.7 miflion} and
£1.4 million {2018: £1.3 miillion) respectively, which was determined using 5% of profit before tax.

Scoping We have performed a full scope audit on all entities within the Group which is consistent with the prior year. All full scope audits

were performed directly by the Group audit team and executed at levels of materiality applicable to each individual entity.
Audit testing 0 respond to the risks of material misstaternent was performed directly by the Group audit engagement team.

1 10 Secure Trust Bank PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2019




Significant changes Given the rapid spread of COVID- 19 and the ongoing uncertainty surrounding its impact, we have focused a greater degree of
inourapproach  audit effort on the Directors’ judgements. This was both in determining the Company's and Group's ability to continue to adogpt
the going concem basis over a period of st least 12 months from the date of approval of the Financial Statements, and over the

disclasure of post balance sheet events.

In accordance with this greater levef of audit effort, we have identified a new key audit matter in the period relating to the going

concern assessmant and post balance sheet event disdosures.

4. Conclusions relating to going concern, principal risks and viability statement

4.1. Going concern

Wa have reviewed the directors’ statement in note 1.2 to the financial statements and stratagic
report about whathar they considered it apprapriate to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting in preparing them and their identification of any material uncertainties to the Group's
and Company's ability to continue 1o do so over a petiod of at least twelve months from the date of
approval of the financial statementts.

W considered as part of our risk assessment the nature of the Group, its business model and
related risks including whete relevant the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and Braxit, the
requirements of the applicable financial reporting framework and the system of intemal control.
We evaluated the directors’ assessment of the Groupss ability to continue as a going concem,
induding challanging the underlying data and key assumptions used to make the assessment,
and evaluated the directors’ plans for future actions in relation ta their going concern assessment.

We are required to state whether we have anything material to add or draw attention to in relation
1o that statement required by Listing Rule 9.8.6R(3) and report if the statement is materially
inconsistent with our knowledge obtained in the audit.

Qur chalienge of the directors’ going concern assessment and related disclosures have been
identified as a Key Audit Matter, which is further discussed balow in Section 5.1.

Going concern is the basis of preparation of
the financial statements that assumes an
entity will remain In operation for a pariod of
at least 12 months from the date of approval
of the financial statements.

We confirm that we have nothing material to
report, add or draw attention to in respect of
these matters.

4.2, Principal risks and viability statement

Based solely on reading the directors’ statements and considering whether they were consistent
with the knowledge we obtained in the course of the audit, induding the knowledge obtained in
the evaluation of the directors’ assassment of the Group's and the Company's ability to continue as
a going concern, we are required to state whether we have arything material to add or draw
attention to in relation to:

+ the disclosures on pages 40 to 49 that describe the principal risks, proceduras to identify emerging
risks, and an explanation of how these are being managed or mitigated

« the directors’ confirmation on page 48 that they have carried out a robust assessment of the
princpal and emerging risks facing the Group, including those that would threaten its business
raodel, future performance, solvency or liquidity; or

the directors’ explanation on page 50 as to how they have assessed the prospects of the Group,
over what period they have done so and why they consider that period to be appropriate, and
their statement a5 to whether they have a reasonable expectation that the Group will be able to
continue in operation and meat its liabilities as they fall due over the period of their assessment,
inchuding any related disclosures drawing attention to any necessary qualifications

or assurmptions

We are also required to report whether the directors’ statement relating to the praspects of the
Group recuired by Listing Rule 9.8 6R{3) is materially inconsistent with our knowledge obtained in
the audit.

>

Viability means the sbiity of the Group to
continue over the time hordzon consldered
appropriate by the directors,

Wa confirm that we have nothing material to
report, add or draw attention to in respact of
these matters.
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Corporate Gavemance Report

Independent Auditor’s report
continued

5. Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements
of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement {whether or not due to fraud) that we
identified. These matters incdluded those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the
audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team.

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial staternents as a whole, and in forming our opinion theraon,
and we do not provide a saparate opinion on these matters.

5.1. Going concern assessment and related disclosures )

Key audit
mattar
dascription

The rapid spread and ongoing uncertainty surrounding the impact of COVID-19 has increased complexity associated with the
Directors’ assessment of the Group's and Company's ability to continue as a going concern over a period of at least 12 months
from the date of approval of the financial statements. In addition, there is an increased tisk associated with the adequacy of
disclasures over the going concern assessment and events after the reporting date.

In making their assessment, the Dirsctors consider that the going concern basis of accounting is appropriate and that there is no
material uncertainty related to going concern. The Directors have disdosad their explanations and conclusions on tha going
concern basis and the key matters considered, including judgemaents in relation to §) the ongoing confidenca in the Company’s
and Group's capital and liquidity positions, particularly in light of remodetling the potential level of expected credit losses as a
result of COVID-19, as well as {ji} the capability of the operational restlience framework in place over the assessment period,

Management’s associated consideration of the impact of COVID-19 on the Company's and Group's ability to cantinue as a going
concern is detailed on pages 50 to 5% within the Directors’ Report and note 1. Detail of the impact of events after the reporiing
date are presented in note 43.

How the scope
of our audit
respondad

to the key
audit matter

In response to the significant econemic disruption associated with the COVID-19 pandemic we increased audit effort to challenge
whether there was a material uncertainty over the Company’s and Group's ability to continue 25 a going concern over a period of
at least twetva months from the date of approval of the Financial Statements.

Capltal, liquidity and stress testing
We reviewed and challenged, with the support of our prudential experts where apprapriate:

* with specific reference to the Group's internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Pracess, the interplay between IFRS 9 provisions
and capital in stress taking account of Bank of England guidance, induding the guidance issued on 24 March 2020, as well as
forecast assumptions of the Company and Group's capital plan, given current market conditions;

3

with spedific referance to the Group’s Internal Liquidity Adequacy Assessment Process, the forecast changes to the Company
and Group's ficquidity and funding plan, which is requirad to be producad for all ragulatad banks, with reference to the Group’s
intarnal risk appetite and regudatory minimum requirements, given current market conditions;

the preparation and internal governance process followed by Management in order to prepare scenarios and model the
potential impact of COVID-19. This included attending the Assumptions Committee where the scenarios and key assumptions
were discussed and agreed by Management;

+ the scenarios adopted by Management to capture potential downside risks, induding the assodiated macro-
economic assumptions;

» the subsequent stress testing oufput, with a particular focus on the eapital and liquidity headroom available against minimum
regulatory requirements; and

* the regulator’s issued guidanca in relation ta temporary usa of regulatary buffers where appropriate.
QOparational Resilience
We reviewad and assessed Management's:

*» business continuity plans and subsequent changes to those plans 2s a consequence of a prolonged Impact from the
COMID-19 pandemic;

* internal monitoring process recently intreduced by Management in order to monitor the aperationaf impact of COVID-19on a
ragular basis; and

* oversight of service providers’ operational and finandial reslience, or where necessary, the contingency plans in place where a
supplier has been deemed at risk.
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How the scope
of our audit
responded

to the kay
audit matter
{continued)

Events after the reporting date
In order to assess whather the post balance sheet event disclosures in note 43 were appropriate we have:
« reviewed the most recent Board minutes and regulatory comespondence to identify items of interest;

* evaluated Management’s assessment of the impact of the significant business developments that occurred after the year and,
Induding the spread of COVID-19 and the resulting actions taken by the UK Government; and

+ challenged Management’s assessment of the impact of recent avents on the carrying value of the Group’s assets and liabilities.
Disclosures

We have reviewed the disclosures made by Managament in relation to events after the reporting date and going concem, to
assess whather they adequately reflect the deterioration in economic outlook since 31 December 2019 and the impact on the
Group, and checked the consistency of the disdosures with our knowledge of the Group based on our sudit.

ohservations

Based on the work performed, having taken account of the assumptions and other matters disclosed in the going concern
statement made by the Directors and elsewhere in the financial statements, we conaurred with the Directors” conclusion that the
significant economic disruption associated with the COVID-1? pandemic does not give rise to a material uncertainty over the
Company's and Group's abiiity to continue as a going concern over a period of at least 12 months from the date of approval of the
finandal statements. We also concluded that the disclosures in relation to going concemn and events after the reporting date

are appropriate,

5.2. Revenue Recognition €=

Key audit
matter
description

The Group recognised interest income of £191.4 million (2018: £169.2 miltion) against loans and advances to customers during
the year.

The Group holds loans and advances to customers which meaet the criteria of financial assets measured at amortised cost under
IFRS 9, The recognition of interest incoma on icans and advances measured at amortised cost requires the use of the effective
interest rate (E{R) methad.

Judgement is applied by management to determine key assumptions related to the expected lives, with our specific focus placed
on the Motor and Retall Finance portfolios, being the principal income streams for the Group. Any changes to such assumptions
during the ¥fe of the loan can have a significant impact on the amount of interest income recognised during the year.

Given the degrea of judgement and estimation involved in determining the expected life, we also identified that there is a
potential for fraud through possible manipulation of this balance.

Interest income is included in note 4.1 to the accounts, with management’s assodiated accounting polides detailed on in note 1.5.
The corresponding area in the Audit Committee report is on page 75,

How the scope
of our audit
responded

ta the kay
audit matter

We obtainad an understanding of management’s process and relevant control around recognition of interest incorme through
discussions and walkthroughs.

Specifically, we assessed the operation of the Assumptions Committee, which is used as a forum for senior manegement ta
present analysix, discuss and challenge key assumptions, such as the estimate of expscted livas adopted for the Motor and Retait
Finance portfolios.

We engaged our intemal data analytics spedialists to independently rebuild the behavioural lives based on historical fon
data. As part of this we tested the accuracy and completeness of the historical redemption data,

Using our data analytics specialists we performed a full review of the scripts within the Group's EIR model and recalculated the EIR
output based on these scripts and the input data within the model, We also tested the accuracy and completeness of moedel input
data on a sample basis.

As part of our wider assessment of revenue recognition we also reviewed the treatment of fees and charges arising on loans and
advances to customers and the appropriateness of their inclusion ar exclusion in the Group's EIR model,

Key
observations

We conclude revenue recognition and the expacted lives adopted by managemant to be appropriate,

We consider the underlying methodology used for the caleulation of EIR for the Motor and Retail Finance portfolios to be
compliant with the Group’s accounting policies and the requirements of IFRS 9 in all material respects.
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Corporate Governance Report

Independent Auditor's report
continued

5.3. Impairment of receivables &>

Key audit
matter description

The Group held allowances for impairment of loans and advances to customers of £60.6 million (2018: £67.1 million) against loans
and advances to customers of £2,510.7 million (2018: £2,096.0 miilion).

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, IFRS 9 raquires the carrying value to be assessed for impairment using unbiased
forward-looking information. The measurement of expacted credit losses is complex and involves a number of judgements and
estimates relating to customer default rates, exposure at default, loss given default, assessing significant incraases in credit risk and
macroeconoiTic scenario modelling.

These assumptions are informed using historical behaviour and management’s experience. Thay are also affected by
management’s considaration of the future economic environment.

In order to determine the key assumptions within the model, we performed sensitivity analysis and considered the impact each
assumption had on the level of recorded provision.

The maost significant assumptions and judgements applied in the impairment model are:
* The determination of the loss given default {'LGD) on the Mator Finance portfolio, in particular the vehide recovery rate

* The valuation of the provision for Real Estate Finance; loans spedifically focusing on the staging criteria and collateral valuations
of loans in Stages 2 and 3; and

+ The completeness and accuracy of post-model overlays made by managament

Given the degree of judgement involved in determining key assumptions, we also identified that there Is a potential for fraud
through possible maniputation of this balance.

Impairment of receivables is included in note 14 of tha accounts. Management's assodated accounting policies are detailed within
note 1.9 on pages 132 to 135. Tha corresponding area in the Audit Committea report is on page 75.

How the scope
of our audit
responded to the
key audit matter

We identified and understood relevant controls, including the review of management’s key judgements paper by the Audit
Committee, the managernent review of credit gradings for the Real Estate Finance business and the operation of the Assumptions
Committee, which considers key assumptions including any required management averlays.

For the Motor Finance LGD we assessed and tested both the historical and forecast data used to support the vehicle recovery rate,
whilst also re-performing the calculation to assess its mechanical aceuracy.

For Real Estate Finance loans, we challenged the staging applied to cases which demonstrated indicators of a sigrificant increase
in credit risk and engaged our internal valuation specialists 10 challenge the collateral valuations utilised by the Group for all Stage
2 and 3 cases with reference to most recent third party valuation reports.

We reviewed the accuracy of management's overlay provisions by referenca to the supporting caleulations and chalienged their
completeness through our understanding of model enhancements, peer benchmarking and industry changes and macro-
acanomic changes such as the withdrawal of the United Kingdom from the Euwropean Union and depreciation in car values.

As part of our wider assessment of impairment of raceivables we worked with aredit risk and medelling spedialists to assess
compliance of the modelling approach and scripts utilised with the requirements of the standard and whether the docurmented
modelled approach was implemented in practice.

We recondled the allowances for impalrment models to the generat ledger and substantively tested a sample of loans to assess
whether the data used in the provision calculation were complete and accurate.

Finally we assessed the completeness of the Real Estate Finance allowance for impairment by reviewing a sample of the remainder

of the Real Estate Finance portfolic ta identify whether there are any custorners who may be experiending signs of
financial distress.

Key
ohsarvations

Rased cn the evidence obtained, we found that the significant assumptions identified in our key audi matter which underpin the
allowances for impairment models were detarmined and applied appropriately.

Wa considar the underlying methodology used for impairment to be compliant with the requirements of IFRS 9 in all material
respects and the recognised provision to be appropriataly stated.
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6. Our application of materiality

6.1. Materiality

We define materiality as the magnitude of misstatement in the financial statements that makes it probable that the economic decisions
of a reasonably knowledgeable person would be changed or influenced. We use materiality both in planning the scope of our audit
work and in evaluating the results of our work.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the finandal statements as a whole as follows:

Group financial statements Company financial statements
Materiality £1.9 miltion {2018; £1.7 million) £1.4 million 2018: £1.3 miillion)
Basis for 5% of profit before tax 5% of profit before tax
determining materiality
Rationale for the We determined materiality using profit before tax as we considered this 1o be the most appropriate
benchmark applied measure to assess the performance of the Group. As the majority of the Group's operations are caried out

by the Company, the same materiality basis was used for both.

CHART REMOVED

6.2, Performance materiality

We set performance materiality at a leve! lower than materiality to reduce the probability that, in aggregate, uncorracted and
undetected misstaterments exceed the materiality for the financial statements as a whole. Group performance materiality was set at

70% of Group materiality for the 2019 audit (2018: 70%).

We determined performance materiality with reference to factors such as our understanding of the Group and its complexity, the
quality of the control environment and ability to rely on controls and the level of uncomected misstatements in the current and
prior audit.

6.3. Error reporting threshold

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to the Committee all audit differences in excess of £0.09 million

{2018; £0.08 miilion), as well as differences betow that threshaold that, in our view, warranted reporting on qualitative grouncds.
We also report to the Audit Committee on disclosure matters that we identified when assessing the overall presentation of the

financial statements.
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Corporate Governance Report

Independent Auditor’s report
continued

7. An overview of the scope of our audit

7.1. Identification and scoping of components

Cur Group audit was scoped by obtaining an understanding of the Group and its environment, induding Group-wide controls, and
assessing the risks of material misstatement at the Group level, Based on that assessment, cur Group audit scope focused on all
entities within the Group and covered all of the material balances in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and Statement of
Financial Position of tha Group.

We have performed a full scope audit on all entities within the Group which is consistent with the prior year. All full scope audits were
performed directly by the Group audit team and executed at levels of materiality applicable to each individual entity which were lower
than Group materiality and ranged from £0.2 million to £1.4 million (2018: £0.7 million to £1.4 million). These account for 100%

(2018: 100%) of the Group’s net interest income, 100% {2018: 100%) of the Group's profit before tax and 100% (2018: 100%) of the
Group’s total assets. At the parent entity level we have also performed testing over the consalidation process of Group entities.

7.2, Our consideration of the control environment

We identified key IT systems for the Group in respect of the financial reporting system, lending systems for Motor Finance, Real Estate
Finance, Commerdial Finance, Retail Finance and the deposits system, We performed operating effectiveness testing of the general IT
controis {'GITCs'} associated with these systems and relied upon [T controls across the systems identified.

Wa adopted a controls reliance approach in relation to both the lending and deposits business cycles with the exception of consumaer
mortgages, dabt management and asset finance lending cycles, This was consistent with 2018 with the exception of Motor Finance
and Commercial Finance lending cycles for which a controls reliance approach was adopted for the first time for 2019. We tested the
relevant automated and manual controls for the business cycles where a control reliance approach was planned. No control
weaknesses were identified during our testing and therefore we adopted a controls reliance approach across the lending and deposit
cycles noted above when performing our substantive audit procedures.

8. Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information incduded in the annual report,

other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our apinien on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in

our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether

the other information is materially inconsistent with the finandial statements or our knowledge cbtained in the audit or otherwise appears to

be materially misstated.

lf we identify such material inconsistendies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material

misstatement in the finandial statements or a material misstatement of the other informatian. If, based on the work we have performed,

we conclude that thers is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

In this context, matters that we are specifically required to report to you as uncomected material misstatements of the other

information include where we conclude that:

* Fair, balanced and understandable - the statement given by the directors that they consider the Annual Report and financial
statements taken as a whole is fair, balanced and understandable and provides the information necessary for shareholders to
assess the Group's position and performance, business model and strategy, is materially inconsistent with our knowledge obtained
in the audit; or

* Audit committee reporting - the section describing the work of the Audit Committee does not appropriately address matters
communicated by us to the Audit Committee; or

* Diractors’ statemant of compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code —the parts of the directors’ statement required
under the Listing Rules relating 10 the Company’s compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code containing provisions
spedfied for review by the auditor in aceordance with Listing Rule 9.8.10R{2) do not properly disdlose a departure from a relevant
provision of the UK Corporate Governance Code

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.
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9. Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true 2nd fair view, and for such interal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial staterents that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s and the Company’s ability to continue as a

going concern, disdosing as applicable, matters related to going concemn and using the going concem basis of accounting uniess the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the Company or to cease operations, or have no reslistic altemative but to do so.

10. Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objactives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financizl statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to Issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assuranceis a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these

financial statements,

Details of the extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud and non-compliance with
laws and regulations are set out below.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the finandial statements is located on the FRC's website at:

www frc.org ul/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report,

11. Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

We identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the finandial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and then design

and petform audit procedures responsive to those risks, induding obtaining audit evidence that is suffident and appropriate to

provide a basis for our opinion.

11.1. Identifying and assessing potential risks related to irregularities

In identifying and assessing risks of material misstatement in respect of irregularities, including fraud and non-compliance with laws

and regulations, we considered the following:

* the nature af the industry and sactor, control environment and business performance induding the design of the Group's
remuneration policies, key drivers for directors’ remuneration, bonus levels and performance targets

* the Group's own assessment of the risks that |rregulant;as may occur either as a result of fraud or error that was approved by the
Audit Committee in September 2019

» results of our enquiries of management, intemal audit and the Audit Committee about their own identification and assessment of
the risks of irregularities

*+ any matters we identified having obtained and reviewed the Group's documentation of their policies and pracedures relating to:
— identifying, evaluating and complying with laws and regulations and whether they were aware of any instances of non-compliance

- detecting and responding to the risks of fraud and whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud

- the internal contsols established to mitigate risks of fraud or non-compliance with laws and regulations

Secure Trust Bank PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2019 117

Loday sauelsron) sleiodion




Carporate Governance Report

Independent Auditor’s report
continued

* the matters discussed among the audit engagement team and involving refevant intemal specialists, including tax, vatuations, share
based payments, data analytics, information technology, prudential reguiatory and credit risk specialists regarding how and whete
fraud might occur in the finandal statements and any potential indicators of fraud

As a result of these procedures, we consiclered the opportunities and incentives that may exist within the organisation for fraud and
identified the greatest potential for fraud in the following areas: revenue recognition and impaiment of receivables. In common with
all audits under 1SAs {(UIQ, we are also required to perform spedific procedures to respond ta the risk of management override,

We also obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory framewaork that the Group operates in, focusing on provisions ot those
laws and regulations that had a direct effect on the determination of material amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The key laws and regulations we considered in this context induded the UK Companies Act, listing rules and tax fegislation.

in addition, we considered provisions of other laws and regulations that do not have a direct effect on the finandial statements but
compliance with which may be fundamental to the Group's ability to operate or to avoid a material penalty. These included the
regulation set by the Finandial Conduct Authority and by the Prudential Regulation Authority relating to regulatory capital and liquidity
requirements, which are fundamental to the Group’s ability to continue as a going concem.

11.2. Audit response to risks identified

As a result of performing the above, we identified revenue recognition and impairment of receivables as key audit matters related to
the potential risk of fraud. The key audit matters section of our report explains the matters in more detail and also describes the
specific procedures we performed in response to those key audit matters.

In addition to the above, our procedures to respond to risks identified included the foliowing:

* reviewing the financial statement disclosures and testing to supporting documentation to assess compliance with provisions of
relevant laws and regulations described as having a direct effect on the finandial statements

enquiring of management, the Audit Committee and in-house legal counsel conceming actual and potential litigation and dlaims

s performing analytical procedures to identify any unusua! or unexpected relationships that may indicate risks of material misstatement
due to fraud

reading minutes of meetings of those charged with govermnance, reviewing intemal audit reports and reviewing correspondence with
HMRC, Financial Conduct Authority and Prudential Regulation Regulatory Authority; and

in addressing the risk of fraud through management override of controls, testing the appropriateness of journal entries and other
adjustments; assessing whether the judgements made in making accounting estimates are indicative of a potential bias; and
evaluating the business rationale of any significant transactions that are unusual or outside the nommal course of business

We also communicated relevant identified laws and regulations and potential fraud risks to all engagement team members induding
intemal specialists, and remained alert to any indications of fraud of non-compliance with laws and regulations throughout the audit.
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Report on other legal and
regulatory requirements

12. Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

in our opinion the part of the Directors’ remuneration report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the

Companies Act 2004,

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

» the information given in the sirategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for which the finandal statements are
prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

* the strategic report and the directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and the Company and their environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we have not identified any material misstatements in the strategic report or the directors’ report,

13. Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Capital Requirements (Country-by-Country
Reporting) Regulations 2013

In our opinion the information given in note 42 to the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2019 has
been properly prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the Capital Requirements (Country-by Country Reporting)
Regulations 2013.

14, Matters on which we are required to report by exception

14.1. Adequacy of explanations received and accounting records

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

« we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit;

¢ adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

* the Company finandial statements are not in agreeament with the accounting records and retums

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

14.2. Directors’ remuneration

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are also required ta report if in our opinion certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration have
not been made or the part of the diractors’ remuneration report to be audited is not in agreement with the accounting records
and returns,

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

15. Other matters
15.1. Auditor tenure

Following the recommendation of the Audit Committee, we were appointed by the Board of Directors on 16 May 2018 to audit the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 and subsequent finandal periads, The period of total uninterrupted
engagement induding previous renewals and reappointments of the firm is two years covering the years ending 31 December 2018
to 31 Decamber 2019.

15.2. Consistency of the audit report with the additional report to the Audit Committee

QOur audit opinion is consistent with the additional report to the Audit Committee we are required to provide in accordance with
1SAs (UIQ.

16. Use of our report

This report is made solefy to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006,
Our audit work has bean undertaken so that we might state to the company's members those matters we are required to state to them
in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, o for the opinions we

have formed.

AR DA

Matthew Perkins, FCA (Senior statutory auditor)
For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Statutory Auditor

Birmingham, United Kingdom
6 May 2020
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Financial Statements

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

2019 2018

Note gmiliion £million
Income statement
Interest income and similar income 4.1 191.4 169.2
Interest expense and similar charges 4.1 46.0) {35.5)
Net interest income 41 145.4 1337
Fee and commission income 42 209 194
Fee and commission expense 4.2 {0.8) (1.5
Net fee and commission income 42 20.1 17.9
Operating income 165.5 151.6
Net impairment losses on loans and advances to customers {32.6) (32.4}
Operating expenses b {24.2) (84.5)
Profit bafore income tax 38.7 34.7
Income 1ax expense 8 (7.8 6.4
Profit for the year 311 28.3
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to the income statement
Revaluation reserve 0.2 0.3)
Taxation (0.2} 0.1
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax - (0.2)
Total comprehensive income for the year 311 281
Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 31.1 28.3
Total comprehensiva income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 31.1 28.1
Earnings per share for profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company during
the year (pence per share)
Basic earnings per share 9.1 168.3 153.2
Diluted earnings per share 9.2 166.4 150.9

All comprehensive income relates to continuing operations.

The notes on pages 127 to 187 are an integral part of these consolidated financial staternents.
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Consolidated statement of financial position

2019 018

Note £mifion frvllion
ASSETS
Cash and balances at central banks 105.8 169.7
Loans and advances to banks 11 484 44.8
Loans and advances to customers 12 24501 2,028.9
Debt securities 15 25.0 149.7
Fair value adjustment for portfolic hedged risk (0.9 -
Derivative financial instruments 0.9 -
Investment property 16 48 -
Property, plant and equipment 17 1.3 1.0
Right-of-use assets 18 34 -
Intangible assets 19 9.0 9.9
Deferred tax assets 21 75 7.9
Other assets 22 17.3 224
Total assets 2,682.8 2,444.3
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Due to banks 23 3085 2635
Deposits from customers 24 20203 1.847.7
Fair value adjustment for portfolio hedged risk ©n -
Derivative financial instruments 0.6 -
Current tax liabilities 33 42
Lease liabilities 25 45 -
Other liabilities 26 40.9 401
Provisions for liabilities and charges 27 0.7 1.3
Subordinated liabilities 28 50.4 504
Total liabilities 2,428.7 2,207.2
Equity attributable to owners of the parent
Share capital 3G 74 74
Share premium 81.2 81.2
Revaluation reserve 1.1 1.1
Retained eamings 164.4 1474
Total equity 254.1 237.1
Total liabilities and equity 26828 24443
The financial statements on pages 120 to 187 were approved by the Board of Dlirectors an & May 2020 and were signed on its
behalf by.
Lord Forsyth
Chairman
Paul Lynam
Chief Executive Officer

The notes on pages 127 1§l 187 are an intggral part of these consolidated financial statements,
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Financial Statements

Company statement of financial position

2019 2018

Note £mllilon Semilion
ASSETS
Cash and balances at central banks 105.8 169.7
Loans and advances to banks 1t 452 M9
Loans and advances to customers 12 2,353.6 1,980.3
Debt securities 15 250 149.7
Fair value adjustment for portfolio hedged risk 0.9 —
Derivative financial instruments 09 -
Investment property 16 48 -
Property, plant and equipment 17 65 60
Right-of-use assets 18 25 -
Intangible assets 19 7.4 8.1
Investments 20 41 39
Deferred tax assetls 21 8.1 78
Other assets 22 1038 85,6
Total assets 2,666.8 2,433,0
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Due to banks 23 308.5 263.5
Depasits from customers 24 20203 18477
Fair value adjustment for portfolio hedged risk 0.7 -
Derivative financial instruments 0.6 -
Current tax liabilities 2.2 3.6
Lease liabilities 25 33 -
Other iiabilities 26 420 49.1
Provisions for liabilities and charges 27 0.7 1.3
Subordinated liabilities 28 50.6 504
Total liabilities 2,427.5 2,215.6
Equity attributable to owners of the parent
Share capital 30 7.4 7.4
Share premium 81.2 B1.2
Revaluation reserve 0.7 0.6
Retzined earnings 150.0 128.2
Total equity 239.3 217.4
Total liabiities and equity 2,666.8 2,433.0

The Company has elected to take the exemption under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 not to present the parent company
income statement. The profit for the parent company for the year of £35.9 million is presented in the Company statement of changes

in ecuity.

The financial statements on pages 120 to 187 were approve : ard of Directors on 6 May 2020 and were signed on its behalf by:
Lord Forsyth A Paut Lynam )
Chairman Chief Executire Officer |

Registered number; 00541132

The notes on pages 127 to 187 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Share Shars Revalustion Retained
capital premium reserve eanings Total
£million Emillion £miliion Emiticn £mitHion
Balance at 1 January 2018 7.4 81.2 1.3 133.4 223.3
Total comprehensive income for the period
Profit for 2018 - - - 28.3 28.3
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax
Revaluation reserve - - 0.3) - 0.3
Tax on revaluation reserve - - G.1 - 01
Total other comprehensive income - - {0.2) - {0.2)
Total comprehensive income for the period - - {0.2) 28.3 28.1
Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity
Contributions by and distributions to owners
Dividends - - - (14.8) {14.8)
Share-based payments - - - 08 0.8
Tax on share-based payments - - - 0.3 0.3
Total contributions by and distributions to owners - - - {14.3) {14.3)
Balance at 31 Dacember 2018 {as previously stated) 7.4 81.2 1.1 147.4 2371
IFRS 16 transition adjustment net of tax (see Note 1) - - — {C.1} 0.1}
Balance at 1 January 2019 (as restated) 7.4 81.2 1.1 147.3 237.0
Total comprehensive income for the period
Profit for 2019 - - - 31 311
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax
Revaluation reserve - - 0.2 - 0.2
Tax on ravaluation reserve - - 0.2 - 0.2
Total ather comprehensive income - - - - -
Total comprehensive income for the period - - - 3141 311
Transactions with owners, recorded directly In equity
Contributions by and distributions to owners
Dividends - - - (15.5) {15.5)
Share-based payments - - - 1.2 1.2
Tax on share-based paymernts - - - 03 03
Total contributions by and distributions to owners - - - (14.0) {14.0)
Balance at 31 December 2019 7.4 81.2 1.1 164.4 254.1

The notes on pages 127 to 187 are an integral part of these consalidated financial statements.
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Financial Statements

Company statement of changes in equity

Share Shara

P )

coion P iion Ermitice pia rion
Balance at 1 January 2018 7.4 B81.2 0.5 121.7 210.8
Total comprehensive income for the period
Profit for 2018 ) - - - 208 208
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax
Revaluation reserve - - 0.1 - 0.1
Total other comprehensive income - - a.1 - 0.1
Total comprehensive income for the period - - a1 20.8 20.9
Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity
Contributions by and distributions to owners
Dividends - - - (14.8) (14.8)
Share-based payments - - - 08 08
Tax on share-based payments - - - {0.3) 0.3
Total contributions by and distributions to owners - - - {14.3) {14.3)
Balance at 31 December 2018 (as previously stated) 7.4 81.2 0.6 128.2 217.4
IFRS 16 transition adjustment net of tax (see Note 1) - - - (0.1} {©.1)
Balance at 1 January 2019 (as restated) 7.4 81.2 0.6 128.1 217.3
Total comprehensive income for the perlod
Profit for 2019 - - - 35.9 359
Other comprehensive incame, net of income tax
Revaluation reserve - - 01 - 0.1
Total other comprehensive income - - 0.1 - 0.1
Total comprehensive income for the period - - 0.1 35.9 36.0
Transactions with owners, recorded diractly in equity
Contributions by and distributions to owners
Dividends - - - {15.5) (15.5)
Share-based payments - - - 1.2 1.2
Tax on share-based payments - - - 0.3 0.3
Total contributions by and distributions to owners - - - {14.0) {14.0)
Balance at 31 Decamber 2019 7.4 81.2 0.7 150.0 239.3

The notes on pages 127 to 187 are an intagral part of these consolidated finandial stataments.
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Consolidated statement of cash flows

2018

Note el Femiion
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the year 3t 283
Adjustments for:
Income tax expense 8 7.6 64
Depreciation of praperty, plant and equipment 17 1.2 1.3
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 18 09 -
Loss on disposal of computer software - 0.1
Amortisation of intangible assets 19 19 1.8
Impairment losses on loans and advances to customers 14 326 324
Share-based compensation 3 1.2 08
Revaluation loss 17 1.4 -
Lease interest charged 25 0.1 -
Amortisation of subordinated liabilities issue costs 28 02 -
Cash flows from operating profits before changes in operating assets and liabilities 779 711
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
- net increase in loans and advances to customers '(453.8) (494.8)
- net decrease/(increase) in other assets 4.6 (17.0)
- net increase in deposits from customers 1726 3645
- net increase/{decrease) in other liabilities 1.3 0.5
Income tax paid {7.8) 6.4
Net cash outflow from operating activities {205.2) {83.1)
Cash flows from investing activities
Redemption of debt securities 3201 3050
Purchase of debt securities {195.4) (449.7)
Purchase of investment property i6 (1.6} -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 17 (5.5) (1.1)
Purchase of intangible assets 17 (1.1} (1.4)
Net cash inflow/{outflow) from investing activities 1165 {147.2)
Cash flows from financing activities
Increase in amounts due to banks 450 150.0
issue of subordinated liabilites - 50.0
Subordinated liabilities issue costs - {0.8)
Dividends paid 10 (15.5) (14.8)
Repayment of lease liabilities 25 1.4 -
Net cash Inflow from financing activities 28.4 184.4
Net decrease in cash and cash aquivalents {60.3) {45.9)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 2145 2604
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 321 154.2 214.5

Redemption and purchase of debt securities have been grossed up and moved frotn operating activities to investing activities as this

better represents the nature of the underlying activity.

The nates on pages 127 to 187 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Financial Statemnents

Company statement of cash flows

2018
2019 Restated
Note Emilion Emdllicn
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the year 359 208
Adjustments for:
Income tax expense 8 53 49
Deprediation of property, plant and equipment 17 07 0.7
Depraciation of right-of-use assets 18 05 -
Loss on disposal of computer software - 0.1
Amortisation of intangible assets 19 1.6 16
Impairment fosses on loans and advances to customers 14 378 33.1
Share-based compensation 31 1.0 0.6
Revaluation deficit 17 1.1 -
Lease interest charged 25 01 -
Amortisation of subordinated liabilities issue costs 28 0.2 -
Cash flows from operating profits before changes in operating assets and liabilities 839 4618
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
- net increase in loans and advances to customers {410.8) {480.3)
—net increase in other assets {38.7) (32.4)
- net increase in deposits from customers 1726 3845
- net {decrease)/increase in other liabilities (6.6} 6.0
income tax paid 6.5 4.3
Net cash outflow from operating activities (206.1) (84.7)
Cash flows from investing activities
Redemption of debt securities 3201 3050
Purchase of debt securities (195.4) (449.7)
Purchase of investment property 16 (1.8 -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 17 (5.3) {0.5)
Purchase of intangible assets 19 (1.0) 1.3)
Net cash inflow/{outflow) from investing activities 116.8 {1.8)
Cash flows from financing activities
Increase in amounts due to banks 450 1500
Issue of subordinated liabilities - 560.0
Subordinated liabilities issua costs - {0.8)
Dividends paid 10 {15.5 (14.8)
Repayment of lease liabilities 25 (0.8) -
Net cash inflow from financing activities 28.7 184.4
Net dacrease in cash and cash equivalents (60.6) (46.8B)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 2116 258.4
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 32.1 151.0 211.6

Redemption and purchase of debt securities have been grossed up and moved from operating activities to investing activities as this

better represents the nature of the underlying activity.

The notes on pages 127 to 187 are an integral part of these consalidated financial statements.
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Notes to the financial statements

1. Accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated,

1.1. Reporting entity

Secure Trust Bank PLC is a public limited company incorporated in England and Wales in the United Kingdom {referred to as 'the
Company’) and is limited by shares. The Company is registered in England and Wales and has the registered number 00541132,

The registered address of the Company is One Arleston Way, Solthull, West Midlands, B90 4LH. The consolidated financial statements
of the Company as at and for the year ended 31 Decernber 2019 comprise Secure Trust Bank PLC and its subsidiaries (together
referred to as ‘the Group' and individually as "subsidiaries). The Group is primarily involved in banking and financial services.

1.2, Basis of presentation

The Group's consolidated financial statements and the Company's financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards, as adopted by the Group and endorsed by the EU, and the Companies Act 20056
applicable ta companies reporting under IFRS. They have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
valuation of derivative financial instruments, investrment properties and land and buildings at fair value. The consolidated financial
statements are presented in pounds sterling, which is the functional and presentational currency of the entities within the Group.
There are no IFRS that are issued but not yet effective that will have a material impact on the Group.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with [FRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates, it also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial staternents are
disclosed in Note 2,

_The Directors have assessed, in the light of current and anticipated economic conditions, the Group's ability to continue as a going
concem. The Directors confinm they are satisfied that the Company and the Greup have adequate rescurces to continue in business
for the foreseeable future. For this reason, they continue to adopt the ‘going concem’ basis for preparing accounts, as set out in the
Going concern and viability section of the Strategic Report starting on page 2.

The consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors an & May 2020.

1.3.IFRS 16 'Leases’
IFRS 16 ‘Leases’, which has been issued and endorsed by the EU, is effactive for annual pericds beginning on or after 1 January 2019,

The new standard sets out the prindples for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both partiesto a
contract i.e. the customer {lessee’) and the supplier {lessor’). It replaces the previous leases standard, 1AS 17 ‘Leases’,
and related interpretations.

IFRS 16 uses a new single model that applies to all leases, thus efiminating the classification of leases as either operating leases or
finance leases for a lessee. Applying that model, on commencement of a lease, the lessee recognises a liability to make lease
payments ('the lease liability), an asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term (‘the right-of-use
asset’), and depreciation of right-of-use assets is shown separately from interest on lease lizbilities in the income statement.

The lease liability is initially measured based on the net present value of the lease payments to be made over the remaining lease term,
using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate. After commencement of the lease, the lease liability is measured on
an amortised cost basis, with interest being calculated on an effective interest rate basis on the remaining balance of the liability, and
lease payments reducing the lease liability when paid.

The right-of-use assets are initially measured at cost, being the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability, adjusted for any
prepaid rentals less any lease incentives plus any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee and dismantling or restoration costs.
Subsequently, the right-of-use assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the remaining term of the lease, The right-of-use
assats are tested for impairment in accordance with 145 36,

In the cash flow statement, lease interest is induded in cash flow from operating activities and repayments of lease liabilites are
included in cash flow from financing activities.
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Financial $tatements

Notes to the financial statements
continued

1. Accounting policies continued

Transition choices

The Group has elected to recognise the cumulative effect of implementing IFRS 16 as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained earnings at 1 January 2019. Accordingly, prior year comparatives shall not be restated. As a practical expedient, the Group will
apply the new standard only to contracts that had previously been identified as leases. Therafore, the new standard will not be applied
to contracts that had not previously been identified as leases,

The Group has also elected nat to apply IFRS 14 to the following, as they are not material:

* Short-term leases of 12 months or less

* Leases for which the underlying asset is of low value

Fhis has resulted in the new standard only being applicable to a number of property leases and motor vehicle leases.

The Group has chosen to measure the initial right-of-use asset for property leases at its carrying amount as if the standard has been
applied since the commencement date, but discounted using the incremental borrowing rate as at 1 January 2019, The initial right-of-
use asset for afl other leases is measured at an amount equal to the lease liability.

The adjustments {net of tax) arising from the adoption of IFRS 16 on 1 January 2019, and their effect on the 31 December 2018 balance
sheet, were as follows: .

homy I
T NS 1 Jamiy 3019 1 Jameury J019
fmittion failllion Ernlllion

ASSETS
Cash and balances at central banks 169.7 - 169.7
Loans and advances to banks 448 - 448
Loans and advancas to custormers 20289 - 20289
Debt sacurities 149.7 - 149.7
Lease right-of-use assets - 45 45
Deferred tax assets 7.9 0.2 8.1
Other assets 433 0.4) 429
Total assets 2,444.3 4.3 2.448.6
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabliities
Due to banks 2635 - 2635
Deposits from customers 1,847.7 - 1,8472.7
Lease liabilities - 55 55
Other liabilities 454 (.1 445
Subordinated liabilities 50.4 - 50.4
Total liabilities 2,207.2 44 2,211.6
Equity attributable to ownars of the parent
Share capital 7.4 - 14
Share premium 81.2 - 81.2
Revaluation reserve 1.1 ~ 14
Retainad eamings 147 .4 {0.1) 147.3
Total equity 237.% (0.1) 237.0
Total liabilities and equity 2,444.3 4.3 2,448.6
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1. Accounting policies continued

AdJustments to other assets

These relate to the release of rent prepayments that are no longer required now that the leases are recognised as right-of-use assets,
Adjustment to other labilities

This relates to the release of a reverse lease premiurm, which under IAS 17 was included in accruals and was being spread over the term
of the lease.

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities recognised in the statement of finandal position on
transition at 1 January 2019 was 2.61%.

The table below presants a reconciliation from operating lease commitments disclosed at December 2018 to lease liabilities
recognised at 1 January X019

femifion
Operating lease commitment disclosed under IAS 17 at December 2018 74
Effect of discaunting 1.9
5.5

In terrms of the income statement impact, the application of IFRS 16 resulted in a decrease in other operating expenses and an
increase in depreciation and interest expense compared to IAS 17. During the year, in relation to leases under IFRS 14 the Group
recognised the following amounts in the consolidated income statement:

£miion

Depreciation 09
interest expense 01
1.0

Lessor accounting
Lessor accounting, which comprises Motor Finance, Asset Finance and the RentSmart business, remains unchanged from IAS 17.

1.4. Consolidation

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all investees controlied by the Group. The Group controls an investee when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvernent with the investee and has the ability to affect those retums through its power over the investee.
Subsidiaries are fully consalidated from the date on which contral is transferred to the Group.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of an acquisition is
measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange
plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any non-contralling
interest. The excess of the cost of acquisition, exduding directly attributable costs, over the fair value of the Group's share of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised directly in the income statement.

The parent company's investments in subsidiaries are recorded at cost less, where appropriate, provision for impairment.
At the year-end, there was no indication that investments in subsidiaries were impaired, so impairment testing was not performed.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains and losses on transactions between Group companies are eliminated.

The parent company’s expected credit loss on amaunts due from related companies, calculated by applying probability of default and
loss given default the amount outstanding at the year-end, was not material at 31 December 2019

Accounting palicies of subsidiaries have heen changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Diseontinued operations

Subsidianies are de-consalidated from the date that conirol ceases. Discontinued operations are a component of an entity that has
been disposed of, and represents a major line of business and is part of a single co-ordinated disposal plan.
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Financial Statements

Notes to the financial statements
continued

1. Accounting policies continued

1.5. Interest income and expense

For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost, the effective interest rate method is used to measure the carrying value and
allocate interest income or expense. The effective interest rate Is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to:

= the gross camying amount of the financial asset or
+ the amortised cost of the financial liability

In calculating the effective interest rate for financial instruments, other than assets that were credit-impaired on initial recognition, the
Group estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, early redemption penalty
charges and broker commissions) and anticipated custorner behaviour, but does not consider future credit losses. For financial assets
that were impaired on initial recognition {also referred to as purchased or originated creditimpaired assets — 'POCI), a credit adjusted
effective interest rate is calculated using estimated future cash flows, including expected credit losses.

The caleulation of the effective interest rate includes all fees received and paid that are an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts. Transaction costs indude incremental costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of a financial instrument.

For financial assets that are not considered to be credit-impaired ('stage 1" and ‘stage 2 assets), interest income s recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross camying amount of the financial asset. For finandial assets that become credit-impaired
subsequent to initial recognition {'stage 3' assets), from the next reporting pericd onwards interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. The credit risk of financial assets that become credit-impaired are
not expected to improve such that they are no longer considered credit-impaired, however, if this were to occur the calculation of

interest income would revert back to the gross basis. The Group's definition of stage 1, stage 2 and stage 3 assets is set out in Note 1.9,

For financial assets that were credit-impaired on initial recognition (POCI assets), income is calculated by applying the credit adjusted
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the asset. For such finandial assets the calculation of interest income will never revert to a
aross hasis, even if the credit risk of the asset improves.

Further details regarding when an asset becomes credit-impaired subsequent to initlal recognition is provided within Note 1.9.

1.6. Net fee and commission income

Fees and commission income and expenses that are an integral part of the effective interest rate of a finandial instrument are inchuded
in the effective interest rate and presented in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as interast income or expense.

Fees and commission income that is not considered an integral part of the effective interest rate of a finandal instrument are
recognised under IFRS 15 when the Group satisfies performance obligations by transferring promised services to customers.

1.7. Financial assets and financial liabilities

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or where the Group has
transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership, There have not been any instances where assets have only been
partially derecognised. The Group derecagnises a finandial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expire, inciuding in the event of a substantial modification as desaribed in Note 1.9,

Amortised cost measurement

The amortisaed cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset or financia! fiability is measured at
initial recognition, minus principal payments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any
difference between the initial amount recognised and the matutity amount, minus any redkction for impairment.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between markat
participants at the measurement date, The fair value of assets and liabilities traded in active markets are based on current bid and offer
prices respectively. I the market for a finandal instrument is not active the Group esteblishes a fair value by using an sppropriate
valuation technigue. These include the use of recent arm’s length transactions, reference to other instruments that are substantially the
same for which market observable prices exist, ret prasent value and discounted cash flow analysis.
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1. Accounting policies continued

Financlal assets (with the exception of derivative financial instrurmnents)

The Group classifies its financial assets at inception into three measurement categories; ‘amortised cost’, fair value through other

comprehensive income’ (‘FVOCIY and “fair value through profit and loss’ {FYTPL). A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if

both the following conditions are met and it has not been designated as at FVTPL:

* the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset to collect its contractual cash flows

* the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise to cash flows on specified dates that represent payments of solely principal and
interest on the outstanding principal amount

The Group’s current business model for all financial assets, with the exception of derivative finandial instruments, is to hold to collect
contractual cash flows and all assets held give rise to cash flows on specified dates that represent solely payments of principal and
interest on the cutstanding prindpal amount. All the Group's assets are therefore currently classified as amortised cost. Loans are
recognised when funds are advanced to customers and are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The amortised cost of an instrument is the amount at which it is measured at initial recognition, fess principal repayments, plus or
minus the cumulative amortisation using the eflective interest method of any difference between the Initial amount recognised and the
maturity amount, less any expected credit loss allowance. The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the amortised cost of a
financial asset before adjusting for any expected credit toss allowance,

A debt instrument would be measured at FVOCH only i both the below conditions are met and it has not been designated as FVTPL:

o the asset is held within 2 business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting its contractual cash flows and selling the
financial asset

+ the contractual terms of the finandial asset give rise to cash flows on specified dates that represent payments of solely principal and
interest on the outstanding principal amount ,

The Group currently has na financial instruments dassified as FVOCH.

Cn initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Group may irrevacably elect to present subsequent
changes

in fair value in OCI, This election would be made on an investment by investment basis. The Group currently holds no

such investments.

All other assets are dassified as FVTPL. The Group currently has no financial assets dassified as FVTPL.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except in the period after the Group changes its business
mode! for managing finandial assets. The Group has not redassified any financial assets during the reporting period.

Deposits from customers

The Group dassifies its financial Kabilities as measured at amortised cost. Such financial liabilities are recognised when cash is received
from depositors and carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Other financial liabilities (with the exception of derivative financial instruments)

The subordinated liabilities comprise of 4.75% Fixed Rate Reset Callable Subordinated Notes due 2028 {the ‘Notes’):

* The notes are redeemable for cash at their principal amount on a fixed date

¢ The Company has a call option to redeem the securities early in the event of a "tax event’ or a ‘capital disqualification event’, which is
at the full discretion of the Company

* Interest payments are paid at six monthly intervals and are mandatory

« Tha notes give the holders rights to the principal amount on the notes, plus any unpaid interest, on liquidation. Any such claims are
subardinated to senior creditors, but rank pari passu with holders of other subordinated obligations and in priority to holders of
share capital

The abova features provide the issuer with a contractual obligation to deliver cash or anather financial asset to the holders, and
therefore the notes are classified as financiat liabilities. Further information in respect of the notes is provided in Note 28

Transaction costs that are directly atiributabie to the issue of the notes and are incremental costs that would not have been incurred H
the notes had not been issued are deducted from the financial liability and expensed to the incoma statement on an effective interest
rate basis over the expected life of the notes.

The fair value of other liabilities repayable on demand is assumed to be the amount payable on demand at the statement of financial
position date.

The Group has not elected to measure any finandal liabilities at fair value.
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Financial Statements

Notes to the financial statements
continued

1. Accounting policies continued

1.8. Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated into the Company's functional currency at the rates
prevailing on the balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising on the settiement of monetary items, and on the retransfation of
monetary items, are included in the income statement for the period.

1.9. Impairment of financial assets and loan commitrments

The Group recognises loss allowances for Expected Cradit losses {'ECLsY on all financial assets carried at amortised cost, induding lease
receivables and loan commitments.

Credit loss allowances are measured as an amount equal to lifetime ECL, except for the foliowing assets, for which they are measured

as 12-month ECL: :

* Financial assets determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date

* Financial assets which have not experienced a significant increase in credit risk since their initial recognition

* Financial assets which have experienced a significant increase in credit risk since their initial recognition but have subsequently met
the Group's cure policy, as set out below

Such assets are classified as stage 1 assets.

Agsets which have experienced a significant increase in credit risk since their initial recognition and have not subsequently met the
Group's
cure policy are classified as stage 2 assets, The Group's definitions of a significant increase in credit risk and default are set out below.

A financial asset is considered to have low credit risk when its credit risk rating is equivalent to the widely understoad definition of
‘investment grade’ assets. The Group has assessed all its debt securities, which represents UK Treasury bills, and loans held in

S5T8B Leasing Limited, for which credit risk is retained by its partner RentSmant, tc be low credit risk.

Definition of default/credit-impalred financial assets (Stage 3 loans)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets camied at amortised cost are credit-impaired (stage 3). A finandal
asset is conhsidered to be credit-impaired when an event or events that have a detrimental impact on estimated future cash flows have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

* Initiation of bankruptey proceedings

s Notification of bereavement

* |dentification of loan meeting debt sale critetia

* Initiation of repossession proceedings

In addition, a loan that is 90 days or more past due is considered credit-impaired for all portfolios. The credit risk of financial assets that
become credit-impaired are not expected ta improve such that they are no longer considered aredit-impaired.

For Commercial Finance facilities that do not have a fixed term or repayment structure, evidence that a finandal asset is credit-
impaired includes:

» the dient ceasing ta trade

¢ unpaid debtor balances that are dated at least six months past their normal recourse period

Significant increase In credit risk {Stage 2 loans)

For Cansumer Finance, the credit risk of a financial asset is considered to have experienced a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition where thera has been a significant increase in the remaining lifetime probability of default of the asset. The Group
may also use its expert credit judgement and where possible relevant historical and current performance data, inchuding bureau data,
to determine that an exposure has undergane a significant increase in credit sk, .

For Business Finance, the credit risk of a financial asset is considered to have experienced a significant increase in credit risk where
certain early warning indicators apply. These indicators may include notification of county court judgements or, specifically for the Real
Estate Finance portfolio, cost over-runs and timing delays experienced by borrowers.

As a backstop, the Group considers that a significant increase in credit risk occurs no later than when an asset is more than 30 days past
due for all portfolios.

Performing assets which have experienced a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition are reclassified from stage 1,
for which loss allowances are measured at an amount equal to 12-month ECL, to stage 2, for which ECL is measured as lifetime ECL.
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1. Accounting policies continued

Cure policy

The credit risk of a financial asset may improve such that it Is no longer considered to have experienced a significant increase in credit
risk if it meets the Group's cure policy. The Group’ cure policy for all portfolios requires sufficient payments to be made to bring an
account back within less than 30 days past due and for such payments to be maintained for six consecutive months.

The Group has determined stage 3 to be an absorbing state. Once a loan Is in default it is not therefore expected to cure back to
stage 1 or 2.

Calculation of expected credit loss

ECLs are probability weighted estimates of credit losses which are measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls, Specifically, this
is the differenice between the contractual cash flows due and the cash flows expected to be received, discounted at the original
effective interest rate or, for portfolios purchased outside of the Group by Debt Managers (Services) Limited, the credit adjusted
effective interest rate. For undrawn foan commitrents ECL is measured as the difference between the contractual cash flows due if
the commitment is drawn and the cash flows expected to be received.

Lifetime ECL js the ECL that results from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial asset.

12-month ECL is the portion of lHetime ECL that results from default events on a financial asset that are possible within 12 months after
the reporting date,

ECLs are calculated by multiplying three main components: the probability of default (PD"), exposure at default (EADY) and loss given
default (LGD") discounted at the original effective interest rate of an asset. These variables are derived from intemally developed statistical
models and historical data, adjusted to reflect forward-looking information and are disaussed in tum further balow.

Management adjustments are made to modeilled output to account for situations where known or expected risk factors have not been
considered in the modelling process.

Probability of default ‘'PD’) and credit risk grades

Credit risk grades are a primary input into the determination of the PD for exposures. The Group allocates each exposure 1o a credit
risk grade at origination and at each reporting period to predict the risk of default. Credit risk grades are determined using qualitative
and quantitative factors that are indicative of the risk of default e.g. arrears status and loan applications scores. These factors vary for
each loan portfolio. Exposures are subject ta ongoing monitaring, which may result in an exposure being moved to a different credit
risk grade. In monitoring exposures information such as payment records, request for forbearance strategies and forecast changes in
economic conditions are considerad for Cansumer Finance. Additionally, for Business Finance portfolios information obtained during
periodic client reviews, for example audited finandial statements, management accounts, budgets and projections are considered,
with particular focus on key ratios, compliance with covenants and changes in senior management teams.

Exogenous, Maturity, Vintage (EMV} modalliing is used in the production of farward-looking fifetime PDs. This method entails
modelling the effects of extemal {exogenous) factors against cohorts of lending and their time on the books creating a dean
relationship to best demonstrate the movement in defauli rates as macro-economic variables are changed. These models are
extrapolated to provide PD estimates for the future, based on forecasted economic scenarios.

Exposure at default {'EAD"

EAD represents the expected exposure in the event of a default. EAD is derived from the aurrent exposure and potential changes to
the current amount allowed under the terms of the contract, induding amortisation overpayments and early terminations. The EAD of
a finandial asset is its gross cammying amount. For loan commitments the EAD includes the amount drawn as wel! as potential future
amounts that may be drawn under the terms of the contract, estimated based on historical cbservations and forward-looking forecasts.

For Commercial Finance facifities that have no specific term, an assumption is made that accounts dose 34 months after the reporting
date for the purposes of measuring lifetime ECL. This assumption is based on industry experience of average client life. These facilities
do not have a fixed term or repayment structure but are revolving and increase or decrease to reflect the value of the collaterat

i.e. receivables or inventory. The Group can cancel the fadilities with immediate effect, although this contractual right is not enforced in
the normal day-to-day management of the facility. Typically, demand would only be made on the failure of a client business or in the
event of a material event of default, such as a fraud. In the normal course of events, the Group's exposure is recovered through receipt
of remittances from the client’s debtors rather than from the dient itself,

The ECL for such fadilities is estimated taking inta account the credit risk management actions that the Group expects to take to
mitigate against losses. These include a reduction in advance rate and fadlity limits or application of reserves against a fadlity to
improve the likelihood of full recovery of exposure from the debtors. Alternative recovery routes mitigating ECL would indude
refinancing by another funding provider, taking security over other asset classes or secured personal guarantees from the
client’s principals.
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Notes to the financial statements
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1. Accounting policies continued

Loss given default {'LGD")

LGD is the magnitude of the likely loss in the event of default. This takes into accaunt recoveries either through curing or, where
applicable, through auction sale of repossessed colfateral and debt sale of the residual shortfall amount. For loans secured by retail
property, loan-to-value ratios are key parameters in determining LGD. LGDs are calculated an a discounted cash flow basis using the
finandial instruments arigination effective interast rate as the discount factor.

Incorporation of forwardooking data

The Group incorporates forward-looking information into both its assessment of whether the credit risk of a finandial asset has
increased significantly since initiat recognition and its measurement of expected credit loss. This is achieved by developing a number
of potential economic scenarios and modelling expected credit losses for each scenario. To ensure materal nondinear relationships
between economic factors and credit Josses are reflected in the calculation of ECL a deeper stress scenario is used as one of these
scenarios. The outputs from each scenario are combined using the estimated likelihood of each scenario oceurring to derive a
probability weighted expected credit loss. The four scenarios adopted and probability weighting applied are approved by the
Assumptions Committee and are set out in Note 2.

The Group has considered which economic variables impact credit risk and credit losses. The key drivers of credit risk and credit losses
included in the macro-economic scenarios for all partfolios, with the exception of Real Estate Finance, have been identified as annual
unemployment rate growth and annual house prics index growth, In addition, for Asset Finance and Commercial Finance, changes to
the consumer price index are also included in the mago-economic scenarios. For the Real Estate Finance portfolio the key drivers have
been identified as unemployment rate growth and Bank of England base rates. Base case assumptions applied for each of these
variables have been saurced from external consensus or Bank of England forecasts. Further details of the assumptions applied 16 other
scenarios are presented in Note 2.

Presentation of loss allowance

Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the statement of financial position as follows with the loss recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income:

* Financial assets measured at amortised cost: as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the assets

s Other loan commitments: generally, as a provision

For the Real Estate Finance and Commercdiat Finance portfolios, where a loan fadility is agreed that indudes both drawn and undrawn
elements and the Group cannot identify the ECL on the loan commitment separately, a combined loss allowance for both drawn and

undrawn components of the loan is presented as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the drawn comporent, with any
excess of the loss allowance over the gross drawn amount presented as a provision.

When a loan is uncollectible, it is written off against the refated ECL allowance. Such loans are written off after all necessary procedures
have been completed and the amount of the loss has been datermined.

Motor voluntary termination provision

In addition to recognising allowances for ECLs, the Group holds a provision for voluntary terminations (VT'} for all Motor Finance
financial assets. VT is a legal right provided to customers who take out hire purchase agreements. The provision is calculated by
multiplying the probability of VT of an asset by the expected shortfall on VT discounted back at the original effective interast rate of
the asset, VT allowances are not held against loans in default (stage 3 loans).

The VT provision is presented in the statement of financial position as a deduction from the gross camying amount of Motor Finance
assets with the loss recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

Write off

Loans and advances to custorners are written off partiafly or in full when the Group has exhausted all viable recovery options.

The majority of write offs arise from Delbt Relief Orders, insolvencies, IVAs, deceased customers where there is no estate and

vulnerable customers in certain circumstanices. Amounts subsequently recovered on assets previously written off are recognised
in impairment losses in the income statement.
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1. Accounting policies continued
Modification of loans

A customer’s account may be modified to assist customers who are in or have recently overcome financial difficulties and have
demonstrated both the ability and willingness to meet the current or modified loan contractual payments. Substantial loan
madifications result in the derecognition of the existing loan, and the recognition of a new loan at the new arigination effective interest
rate (EIR) based on the expected future cash flows at origination. Determination of the origination PD for the new [oan is required,
based on the PD as at the date of the modification, which is used for the calculation of the impairment provision against the new loan.
Any deferred fees or deferred interest, and any difference between the fair value of the derecognised loan and the new loan, is written
off to the income statement on recognition of the new loan.

Where the modification is not considered to be substantial, neither the origination EIR nor the origination PD for the modified loan
changes. The net present value of changes to the future contractual cash flows adjusts the canying amount of the original debt with
the difference immediately being recognised in profit or loss. The adjusted canying amount is then amortised over the remaining term
of the {modified) liability using the original effective interest rate.

1.10. Derivative financial instruments

The Group enters into derivatives to manage exposures to fluctuations in interest rates. Derivatives are not used for speculative
purposes. Derivatives are carried at fair valus with movements in fair value recognised in the income statement. Derivatives are valued
by discounted cash flow models using yield curves based on overnight indexed swap {‘OIS) rates. All derivatives are carried as assets
when fair value is positive and as liabilities when fair value is negative.

The Group does not hold contracts containing embedded derivatives.

Where cash collateral is received, to mitigate the risk inherent in the amounts due to the Group, it is included as a lability within the
due to banks line within the statement of finandial position, Where cash collateral is given, to mitigate the risk inherent in amounts due
from the Group, it is included as an asset in the loans and advances to banks line within the statement of financial position.

Hedge accounting

Following transition ta IFRS 9, the Group has elected to apply IAS 39 for all of its hedge accounting requirements. When transactions
meet specified criteria the Group can apply two types of hedge accounting:

* Hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or liabilities or firm commitments {fair value hedges}
* Hedges of highly probable future cash flows attributable 1o a recognised asset or liability (cash flow hedges)

The Group does not have cash flow hedges or hedges of net investments.

At inception of a hedge, the Group formally documents the relationship between the hedged items and hedging instruments, as well
as its risk management objective and strategy for undartaking various hedge transactions. The Group also documents its assessrnent,
both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective
in offsetting changes in fair values of the hedged items (i.e. the fair value offset between the hedged item and hedging instrument is
within the 80% —125% range).

When the European Union adopted IAS 39 in 2004, it removed certain hedge accounting requirements, commonly raferred to as the
EU carve-out. The relaxed requirements under the carve-out allow the Group to apply the ‘bottom up’ method when calculating
macro-hedge ineffectiveness. This option is not allawed under full IFRS. The Group has applied the EU carve-out accordingly.

Fair value hedge accounting

Fair value hedge accounting results in the carrying value of the hedged item being adjusted to reflect changes in fair value attributable
to the hadged risk, thereby offsetting the effect of the related movement in the fair value of the derivative. Changes in the fair value of
derivatives and hedged items that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the income statement.

In a ane-to-one hedging relationship in which a single derivative hedges a single hedged item, the camrying value of the underlying
asset or liabdlity {the hedged item} is adjusted for the hedged risk to offset the fair value movement of the related derivative. In the case
of a portfolic hedge, an adjustment is included in the fair value adjustments for portfolio hedged risk line in the statement of financial
position to offset the fair value movements in the related derivative. The Group currently only designates portfolio hedges.

¥the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, expires or is temninated, the cumulative fair value adjustment to the
carrying amount of a hedged item is amortised to the income statement over the period to maturity of the previously designated
hedge refationship and recorded as net interest income. If the underlying item is sold or repaid, the unamortised fair value adjustment
is immediately recognised in the income statement.
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1. Accounting policies continued
1.11. Intangible assets
(a) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of the acquisition over the fair value of the Group's share of the net identifiable assets
acquired at the date of acquisition, Goodwill is held at cost less accurnulated impairment losses and is deemed to have an infinite life.

The Group reviews the goodwill for impairment at least annually or when events or changes in economic drcumstances indicate that
impairment may have taken place. Impairment losses are recognised in the income statement if the carrying amount exceeds the
recoverable amounts.

(b} Computer software

Acquired computer software licences are eapitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the
specific software.

Costs assodated with developing or maintaining computer saftware programs are recognised as an expense as incurred unless the
technical feasibility of the development has been demonstrated, and it is probable that the expenditure wilf enable the asset to
generate future economic benefits in excess of its originally assessed standard of performanca, in which case they are capitalised.

These costs ara amortised on a straight-line basis over their expected useful fives, which are between three to ten years.

(©) Other intangibles

The acquisition of subsidiaries was accounted for in accordance with IFRS 3 "Business Combinations', which requires the recognition of
the identifiable assels acquired and liabilities assumed at their acquisition date fair values. As part of this process, it was necessary to
recognise certain intangible assets which are separately identifiable and which are not included on the acquiree’s balance sheet,

which are amortised over their expected useful fives, as set out in Note 19.

The Group applies IAS 36 to determine whether an intangible asset is impaired.

1.12. Investment property

Investment property, which is proparty held to earn rentals and tor capital appreciation, i measured initfally al wust, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property is measured at fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes
in the fair value of investment property are included in the income statement in the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no
future economic benefits are expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the canying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement in the period
in which the property is derecognised.

1.13. Property, plant and equipment

Property is held at its revalued amount, being its fair value at the date of vatuation less any subsequent accurmulated depreciation.
Revaluations are carred out annually at the reporting date, and movements are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income, net of
any applicable deferred tax.

Plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost indudes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items. Pre-installed computer software licences are capitalised as part of the computer hardware it is installed on.
Depreciation is calculated using the straightdine method to aflocate their cost to their residual valres over their estimated useful lives,
which are subject ta regular review:

Land not depreciated

Freehold buitdings 50 years

Leasehold improvemaents shorter of life of lease or 7 years
" Computer equipment 3to S years

Cther equipment 5 to 10 years

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amounts, These are included in the
income statement.

The Group applies IAS 34 to determine whether property, plant and equipment is impaired.

136 Secure Trust Bank PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2019




1. Accounting policies continued

1.14. Leases

{a) As a lessee

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease st inception of the contract. The Group recognises a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease arangements in which it is the lessee, except for short-term leases (defined
as leases with a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low value assets. For these leases, the Group recognises the lease
payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattemn in which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.,

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the future lease payments, discounted by using the rate implicit in the
tease. If this rate canhot be readily determined, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate, It is subsequently measured by
increasing the canying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability {using the effective interest method) and by reducing the camying
amount to reflect the lease payments made, and is presented as a separate fine in the consolidated staterment of financial position,

The right-of-use assats comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease payrments made at or before the
commencement day, less any lease incentives received and any initial direct costs. They are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated deprediation and impairment losses, and are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the
underlying asset. The depreciation starts at the commencement date of the lease, The right-of-use assets are presented as » separate
tine in the consolidated statement of financial position. The Group applies IAS 36 to determine whether a right-of-use asset is impaired
and accounts for any identified impairment loss as described in the ‘Property, Plant and Equipment’ policy.

Rentals made under operating leases for less than 12 months in duration, and operating leases on low value items, are recognised in
the income statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

(b} As a lessor

The present vaiue of the Jease payments on assets leased to customers under agreements which transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership, with or without ultimate legal title, are recognised as a receivable. The difference between the gross receivable
and the present value of the receivable is recognised as uneamed finance income. Lease income is recognised over the term of the
lease using the net investrment method, which reflects a constant periodic rate of return.

1.15. Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and demand deposits, and cash
equivalents, being highly fiquid investments which are convertible into cash with an insignificant risk of changes in value with a maturity
of three months or less at the date of acquisition, including certain loans and advances to banks and short-term highly liquid

debt securities.

1.16. Equity instrurnents

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issuance costs. Any amounts received
over nominal value are recorded in the share premium account, net of direct issuance costs. Costs associated with the listing of shares
are expensed immediately,

1.17. Employee benefits

{a} Post-retiremant obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution schemes for the henefit of certain employees, The schemes are funded through
payments to insurance companies or trustee-administered funds at the contribution rates agreed with individual employees.
The Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions hava been paid. The contributions are recognised as an
employse benefit expense when they are due. There are no post-retirement benefits other than pensions.

(b) Share-based compensation

The fair value of equity settled share-based payment awards are calculated at grant date and recognised over the period in which the
employees become unconditionally entitled to the awards (the vesting period). The amount is recognised as personnel expenses in
the income statement, with a corresponding increase in equity. Further details of the valuation methodolagy is set out in Note 31.

The fair value of cash settled share-based payments is recognised as personnel expenses in the income statement with a
corresponding increase in fiabilitias over the vesting period. The liability is remeasured at each reporting date and at satﬁement date
based on the fair value of the options granted, with a coresponding adjustment to personnel expenses,
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1. Accounting policies continued
1.18. Taxation
Current income tax which is payable on taxable profits is recagnised as an expense in the period in which the profits arise.

Deferred tax is provided in full on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated finandial statements. Deferred tax is detemmined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the statement of finandial position date and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is
realised or the deferred tax liability is settfed.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities, and they
relate to taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or an different tax entities, when they intend o settle
aurrent tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and %abilities will be realised simultaneously.

Deferred tax assets are recognised where it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

1.19. Dividends

Final dividends on ordinary shares are recognised in equity in the period in which they are approved by shareholders. Interim dividends
on ordinary shares are recognised in equity in the periad in which they are paid.

2. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty
2.1, Judgements

The Group considers the COVID-19 outbresk to be a non-adjusting event occurring after the balance sheet date. Further information
in respect of this event is provided in Note 43. No other critical judgements have been identified.

2.2. Key sourcaes of estimation uncertainty

Estimations which could have a material impact on the Group’s finandial results and are therefore considered ta be key sources of
estimation uncertainty are outlined below. The potantial impact of COVID-19 has been considered in determining reasonably passible
changes in key sources of estimatfon uncertainty which may occur in the next 12 months.

2.2.1. impairment losses on loans and advances to customers

As discussed in Note 1.7 ECLs are calcuisted by multiplying thrae main components: the PD, EAD and LGD. These variables are
derived from intemally developed statistical models and historical data, adjusted to reflect forward-ocking information.

The determination of both the PD and LG require estimation which is discussed further below.

2.2.2, Probabllity of default {'PD")

As set out in Note 1.9 Exogenous, Maturity, Vintage {'EMV') modelling is used in the production of forward-looking lifetime PDs in the
calculation of ECLs. As the Group's performance data does not go back far enough to capture a full economic cydle, the proxy series of
the quarterly rates of write offs for UK unsecured lending data is used to build an economic response model {ERM") 1o incorporate the
affects of recession.

The portfolios for which external benchmark information represents a significant input into the measurement of ECL are Res! Estate
Finance, Asset Finance and Commercial Finance. The benchmarks used for all three portfalios are Standard & Poor’s Ratings and Bank
of England UK Possessions as proxy data for ERM.

With the exception of the Motor Finance and Retail Finance portfolios, sensitivity io reasonably possible changes in PD isnot
considered to result in material changes in the ECL allowance. A 10% change in the PD for Motor Finance would immediately impact
the ECL allowance by £2.0 miffion (2018: £1.8 million) and a 10% change in the PD for Retail Finance would immediately impact the ECL
allowance by £2.3 million (2018: £2.0 million).

The composition of the Retail Finance portfolio remains stable with minimal movement in PDs and the ECL allowance held for the
Business Finance, Consumer Morigages and Other portfolios remains low. Reasonably possible changes in the PD for these portfolios
are not considared 1o result in a material change in the ECL allowance.

2.2.3. Loss given default {LGD")
The Group’ policy for the determination of LGD is outfined in Note 1.9,

With the exception of the Motor Finance portfolic, the sensitivity of the ECL allowance to reasonably possible changes in the LGD is
not considered material. For the Motor Finance portfolio 2 20% change in the LGD is considered reasonably possible due to potential
difficuities in the vehicle collection process and reduced asset values brought about by COMD-19. A 20% change in the vehicle
recavery rate assumption element of the LGD for Motor Finance would impact the ECL altawance by £2.4 million (2018: £3,2 million).
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2. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty continued

During 2019, market factors caused used car prices to fall by more than seasonal norms over the summer months. The fall was
approximately 6% greater than expectations and increased expected credit losses for the year by £0. million.

2.2.4. Incorporation of forward-looking data

The Group incorporates forward-looking information into both its assessment of whether the credit risk of a financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition and its measurement of expected aredit loss by developing a number of potential
econornic scenarios and modelling expected credit fosses for each scenario. Further detail on this process is provided in Note 1.9,
Whilst not material and therefore not required by IAS 1, the Group has induded the disclosure below as it is considered useful to
readers of the Annual Report and Accounts.

The macroeconomic scenarios and weightings applied on adoption of IFRS 9 are summarised below:

Scenario Darivatian 2019 2018

Base case Derived from external consensus forecasts and used in the Group's strategic 5% 45%
planning and budgeting processes.

Benign case Assumes macroeconomic variables will move with a more positive trajectory 10% 10%
than the base case.

Stressed case Management’s assessment, based on historic data, of an adverse scenario that 20% 20%
could accur once every 7 to 8 years.

Deeper stress Based on the scenario used by the PRA for the H1 2019 ICAAP. This can be 5% 5%

found on the Bank of Engfand’s website: www.bankofengland.co.uk

Weightings applied to the macro econamic scenarios were reconfirmed at the January 2020 Assumptions Committee and remain
unchanged since December 2018,

The sensitivity of the ECL allowance to reasonably possible changes in macro-economic scenario weighting is presented below:

Incresse in stressed casa Incresse In deepes strass case

weighting by 5% and reduction in waighting by $% and reduction in

bata case basa case

019 M8 2019 2018

£million Erniliion £mifilon Emillion

Motor Finance 0.1 01 04 0.3
Retail Finance 02 0.1 0.7 08

The sensitivity is immaterial for ather lending praducts,

Were each of the macroeconomic scenarios 1o be applied 100%, rather than using the weightings set out above, the impact on ECL for
2019 would be as follows:

2019
Scanaric Impact Enmillion
Base case Decrease in provision of 23
Benign case Decrease in provision of 27
Stressed case Increase in provision of 4.2
Deeper stress Increase in provision of 18.6

2.2.5. Debt Management forecast collactions on ‘POCY debt

A +/-50% change in Debt Management forecast collections, which the Directors consider to be a reasonable possible change,

would increase or decrease Loans and advances to customers by £4.0 million respectively, resulting in a corresponding £4.0 million
increase or decrease in profit or loss. A similar change applied to the December 2018 position would result in an increase or decrease
to Loans and advances to customers of £3.5 million respectively, resulting in a corresponding £3.5 miilion increase or decrease in profit
or loss.

Given the improving quality of the Group’s loan books year-on-year, the Debt Management forecast collections have improved.

The year-on-year improvement resulted in an increase to Loans and advances to customers of £4.5 million, resulting in a corresponding
£4.5 million increase in profit or loss.
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3. Operating segments

The Group is organised into seven operating segments, which consist of the different products available, disclosed below:
Business Finance

1) Real Estate Finance: residential and commercial investment and development laans secured by UK real estate

2) Asset Finance: loans to smali and medium sized enterprises to acquire commerdial assets

3) Commarcial Finance: invoice discounting and invoice factoring

Consumer Finance

4) Motor Finance: hire puschase agreements secured against the vehidle being financed

5) Retail Finance: paint of sale unsecured finance for in-store and online retailers

&) Debt Management: debt collection

7) Residential mortgages for the self-employed, contract workers, those with complex income and those with a recently restored credit
history, sold via select mortgage intermediaries

Other

The ‘Other’ segment indudes other products, which are individually below the quantitative threshold for separate disclosure and fulfils
the requirement of IFRS 8.28 by reconciling operating segments to the amounts in the annual report.

Other indudes principally One8ill (the Group’s consumer bill management service, which has been dosed to new customers since
2009) and RentSmart (principally the funding and operation of finance leases through a disclosed agency agreement with
RentSrnart Limited).

Currently, the Debt Management and Cansumer Mortgages segments both fall below the quantitative threshold for separate
disclosure, but the Directors consider that they represent sufficiently distinct types of business to merit separate disclosure. Also since
the Group ceased new martgage operations, the Consumer Mortgages business is now managed as part of Consumer Finance,

so the prior year figures have been restated accordingly.

Management review these segments by looking at the income, size and growth rate of the loan books, impairments and customer
numbers, Except for these items no costs or balance sheet itemns are aflocated to the segments.

Met impairmeant

interest incoms Fasand  Revenue fram  logses on loans Laans snd
and m m ' amd ads to d to
£endllion £million mikion £nilllion Emifiion

31 December 2019
Real Estate Finance 479 1.0 489 a1 9622
Asset Finance 3.2 - iz 07 2.7
Commercial Finance 75 23 168 01 2517
Business Finance 58.6 103 689 0.9 12414
Retail Finance ) A1 356 747 19.8 4688.9
Motor Finance 48.7 1.0 497 13.8 3237
Debt Management 73 1.1 8.4 2.1 824
Consumer Mortgages 36 0.1 37 0.1 105.9
Consumer Finance 130.7 58 1365 3.6 1,200.9
Other 2.1 48 69 .1 76
191.4 20,9 212.3 32,6 2,450.1
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3. Operating segments continued

Net impairment

i commisten o emual st daniets s
income incorma custornes austomerns
Embllion Lmillion fmitiion ’ Emitlian

31 December 2018
Real Estate Finance 411 0.1 41.2 0.5 769.8
Asset Finance LX) - 66 22 42.8
Commercial Finance 55 7.9 134 - 194.7
Business Finance 53.2 8.0 61.2 2.7 10273
Retail Finance 58.7 4.1 628 19.3 597.0
Motor Finance 47.4 11 485 1.3 2764
Debt Management 6.1 09 70 - 323
Consumer Mortgages 15 - 15 0.z 847
Consumer Finance 1137 6.1 119.8 308 9204
Other 23 53 7.6 (1.1 11.2
169.2 19.4 188.6 324 2,028,

Funding costs and operating expenses are not aligned to operating segments for day-to-day management of the business, so they
cannot be allocated on a relisble basis. Accordingly, profit by operating segment has not been disclosed.

Ali of the Group's operations are conducted wholly within the United Kingdom and geographical information is therefore not presented.

4, Opaerating income

All itemns below arise from finandal instruments measured at amortised cost unless otherwise stated.

4.1 Net interest income

2019 2018
£miliian Emillion
Loans and advances to customers 189.4 167.4
Cash and balances at central banks 10 1.0
Debt securities 07 08
191.3 169.2
Derivative financial instruments measured et fair value through profit and loss
On financial instruments hedging assets in a qualifying hedge accounting relationship 0.1 -
Interest income and similar income 191.4 169.2
Deposits from customers {40.4) (32.8)
Due to banks {2.1) {1.5}
Subordinated fiabilities (3.4) (1.2
{459 {35.5)
Derivative financial instruments measured at fair value through profit and loss
Net expense on financial instruments hedging liabilities {0.1) -
Interest expaense and similar charges {46.0) {35.5)
Net interast income 145.4 133.7
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Financial Statements

Notes to the financial statements
continued

4. Operating income
4.2 Net fee and commission income

2019 2018
£miilion fmillion
Fee and disbursement income 17.5 16.3
Commission income 1.9 20
Other income 15 1.1
Fee and commission income 20.9 19.4
Other expenses (0.8) {1.5)
Fee and commission expense {0.8) {1.5)
Net fae and commission income 20.1 17.9

Fees and commissions income consists principally of the following:

» weekly and monthly fees from the OneBill product

+ associated insurance commissions and commissions earned on debt collection activities in DMS

* discounting, servica and arrangement fees in Commercial Finance
+ account management and administration fees from retailers in Retail Finance

Fee and commission expensas consist primarily of recovery fees payable in respect of Mator Finance and Debt Management.

5. Gains/losses from derivatives and hedge accounting
Group and Company

The Group holds interest rate swaps for risk mitigation purposes. For further information on the Group’s risk management strategy for
market risk refer to the Principal risks and uncertainties section of the Group's Strategic Report on page 40. No comparatives are
presented as the Group held no interest rate swaps during the prior year, Interest rate swaps are designated on initial recognition as
measured at fair value through profit and loss. The tables belaw provide an analysis of the notional amount and fair value of

derivatives held:

anrezsdio
calcutating hadge
inaffectvanass in
Hational Asscls Lishilities the period
Ermillion EmiBion Ernillion * £million

31 Decembar 2019
interest rate swaps designated as fair value hedges 987.7 0.8 {0.6) -
Interest accruals on interest rate swaps - 0.1 - -
987.7 0.9 {0.6) -
Notional Assals Uabilities
Emiion Emition Emillion

31 December 2019
In not maore than one year 2145 - {0.1)
In more than one year 7732 09 {0.5)
987.7 0.9 {0.6)

The notienal amount represents the amount on which payment flows are derived and does not represent amaunts at risk.

in otder to manage interest rate risk arising from fixed rate finandial instruments the Group reviews interest rate swaps requirements on a
monthly basis. The exposure from the portfolio frequently changes due to the origination of new instruments, contractual repayments and
early prepayments made in each period. As a result, the Group adopts a dynamic hedging strategy (sometimes referred to as ‘macro’ or
‘portfolio’ hedge} to hedge its expasure profile by closing and entering inta new swap agreements on a monthly basis, The Group
establishes the hedging ratio by matching the national of the derivatives with the principal of the porifolio being hedged.
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5. Gains/losses from derivatives and hedge accounting continued
The following table sets out details of the hedged exposures covered by the Group’s hedging strategies:

Accumulatad amoum of fair velue
Canrying amount of hedgad item adj on the hedged item
Change In faic
value of hedged
Hem for
inoffectiveness
assessment in
Assats Lishifities Aseats Liabilties Balancs Sheet line the period
Emililon £miflion E£miltion fmillian itermn Emillicon
31 December 2019
Interest rate fair value hedges
Loans and
. . sdvancasio
Fixed rate Real Estate Finance loans 2946.8 - {0.8) - axtomers -
.‘I,.‘?:ns and
fixed rate Motor Finance loans 100.1 - 0.2) ~ u'{;'.‘..’.',." -
Loans and
\ - advances tc
Fixed rate Retail Finance loans &5.0 - 0.1) - astomen -
Loans and
. advancasia
Fixed rate Consumer Mortgage loans 9.2 - - - asstomen -
Depoaits fram
Fixed rate customer deposits - 515.6 - 0.6 antomers -
Total 472.% 515.6 {0.9 0.6 -

The accumulated amount of fair value hedge adjustments remaining in the statement of financial position for hedged items that have
ceased to be adjusted for hedging gains and losses is £nil million,

Fair value gains and losses arising from derivatives and hedge accounting recognised in the Group income statement was fnil million.

Although the Group uses derivatives exclusively to hedge interest rate risk expasures, incoma statement volatility can still arise due to
hedge accounting ineffectiveness or because hedge accounting is not achievable. This arises from the application of accounting rules
which do not reflect the economic reality of the business. Where such volatility arises it will trend back 1o zero over tima.

All derivatives held by the Group have been highly effective in the period resulting in minimal hedge accounting ineffectiveness
recognised in the income statement, Future ineffectiveness may arise as a resuft of:

» differences between the expected and actual volume of prepayments, as the Group hedges to the expected repayment date taking
into account expected prepayments based on past experience

* hedging derivatives with a non-zero fair value at the date of initial designation

s differences in the timing of cash flows for the hedged itern and the hedging instrument

The foliowing table shows the impact of financial assets and financial liabilities relating to transactions where:

* there is an enforceable master netting agreement in place but the offset criteria are not otherwise satisfied, and
+ financial colfatera! is paid and recelved

Groas amount
reported an Master neiting Financial Mat amounts
balanon shaat gement Bateral  shier olfcatiing
£million Emillion £million £million
31 Dacember 2019
Derivative financial assets 0.9 {0.8) {0.3) -
Derivative financial liabilities 0.4) 0.6 {0.1) o.n

Master netting arrangements do not meet the criteria for offsetting in the statement of financial position. This is because the
arrangement creates an agreement for a right of set-off of recognised amounts which is enforceable only following an event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group or counterparties. Furthermore, the Group and its counterparties da not intend to settle on a
net basis or realise the assets and settle the liabilities simuftaneocusly.

Financlal collateral consists of cash settled, typically daily or weekly, to mitigate the credit risk on the fair value of derivatives.
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

6. Operating expenses

2019 018
£million £million
Staff costs, including those of Directors:
Wages and salaries 431 391
Sodial security costs 5.1 60
Pension costs 1.7 14
Share-based payment transactions 1.2 a8
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 17) 12 1.3
Depreciation of lease right-of-use assets (Note 18) 09 -
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 19) 19 1.8
Operating lease rentals 08 1.7
Other administrative expenses 383 324
Total operating expenses 94.2 84.5
As described in Note 3, operating expenses are not alighed to operating segments for day-to-day management of the business,
so they cannot ba allocated on a reliable basis.
Remuneration of the auditor and its associates, excluding VAT, was as follows:
2019 218
600 £000
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor for the audit of the Company's annual accounts 325 233
Fees payable to the Company's auditor for other services:
The audit of the Company’s subsidiaries, pursuant to legislation 30 37
Audit related assurance services - -
Other assurance services 57 95
Al other non-audit services 12 140
424 505

Other assurance services related to the half year review and profit certification.

All other non-audit services related to the Financial Services Compensation Scheme reporting haalth check {2018: the issue of the
subordinated liabilities, recovery plan suppart, review of share scheme documentation and Financial Services Compensation Scheme

reporting health check).
7. Average number of employees
2019 2018
Number Numbar
Directors 8 7
Management 157 88
Administration 814 766
979 861
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8. Income tax expense

2019 w18
genlion fmiion
Current taxation
Corporation tax charge — current yaar 70 73
Corporation tax charge — adjustments in respect of prior years .1 0.3
6.9 7.6
Deferrad taxation
Deferred tax charge — current year 0.7 1.0y
Deferred tax charge — adjustrnents in respact of prior years - (0.2)
0.7 (12
Income tax expense 7.6 6.4
Tax reconciliation
Profit before tax 387 347
Tax at 19.00% (2018 19.00%) 7.4 6.6
Permanent differences - -
Banking surcharge 0.1 03
Rate change on deferred tax assets 0.2 (0.6)
Prior pericd adjustments ©0.1) 0.1
Income tax expanse for the year 7.6 6.4

The Government has substantively enacted a reduction in the main rate of UK corporation tax from 19% to 17% (effective 1 April 2020).
However, on 17 March 2020, the Government legislated to retain the current rate of 19%. The Group is also subject to an 8% surcharge
on the profits of banking companies in excess of £25 million that is reflected in the 2019 tax charge and reconcdiliation.

9. Earnings per ordinary share
9.1 Basic

Basic earnings per ordinary share are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the parent by the weighted

average number of ordinary shares as follows:

2019

2018

Profit attributable to equity holders of the parent (Emillion)
Waighted average number of ordinary shares (number)

311

283

18,476,280 18,475,229

Earnings per share {pence}

168.3

153.2
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

9. Earnings per ordinary share continued
9.2 Diluted

Diluted earnings per ordinary share are calafated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the parent by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year, as noted above, as well as the number of dilutive share options in issue

during the year, as follows:

2019 2018
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 18,476,280 18,475,229
Number of dilutive shares in issue at the year-end 216,943 277,234

Fully diluted weightad average number of ordinary shares

18,693,223 18,752,463

Dilutive shares being based on:

Number of options outstanding at the year-end 598,065 511,704
Weighted average exercise price {pence) 528 478
Average share price during the period (pence) 1.390 1,489
Diluted earnings per share (pence) 1664 150.9
10. Dividends
2019 2018
£000 £000
2017 final dividend — 61 pence per share (paid May 2018) - 1.3
2018 interim dividend — 19 pence per share {paid September 2018) - 35
2018 final dividend — &4 pence per share (paid May 2019 11.8 -
2019 interim dividend - 20 pence per share (paid September 2019} 37 -
15.5 14.8

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for 2019. An interim dividend of 20 pence per share was paid on

27 September 2019, Total dividends for 2018 were 83 pence per share.
11. Loans and advances to banks

Group Graup Company
2019 018 2019 m8
Emiliion Emifion Fruilion Emilion
Placements with banks included in cash and cash equivalents (Note 32) 48.4 448 452 419

Moody's iong-term ratings are as follows:

Group Group Company Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
Emillion £milion Eilon Emilion
Al 38 1.2 34 1.1
A1*/A2 - 28.6 - 258
Baa2 395 - 365 -
Arbuthnot Latham & Co., Limited — No rating 5.1 50 5.1 50
48.4 44.8 45.2 41.92

None of the loans and advances to banks are either past due or impaired.

{ oans and advances to banks includes £9.1 million in relation to collateral held under credit support and similar agreements, with a

comesponding payable induded within other liabilities.
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12. Loans and advances to customers

Group Group Company Company

2019 2018 2019 2018

Emillion £mittion Emillion

Gross loans and advances 25107 2,096.0 24223 20489
Less: allowances for impairment on loans and advances (Note 14) {60.6) {67.1) (68.7) (68.8)

2,450,1 2,028.9 2,353.6 1,980.3

The fair value of loans and advances to customers is shown in Note 39, For a maturity profile of loans and advances to customers,
refer to Note 38.

Group and Company
At 31 December 2019 loans and advances to customers of £433.4 million (2018: £325.5 million) ware pre-positioned under the Bank of
Englands liquidity support operations and Term Funding Scheme, and were available for use as coltateral within the schemes.

The following lozns are secured upon real estate:

2019 2019 2008 2018

Losn balance Loan-tovalue Loan baiance Losn-towalue

£miliion % Emilion %

Real Estate Finance 9622 59% 7698 57%

Consumer Mortgages 105.9 56% 84.7 59%
1.,068.1 854.5

Under its credit policy, the Real Estate Finance business lends to a maximum loan-ta-value of 70% for investment loans and 60% for
residential development loans and up to 45% for pre-let commaercial davelopment loans (based on gross development value), and the
Consumer Mortgages business lends to a maximum of 90%.

All property valuations at loan inception, and the majority of development stage valuations, are performed by independent Chartered
Surveyors, who perform their work in accordance with the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors Valuation — Professional Standards.
Group

£2.0 miflion (2018: £1.2 million) of collateral is held from RentSmart, against loans of £7.2 million (2018: £10.8 million), which is not
recognised on the balance sheet. This is based upon the balance of customer receivables and expected new agreements during the
following month.

13. Finance lease receivables
Loans and advances to customers include finance lease receivables as follows:

Group Group

amition bl ralhon milion
Gross investment in finance lease receivables:
— No later than 1 year 1760 - 175.3 1714 168.7
—Later than t year and no later than 5 years 3386 326.9 3357 3220
— Later than 5 years - 0.2 - 0.2

5144 502.4 507.3 4909
Unearned future finance income on finance leases (144.6) (135.8) (1429 {132.8)
Net investment in finance leases 370.0 366.6 364.4 358.1
The net investment in finance leases may be analysed as follows:
- No later than 1 year 110.2 112.0 107.¢ 107.6
— Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years 25%.8 254.4 2574 250.3
— Later than 5 years - 0.2 ~ 0.2

370.0 366.6 3644 358.1
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Notes to the financial statements

continued

14. Allowances for impairment of loans and advances

Group
Not credit-impaired Cradit impaired
Sui{ucgc;:o Sumi Susl:].:: lac: Grosx lopns and
12-munth ECL lfetime ECL lifetime ECL  Total provk bl cover
£miifian £million Emitllon on £million %
31 December 2019
Business Finance:
Real Estate Finance 0.5 - 0.t 0.6 962.8 0.1%
Asset Finance - G.1 17 1.8 295 6.1%
Commercial Finance 0.3 - 06 0.9 252.6 0.4%
Consumer Finance:
Retail Finance 100 1.1 44 255 7144 3.6%
Motar Finance:
Voluntary termination provision 6.8 - - 6.8
Cther impairment a7 129 10.2 258
105 i29 10.2 338 357.3 9.4%
Debt Management - - {2.1) 2.1 80.3 {2.6%)
Consumer Mortgages 0.3 - - 0.3 106.2 0.3%
Other - - - - 74 0.0%
21.6 241 14.9 60.6 2,510.7 2.4%
Not craditimpaicad  Credit impained
Stage 1 Stage 2: Stage 3:
12*::.!:61]'?& mm;uw T im&;‘r:.mscl:t Total provision mmhc;:lﬁ Provision covar
Emflion Emillion £millian Emiflion £miltion %
31 December 2018
Business Finance:
Real Estate Finance 046 - - 0.4 7704 0.1%
Asset Finance 02 01 27 K1) 65.8 4.6%
Commaicial Finance 0.2 02 04 08 195.5 0.4%
Consumer Finance:
Retail Finance 89 9.8 43 230 6200 3.7%
Motor Finance:
Voluntary termination provision 40 - - 60
Other impairment 4.2 13.8 154 334
10.2 138 15.4 394 3158 12.5%
Debt Management - - - - 323 0.0%
Consumer Mortgages 02 - - 0.2 849 0.2%
Other - - 0.1 0.1 11.3 0.9%
20.3 239 229 67.1 2,096.0 3.2%
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14. Allowances for impairment of loans and advances continued
Total provisions above include expert credit judgements as follows:

2019 2014

fmifion
Specific overlays held against credit-impaired secured assets held within the Business Finance portfolio 05 1.4
Planned enhancements to LGD elements of the IFRS 9 models {0.8} 0.8
Management judgement in respect of PD elements of the IFRS @ madels 0.8 0.2)
POCI adjustment {see below) (2.1 -
Other ©.1) -
Expert cradit judgements over the Group's iIFRS 9 model results (3.3 20

The specific overlays have been estimated on an individual basis by assessing the recoverability and condition of the secured asset,
along with any other recoveries that may be made.

POCI adjustment

The Group's debt management business purchases credit-impaired loans from the Company and other unrelated third parties.
Under IFRS 9, these are dassified as Purchased and Originated Credit Impaired (POCI") loans, As a practical expedient, income on
POC! loans is initially recognised by applying the original credit-adjusted EIR to the expected future cash flows arising from the POCI
assets, The Group's accounting policy is to recognise POC! income by applying the original credit-adjusted EIR to the amortised cost
of the assets, Expected changes in cash flows since the date of purchase are recognised as an impairment gain or ioss in the income
staterment. At December 2019, improvements in credit quality resulted in a £2.1 million impairment gain.

Provisions included in ‘Other’ are in respect of various legacy products. This segment also includes loans of £7.2 million
{2018: £10.8 million) held in 5T Leasing Limited. The credit risk assodated with those loans is retained by its partner, RentSmart,
Accordingly, no provision is held against the RentSmart loans.

The impairment losses disclosed in the income statement can be analysed as follows:

H

Incurred loss individual provision: charge for impairment losses 28.1 0.4
Loans written off, net of amounts utilised ' 53 43
Recoveries of loans written off (0.8 (2.3)
3246 324
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Financlal Statements

Notes to the financial statements

continued

14, Allowances for impairment of loans and advances continued
Reconciliations of the opening to closing impairment allowance for losses on loans and advances are presented befow:

Not creditdmpairad Cradit impaired
Smi o gmi g
$2monthECL  Mfathne ECL  atime BCL Tots!
fmililon £million £rmiliton
At 1 January 2019 20.3 239 229 67.1
{Decrease)/increase due to change in credit risk
~Transfer to stage 2 (5.9 369 - 31.0
— Transfer to stage 3 - {23.5) 30.3 48
~Transfer to stage 1 15 (3.5 - {2.0}
Passage of time (10.1) %.8) 6.3) (23.2
New loans originated 17.2 - - 17.2
Derecognised loans (1.9 4.7 0.1 (. %))
Changes to model methodology Q7 1.2 (0‘2‘) 1.7
Changes to credit risk parameters {1.1} 0.4 .9) {0.4)
Other adjustments 39 - - 39
Charge to income statement 4.3 0.2 236 281
Allowance utilised in respect of write offs (3.0) - (31.8) {34.6)
31 Dacember 2019 21.6 24.1 14.9 60.6
Not credit-impaired Cradit impaired
Stage 1: Stage 2 Stage 2
e e Wana £Cs Total
£millian Emifion Emillion Emifiion
At 1 January 2018 18.9 249 279 71.7
{Decrease)/increase due to change in credit risk
— Transfer to stage 2 6.3} 330 - 267
~Transfer to stage 3 0.1 (23.4) 308 73
- Transfer to stage 1 1.5 3.2) - (1.7
Passage of time 6.7 (1.7 3.9 (12.3
New loans originated 17.4 - - 17.4
Derecognised loans {1.8) 4.0 - (5.8)
Changes to model methodology {1.3) 0.2) - {1.5)
Changes to credit risk parameters {1.2) {1.5) 0.6 {2.1)
Other adjustments 24 - - 24
Charge to income statement 39 1.0} 275 304
Allowance utilised in respect of write offs {2.5) - (32.5) {35.0)
31 December 2018 20.3 23.9 22,9 47.1

The table above has been prepared based on monthly movements in the ECL.

Passage of time represents the impact of accounts maturing through their contractual life and the associated reduction in PDs.

For stage 3 assets it represents the unwind of the discount applied in calculating the ECL

Changes to model methodology represents movements that have accurred due to enhancements made to the models during

the year.
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14. Allowances for impairment of loans and advances continued

Changes to credit risk parameters represents movements that have occurred due to the Group updating model inputs. This would
include the impact of, for example, updating the macro-economic scenarios applied to the mode's.

Other adjustments represents the movement in the Motor Finance voluntary termination provision,

Stage 1 write offs arise on Motor Finance accounts where borrowers have exercised their right to voluntarily terminate their agreements,

Interest income on foans dassified as impaired totalled £2.5 million (2018: £2.0 million).

A breakdown of the gross receivable by internal credit risk rating is shown below:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
£mittion £miltion £million £milllon
31 Decembar 2019
Business Finance:
Strong 2721 4.1 - 2762
Good 7704 47 10,1 785.2
Satisfactory 1263 235 03 150.1
Weak 10.2 15.1 8.1 334
1,179.0 47.4 18.5 1,244.9
Consumer Finance:
Goad 3171 58.3 34 3785
Satisfactory 3177 54.8 59 33784
Weak 2298 N3 133 3144
Consumer mortgages 105.4 03 63 106.2
Debt management - - 80.7 80.7
970.2 184.7 103.3 1,258.2
Internal credit risk rating is based on the mast recent aredit risk score of a customer.
Company
Not credit-impairad Cradit Impalred
Stage 1: Stagae i Stage 3:
12-':::{1..‘;;. m.ﬁs"ﬂi‘éé‘i mi.".;".i‘.“ Tl Yol provision “’“?.‘2.‘.'3‘.:5‘.‘3 Providon cover
lon £mion £miliion Emiflion £mifion %
31 December 2019
Business Finance:
Real Estate Finance 0.5 - 0.1 0.6 9528 0.1%
Asset Finance - 0.1 1.7 18 295 6.1%
Commercial Finance 0.3 - b 09 251.6 0.4%
Consumer Finance;
Retail Finance 10.5 11.6 45 264 7144 37%
Mator Finance:
Voluntary termination provision 68 - - &8
Other impairment 4.4 15.2 120 316
11.2 15.2 12.0 384 3573 10.7%
Consumer Mortgages 03 - -~ 0.3 1062 0.3%
Other - - 01 0.1 05 20.0%
228 26.9 19.0 &8.7 24223 2.8%
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Notes to the financial statements

continued

14. Allowances for impairment of loans and advances continued

Not eredit-impaired Credit impairad
Stage 1: Stage 22 Stage 3:
Su,::ahmoeéf |ifm:$ Matma QL Total provision o eesios  Prnision cover
Eriffion £million Emlllion £rnilion fmilion
31 December 2018
Business Finance:
Real Estate Finance 0.6 - - 0.6 770.4 0.1%
Asset Finance 0.2 0.1 27 30 5.8 4.6%
Commercial Finance 0.2 0.2 04 08 1914 0.4%
Consumer Finance:
Retail Finance 9.2 9.8 4.4 234 6200 3.8%
Motor Finance:
Voluntary termination provision 4.0 - - 60
Other impairment 4.3 14.2 160 us
10.3 14.2 16,0 40.5 3158 12.8%
Consumer Mortgages 0.2 - - 02 849 0.2%
Cther - - 0.1 01 0.6 167%
207 24.3 23.6 68.6 2,048.9 3.3%
Total provisions above include expert credit judgements as foliows:
2019 2018
Emillion fmikion
Specific overlays held against credit-impaired secured assets held within the Business Finance portfolio 0.5 1.4
Planned enhancements to LGD elements of the IFRS 9 models {0.8) 08
Management judgement in respect of PD elements of the IFRS ¢ models {0.8) 0.2
Other {0.1) -
Expert credit judgements aver the Company's IFRS 9 model results {1.2) 20

The specific averlays have been estimated on an individual basis by assessing the recoverability and condition of the secured asset,

along with any other recoveries that may be made.
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14. Allowances for impairment of loans and advances continued
Recondiliations of the opening to closing impairment allowance for losses on loans and advances are presented below:

SpubLLIBIng [RIDURUIY

Not craditsmpaired Cradh impaired
el Smaez oo
{2-month ECL Bfetime ECL #etlme ECL. Tatal
Eralllion Emitlion £raltlicn Emfilion
At 1 January 2019 207 24.3 236 68.6
{Decrease)/increase due to change in credit risk
— Transfer to stage 2 6.2) 391 - 329
~ Transfer to stage 3 - {24.6} 317 71
~ Transfer to stage 1 1.6 {3.8) - (2.0
Passage of time {10.3) (5.2) 4.0 (19.5)
New loans originated 18.4 - - 18.4
Derecognised loans (1.9 4.9 0.1 69
Changes to model methodology 07 1.2 0.2) 17
Changes to credit risk parametars (1.1 0.4 0.1) 0.6)
Other adjustients 39 - - KRY
Charge to income statement 5.1 246 273 350
Allowance utilised in respect of write offs 3.0 - 31.9 (34.9)
31 December 2019 22.8 26.9 19.0 68.7
Nat cradit-impairad Credit impaired
12-month ECL fatima ECL Ffatima ECL Total
fmillion Emiflion Emillion Emillicn
At 1 January 2018 19.0 251 28.2 723
{Decreasel/increase due to change in credit risk
- Transfer to stage 2 (6.5) 339 - 27.4
- Transfer to stage 3 0.1 24.0% 3N.b 75
- Transfer to stage 1 1.5 3.2 - (1.7}
Passage of time (8.7) {1.8) (4.6) {129
New loans originated 17.9 - - 179
Derecognised loans {1.8} {4.1} 28 (3.1)
Changes to model methodology {+.3) 0.2) - (1.5
Changes to credit risk parameters {1.2) 1.5 0.6 (2.1}
Other adjustments 2.4 - - 24
Charge to income statement 4.2 {0.7) 304 339
Allowanice utilised in respect of write offs (2.5} 0.1) (35.0) (37.6)
31 December 2018 20.7 24.3 236 8.6

The table above has been prepared based on monthly movements in the ECL. Stage 1 write offs arise an Motor accounts that have
exercised their right to voluntarily terminate their agreements.

Passage of time represents the impact of accounts maturing through their contractual life and the associated reduction in PDs.
For stage 3 assets it represents the unwind of the discount applied in calculating the ECL.

Changes to model methodology represents movements that have occurred due to enhancernents made to the models during
the year.
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

14. Allowances for impairment of loans and advances continued

Changes to credit risk parameters represents mavements that have occurred due to the Group updating model inputs. This would
include the impact of, for example, updating the macro economic scenarios applied to the models.

Other adjustments represents the movement in the Motor voluntary termination provision.
Stage 1 write offs arise on Motor accounts that have exerdsed their right to voluntarily terminate their agreements.

Interest income on loans dlassified as impaired totalled £1.8 million (2018: £1.1 million).

15. Debt securities

Group and Company

Debt securities of £25.0 million {2018: £149.7 million) represent UK Treasury Bills. The Company's intention is to hold them to maturity
and, therefore, they are stated in the statement of financial position at amortised cost. The decrease over the year is due to

Bills maturing,

All of the debt securities had a rating agency designation at 31 December 2019, based on Moody's long-term ratings of Aa2 (2018
Aa2). None of the debt securities are either past due or impaired.

16. Investment property

Group and Company
2019
£million
Fair value
At 1 January 2018 -
Additions 1.6
Transfer from property, plant and equipment 3.2
At 31 December 2019 4.8

During the year, the Group acquired Yorke House, Arleston Way, Shirley, Solihull, B90 4LH, half of which was let to third party occupiers.

Accordingly, 50% of this property, excluding land, is dassified as an investment property at its fair value. The Directors assessed the fair
value as being 50% of the original purchase price excluding land and VAT and stamp duty.

Also during the year, the Group vacated its portion of Secure Trust House, Boston Drive, Bourne End, SL8 5YS, and let the space to
one of its existing third party occupiers. Accordingly, this property was transferred from property, plant and equipment to investment
properties at its fair value. The Directors assessed the fair value 25 being the same as the valuation at December 2018 performed by
Knight Franik LLP. _

Investment properties are stated at fair value at December 2019. The Directors have assessed the value of the freehold property at the
year-end through comparison to current rental yields on similar properties in the same area,
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17. Property, plant and equipment
Group

Computer

Emilfion property srmillion £million
Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2018 90 - 17 20.7
Additions - 0.1 1.0 1.1
Disposals - - (2.0 (2.0}
Revaluation {0.8) - - {0.8)
At 31 December 2018 8.2 0.1 10.7 19.0
Additions 35 - 20 5.6
Disposals - - {4.5) {4.5)
Revaluation (1.1} - - 1.1
Transfer from intangible assets - - 0.2 02
Transfer to investment property (3.2) - - 3.2)
At 31 December 2019 7.4 0.1 8.4 15.9
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2018 - - 9.2} &2
Depreciation charge (Q.5) - (0.8} {1.3)
Disposals - - 20 20
Revaluation a5 - - 05
At 31 December 2018 - - {8.0) {8.0)
Depreciation charge ©.2) - {1.0} {1.2)
Disposals - - 45 4.5
Revaluation 0.2 - - 0.2
Transfer from intangible assets - - ©.1 ©.1)
At 31 December 2019 - - {4.6) (4.6)
Nat book amount
At 31 Dacember 2018 8.2 041 27 1.0
At 31 Decamber 2019 74 0.1 38 11.3
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Financial Statements

Notes to the financial statements
continued

17. Property, plant and equipment continued

Company
Computar
';r::m e:‘u;:n‘:; Total
Emition Emiltion £million
Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2018 4.6 10.1 14.7
Additions - 05 05
Dispasals - 2.0 (2.0}
At 31 December 2018 4.6 8.6 13.2
Additions 35 18 5.3
Disposals - 4.5) 4.5
Transfer from intangible assets - 0.2 0.2
Transfer to investment property (3.2) - 3.2
Revaluation (1.4) - 1.4
At 31 December 2019 3.5 6.1 2.6
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2078 - (8.6) 8.6)
Depreciation charge {0.4) {0.3) 0.7
Disposals - 20 20
Revaluation 01 - 0.1
At 31 December 2018 {0.3) {6.9) {/.2)
Depreciation charge 0.1 (0.6) 0.7
Disposals - 4.5 45
Transfer from intangible assets - 0.1 {o.1
Revaluation 0.4 - 04
At 31 December 2019 - (3.1} (3.1)
Net hook amount
At 31 December 2018 4.3 1.7 6.0
At 31 December 2019 3.5 3.0 6.5

The Group and Company's freehold properties comprise:

» the Ragistered Office of the Company, which is fully utilised for the Group's own purposes
& Yorke House, Arleston Way, Shirley B30 4LH, 50% of which is used for the Group's own purposes

* 75 and 26 Neptune Court, Vanguard Way, Cardiff CF24 5PJ, which is fully utilised for the Group's own purposes
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17. Property, plant and equipment continued

Freehold properties are stated at fair value as at December 2019, The Directars have assessed the value of the freehold property at the
year-end through comparison to current rental yields on similar properties in the same area, which resulted in the following
revaluation movements:

Geoup Group Company Company

2019 2018 2019 2018

£rniliion fmillion £mdilion fmiffion

Revaluation surpluses recognised in other comprehensive income 0.2 0.3 0.1 01
Revaluation deficit recognised in the income statement {1.1} - - -

The revaluation deficit arose from stamp duty and irrecoverable VAT incurred on the acquisition of a freehold property during the year.

The canying value of freehold land which is included in the total carrying value of freehold land and buildings and which is not
depredated is £1.5 million (2018: £1.9 million).

The historical cost of freehold property induded at valuation is as follows:

ot “om CThw o O
) £million fenillion £million Emiflion
Cost 68 7.9 9.2 41
Depreciation 1.8) (1.6} 0.3) {0.2)
Net book value 5.2 6.3 8.9 3.9
18. Leasing right-of-use assets
Group
Lassahold Leased motor

property wehidas Total

fmiblon Emiltian Emillian
Cost
On transition at 1 January 2019 4.2 03 45
At 31 December 2019 4.2 0.3 4.5
Accumulated depredation
Depreciation charge {0.7) 0.2 09
At 31 December 2019 (0.7} (0.2) 0.9}
Net book amount
At 31 December 2019 3.5 0.1 3.6
Company

Laasehold Leasad motor

property vehides Total

Lrnillion fmilkon Emilfion
Cost
On transition at 1 January 2019 29 0.2 31
At 31 December 2019 2.9 0.2 3.1
Accumulated depreciation
Depreciation charge 05 01 046
At 31 December 2019 _ ' 0.5 0.1 0.6
Net book amount
At 31 December 2019 24 0.1 25
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19. Intangible assets

Group
Campuster Other
Goodwil iy gible assecs Totat
froillion £miion Emillion fmillion
Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2018 10 16.2 23 19.5
Additions - 14 - 14
Disposals - {0.6) 0.1} 0.7)
At 31 December 2018 1.0 17.0 2.2 20.2
Additions - 1.3 - 1.1
Transfers to property, plant and equiprent - 0.2 - 0.2
Disposals - {1.2) - {1.2)
At 31 Decamber 2019 1.0 16.7 2,2 19.9
Accumulated amartisation
At 1 January 2018 - 79 (12 ©.1)
Amortisation charge - (1.6) 0.2) {1.8)
Disposals - 0.6 - 0.4
At 31 December 2018 - 8.9) (1.4) {10.3)
Amortisation charge - {1.7) 0.2 1.9
Transfers to property, plant and equipment - Q.1 - 01
Disposals - 1.2 - 1.2
At 31 December 2019 o (9.3} {1.6) 10.9
Net book amount
At 31 December 2018 1.0 8.1 0.8 2.9
At 31 Decembar 2019 1.0 7.4 0.6 9.0
Goodwill above relates to the following cash generating units, which are part of the Retail Finance operating segment:
2019 2018
Emillion fmiflion
Music business 3 0.3
Vi2 07 0.7
Total 1.0 1.0

The recoverable amount of these cash generating units are determined on a value in use caleutation which uses cash flow projections
based on financial forecasts covering a three-year period, and a discount rate of 8% {2018: 8%). Cash flow projections during the
forecast period are based on the expected rate of new business, A zero grewth based scenario is also considered. The Directors
believe that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions on which recoverable amount is based would not cause the
aggregate carrying amount to exceed the aggragate recoverable amount of the cash generating unit.

Other intangible assets were recognised as part of the V12 Finance Group acquisition. These were recorded at fair value, and are
being amortised on a straight-line basis as follows:

Yeurs
{T system 5
Distribution channel 10
Brand name 5
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19. Intangible assets continued

Company
Computer
Goadval soltware Total
Emvlion Emilion Emilion

Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2018 03 123 12,6
Additions - 1.3 1.3
Disposals - {0.7) {0.7)
At 31 Decamber 2018 0.3 12.9 13.2
Additions - 1.0 1.0
Transfers to property, plant and equipment - 0.2 {0.2)
Disposals - {1.3) {1.3)
At 31 December 2019 0.3 12.4 12,7
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2018 - 4.1 4.1}
Ameortisation charge - {1.4) (1.8}
Disposals - 0.6 0.6
At 31 December 2018 - {5.1) {5.1)
Amortisation charge 7 - (1.6) (1.6)
Transfers to property, plant and equipment - 0.1 0.1
Disposals -~ 1.3 1.3
At 31 December 2019 - {5.3) (5.3)
Net book amount
At 31 December 2018 0.3 7.8 8.1
At 31 December 2019 0.3 71 7.4

Goodwill above relates to the music business cash generating unit, which is part of the Retaif Finance operating segment.
The recoverable amount is determined on the same basis as for the Group.
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

20. Investments

Company

Enillicn
Cost and net book value
At 1 January 2018 37
Equity contributions to subsidiaries in respect of share options 0.2
At 31 December 2018 3.9
Equity contributions to subsidiaries in respect of share options 0.2
At 31 December 2019 4.1

Shares in subsidiary undertakings of Secure Trust Bank PLC at 31 Decembaer 2019 are stated at cost less any provision for impairment.
All subsidiary undertakings are unlisted and none are banking institutions. All are 100% owned by the Company. The subsidiary
undertakings were all incorporated in the UK and wholly owned via ordinary shares. All subsidiary undertakings are Induded in the
consolidated financial staterents and have an accounting reference date of 31 December.

Details are as follows:

Principal wciivity
Owned directly
Debt Managers (Services) Limited Debt collection company
Secure Homes Services Limited Property rental
STB Leasing Limited Leasing
V12 Finance Group Limited Holding company
Owned indirectly via intermediate holding companies
V12 Personal Finance Lirited Dormant
V12 Retail Finance Limited Sourcing and servicing of unsecured loans

The registered office of the Company, and all subsidiary undertakings, is One Arleston Way, Shirley, Solihull, West Midlands 890 4LH.

Secure Homes Services Limited, STB Leasing Limited and V12 Perscnal Finance Limited are exempt from the requirements of the
Companies Act 2004 relating to the audit of individual accounts by virtue of s479A, and the Company has given guarantees
accordingly under s479C in respect of the year ended 31 December 2019.
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21. Deferred taxation

Gots ooia g 4 B
£midlion Ermillion £emillian E£million
Deferred tax assets:
Other short-term timing differences 7.5 79 81 78
Deferred tax assets 7.5 7.9 8.1 7.8
Defarred tax assets:
Prior period closing 79 0.6 78 046
Tax on [FRS ¢ transition adjustment - 6.3 - 64
Tax on IFRS 16 transition adjustment 02 - 0.2 -
At 1 January 8.1 &9 8.0 70
Income statement ©.7) 1.2 {0.2) 11
Other comprahensive incoms 0.1 0.2 0.3 {0.3)
At 31 December 75 7.9 8.1 7.8

The Government substantively enacted a reduction in the main rate of UK corporation tax from 19% to 17% (effective 1 April 2020),
However, on 17 March 2020, the Government legislated to retain the current rate of 193%. The Group is also subject to an 8% surcharge
an the profits of banking companies in excess of £25 million that is reflected in the 2019 tax charge and reconciliation. Deferred tax has
baen calculated based on the enacted rate of 17.5% (being an average of the rate of 19% to March 2020 and 17% thereafter) to the
extent that the refated temparary differences are expacted to reverse in future periods, and is recognised on the basis that future
taxable profits are in excess of the profits arising from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences. The potential effect of the
rate remaining at 19% would be to increase deferred tax assets by £0.7 million. A deferred tax asset was recognised on the IFRS 9
transition adjustment on 1 January 2018 and the current year credit includes a reassessment of the rates at which it is projected to

reverse over the period to 31 December 2027.

22, Other assets

Other receivables

Amounts due from related companies
Cloud software development prepayment
Other prepayments and accrued income

Group Groug Company Company
20ty ms 2019 018
Fralillon Emillion £million Ernillion
52 14.2 a5 161

- - 885 445

64 - 64 -
5.7 62 44 5.0
17.3 22.4 103.8 65.6

Cloud software development costs of £6.4 million that do not meet the intangible asset recognition criteria are included within other
prepaymants and accruad income, The costs principally relate to the Groups Motor Transformation Programme, and once the
software comes into use will be expensed to the income statement over the useful economic life of the software.
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23. Due to banks
ot T Soin
Emillian £milbon £million
Amounts due to other credit institutions 308.0 2530 308.0 263.0
Accrued interest 05 05 05 05
308.5 263.5 308.5 2635
24. Deposits from customers
Group and Company
Exmion fvaion
Current/demand accounts 226 14.5
Term deposits 1,959.3 1,833.2
Individual savings accounts 384 -
2,020.3 1,847.7
25. Lease liabilities
Group
2019
Erillion
On transition at 1 January 2019 55
Payments (1.1)
Interest expanse 0.1
4.5
Lease liabilities — Gross
—No later than one year 10
- Later than one year and no later than five years 39
49
Less: Future finance expense {0.4)
4.5
Lease liabilities — Net
— No later than one yaar 09
— Later than one year and no later than five years a6
4.5
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25. Lease liabilities continued

Company
2019
Emifion
On transition at 1 January 2019 40
Payments (0.8)
Interest expense 0.1
3.3
Lease liabilities ~ Gross
- Ne later than one year 0.7
— Later than one year and no later than five years 29
346
Less: Future finance expense 0.3}
Lease liabilities — Net a3
Lease liabilities — Gross
- No later than one year 07
- Later than one year and no later than five years 26
33
26. Other liabilities
Gots T A 7 S,
frnflion £miion £mihan Emifiion
Other payables 272 258 255 228
Amounts due to related companies - - 55 14.1
Accruals and deferred income 137 14.3 11.0 12.2
40.9 40.1 42.0 49.1
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27. Provisions for liabilities and charges

Group and Company
ECL aliowanca on
izen
redress commitments Fraud Totsé
Emillion Emillion £million £mikion
Balance at 1 January 2018 1.2 03 02 1.7
(Credited)/charged to income statement 0.9 0.1 {0.1) {0.4)
Balance at 31 December 2018 0.8 0.4 0.1 1.3
Credited to income statement 0.8) - - {0.6)
Balanece at 31 December 2019 0.2 0.4 0.1 0.7

Customer redress provision

The Group provides for its best estimate of redress payable in respect of outstanding claims relating to historical sales of accident,
sickness and unemployment insurance, by considering the likely future uphald rate for claims, in the cantext of confirmed issues and
historical experience, The accuracy of these estimates would be affected, were there to be a significant change in the incidence of
claims upheld by the Financial Ombudsman Service.

The Financial Conduct Authority announced a deadline for making these customer redress claims, which gave consumers until
29 August 2019 to make a claim, so no further daims were accapted after this date,

Fraud
The fraud provision relates to cases where the Bank has reasonable evidence of suspected fraud, but further investigation is required
before the cases can be dealt with appropriately.

ECL allowance on loan commitments

in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 9 the Group holds an ECL allowance against loans it has committed 1o land but have not
yet been drawn. For the Real Estate Finance and Commerdial Finanee portfolios, where a loan fadility is agreed that indudes both
drawn and undrawn elements and the Group cannot idenitify the ECL on the loan commitment separately, a combined loss allowance
for both drawn and undrawn components of the loan is presented as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the drawn
component, with any excess of the loss allowance over the gross drawn amount presented as a provision. At 3t December 2019 no
provision was held for losses in excess of drawn amounts.

The Directors expect alt provisions to be fully utilised within the next 12 months.
28. Subordinated liabilities

2019 2018

£imiition Emifion

Notes at par value 500 50.0
Unamortised issue costs {0.6) {0.8)
Accrued interest 1.2 1.2
50.4 50.4

Subordinated liabilities comprises two tranches of 6.75% Fixed Rate Reset Callable Subordinated Notes due 2028 ('the Notes} issued
in 2018, The Notes mature in 2028 but the issuer may at its discretion redeem the Notes in 2023. The Notes are listed on the Global
Exchange Market of the Irish Stack Exchange pic trading as Euronaxt Dublin,

The Notes are treated as Tier 2 regulatory capital which is used to support the continuing growth of the business taking into account
increases in regulatory capital buffers. The issue of the Notes is part of an ongoing programme to diversily and expand the capital
base of the Group.
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29. Contingent liabilities and commitments
29.1 Contingent liabilities

As a financial services business, the Group must comply with numerous laws and regutations, which significantly affect the way it does
business, Whilst the Group believas there are no material unidentified areas of faifure to comply with these laws and regulations,

there can be no guarantee that all issues have been identified.
29.2 Capital commitments

At 31 December 2019, the Group had no capital commitments (2018: £nil).

The Company had no capital commitraents (2018: £nil}.

29.3 Credit commitments
Commitments to extend credit to customers were as follows:

Group

Group
a8

Company
2019

Company

2019 2018
Emitfion £million £rmilkon £miflian
Business Finance
Real Estate Finance 120.9 1734 1209 1734
Commercial Finance 48.7 45.4 487 45.6
Consumer Finance
Retail Finance 332 28.3 332 28.3
Motor Finance 05 0.5 05 0.5
Consumer Mortgages - 15.3 - 153
203.3 263.1 203.3 2631
30. Share capital
Number Emillion
At 1 January 2018 and 31 December 2018 18,475,229 7.4
Issued during 2019 2,21 -
At 31 December 2019 18,477,500 7.4

Share capital comprises ordinaty shares with a par value of 40 pence each.
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31. Share-based payments

At 31 December 2019, the Group had five share-based payment schemes in operation:
* Share option Scheme

» 2017 long term incentive plan

& 2017 sharesave plan

* 2017 deferred banus plan

*» ‘Phantom’ share option scheme

A summary of the movements in share options during the year is set out below:

average arage
Vestect exarcize price  axercisa price
Forfalted and exercizable of opicne of options
ispsed and Qutstanding at at autstanding a1 outstanding st
Outstanding at  Granted during cancalled during Exerclyed 21 Dacamber 31 December 31 December 31 Dacember
1 January 2019 tha yoar the year  during the yesr K19 019 Vesting F. 1] 2015
Numbaer Numbar Number Number Number HNumber dates £ £
Equity settied
Share option scheme 177,084 - (35,417) — 141,667 141,667 2016 7120 7.20
2017 long term incentive
plan 161,597 134,046 (32,549 - 263,004 - 2020-2024 0,40 0.40
2017 sharesave plan 145,009 65,789 (46,284} 872) 163,642 - 2020-2022 13.39 12.28
2017 deferred bonus
plan 14,690 28,775 (12,404) {1,399 29,662 3497 2019-2022 040 040
498,380 228,610 (126,4654) (2,271) 598,065 145164 6.60 5.26
Cash settled
‘Phantom’ share option
scheme 312,917 - {31,250) - 281,647 281,667 2019 25.00
Group Grovp Campany Campany
2019 2018 010 2018
£milion Ernitiion Emillon Emilion
Expense incurred in relation to share-based payments 1.2 0.8 1.0 0.6

31.1. Share option scheme
The share option scheme was established on 17 October 2011,

On 2 Novernber 2011, 934,998 share options were granted at an exercise price of £7.20 per share, entitling three Directors and certain
senior employees to purchase shares in the Company. Approximately half of the share options vested and were exerdised on

2 November 2014, with the remainder vesting and becoming exardisable on 2 November 2016, The bulk of the remainder were
exercised on 7 November 2014, and 35,417 were cancelled during 2019 leaving 141,667 share options unexercised. Vested options are
exerdisable for a period of 10 years from the date of grant.

Tha intrinsic value of unexercised options is £1.2 million {2018: £0.8 million).
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31. Share-based payments continued
31.2. Long term incentive plan
The long term incentive plan was established on 3 May 2017.

Awards under this plan are subject to three performance conditions, which are based on:

+ annual compound growth in earnings per share {EPS") over the performance period

« rank of the total shareholder return [TSR") over the performance period against the TSR of the comparator group of peer
group companies

* maintaining appropriate risk practices over the performance period reflecting the fonger-term strategic risk management of
the Group

The awards will vest on the date on which the Board determines that these conditions have been met.

The awards have a performance term of three years. Those awards granted to the Executive Directors are subject to a holding period
of two years following the vesting date. Those awards not subject to a holding period will be released to the participants on the
vesting date, Vested options are exerdsable for a period of 10 years from the date of grant.

The following awards have been granted under the plan, entitling two Executive Directors and certain other key senior employees to
purchase shares in the Company:

Subject to a Subject to no

holding period  holding period Total

Number Number Number

At 1 January 2018 33467 34,525 67,992
Granted 30,429 64,075 94,504
Forfeited, lapsed and cancelied - {899) (899
At 31 December 2018 63,896 97,70 161,597
Granted 54,312 79,734 134,046
Forfeited, lapsed and cancelled {32,549) - (32,54%)
At 31 December 2019 85,659 177,A35 263,094

The original grant date valuation was determined using a Black-Scholes model for the EPS and risk management tranches, and a
Monte Carlo model for the TSR tranche. Measurement inputs and assumptions used for the grant date valuation were as follows:
Granted 2019 Graned 2019 Gunted 2018 Granted 2018

tos Subject to na Subjecttoa Subject fono
holding periad ~ holding perind ~ holdingperiod  holding perlod

Share price at grant date £15.20 £15.20 £20.85 £20.85
Exarcise price £0.40 £040 £0.40 £0.40
Expected dividend yield 6.18% 6.18% 4.05% 4.05%
Expected stock price volatility 25.9% 29.1% 25.2% 269%
Risk free interest rate 0.86% 0.72% 1.15% 0.89%
Average expected life {yaars) 5.00 3.00 5.00 3.00
Discount for lack of marketability during holding period 10.0% N/A 100% N/A
Original grant date valuation £9.02 £10.48 £14.26 £15.47
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31. Share-based payments continued

31.3. Sharesave plan
The sharesave plan was established on 3 May 2017.

This plan allows alt employees with more than 12 months® service to save for three years, subject to a maximum monthly amount of
£500, with the option to buy shares in Secure Trust Bank PLC when the plan matures. Participants cannot change the amount that they
have agreed ta save aach manth but they can suspend payments for up to six months. Participants can withdraw their savings at any
time but, if they do this before the completion date, they lose the option to buy shares at the Option Price, and if participants cease to
hold plan-relatad employment before the third anniversary of the grant date, then the options are also lost. The aptions erdinarily vest
approximately three years after grant date, and are exerdsable for a peried of six months following vesting.

The original grant date valuation was determined using a Black-Scholes model. Measurement inputs and assumptions used were
as follows:

Awsrded during  Avarded during
2009

018
Share price at grant date £13.00 £17.53
Exercise price £10.64 £14,03
Expected stock price volatility 28.34% 28.14%
Expected dividend yield 8.77% 4.57%
Risk free interest rate 0.46% 0.89%
Average expected life {years) 3.00 334
Original grant date valuation £2.10 £3.67

31.4. Deferred bonus plan

The deferred bonus plan was established on 3 May 2017.

Since 2017, 50% of the bonus earned by two Executive Directors, amounting to £450,000 (2018: £280,000), is deferred into shares under
the deferred bonus plan. The awards vest in three equal tranches after one, two and three years following deferral. One of the
Executive Directors resigned during the year, leaving only one Executive Director remaining in the plan, Accordingly, the following
awards remain outstanding under the plan, entitling one Executive Director to purchase shares in the Company:

Awards grantedd  Awarda gramted  Awards granted
Vesting sfter Vesting alter Vasting after

o e e
At 1 January 2018 - - - -
Granted 4,896 4,896 4,898 14,690
At 31 December 2018 4,896 4,896 4,898 14,690
Granted 2,571 9,591 9,593 28,775
Exercised (1,399} - - (1,399
Cancelled (3.202) (4,601) (4,601} {12,404)
At 1 December 2019 9,886 9,886 9,890 29,662
Vested and exercisable 3,497 - - 3,497
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31. Share-based payments continued
The original grant date valuation was determined using a Black-5choles model. Measurement inputs and assumptions used were
as follows:

Granted 2019 Granted 2019 Granted 2019 Granted 2018 Grantad 2018 Granted 2018
Awards vasting  Awards vasting  Awards vesting  Awards vesting  Awardsvesting  Awsrds vesting
after ona year  after two years after three years after one yoar  aftertwoyears  after thiee years

Share price at grant date £11.90 £11.90 £11.90 £20.85 £20.85 £20.85
Exercise price £0.40 £0.40 £0.40 £0.40 £0.40 £0.40
Expected dividend yield 7.06% 7.06% 7.06% 396% 3.96% 396%
Expected stock price volatility 27.34% 24.79% 28.82% 25.25% 30.90% 27.68%
Risk free interest rate 0.74% 0.74% 0.76% 0.69% 0.77% 0.82%
Average expected life {years) 1.00 2,00 3.00 1.00 200 300
Original grant date valuation £10.69 £9.94 £9.59 £19.64 £18.87 £18.12

31.5. Cash settled share-based payments

On 16 March 2015, a four-year ‘phantom’ share option scheme was established in order to provide effective long-term incentive to
senior managemeant of the Group. Under the schame, no actual shares would be isstied by the Company, but those granted awards
under the schema would be entitled to a cash payment. The amount of the award is calculated by reference to the increase in the
value of an ordinary share in the Company over an initial value set at £25 per ordinary share, being the price at which the shares
resutting from the exercise of the first tranche of shara options under the share option scheme were sold in November 2014

As at 31 December 2019, 281,667 (2018: 312,917) share options remained outstanding. The options vested during 2019 and are
exercisable for a period of 10 years after grant date.

As at 31 December 2019, the estimated fair value has been prepared using the Black-Scholes model. Measurement inputs and
assumptions used were as follows:

2019 2018

Share price at reporting date £16.00 £11.80

Expected stock price volatility 30.34% 24.76%

Expected dividend yield 5.5% 7.12%

Risk free interest rate i 0.60% 0.76%

Average expected life (years) 2.60 an

Fair value ) £0.53 £0.05
This resulted in the following being recognised in the financial statements:

2019 2018

£mililan Emilflian

Liability 0.2 0.2

The fair value at December 2018 was not used to calculate the lability, as management conduded that it was appropriate to hold the
accrual at the same level as 2017 because the options can be exercised at any point during the seven years after vesting, and given
high levels of share price volatility at that date.

For each award granted during the year, expected volatility was determined by calculating the historical volatility of the Group's share
price over the period equivalent to the expected term of the options being granted. The expected life used in the model has been
adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions,

and behavioural considerations.
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32. Cash flow statement

32.1. Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statemant of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following balances with less than three
months’ maturity from the date of acquisition,

Group Group Company Company

2019 2018 20109 018

£million £million £mifion £mithon

Cash and balances at central banks 105.8 169.7 105.8 169.7
[.oans and advances to banks (Note 11) 48.4 448 452 419
154.2 2145 151.0 211.6

32.2. Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

All changes in liabilities arising from financing activities arise from changes in cash flows, apart from £0.1 million of lease liabilities
interest expense, as shown in Note 25, and £0.2 million amertisation of issue costs on subordinated liabilities, as shown in Note 28,

33. Financial risk management strategy

By their nature, the Group’s activities are principally related to the use of finandal instruments. The Directors and senior management
of the Grotp have formally adopted a Group risk appetite statement which sets out the Board's attituda to risk and internal controls,
Key risks identified by the Directors are formally reviewed and assessed at least once a year by the Board, in addition to which key
business risks are identified, evaluated and managed by operating ranagement on an ongoing basis by means of procedures such as
physical contrals, credit and other authorisation limits and segregation of duties, The Board also receives regular reports on any risk
matters that need to be brought to its attention. Significant risks identified in connection with the development of new activities are
subject to consideration by the Board. There are budgeting procedures in place and reports are presented regularly to the Board
detailing the results of each principal business unit, variances against budget and prior year, and other performanca data.

A more detailed description of the risk governance structure is contained in the Strategic Report beginning on page 2.

The principal financial risks inherent in the Group's business are credit risk {Note 34), market risk (Note 35), liquidity risk (Note 34},
and capital risk (Note 37).

34. Creditrisk

The Company and Group take on exposure to aredit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay amounts in full
when due, A formal Credit Risk Policy has been agreed by the Boart whilst credit risk is monitored on a monthly basis by the Credit
Risk Committees which review performance of key portfolios including new business volumes, collections performance, provisioning
levels and provisioning methodoloay. A credit risk department within the Group monitors adherence to the Credit Risk Policy,
implements risk tools to manage credit risk and evaluates business opportunities and thes risks and opportunities they present to the
Group whilst ensuring the performance of the Group's existing portfalias is in line with expectations.

The Group structures the lavels of credit risk it undertakes by placing fimits on the amount of risk accepted in relation to individual
borrowers or groups of borrowers. Such risks are monitored on a revolving basis and subject to an annuatl or more frequent review.

The limits on the level of credit risk are approved periodically by the Board of Directors and actual exposures against limits
monitored daily.

Impairment provisions are provided for expected credit lossas at the statement of financial position date. Significant changes in the
economy could result in losses that are different from those providad for at the statement of finandal position date.

Management therefore carefully manages the Group's exposures to credit risk as it considers this to be the maost significant risk to
the business,

Exposure to Consumer Finance and Consumer Mortgages credit risk is managed through regular analysis of the ability of borrowers
and potential borrowers to meet interest and capital repayment obligations and by changing lending limits where appropriate.
Exposure to cradit risk for thase portfolios Is also managed in part by obtaining collateral, principally motor vehicles on Motor Finance
loans, residential property on Consumer Mortgages and a credit support batance provided by RentSmart, The assets undergo a
scoring process to mitigate risk and are monitored by the Board.
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34, Credit risk continued

For Real Estate Finance and Commercial Finance, lending decisions are made on an individual transaction basis, using expert

judgement and assessment against criteria set out in the lending policies. Asset Finance lending is outsourced ta Haydodk, who
operate in line with the Group's credit policies and risk appetite, and is currently closed to new business. The loans are secured against
the assets lent against {reaf estate, trade receivables and commercial plant and equipment, respectively). Disclosures reflating to
collateral and arrears on loans and acvances to custorners are disclosed in Notes 12 and 14 respectively,

The Board monitors the ratings of the counterparties in relation to the Group’s loans and advances to banks. Disdosures of these at
the year-and are contained in Note 34.1, There is no direct exposure to the Eurozone and peripheral Eurozone countries.

Group

With the exception of loans and advances to customars, the carrying amount of financial assets represents the Group's maximum
exposure to credit risk, The Group's maximum exposure 1o credit risk for loans and advances to customers by portfolio and IFRS ¢
stage without taking account of any coliateral held or other credit enhancements attached was as follows;

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
<= 30 days > 30 days Excl. purchased Purchased
Emillion P;::ﬂfi:: PE.:II‘I::: &n&:‘ﬂl M“m ”.d“w.'t:: hn:i: £million

31 December 2019
Business Finance

Real Estate Finance 210.2 337 28 365 161 - 16.1 9528

Asset Finance 238 kY 0.3 9 1.8 - 1.8 295

Commercial Finance 245.0 7.0 - 70 0.6 - 05 252.6
Consumer Finance

Retail Finance 624.1 80.3 4.5 848 55 - 55 7144

Motor Finance 240.5 949 27 9.6 17.2 - 17.2 3573

Debt Management - - - - 10.3 70.0 80,3 803

Consumer Mortgages 105.4 - 03 03 0.3 - 0.3 106,2
Other 7.6 - - - - - - 74
Total drawn exposure 2,156.8 2215 10.6 2321 51.8 70.0 121.8 2,510.7
Off balance sheet

Loan commitments 203.3 - - - - - - 2033
Total gross exposure 2,3560.1 221.5 10.6 232.1 51.8 70.0 121.8 2,140
Less:
Impairment aliowance {21.4} (12.8) 4.3 (24.1) (17.0) 2.t {148} {60.6)
Provision for loan
commitments (0.4) - - - - - - {0.4)
Total net exposure 2,338.1 20%.7 6.3 208.0 348 72.1 106.9 2,653.0
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34. Credit risk continued

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage3 Total
<= 30 days > 30 dayx Exdl. purchased Furchased
Emiion o m; ﬁnT;: -l f;ilha; emiben Emillion

31 December 2018
Business Finance

Real Estate Finance 7233 471 - 47.1 - - - 7704

Asset Finance 55.6 45 05 7.0 3.z - 32 658

Commaercial Finance 1846.1 88 - a8 0.6 - 0.6 1955
Consumer Finance

Retail Finance 537.1 74.1 39 7380 49 - 49 620.0

Motor Finance 200.2 927 24 95.1 20.5 - 205 3158

Debt Management - - - - 2.3 230 323 323

Cansumer Mortgages 84.9 - ~ - -~ - - 84.9
Other 1.3 - - - - - - 11.3
Total drawn exposure 1.798.5 229.2 6.8 236.0 38.5 23,0 61.5 2,0946.0
Off balance sheet

Loan commitments 2631 - - - - - -~ 2631
Total gross exposure 2,061.8 229.2 6.8 235.0 38.5 23.0 81.5 2,359.1
Less:
Impairment allowance (20.3) (19.9) {4.0) (239 (22.9 - (22.9) (67.1)
Provision for loan
commitments ! 0.4) - -~ - - — - {0.4)
Total net exposure 2,040.9 20%.3 2.8 21241 15.6 23.0 38.6 2,291.6

A reconciliation of opening to closing impairment allowance for losses on loans and advances ta customers is presented in Note 14.
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'34. Credit risk continued

Company

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk for loans and advances to customers by portfolio and IFRS 9 stage without taking
account of any collateral held or other aredit enhancements attached was as follows:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage3 Total
EE R o oo odlm o
£rmllllon Lonillion £million £milllon £million £amiliion Emitfion fmillion

31 Dacember 2019
Business Finance

Real Estate Finance 910.2 337 28 35 16.1 - 16.1 962.8

Asset Finance 238 34 0.3 39 1.8 — 1.8 295

Commercial Finance 2440 70 - 7.0 06 - 0.6 2514
Consumer Finance

Retail Finance 6241 803 45 84.8 55 - 55 714.4

Motor Finance 2405 969 27 99.4 17.2 - 17.2 357.3

Consumer Martgages 105.6 - 03 0.3 0.3 - 03 104.2
Cther 05 - - - - - a5
Total drawn exposure 2,148.7 2215 10.6 2321 41.5 - 41.5 2,422.3
Off balance sheet

Loan commitments 2033 - - - - - - 2033
Total gross exposure 2,352.0 221.%5 10.6 2321 41.5 - 41.5 2,625.6
Less:
Impairment allowance {22.8) (22.1) 4.8) (26.9) {12.0) - {19.0 48.7)
Provision for loan
commitments 0.4 - - - - - - (C.4)
Total net exposure 2,328.8 199.4 5.8 205.2 225 - 225 2,556.5
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34. Credit risk continued

Stage 1 Staga 2 Stage 3 Total
fmilion fimillion Emillion £millien £millian gmiliion £million £million

31 December 2018
Business Finance

Real Estate Finance 7233 47.1 - 471 - - - 7704

Asset Finance 55.6 45 05 7.0 32 - 32 858

Commercial Finance 1820 8.8 - 88 0.4 - 0.6 191.4
Consumer Finance

Retail Finance 537.1 741 a9 780 49 - 49 620.0

Motor Finance 200.2 92.7 24 95.1 20.5 - 20.5 3158

Consumer Mortgages 84.9 - - - - - - 4.9
Other 0.6 - - - - - - 0.6
Total drawn exposure 1,783.7 229.2 6.8 236.0 29.2 - 29.2 2,048.9
Off balance sheet

Loan commitments 2631 - - - - - - 2634
Total gross exposure 2,046.8 229.2 6.8 236.0 29.2 - 29.2 2,312.0
Less:
Impairment allowance (20.7} {20.2) “4.1) (24.3} {23.4) - {23.6) (68.6)
Provision for loan
commitments (0.4} - - - - - - 0.4)
Total net exposure 2,025.7 209.0 2.7 211.7 5.4 - 5.6 2,243.0

34.1. Concentration risk

Management assesses the potential concentration risk from geographic, product and individual Joan concentration. Due to the nature
of the Group's lending operaticns the Directors cansider the lending operations of the Group as a whole to be well diversified.
Details of the Group’s loans and advances to customers and loan commitments by product is provided in Note 3.

Geagraphical concentration

The Group’s Real Estate Finance and Consumer Mortgages are secured against UK property only. The geographical concentration of
these business loans and advances to customers, by location of the security is as follows:

Group and Company
Real Estate Consumar
Finance Mortgages
Emillien £millice
31 December 2019
Central England 1271 199
Greater London 4601.8 135
Northern England 485 212
South East England (exc]. Greater London) 160.8 353
South West England 12.8 110
Scotfand, Wales and Northern lreland 118 53
Gross joans and receivables 962.8 106.2
Allowance for impairment 0.6) 0.3
Total 962.2 105.9
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34. Credit risk continued

Real Estata Cansumer
Financs Mortgagss
Emiflion £mifion
31 December 2018
Central England 351 16.2
Greater London 4515 122
Northarn England 37.6 16.6
South East England {excl. Greater London) 2090 263
South West England 9.6 2.3
Scotland, Wales and Northern Ireland 27.6 4.3
Gross loans and receivables 7704 84.9
Allowance for impairment {0.1) 0.2)
Total 770.3 84.7

34.2. Forbearance

At year-end, all bar an insignificant nurnber of customers within the Group's Consumer Mortgage business were up to date with their
monthly payments, Should customers face finandal difficulties, the Group may, depending on individual dircumstances, offer customers
one of 2 number of forbearance options. The types of forbearance the Group was prepared to offer in 2019 included the following:

* Ternporary interest only concessions are offered to customers in financial difficulty on a temporary basis with formal periodic review.
The concession allows the customer to reduce monthly payments to caver interest only, and if made, the arrears status will
not increase

» Arrangement payment plans are agreed to enable customers to reduce their arrears balances by an agreed amount per month
which is paid in addition to their standard monthly repayment

* Payment concessions can be agreed on a temporary basis whereby the customer may pay less than the contractual monthly
payment, in line with their individual affordability. if a customer is within this type of concession, their arrears position will increase

* In exceptional circumstances, capitalisations of arrears may occur or an interest rate adjustment may be applied. These are used
under strict contiols, explicitly where the customer circumstances offer no other option

All forbearance arrangements are formally discussed and agreed with the custorner. By offering customers in financia! difficulty the
option of forbearance the Group potentially exposes itself to an increased level of risk through prolonging the period of non-
contractual payment and/or potentially placing the customer into a detrimental position at the end of the forbearance period.

All forbearance arrangements are reviewad and monitored regularly to assess the ongoing potential risk, suitability and sustainability
to the Group.,

Where forbearance measures are not possible or are considered not to be in the customer's best interests, or where such measures
have been tried and the customer has not adhered to the forbearance terms that have been agreed, the Group will consider realising
its security and taking possession of the property in order to sell it and clear the outstanding debt.

No forbearance arrangements are currently in place in respect of Consumer Mortgages.

Other than Censumer Mortgages, throughout 2019 the Group did not routinely reschedule contractual arrangements where
customers default on their repayments. In cases where it offered the custormer the option to reduce or defer payments for a short
period, the loans retained the normal contractual payment due dates and were treated the same as any other defaulting cases for
impairment purposes. Airears tracking would continue on the account with any impairment charge being based on the original
contractual due dates for all products.
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35. Market risk

Markst risks arise from open positions in interest rate and cusrency products, all of which are exposed to general and specific market
movements. There are no significant exposures to foreign currendies and therefore there is no significant currency risk. The Group does
not operate a trading book.

Interest rate risk

Group and Company

Interest rate risk is the risk of potential loss through unhedged or mismatched asset and liability positions, which are sensitive to
changes in interest rates, When interest rates change, the present value and timing of future cash flows change. This in tum changes
the underlying value of the Group's assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet instruments and hence its economic value. Changes in
interest rates also affect the Group’s earnings by altering interest sensitive income and expenses, affecting its net interest income.

The Group seeks to ‘match’ interest rate risk on either side of the statement of financial positior. However, this is not a perfect match
and interest rate risk is present on the mismatch between fixed rate loans and savings products and variable rate assets and liabilities.

The Group monitors the interest rate mismatch on at least 2 monthly basis using market value sensitivity and earnings at risk.
At 31 December 2019 these were as follows:

2019 218
n Eenillion
Market value sensitivity
+200bps parallel shift in yietd curve 246 0.2
-200bps parallel shift in yield curve (1.0} -
Earnings at risk sensitivity
+100bps parallel shift in yield curve 0.6 1.0

The Directors consider that 200bps in the case of Market value sensitivity and 100bps in the case of Earnings at risk are a reasonzble
approximation of possible changes.

The Group maintained such exposures within the risk appetite set by the Board throughout the year.

Interest rate risks inherent in new products or through changes to the terms and conditions of existing products were assessed over
the coursa of the year,

This potential exposure is managed by the Group Treasury function and averseen by ALCO. The paolicy is not to take significant
unmatched positions.

36. Liquidity risk
Liquiclity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with its finandal liabilities that are
settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.

The Group's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it wil! always have sufficient liquidity to meet its
fiabilities when due, under bath normal and stressed canditions, without ineurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the
Group's reputation, The liquidity requirements of the Group are met through withdrawing funds from its Bank of England Reserve
Account to cover any short-term fluctuations and longer-term funding to address any structural liquidity requirements.

The Group has a formal govemance structure in place to manage and mitigate liquidity risk on a day-to-day basis. The Board sets and
approves the Group’s liquidity risk management strategy. The ALCO, comgprising senior executives of the Company, monitors liquidity
risk. Key liquidity risk management information is reported by the Treasury function and monitored by the Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer on a dally basis. The ALCO meets manthly to review liquidity risk against set thresholds and risk indicators
including early wamning indicators, liquidity risk tolerance levels and ILAAP metrics.
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36. Liquidity risk continued
The Group raised new fixed rate deposits during the year as set out below:

2019 2018

£million Lmibion

Fixed rate bonds 1924 448.4
Notice accounts 329.0 247.6
Individual Savings Accounts 38.2 -
Total 559.6 696.0

The terms of the deposits ranged from 1 to 7 years, and were issued to broadly match the term lending by the Group.

The PRA requires a firm to maintain at alf times liquidity resources which are adequate, both as to amount and quality, to ensure that
there is no significant risk that its kabilities cannot be mat as they fall due. There is also a requirement that a firm ensures its liquidity
resources contain an adequate buffer of high quality, unencumbered assets (i.e. Govemment Securities in the liquidity asset buffer),
and it maintains a conservative funding profile. The liquidity assets buffer is a pool of highly liquid assets that can be called upan to
create sufficient liquidity to meet liabilities on demand, particularly in a period of liquidity stress. The liquidity resources outside the
buffer must either be marketable assets with a demonstrable secondary market that the firm can access, or a credit facility that can be
activated in times of stress. '

The Group has a Board approved ILAAP. The ILAAP rules require the Group to identify, measure, manage and monitor liquidity and
{funding risks across different time horizons and stress scenarios, consistent with the Group risk appetite as established by the Board.
The ILAAP seeks to document the Group's approach to liquidity and funding, and demonstrate that it complies with the Overall
Liquidity Adequacy Rule. The PRAS approach to liquidity supervision is based on the prindiple that a firm must have adequate levels of
liquidity resources and a conservative funding profile, and that it comprehensively manages and controls liquidity and funding risks.
The liquidity buffer required by the I AAP has been put in place and maintained since that time. Liquidity resources outside of the
buffer are made up of deposits placed at the Bank of England. The [LAAP is updated annually.

The prirmary measure used by management to assess the adequacy of liquidity is the Overali Liquidity Adequacy Rule, which is the
Board'’s own view of the Group's liquidity needs as set out in the Board approved ILAAP. The Group maintained liquidity in excess of
the Overall Liquidity Adequacy Rule throughout the year ended 31 December 2019.

The LCR regime has applied to the Group from 1 October 2014, requiring management of net 30-day cash outflows as a proportion of
High Quality Liquid Assets. The Group has set a more conservative intemal limit. The actual LCR has significantly exceeded both limits
throughout the year.

The Group is exposed to daily calls on its available cash rescurces from maturing deposits and oan draw-downs. The Group maintains
significant cash resources to meet all of these needs as they fall due.

The matching and controlfed mismatching of the maturities and interest rates of assets and liabilities is fundamental to the
management of the Group. It is unusual for banks to be completaly matched, as transacted business is often of uncertain term and of
different types.

The maturities of assets and liabilities and the ability to replace, at an acceptable cost, interest hearing liabilities as they mature are
impartant factors in assessing the liquidity of the Group and its exposure to changes In interest rates.
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36. Liquidity risk continued

The tables below analyse the contractual undiscounted cash flows for the financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings:

More than Moara than
Gross nomiasl Not more Smonthsbut 1 yesr butless Mors than
g Sion Endion T mion M iion ™ Gl Eriion
At 31 December 2019
Non-detivative financial liabilities
Due to banks 3085 3121 0.5 46.7 2649 -
Depaosits from customers 2,020.3 208564 292.3 1,055.0 70468 323
Subordinated liabilities 50.6 41.8 0% 25 58.4 -
Other financial liabilities 222 27.2 27.2 - - -
2,406.6 2,487.5 320.9 1,104.2 1,030.1 323
Darivative financial liabilities
Derivative financial instruments 0.6 07 0.1 0.2 04 -
0.5 0.7 0.1 0.2 0.4 -
2,407.2 2,488.2 321.0 1,104.4 1.030.5 323
Mare thae More than
Gross nominal Not mene 3 months but less 1 year but fass Maore than
g dion bt il o Crihon
At 31 December 2018
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Due to banks 2635 2463.5 263.5 - -
Deposits from customers 1,847.7 1,916.3 644.3 4047 855.8 1.5
Subordinated liabilities 50.4 66,9 08 25 63.6 -
Other financial liabilities 2563 263 263 - - -
2,187.9 2,273.0 934.9 407.2 919.4 11.5
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36. Liquidity risk continued

Company
Mors than Miara than
g D I IR (D e
£millon £milon Emillion fmiliian Emitifon fmitlion
At 31 December 2019
Non-derivative financlal liabilities _
Due to banks 308.5 3121 05 45.7 2649 -
Deposits from customers 2,020.3 20864 292.3 1,055.0 7068 323
Subordinated liabilities 50.6 418 0.9 25 58.4 -
Other financiat liabilities 310 310 310 - - -
2,4104 2,49M1.3 324.7 1,104.2 1,030.1 323
Derivative financial fiabilities
Derivative financial instruments 0.6 07 0.1 0.2 04 -
0.6 07 01 0.2 04 -
2,411.0 2,492.0 324.8 1,104.4 1,030.5 323
More than More than
Gross nominal Not more 3 rhonths but less 1 yoar but fess More than
g o S T ien hamen " mien Erion
At 31 December 2018
Non-dearivative financial liabilities
Due to banks 2635 2635 263.5 - - -
Deposits from customers 1,847.7 1,916.3 6443 404.7 855.8 11.5
Subordinated liabilities 50.4 669 038 25 636 -
Other financial liabilities . 374 374 374 - - -
2,199.0 2,284.1 946.0 407.2 219.4 11.5

The maturities of assets and liabilities and the abifity to replace, at an acceptable cost, interest bearing financial liabilities as they
mature are important factors in assessing the liquidity of the Company and Group and its exposure to changes in interest rates and
exchange rates.

Other financial liabilities, as shown above, do not include non-interest accruals as these are not classed as financial liabilities.

37. Capital risk

The Group's capital managemerit policy is focused on optimising shareholder value, in a safe and sustainable manner. There is a dlear
focus on delivering organic growth and ensuring capital resources are sufficient to support planned levels of growth. The Board
regularly reviews the capital position.

in accordance with CRD IV and the required parameters set out in the Capital Requirements Regulation, the Group’s ICAAP is
embedded in the risk management framework of the Graup and is subject to ongoing updates and revisions when necessary.
However, as a minimum, the ICAAP is updated annually as part of the business planning process. The ICAAP is a process that brings
together the management framework {i.e. the policies, procedures, strategies, and systems that the Group has implemented to
identify, manage and mitigate its risks) and the financial disciplines of business planning and capital management.

Not all material risks can be mitigated by capital, but where capital is appropriate the Board has adopted a “Pillar 1 plus’ appreach to
determine the level of capital the Group needs to hold. This method takes the Pillar 1 capital formula calculations (standardised
approach for credit, market and operational risk} as a starting point, and then considers whether each of the calculations delivers a
sufficient capital sum adequate to cover managament's view of anticipated risks, Where it is considered that the Pillar 1 calculations do
not

reflect the risk, an additional capital add-on in Pillar 2 should be applied, in line with the Total Capital Requirement issued by the PRA.
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37. Capital risk continued

Pillar 3 complements the minimum capital requirements {Pillar 1) and the supervisory review process (Piflar 2). Its aim is to encourage
market discipline by developing a set of disclosure requirements which would allow market participants to assess key piecas of
information on a firm’s capital, risk exposures and risk assessment processes. Pillar 3 disdosures for the Group for the year ended

31 December 2019 are published as a separate document on the Group’s website.

The following table, which is unaudited and therefore not in scope of the independent auditor's report, shows the ragulatory capital
resources for the Group. The Group has adopted the IFRS 9 transitional rules. For 2019 this allowed 85% (2018: $5%) of the initial IFRS 9
transition adjustment, net of attributable deferred tax, to be added back to eligible Tier 1 capital. Tier 2 capital comprises solely
subordinated

debt issued during the year net of unamortised issue costs and excluding accrued interest, capped at 25% of the capital requirement.

2019 016
Emlllion £nition
{uniaudited) {unaudited)
Tier 1
Share capital 74 74
Share premium 81.2 81.2
Retained earnings . 164.4 147.4
Revaluation reserve 1.1 1.4
IFRS 9 transition adjustment 228 245
Goodwill (1.0 (1.0)
Intangible assets net of attributable deferred tax 79 (8.8)
CET1 capital before foreseen dividend 2680 251.8
Proposed dividend - {11.8)
CET1 capital 248.0 240.0
Tier 2
Subordinated liabilities ) 50.6 50.4
Less ineligible portion 0.6) @7
Total Tler 2 capital 50.0 45.7
Own Funds 318.0 285.7
Reconcfliation to total aquity:
IERS 2 transition adjustment (22.8) {24.5)
Bligible subordinated Eabilities (50.0} (45.7)
Goodwili and other intangible assets net of attributable deferred tax 89 98
Proposed dividend . - 11.8
Total equity 254.1 2371

The Group ICAAP includes a summary of the capital required to mitigate the identified risks in its regulated entities and the amount of
capital that the Group has available. The PRA sets a Total Capital Requirement (TCR’) for each UK bank calibrated by reference to its
Capital Resources Requirement, which is broadly equivalent to 8% of risk weighted assets and thus representing the capital required
under Pillar 1 of the Basel lll framework. The ICAAP is a kay input into the PRAs TCR setting process, which addresses the requirements
of Pillar 2 of the Basel |l framewark. The PRAS approach is to monitor the available capital resources in relation to the TCR, The Group
maintains an extra internal buffer and capital ratios are reviewad on a monthly basis to ensure that extemal and internal requirements
are adhered to. The PRA reviewed the Group’s [CAAP in 2018 and issued its updated TCR in March 2019,

The Group is also subject to further capital requirements imposed by the PRA on all financial services firms, During the periods, the
Group complied with these requirements,

The Group raised Tier 2 capital in 2018. Further details of the capital issuance are given in Note 28.
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38. Maturity analysis of consolidated assets and liabilities

Group
Duswithin  Dus after more Mo contractusl

enimon T i paind £ration
Contractual maturity analysis at 31 December 2019
ASSETS
Cash and balances at central banks 105.8 - - 1058
Loans and advances to banks 48.4 - - 48.4
Loans and advances to customers 1,080.6 1,341.3 28.2 2,450.1
Debt securities 250 - - 250
Fair value adjustment for portfolio hedged risk - - {0.9) {0.9)
Derivative finandal instruments - 0.8 0.1 0.9
Other assets - - 535 53.5
Total assets 1,259.8 1,3421 80.9 2,682.8
LIABILITIES
Due to banks 455 2630 - 308.5
Deposits from customers 1,355.6 b64.7 - 20203
Fair value adjustment for portfolic hedged risk - - @©.7) Q.7
Derivative financial instruments 0.1 05 - 0.6
Current tax liabilities 33 . - - 33
Lease liabilities 08 3.7 - 45
Other liabilities - - 416 16
Subordinated liabilities 1.2 50.0 0.8) 50.6
Total liabilitles 1,406.5 981.9 40.3 24287

Due within  Pus sfter more  No contractual

one year than ot year rnaturity Total

£million Emillion Emifian £million
Contractual maturity analysis at 31 December 2018
ASSETS
Cash and balances at central banks 169.7 - - 169.7
Loans and advances to banks 44.8 - - 448
Loans and advances to customers 1,035.1 950.2 336 2028.9
Debt securities 149.7 - - 149.7
Other assets - - 51.2 51.2
Total assets 1,399.3 260.2 84.8 2,/444.3
LIABILITIES
Due to banks 2435 - - 24635
Deposits from customers 1,016.6 a31.1 - 1.847.7
Current tax liabilities 42 - - 42
Other liabilities - - 414 414
Subordinated liabilities 1.2 50.0 (0.8) 50.4
Total liabilities 1,285.5 881.1 40.6 2,207.2

The Directors have reviewed behavioural maturity of the loan book and have condudad that it would not significantly affect the
analysis abave.
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38. Maturity analysis of consolidated assets and liabilities continued

Company
Duswithin  Dus sftermors N contractual

oot Emibion i emitom
Contractual maturity analysls at 31 December 2019
ASSETS
Cash and balances at central banks 1058 - - 105.8
Loans and advances to banks 452 - - 45,2
Loans and advances to customers 9945 1,338.7 204 235346
Debt securities 25.0 - - 250
Fair value adjustment for portfolio hedged risk - - 0.9 0.9
Derivative financial instruments o1 08 - a9
Other assets - - 137.2 137.2
Tota! essets 1,170.6 1,339.5 156.7 2,666.8
LIABILITIES
Due to banks 455 263.0 - 308.5
Depuosits from customers 1.35546 6647 - 2,020.3
Fair value adjustment for portfolio hedged risk - - 0.7} {0.7}
Derivative financial instruments 01 0.5 - 0.6
Current tax liabilities 22 - - 22
Lease liabilities 07 24 - 33
Other liabilities - - 427 427
Subordinated liabilities 1.2 500 {0.6) 50.6
Total Habilities 1,405.3 980.8 41.4 2,427.5

Due withes  Dus afte: more  No contractual
ona year than one year malurity Total

Emiflion Emiian £ailfion Erillion
Contractual maturity analysis at 31 December 2018
ASSETS
Cash and balances at central banks 1697 - - 169.7
Loans and advances to banks 119 - - 419
Loans and advances to customers 1,026.5 9538 - 1,980.3
Debt securities 149.7 - - 149.7
Other assets - - 91.4 914
Total assets 1,387.8 953.8 91.4 2,433.0
LIABILITIES
Due to banks 2635 ~ - 2635
Deposits from customers 1,016.6 8311 - 1,8477
Current tax liabilities 3% -~ - 346
Cther liabilities - -~ 50.4 504
Subordinated liabilitias 1.2 50.0 0.8 504
Total liabilities 1,284.9 881.4 496 2,215.6

The Directors have reviewed behavioural maturity of the loan book and have concluded that it would not significantly affect the
analysis above
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39, Classification of financial assets and liabilities
Group

Total carrying

s oilon Herarciy o
At 31 December 2019
Cash and balances at central banks 105.8 1058 Level 1
Loans and advances to banks 484 484 Level 2
Loans and advances to customers 2,450.1 24162 Level 3
Debt securities 250 250 Level 1
Fair value adjustment for portfolio hedged risk (0.9 (0.9 Level 3
Derivative financial instruments 09 09 Level 2
Other financial assets 52 52 Level 3

2,6345 2,600.6

Due to banks 308.5 3085 Level 2
Depasits from customers 2,020.3 20169 Level 3
Fair value adjustment for portfolic hedged risk {0.7) 0.7) Levei 3
Derivative financial instruments 0.4 04  Level2
Other financial liabilities 27.2 222 Level 3
Subordinated liabilities 50.6 50.6 Level 2

2,406.5 2,403.1

Total carying

amount Fav value Fair value
Emillion Emifion  hiersrchy tavel
At 31 December 2018
Cash and balances at central banks 169.7 1697 Level 1
Loans and advances to banks 448 448 Levei 2
Loans and advances to customers 20289 20325 Level 3
Debt securities 149.7 149.7 Levei 1
Other financial assets 14.2 16.2 Level 3
2,409.3 2,412.9
Due to banks 263.5 2635 Level 2
Deposits from custorers 1,847.7 1,859.7 Level 3
Cther financial liabilities 26.3 24.3 Level 3
Subordinated liabilities 50.4 50.4 Level 2

2,187.9 2,199.9

All financial assets and liabilities at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018 were carried at amortised cost, except for derivative
financial instrurments which are value at fair value through profit and loss. Therefore for these assets and liabilities, the fair value

hierarchy noted above relates to the disclosure in this note only.
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39. Classification of financial assets and liabilities continued

Company
Touat c:nm Falr valus Pair value
Emillion fmillion  hlerarchy level
At 31 Decamber 2019
Cash and balances at centrat banks 105.8 105.8 Level 1
Loans and advances to banks 452 45.2 Level 2
Loans and advances to customers 2,353.6 2,319.7 Level 3
Debt securities 250 250 Level 1
Fair value adjustment for portfolio hedged risk 09 09 Levef 3
Derivative financial instruments 0% 09 Level 2
Cther financial assets 93.0 93.0 Level 3
' 2,622.6 2,588.7
Due to banks 3085 3085 Lavel 2
Deposits from customers 2,020.3 20169 Level 3
Fair value adjustment for portfolic hedged risk {.2) 07N level 3
Derivative financial instruments 0.4 0.6 Level 2
Other financial liabilities 31.0 31.0 Level 3
Subordinated liabilities 50.6 50.6 Level 2

2,410.3 2,406.9

Total canying

amount Fair value Fair valre

£miflion friion  hierarchy levsl
At 31 December 2018
Cash and balances at central banks 169.7 169.7 Level 1
Loans and advances to banks 419 419 Level 2
Loans and advances to customers 1,980.3 1,983.9 Level 3
Debt securities 149.7 149.7 Level 1
Other financial assets 60.6 0.6 Level 3

2,402.2 2,405.8

Due to banks 243.5 2635 Level 2
Depasits from customers 1,847.7 1,859.7 Level 3
Other financial liabilities 374 374 Level 3
Subordinated liabilities 504 504 Level 2

2,199.0 2,211.0

Alf financia) assets and Kabilities at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018 were carried at amortised cost except for derivative
financial instrument which are value at fair value through profit and loss. Therefore for these assets, the fair value hierarchy noted above
relates to the disdosure in this note only.

Fair value classification

The tables above include the fair values and fair value hierarchies of the Group and Company’s financial assets and liabilities.

The Group measures fair value using the following fair vakie hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in

making measurements:

 Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or Kabilities

« Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
{i.e. as prices) or indirectly {i.e. derived from prices)

s Leval 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data {uncbservable inputs)
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39, Classification of financial assets and liabilities continued
Cash and balances at cantral banks

The fair value of cash and balances at central banks was calculated based upon the present value of the expected future principal and
interest cash flows. The rate used to discount the cash flows was the market rate of interest at the balance sheet date.

At the end of each year, the fair value of cash and balances at central banks was calculated to be equivalent to their carrying value.

Loans and advances to banks .
The fair value of loans and advances to banks was calculated based upon the present value of the expected future principal and
interest cash flows. The rate used to discount the cash flows was the market rate of interest at the balance sheet date.

Loans and advances to customers

The fair value of loans and advances to customers was calculated based upon the present value of the expected future principat and
interest cash flows. The rate used to discount the cash flows was the market rate of interest at the balance sheet date, and the same

assumptions regarding the risk of default were applied as those used to derive the carrying value.

Debt securities
The fair value of debst securities is based on the quoted mid-market share price.

At the end of December 2019 the fair value of debt securities was caleulated to be equivalent to their carrying value.

Derivative financial instruments

The fair value of derjvative financial instruments was calculated based on the present value of the expected future cash flows of the
instruments. The rate used to discount the cash flows was the market rate of interest at the balance sheet date.

Due to banks
The fair value of amounts due to banks was calculated based upon the present value of the expected future principal and interest cash
flows. The rate used to discount the cash flows was the market rate of interest at the balance sheet date.

At the end of each year, the fair value of amounts due to banks was calculated to be equivalent to their carrying value due to the short
maturity term of the amounts due.

Deposits from customaers

The fair value of deposits from customers was calculated based upon the present value of the expected future principal and interest
cash flows. The rate used to discount the cash flows was the market rate of interest at the balance sheet date for the notice deposits
and deposit bonds. The fair value of instant access deposits is equal to book value as they are repayable on demand.

Dividends and other financial liabilities
The fair value of dividends and other financial liabilities was calculated based upon the present value of the expected future principal
cash flows.

At the end of each year, the fair value of dividends and other financial liabilities was calculated to be equivalent to their carrying value
due to their short maturity. The other financial liabilities include alt other liabilities other than non-interest accruals.

Subordinated liabilities
The fair value of subordinated Eabilities was caleuated based upon the present value of the expected future principal cash flows,

40. Related party transactions

Related parties of the Company and Group indlude subsidiaries, Key Managernent Personnel, dose family members of Key
Management Personnel and entities which are controlted, joirtly controlled or significantly influenced, or for which significant voting
power is held, by Key Management Personnel or their close family members.

A numbser of banking transactions are entered into with related parties in the normal course of business on normal commercial terms.
These include loans and deposits as set out below. The tables on the following page relate to Key Management Personnel, members
of their close family and related entities as described above,
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40. Related party transactions continued

2019 2013
£rillion Lrriliton
Loans
Loans outstanding at 1 January 42 37
Loans advanced 1.3 04
Loan repayments ' (1.3) -
interest applied 0.2 0.1
Loans outstanding at 31 Dacember 44 4.2
Deposits
Deposits outstanding at 1 January 04 04
Change in related parties during the year 0.2 -
Depaosits outstanding at 31 December 0.2 0.4

The loans outstanding above comprise the following;

» A f0Amillion advance (2018: £0.4 millicn) as part of a £2.5 million facility agreed with a company in which a member of the Key
Management Personnel of the Company holds 50% of the voting shares, which is secured by property and personal guarantees

* A £4.0 million advance {2018: £3.8 million} as part of a revised £4.4 million fadlity agreed with a member of the Key Management
Personnel of the Company, which is secured by property and certain other undertakings

Both of these transactions were agreed by the Group's Real Estate Finance business and arose during the nomal course of business.
Both loans were subject to the usual Board governance and Credit Committee approval procedures and are on substantially the same
terms as for comparable transactions with third parties.

The Company undertnak the following transactions with other companies in the Secure Trust Bank Group:

2019 2018
Emilfon Ernillion
Debt Managers {Services} Limited — income from sale of debt portfolio {0.2) {0.2)
Debt Managers (Services) Limited — interest charged (1.1} -
Debt Managers {Services) Limited —- debt collection services 0.6 1.0
Secure Homes Services Limited — building rental paid 04 04
STB Leasing Limited - interest charged 0.2) -
V12 Finance Group Uimited - dividend received {15.1} -
V12 Retail Finance Limited - fees and commission
Loan management services 162 14.9
Sales cammission 7.3 45
7.9 226
The loans and advances with, and arrounts receivable and payable to, related companies are noted below:
Bt S
£million Emifion
Amounts receivable from subsidiary undertakings 88.5 44.5
Amounts due to subsidiary undertakings ‘ (5.5 {14.1}
83.0 304

All amounts above are repayable on demand and interest is charged at a variable rate.
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40. Related party transactions continued

Directors’ remuneration

The Directors’ emoluments including pension contributions and benefits in kind} for the year are disclosed in the Directors’
Remuneration Report beginning on page 82.

At the year-end the ordinary shares held by the Directors are disdosed in the Directors’ report beginning on page 106. Details of the
Directors’ holdings of share options, as well as details of those share options exercised during the year, are also disclosed in the
Directors’ report.

41. Immediate parent company and ultimate controlling party
The Company has had no immediate parent company or ultimate controliing party.

42. Country-by-Country reporting
The Capital Requirements {Country-by-Country Reporting) Regulations 2013 intreduced reporting obligations for institutions within the
scope of CRD M. The requirements aim to give increased transparency regarding the activities of institutions.

The Cauntry-by-Country Information is set cut below:

Nature Turnaver  Numbar of FTE  Profit bafors tax ::‘:’:::
Nams of sctivity Location £miillon employeas fmilllon £miflfon
31 December 2019
Banking
Secure Trust Bank PLC services ux 2123 979 387 1.6
Tax paid
Nature Tumover  Numberof FTE  Profit before Lax on profit
Nama of aciivity Location £milion amployeas Emiliion Lmillion
31 December 2018
Banking
Secure Trust Bank PLC services UK 188.4 851 347 6.4

43, Post balance sheet event — COVID-19

The outbreak of COVID-19 and its impact on the global and UK economies is considered to be a non-adjusting event as, at the
balance sheet date, the scale of the outbreak remained limited and therefore thera was not sufficient information available to have
caused changes to the assumptions applied to the financial position as at 31 Decermnber 2019. The full impact of the outbreak is
currently uncertain and therefore the financial impact on the Group, which will depend upon the extent of the economic downturn
and duration of the current lockdown, cannot be reliably estimated.

The most significant financial impacts of the COVID-19 crisis on the Group are expected to be in respect of significantly reduced
demand for the Group's Consumer Finance products while the UK Government restricts movements, partiautarly for Motor Finance
while the UK used car market remains effectively closed, and on the level of impairment provisioning required. Contraction of the
lending portfolio started to become evident after 31 March 2020, with demand for Motor Finance lending dropping to almost zero,
Retail Finance volumes falling to approximately 50% of expectations and Business Finance new business falling significantly from this
point. The impact on impairments is not yet clear though charges are expected 1o increase, and the sensitivity analysis in Note 2.2
indicates the potential magnitude of this increase in the event of material changes to loan book performance or economic factors.
As at 31 March 2020, 0.5% of Retai] Finance customers and 2.1% of Motor Finance customers had been granted payment holidays,
these being the portfolios where the most material impacts on impairment are expected.

In assessing its viakility, the Group has undertaken specific stress testing which considers the potential impact of the outbreak on
profitability, capital and liquidity levels, These tests considerad two core scenarios, whereby the economy shows a significant fall in
GDP and increase in unemployment prior to recovery. The more severe scenario assumed unemployment to peak at over 10%.
The scenarios were subject to a range of sensitivities, including even higher unemployment rates and a more prolonged period of
poor economic conditions prior to recovery. The Group considers that the results of the stress tests demonstrate that the Group
continues to be viable and a going concem in both scenarios.

The ability to operate effectively is also impacted and steps have been taken in order to mitigate the operational impact on the
business. The senior leadership tsam is closely monitoring the guidanca provided by the UK Government and making changes to
operational practices in order to continue to provide services and support for custorers, whilst also maintaining the health and safety

of employees.
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Five year summary (unaudited)

£rlon Erifion rition it tition
Profit for the year
Interest and similar income 191.4 169.2 149.3 141.1 139.7
Interest expense and similar charges {46.0) (35.5) {26.7) {26.3) {21.6}
Net interest income 145.4 133.7 122.6 114.8 118.1
Net fee and commission income 201 7.9 14.9 14.5 14.4
Operating income 165.5 151.6 137.5 129.3 132.5
Impairment losses on loans and advances (32.6) {32.4} (36.9) (30.3) (24.3)
Arbuthnot Banking Group recharges - - - - .8}
Operating expenses 194.2) {84.5) {71.8 (71.5) 0.9
Profit on sale of equity instruments available-for-sale - - 0.3 - -
Profit before income tax 38.7 34.7 29.3 27.5 3465

2019 8 2017 2016 2015
i Emition Emiltion

Earnings per share for profit attributable to the equity holders
of the Group during the year
{expressed in pence per share) — basic 1468.3 153.2 1288 7541 i57.8

mlion frtion emiion Emilion fmilion
Financial position
Cash and balances at central banks 105.8 169.7 2261 1120 1318
Loans and advances to banks 484 448 343 18.2 1.5
Loans and advances to customers 2,450.1 20289 1,598.3 1,321.0 1,0749
Debt securities 250 1497 5.0 200 38
Fair value adjustment for portfolio hedged risk 09 - - - -
Dearivative financial insruments 09 - - - -
Other assets 535 51.2 219 388 254
Total assets 2,682.8 2,4443 1,891.6 1,510.0 1,247.4
Due to banks 035 2635 1130 700 35.0
Depaosits from customers 20203 1,847.7 1,483.2 1,151.8 1,033.1
Fair value adjustment for portfolio hedged risk 0.7 - - - -
Derivative financial instruments 0.6 - - - -
Subordinated liabilities 504 504 - - -
Other liabilities 424 45.6 463 52.2 38.1
Total shareholders’ equity 254.1 237.1 2491 2360 1M.2
Total liabilitias and shareholdars’ eguity 26828 2,444.3 1,891.6 1,510.0 1,247.4
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Appendix to the Annual Report (unaudited)

Key performance indicators
(i) Margin ratios

Net interest margin is calculated as interest income and similar income less interest expense and similar charges for the financial
period as a percentage of the average loan book, net revenue margin is calculated as operating income for the financial period as a
percentage of the average loan book and gross revenue margin is calculated as interest income and similar income plus fee and
commission income for the finandal period as a percentage of the average loan book. The calautation of the average loan book is the
average of the monthly balance of loans and advances to customers, net of provisions, over 13 months:

2019 2018
Ermbllion £million
Net interest margin
Interast income and similar income 1914 169.2
Interest expense and similar charges (46.0) (35.5)
Net interast income 1454 133.7
Net revenue margin
Net interest income 1454 133.7
Net fee and commission income 20.1 17.9
Operating income 14655 151.6
Gross revenue margin
Interest income and similar income 1914 189.2
Fee and commission income 209 194
Gross revenue 2123 188.6
Opening loan book 2,0289 1,564.5
Elosing loan book 24501 20289
Ayerage loan book . 2,2524 1,818.2
Net interest margin 6.5% 7.4%
Neat revenue margin 7.3% 8.3%
Gross revenue margin 9.4% 10.4%
The margin ratios all measure the yield of the loan book.
A reconciliation of the opening loan book at 1 January 2018 1o the balance sheet is as follows:
1 Januaty
2018
£million
Loan book 1,598.3
IFRS 92 transition adjustment (31.8)
B 1,566.5
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Key performance indicatars continued

{il) Cost ratios

Cost of risk is calculated as impaimment losses on loans and advances to customers for the financial petiod as a percentage of the
average loan book, cost of funds is calculated at interest expense for the financiai period as a percentage of average loan book and
cost

to income ratio is calculated as operating expenses for the financial period as a percentage of operating income for the

financial period:

2019 018

Emilion Sresliion
Net impairment losses on loans and advances to customers 26 324
Average loan book 22524 18182
Cost of risk 1.4% 1.8%
Interest expense 460 358
Average loan book 2.2524 1,818.2
Cost of funds 2.0% 2.0%
Operating expenses 94.2 845
Operating income 165.5 1516
Cost to income ratlo 56.9% 55.7%

The cost of risk measures how effective the Group has been in managing its impaimment fosses. The cost of funds measures the cost of
money being lent to customers. The cost to income ratio measures how efficiently the Group is utiflising its cost base in
producing income,

{ili) Return ratios _
Annualised adjusted return on average assels is calculated as the adjisted profit after tax for the previous 12 months as a percentage
of average assets, annualised adjusted return on average equity is calcufated as the adjusted profit after tax Yor the previous 12 inuniths
as a percentage of average equity and annualised adjusted return on required equity is calculated as the adjusted profit after tax for
the previous 12 months as a percentage of average required equity.

Adjusted profit after tax is profit after tax, adjusted for items that are non-controllable items or other items that fall outside of the
Group's core business activities. A reconciliation of adjusted profit after tax to statutory profit after tax is provided on page 20.

Average assets is calculated as the average of the monthly assets balances, average equity is calculated as the average of the monthly
equity balances and average required equity is calculated as the average of the monthly balances of total required equity.
Total required equity is calculated as the equity required to achieve a CET1 ratio of 12%:

2009 228

Lmittion Errillion

Adjusted profit after tax : 330 299
Opening assets (after IFRS 16/IFRS 2 transition adjustments - see following page) 2,44B.6 1,866.1
Clasing assets 2,682.8 2444.3
Average assets 2,554.9 21824
Opening equity (after IFRS 14/1FRS 9 transition adjustments - see following page) 237.0 2233
Closing equity 254.1 2374
Average equity 243.6 228.9
Opening required equity 2178 173.3
Closing required equity 25t.8 2209
Average required equity 2345 201.7
Annualised adjusted return on average assets 1.3% 1.4%
Annualised adjusted return on average equity 13.5% 13.1%
Annuglised adjusted return on required equity 14.1% 14.8%
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Key performance indicators continued
A recondiliation of assets to the balance sheet is as follows:

2019 08

(opening {opening

balance) bafancel

Emilion Emillion

Balance sheet assets 24443 1,891.6
IFRS 9 transition adjustment - (25.5)
IFRS 16 transition adjustment 4.3 -

2,448.6 1,866.1

A reconciliation of equity to the balance shaet is as follows:

2019 2018

{opening {opening

balanca) balance)

£miflon fmillion

Equity 2374 2491
[FRS @ transition adjustment - {25.8)
IFRS 14 transition adjustment {0.1) -
237.0 223.3

Retum on average assets demonstrates how profitable the Group's assets are in generating revenue. Return an average equityisa
measure of the Group's ability to generate profit from the equity available to it. Return on required equity relates profitability to the
capital that the Group is required 1o hold.

{iv} Funding ratios

The loan to depasit ratio is calculated as the loan book at the year-end, divided by deposits from customers at the year-end, and the
total funding ratio is calculated as the total funding at the year-end, being the sum of deposits fram customers, borrowings under
liquidity support operations and the Term Funding Scheme, and equity, divided by the loan book at the year-end:

2019 2018

£milion Eevillion

Loan book 2,450.1 20289
Depaosits from customers 2,0203 1,847.7
Borrowings under liquidity support operations and the Term Funding Scheme 308.5 2635
Tier 2 capital (including accrued interest) 504 50.4
Equity 254.1 2371
Total funding 26335 2,398.7
Loan to deposit ratio 121.3% 109.8%
Total funding ratio 107.5% 118.2%

The funding ratios measure the Group’s liquidity.

{v) Adjusted earnings per share
Adjusted eamings per ordinary share are calculated by dividing the adjusted profit attributable to equity holders of the parent by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares as follows:

2019 2008
Adjusted profit attributable to equity holders of the parent (Emillion) 330 29.9
Weighted average number of ordinary shares {nurber) 18,476,280 18475229
Adjusted earnings per shara {pence) 178.6 161.8
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Key performance indicators continued

{vi) Adjusted profit and effective adjusted tax rate

Adjusted profit before tax was £41.1 million {2018: £36.7 million). Adjusted profit after tax was £33.0 miflion (2018: £29.9 million).
The Group uses adjusted profit for planning and repotting purposes, as it improves the comparability of information between
reporting periads. The adiustments to profit refate to non-controllable items or other items that fall outside of the Group's core
business activities.

Fair value amortisation refates to the acquisition of V12 Firiance Group. The acquisition accounting required identifiable assets and
lisbilities to be adjusted to their fair value, and these adjustments are subject to amortisation.

Transformation costs comprise principally costs of the Motor Transformation Programme and treasury development {31 December
2018: comprised principally costs of closing the unsecured personal fending preduct, the cost of potential corporate acquisition work
and treasury development).

Bonus payments of £0.1 million (2018: £1.3 million} relate to a long term incentive plan that was set up for a small number of employees
on the creation of the Commercial Finance business. The scheme is based on profits earned by that business up to the end of 2619,
and is payable in 2020.

The revaluation deficit of £1.1 million (2018: £n) relates to stamp duty and irrecoverable VAT incurred on the acquisition of a freehold
property during the year.
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Glossary

Tarm Explanstion

AlM The Alternative Investment Market is the London Stock Exchange’s interational market for smaller
growing companies. A wide range of businesses including early stage, venture capital backed as well
as more established companies join AIM seeking access to growth capital.

ALCO The Assets and Liabilities Committee. The remit of the Committee can be found on the Group’s
website: www.securetrustbank.com/cur-corporate-information/risk-management.

Bank of England The Bank of England promotes the good of the people of the United Kingdom by maintaining
monetary and financial stability. It also performs a supervisory role of the banking system via the
Prudential Regulation Authority.

CET1 capital Common Equity Tier 1 capital comprises a bank’s core capitaf and includes common shares, stock

surpluses resulting from the issue of common shares, retained earnings, commion shares issued by
subsidiaries and held by third parties, and accumulated other comprehansive income.

CET1 capital ratio

The Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio is the ratio of the bank’s CET1 capital ta its Total Risk
Exposure. This signifies a bank’s financial strength. The CET1 capital ratio is utilised by regulators and
investors because it shows how well a bank can withstand financial stress and remain solvent.

CRD IV

Capital Requirements Diractive IV is intended to implement the Basel {ll agreement in the EU. This
indudes enhanced requirements for the quality and quantity of capital; a basis for new liquidity and
leverage requirements; new rules for counterparty risk; and new macroprudential standards induding a
countercyclical capital buffer and capital buffers for systemically important institutions.

Credit impaired assets

Financial assets that are considered to be in default or ‘stage 3’ assets. There are no material differences
in the Group’s definition of ‘stage 3, credit-impaired or default assets.

Financial assets are considered to be stage 3 when an event or events have occurred that have a
detrimental impact on estimated future cash flows. Evidence may include initiation of bankruptey

proceedings,
notification of bereavement, loan meeting debt sale criteria or inftiation of repossessions proceedings.

As a backstop a loan that is 90 days or more past due is considered credit-impaired for all portfolios.

Capital Requirerment

The EU regulation implementing CRD IV directly across the EU.

Regulation

DBP Deferred Bonus Plan.

Default Refer to definition of credit-impaired assets above,

DMS Debt Managers (Services) Limited, the wholly owned subsidiary of Secure Trust Bank PLC, responsible

for carrying out rarket leading debt recovery services to the credit industry.

Expected credit joss ('ECL)

ECLs are probability weighted estimates of credit losses which are measured as the present value of all
cash shortfalls. Specificatly this is the difference between the contractual cash flows due and the cash
flows expected to be received, discounted at the original effective interest rate or, for portfolios
purchased outside of the Group by DMS, the credit adjusted effective interest rate.

EU

European Union.

Feefo

The Feedback Forum collects independent reviews from the customers of over 2,500 businesses.

Financial Conduct Authority The Financial Conduct Authority is the conduct regulator for 58,000 financial services firms and

financial markets in the UK. Its aims are to protect consumers, enhance market integrity and
promote competition.

The Financial Ombudsman

Service

Set up by Parliament, the Financial Ombudsman Service settles individual disputes between
consumers and businesses that provide financial services fairly and impartially, and have the power to
put things right.

Financial Services
Compensation Scheme

The Financial Services Compensation Scheme protects consumers when authorised financial services
firms fail.
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continued

Tarm

Explanation

General Data Protection
Regulation or GDPR

The General Data Protection Regulation (Requlation (EU} 20146/679) is a regulation by which the
European Parliament, the European Coundil and the European Commission intend ta strengthen and
unify data protection far individuals within the European Union, it also addresses export of personal
data outside the European Unicn.

High Quality Liquid Assets

High Quality Liquid Assets are assets with a high potential to be converted easily and quickly into cash.
This is comprised of cash and balances at central banks and treasury bills that are the subject of a
repurchase agreement (see below),

IAS

International Accounting Standard.

{CAAP

Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Pracess. A firm must cany out an ICAAP in accordance with the
PRAS ICAAP rules. These include requirements on the firm to undertake a regular assessment of the
amounts, types and distribution of capital that it considers adequate ta cover the level and nature of
the risks to which it is or might be exposed.

IFRS

Internaticnal Financial Reporting Standard.

The Internal Liquidity Adequacy Assessment Process allows firms to assess the level of liquidity and
funding that adequately supports all relevant current and future liquidity risks in their business,

In undertaking this process, a firm should be able to ensure that it has appropriate processes in place
to ensure compliance with the CRD IV, This requires firms to develop and use appropriate risk and
liquidity management techniques.

TR

The Bank of England’s Indexed Long Term Repo operations are a compeonent of the Bank's liquidity
insurance as part of its Sterfing Monetary Framework. It is designed to provide predictable and regular
liquidity to banks and other participants.

LCR

The Liquidity Coverage Ratic regime requires management of net 30-day cash outfiows as a
proportion of High Quality Liquid Assets. The Group has set a more prudent internal limit than that
proposed in guidance from the regulator.

LTe

Long term incentive plan.

MREL

Minimum Requirement for Own Funds and Eligible Liabilities ragime.

OLAR

The Overall Liquidity Adequacy Rule is the Board’s own view of the Group's liquidity needs as set cut
in the Board approved ILAAF.

Piflar 1, Pillar 2 and Pillar 3

Basel 1l uses a ‘three pitlars’ concept — (1} Pilfar 1 - minimum capital requirements {addressing risk}
using a standardised approach for credit, market and operational risk, (2) Pillar 2 - supervisory review
process and (3) Pillar 3 - market discipline and enhanced disciosures. Base! |l is the second of the Basel
Accords, {now extended and partially superseded by Base! lll}, which are recommendations on
banking laws and regulations issued by the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision,

PRA

The Prudential Regulation Authority was created as a part of the Bank of England by the Financial
Services Act (2012) and is responsible for the prudential regulation and supervision of around 1,700
banks. The PRAS objectives are set out in the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000, but the main
objective is to promote the safety and soundness of the firms it regulates.

Repurchase agreement

A repurchase agreement is a form of short-term barrowing for dealers in government securities,
The dealer sells the government securities to investors, and buys thesn back at an agreed point in
the future.

SME

Small to medium sized enterprises.

Stage 1 assets

Financial assets which have:

* been determined to be low credit risk at the reporting date

* not experienced a significant increase in credit risk since their initial recognition; or

* have experienced a significant increase in credit risk since initial recegnition but have since met the
Group's cure policy (refer to Note 1 for the Group's cure policy.

Credit losses for such assets are measured as an amount ecual to 12 months’ ECL.
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Expianation

Stage 2 assets

Financial assets that have experiencad a significant increase in credit risk since their initial recognition
and have not subsequently met the Group's cure policy (refer to Nate 1 for further detail).

As a backstop, the Group considers a significant increase in credit risk occurs no later than when an
asset is more than 30 days past due for all portfolias.

Credit losses for such assets are measured as an amount equal to lifetime ECL, as defined in Note 1.

Stage 3 assets

Refer to definition of credit-impaired assets above.

Term Funding Scheme

The Term Funding Scheme is designed to reinforce the transmission of Bank Rate cuts to those
interest rates actually faced by households and businesses by providing term funding to banks at rates
close to Bank Rate. The Term Funding Scheme alfows participants to borrow central bank reserves in
exchange for eligible collateral.

Tier 2 capital

Tier 2 capital is the secondary component of bank capital, in addition to Tier 1 capital, that makes up a
bank's required reserves. Tier 2 capital is designated as supplementary capital, and is composed of
subordinated liabilities, net of issue costs.

Total Capital Requirement

Guidance given to a firm about the amount and quality of capital resources that the PRA considers
that firm should hold at all times under the overali financial adequacy rule as it applies on a solo level
or a consolidated level.

Total Risk Exposure

Total Risk Exposure is the total of the Group's risk-weighted assets.
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Corporate contacts and advisers

Secretary & Registered Office

M P D Stevens FCG
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West Midlands
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T0121 4939100
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Deloitte LLP

Four Brindleyplace
Birmingham
B12HZ

Principal Banker
Barclays Bank PLC

38 Hagley Road
Edgbaston
Birmingham

B14 8NY

Stockbrokars
Canaccord Genuity Limited
88 Wood Street

London

EC2V QR

Stifel Nicolaus Europe Limited
150 Cheapside

London

EC2V 6ET

Registrar

Link Asset Services
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34 Becdkenham Road
Beckenham

Kent
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